
  

Generated 9/19/2016 4:30 PM 

The Columbia City Council will conduct a Work Session & Council Meeting at 2:00 p.m. 
and 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, September, 20, 2016 at City Hall, Council Chambers, 1737 Main 
Street, 3rd Floor, Columbia, SC 29201. The full agenda packet can be viewed online at 
www.columbiasc.net/city-council/agendas. 

 
The Honorable Mayor Stephen K. Benjamin  The Honorable Sam Davis, District I 

The Honorable Tameika Isaac Devine, At-Large  The Honorable Leona K. Plaugh, District IV  
The Honorable Moe Baddourah, District III  The Honorable Howard Duvall, Jr., At-Large  

The Honorable Edward McDowell, Jr., District II 
 

Prior to entering the meeting please turn all electronic communication devices to the silent, vibrate or off 
position. All presenters are asked to speak directly into the microphone for recording purposes.  

 

WORK SESSION - 2:00 P.M. 

ROLL CALL 

INVOCATION 

CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION 

1. Two Notch Road (Phase 1) Facade Project Update - Ms. Gerry Lynn Hall, Program 
Coordinator for the Office of Business Opportunities  

2. Public Life Public Space Action Plan - Mr. John Fellows, AIA, AICP, Planning 
Administrator for the Planning and Development Department and Ms. JoAnn Turnquist, 
President & CEO of the Central Carolina Community Foundation  

3. Changes in Parking Enforcement Hours in Five Points - Ms. Melissa Gentry, P.E., 
Assistant City Manager for Operations  

4. Parking Ordinance Revisions - Ms. Melissa Gentry, P.E., Assistant City Manager for 
Operations and Ms. Jeanne Lisowski, Esq., Assistant City Attorney  

5. Storm Water Project List / Proposed Bond Discussion - Ms. Melissa Gentry, P.E., 
Assistant City Manager for Operations  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 



 

 
Page 2 of 14 

6. Discussions incident to proposed contractual arrangements - §30-4-70(a)(2): - Parking  

7. Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of 
services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area 
served by the public body – S.C. Code §30-4-70(a)(5)  

8. Receipt of legal advice which relates to matters covered by attorney-client privilege - 
S.C. Code  §30-4-70(a)(2)  

US DOT v. Association of American Railroads 

COUNCIL MEETING - 6:00 P.M. 

ROLL CALL 

INVOCATION 

Chaplain Billie Bright, Columbia Fire Department  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

PUBLIC INPUT RELATED TO AGENDA ITEMS 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 9 THROUGH 19 AND 21 THROUGH 25 

CONSIDERATION OF BIDS & AGREEMENTS 

9. Council is asked to approve a Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Contract Renewal for Professional 
Services related to the retention of Military Personnel, Services and Operations located at 
Fort Jackson during the upcoming rounds of Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) and 
Sequestration, as requested by the Economic Development  Department. Award to the 
Greater Columbia Chamber of Commerce in the amount of $53,500.00. This firm is 
located in Columbia, SC.  

Funding Source: Special Contracts 5511301-638300 - The original budgeted amount is $53,500.00. 

10. Council is asked to approve a Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Contract Renewal for Professional 
Services for Assistance with Cluster Development, Project Management, Promotions, 
Marketing and Research, as requested by the Economic Development Department. 
Award to EngenuitySC in the amount of $65,000.00. This firm is located in Columbia, 
SC.  

Funding Source: Special Contracts 5511301-638300 - The original budgeted amount is $65,000.00. 



 

 
Page 3 of 14 

11. Council is asked to approve a Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Contract Renewal for Professional 
Services for Assistance with Recruitment, Project Management, Promotions, Marketing, 
and Research, as requested by the Economic Development Department. Award to Central 
SC Alliance in the amount of $120,500.00. This firm is located in Columbia, SC.  

Funding Source: Special Contracts 5511301-638300 - The original budgeted amount is $120,500.00. 

12. Council is asked to approve the Purchase of seventy-five (75) Safariland Body Armor, as 
requested by the Police Department.  Award to Lawmen's using the SC State Contract in 
the amount of $59,535.00. This vendor is located in Columbia, SC.  

Funding Source:Police Department – Uniforms and Clothing,1012402 –624100. The original budgeted 
amount is $59,535.00. 

13. Council is asked to approve a Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Contract Renewal for Emergency 
Notification System Services, as requested by Columbia-Richland 911 Communications. 
Award to Everbridge Systems in the amount of $75,500.00. This firm is located in 
Columbia, SC.  

Funding Source: City Account:1012701-638200 ($37,750)  and County Account: 2082702-638200 
($37,750). The original budgeted amount is $75,500.00. 

14. Council is asked to approve a Contract to Provide Project Management Services, as 
requested by the Budget and Program Management Office. Award to Advanced 
Automation Consulting in the amount of $76,440.00. This firm is located in Irmo, SC.  

Funding Source: General Admin Information Tech/Professional Services, 6218954-636600. The original 
budgeted amount is $76,440.00. 

15. Council is asked to approve the Purchase of one (1) Heavy Duty Backhoe, as requested 
by the Wastewater Maintenance Division. Award to Blanchard Machinery, a Local 
Business Enterprise using the SC State Contract in the amount of $101,655.00. This 
vendor is located in Columbia, SC.  

Funding Source: Utilities Water Distribution and Maintenance / Auto, Trucks, Heavy Equipment Capital 
5516203 - 658500. The original budgeted amount is $101,655.00. 

16. Council is asked to approve the Purchase of a 2016 Caterpillar Excavator, as requested by 
the Wastewater Maintenance Division. Award to Blanchard Machinery, a Local Business 
Enterprise using the SC State Contract in the amount of $128,320.20. This vendor is 
located in Columbia, SC.  

Funding Source: Utilities Wastewater Maintenance / Machinery and Equipment Capital 5516205 - 658300. 
The original budgeted amount is $128,320.20. 



 

 
Page 4 of 14 

17. Council is asked to approve the Purchase of 3,000 Green ninety-six (96) Gallon Toter 
Roll Carts, as requested by the Solid Waste Division. Award to Wastequip, using the 
National Joint Powers Alliance Cooperative Contact in the amount of $163,895.13. This 
vendor is located in Charlotte, NC.  

Funding Source: Solid Waste Roll Carts-Roll Carts and Recycle Bins 1014401-627600. The original 
budgeted amount is $163,895.13. 

18. Council is asked to approve the Purchase of one (1) Ford F750 Truck with a Crane 
Mount, as requested by the Water Distribution Division. Award to H & E Equipment 
Services, using the National Joint Powers Alliance Cooperative Contract in the amount of 
$191,160.00. This vendor is located in Columbia, SC.  

Funding Source: Utilities Water Dist & Maint - Autos, Trucks, Heavy Equipment Capital 5516203-658500. 
The original budgeted amount is $191,160.00. 

19. Council is asked to ratify the approval of Project SS739901; Sewer Replacement on 
Tanglewood Road, as requested by the Utilities and Engineering Department.  Award to 
Shady Grove Construction in an amount not to exceed $391,770.50, which includes the 
contractor's bid amount of $356,155.00 and the owner's contingency amount of 
$35,615.50.  This firm is located in Irmo, SC.  

Funding Source: Capital Improvement Fund, 5529999-658650/SS739901-658650 - This is a Clean Water 
2020 Program Project and the origial budgeted amount is $390,890.50.  
 
Sub-consultant services will be at $105,140.00 of the contract value. 
 
$12,740.00 - Fortiline Waterworks of Columbia, SC will provide pipe and appurtenances 
$32,400.00 - Capital Concrete of Lexington, SC will provide flowfill 
$60,000.00 - B&H Paving of Gaston, SC will provide asphalt/paving 

ORDINANCES - SECOND READING 

20. Ordinance No.:  2016-083 - Granting an Easement to South Carolina Electric and Gas 
Company (SCE&G) along a portion of 4011 Beltline Boulevard, Richland County 
TMS#11610-05-26 for utilities to serve the City’s new Water and Wastewater Office 
Facility; CF#250-412 - First reading approval was given on September 6, 2016.  

21. Ordinance No.:  2016-084 - Authorizing the conveyance of approximately 0.010 acre 
(428 square feet) portion of  Richland County TMS #22906-04-22 to Richland County 
for Intersection Improvements at  North Springs Road (S40-1834) and Risdon Way (S40-
2271); CF#250-398  

EVENT RESOLUTIONS 



 

 
Page 5 of 14 

22. Resolution No.:  R-2016-063 - Authorizing consumption of beer and wine only at the 
Chili Cook Off in Five Points in the 700 and 800 blocks of Pavilion Avenue and 2100 
and 2200 blocks of Greene Street on Saturday, November 12, 2016  

23. Resolution No.:  R-2016-065 - Authorizing consumption of beer and wine only at Soda 
City Crit on Saturday, December 17, 2016  

24. Resolution No.:  R-2016-066 - Authorizing consumption of beer and wine only at Vista 
Lights 2016 on November 17, 2016  

25. Resolution No.:  R-2016-068 - Authorizing consumption of beer and wine beverages only 
at the USC Alumni Center Homecoming Celebration and Grand Opening of Foundation 
Square on November 4, 2016  

CONSIDERATION OF BIDS & AGREEMENTS 

26. Council is asked to approve Project WM423101; Canal Clearwell and High Service 
Rooms II & III  Improvements, as requested by the Utilities and Engineering Department. 
Award to M.B. Kahn Construction Company in an amount not to exceed $41,480,900.00. 
This firm is located in Columbia, SC.  

Funding Source: Water Improvement Fund, 5529999-WM423101-658650. This is a Subcontracting 
Outreach Program Project. A portion of this project ($28,018,375.00) will be funded in the FY 15/16  CIP 
budget; the remaining amount of $13,462,525 will be funded from the FY 16/17  CIP budget. 
 
The total subcontracting services for this project is $24,227,024.32 which is approximately 58.4% of the 
total contract value.  
  
In an effort to further increase DBE participation on this proposed project, the City has successfully 
renegotiated the subcontracting goals. This resulted in a total of $6,071,570 (14.6% of the total project 
cost) being proposed for awarding to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs).   
 
There are twenty-two (22) subcontractors that have been identified to provide services under the proposed 
contractual agreement. Please refer to the attached Business Information Records. 
 
$158,000.00 (0.65%) - Harrelson Painting of Swansea, SC will provide painting services. 
 
$72,160.00 (0.3%) - Mid-Atlantic Crane of Raleigh, NC will provide bridge crane services. 
 
$850,500.00 (3.5%) - Blynn Metal Crafts, a Women Owned Business Enterprise of Willis, TX will provide 
misc. metals services. 
 
$4,584,000.00 (18.92%) - Utility Electric, a Women Owned Business Enterprise of Anderson, SC will 
provide electric services. 
 
$637,070.00 (2.6%) - Corley Construction, a Minority Business Enterprise of Irmo, SC will provide 
demolition stone base curb & gutter services. 



 

 
Page 6 of 14 

 
$477,900.00 (1.9%) - Industrial HVAC of Columbia, SC will provide Heating Ventilating & Air 
Conditioning services. 
 
$1,600,000.00 (6.6%) - ARGOS of Columbia, SC will provide concrete supply services. 
 
$1,300,000.00 (5.37%) - CMC of Columbia, SC will provide rebar supply services. 
 
$1,275,792.00 (5.27%) - HD Supply of Charlotte, NC will provide ductile iron pipe services. 
 
$1,437,980.00 (5.94%) - McKinney of Lithia Springs, GA will provide drilled shafts services. 
 
$7,600.00 (.03%) - CNT of North Charleston, SC will provide helical pipes services. 
 
$693,990.00 (2.86%) - DeZurik of Matthews, NC will provide valves services. 
 
$159,801.00 (0.66%) - C.R. Jackson, Inc. of Columbia, SC will provide paving services. 
 
$6,830,000.00 (28.19%) - Heyward Services, Inc. of Charlotte, NC will provide process equipment service. 
 
$1,853,000.00 (7.65%) - MR Systems of Norcross, GA will provide instrumentation & controls services. 
 
$374,361.00 (1.55%) - Clearwater of Hickory, NC will provide mixers services. 
 
$96,330.00 (0.4%) - EW2 of Matthews, NC will provide gates services. 
 
$1,565,885.00 (6.46%) - IPR of Stone Mountain, GA will provide soil stabilization geopolymer lining 
services. 
 
$14,915.88 (.06%) - Quality Woodtruss of Newberry, SC will provide trusses services. 
 
$114,862.00 (.47%) - T&E Specialites of Lexington, SC will provide roofing services. 
 
$78,297.44 (.32%) - McKnight of West Columbia, SC will provide doors services. 
 
$44,580.00 (.18%) - Stonhard of Shade, NJ will provide flooring services. 

PRESENTATIONS 



 

 
Page 7 of 14 

27. Introduction of the July 2016 Employee of the Month (Ms. Miranda Lurks, 
Telecommunicator) - Ms. Kimberly Gathers, Director of Columbia-Richland 911 
Communications Center  

28. Presentation of the Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement Award to the 
Columbia-Richland 911 Communications Center  

29. National Museum of African American History and Culture Day Proclamation - The 
Honorable Mayor Stephen K. Benjamin  

30. Columbia Museum of Art Update - Ms. Karen Brosius, Executive Director / Columbia 
Museum of Art  

ORDINANCES - FIRST READING 



 

 
Page 8 of 14 

Building Codes in Effect for South Carolina and City of Columbia (Items 31-39)  

31. Ordinance No.:  2016-068 - Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 
2, Building Code, Sec. 5-51, Adoption; conflicting provisions  

32. Ordinance No.:  2016-069 - Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 
3, Gas Code, Sec. 5-71, Adoption; Conflicting provision  

33. Ordinance No.:  2016-070 - Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 
4, Plumbing Code, Sec. 5-91, Adoption; conflicting provisions  

34. Ordinance No.:  2016-071 - Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 
5, Electric Code, Sec. 5-111, Adoption; conflicting provisions  

35. Ordinance No.:  2016-072 - Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 
6, Mechanical Code, Sec. 5-131, Adoption; conflicting provisions  

36. Ordinance No.:  2016-073 - Amending Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, 
South Carolina, Chapter 5, Buildings  and Building Regulations,  Article II, Building and 
Technical Codes, Division 7, Property Maintenance Code, Sec. 5-151, Adoption; 
conflicting provisions  

37. Ordinance No.:  2016-074 - Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, Buildings and Building Regulations, Article II, 
Building and Technical Code, Division 8, Sec. 5-171, Adoption; conflicting provisions  

38. Ordinance No.:  2016-075 - Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 
9, International Residential Code for One- and Two Family Dwellings, Sec. 5-191, 
Adoption; conflicting provisions  

39. Ordinance No.:  2016-076 - Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection,  Article IV, Fire 
Prevention Code, Sec. 9-61, Adoption  

40. Ordinance No.:  2016-088 - Authorizing the City Manager to execute a Lease Renewal 
Agreement with Branch Banking and Trust Company (BB&T) for use of 3905 Ensor 
Avenue (Lutheran Survey Building)  



 

 
Page 9 of 14 

41. Ordinance No.:  2016-089 - Authorizing the City Manager to execute a Eighth 
Amendment to Purchase Agreement between the City of Columbia and Bright-Meyers 
2001 LLC for the sale of 5.97 +/-acres (Capital City Stadium), Richland County TMS 
#11204-02-02  

42. Ordinance No.: 2016-090 - Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 12, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article II, Stopping, 
Standing and Parking, Division 1, Generally, Sec. 12-43 Parking prohibited during 
certain hours in designated places; Sec. 12-45 Stopping, Standing or parking in loading 
zone; Sec. 12-9 Parking for certain purposes prohibited; Sec. 12-51 Use of loading zones; 
Sec. 12-52 Certain parked vehicles declared nuisance; Division 2 Parking Meter Zones, 
Sec. 12-72 Location and operation of meters; Sec. 12-73 Marking of spaces; vehicles to 
be parked within  markings; Sec. 12-74 Parking position; Sec. 12-75 Deposit of coin; 
Sec. 12-76 Overtime parking; Sec. 12-77 Depositing slugs; Sec. 12-78 Defacing or 
injuring meters; Sec. 12-80 Disposition of revenue; and Sec. 12-81 Exemptions  

43. Ordinance No.:  2016-091 - Amend Ordinance 2015-092 to Extend the Temporary 
Waiver of Permit Fees for Flood Damaged Property through January 31, 2017  

44. Ordinance No.: 2016-085 - Annexing 1286 Beechfern Circle, 1291 Beechfern Circle, 
1335 Beechfern Circle, 1340 Beechfern Circle, 1341 Beechfern Circle, Detention Pond, 
40 Foot Buffer, 1311 Beechfern Circle, 1292 Beechfern Circle (Open Area), Richland 
County TMS# 25815-01-30, 25815-02-34, 25815-02-27, 25815-01-21, 25815-02-26, 
25815-01-20, 25815-01-19, 25815-05-06, 25815-02-31 and 25815-01-29  

45. Ordinance No.: 2016-086 - Annexing 509 Cordgrass Road, 521 Cordgrass Road, 531 
Cordgrass Road, 1347 Beechfern Circle, 1361 Beechfern Circle, 1367 Beechfern Circle, 
1378 Beechfern Circle, 1412 Beechfern Circle, Richland County TMS# 25815-02-06, 
25815-02-09, 25815-02-13, 25815-02-15, 25815-02-17, 25815-02-18, 25815-01-11 and 
25815-01-05  

46. Ordinance No.: 2016-087 - Annexing N/S Deerpark Drive, N/S Island View Circle, and 
Jacobs Mill Pond Road, Richland County TMS #28912-02-01, 28912-03-01 and 28900-
01-16  

RESOLUTIONS 



 

 
Page 10 of 14 

47. Resolution R-2016-069 - Adopting the All Natural Hazards Risk Assessment and 
Mitigation Plan for the Central Midlands Region of South Carolina Update  

48. Resolution No.:  R-2016-070 - Committing the City of Columbia to Providing a Local 
Match for a Municipal Association of South Carolina Hometown Economic Development 
Grant Add-On 

PUBLIC HEARING 

49. 2015 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report - Ms. Gloria Saeed, Interim 
Director of Community Development  

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT PUBLIC HEARING - FIRST READING 

50. 1104 Deerpark Drive, TMS# 28900-01-41  

Ordinance No.: 2016-079 - Amending the City of Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use 
Map to include 1104 Deerpark Drive, Richland County TMS # 28900-01-41; annexed by Ordinance No.: 
2016-04 7 enacted July 19, 2016 
 
Council District: 4 
 
Proposal:Request to amend Chapter 8.3 of The Columbia Plan: 2018 - Future Land Use Map to include 
the above property and confirm interim land use classification of Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-
2) The property was annexed on July 19, 2016.  
 
Applicant:Prime Development LLC, 1712 Woodcreek Farms Road, Elgin, SC 29045 
 
Staff Recommendation:Approval 
 
PC Recommendation:06/06/2016; Approval (7-0) 

51. The Village, Phase 1A, 9 & 13 S. Olmsted Lane, TMS# 28902-14-01 and 28902-14-02  

Ordinance No.: 2016-078 - Amending the City of Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use 
Map to include 9 South Olmsted Lane, Richland County TMS # 28902-14-02; and 13 South Olmsted Lane, 
Richland County TMS # 28902-14-01 annexed by Ordinance No.: 2016-045 enacted July 19, 2016 
 
Council District: 4 
 
Proposal:Request to amend Chapter 8.3 of The Columbia Plan: 2018 - Future Land Use Map to include 
the above property and confirm interim land use classification of Urban Edge Residential Small Lot (UER-
1). The property was annexed on July 19, 2016 
 
Applicant:D.R. Horton, INC. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 



 

 
Page 11 of 14 

 
PC Recommendation: 04/04/2016; Approval (7-0) 

52. 4202-06 N. Main Street, 4201-05 Horry Street, 1206-10 Kinderway Avenue, TMS 
#09215-14-01  

Ordinance No.: 2016-080 - Amending the City of Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use 
Map for 4202 North Main Street,4204 North Main Street, 4206 North Main Street; 4201 Harry Street, 4205 
Harry Street, 1206 Kinderway Avenue, and 1210 Kinderway Avenue, Richland County TMS #09215-74-01 
 
City Council District: 1 
 
Proposal: Request to amend Chapter 8.3 of The Columbia Plan 2018 - Future Land Use Map to modify the 
land use classification from UCMR-1 to SD-5. 
  
Applicant: City of Columbia 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 
 
PC Recommendation: 07/11/2016; Approval (7-0) 

53. West Gervais District Plan  

Ordinance No.: 2016-081 - Adopting the West Gervais District Plan as an addendum to The Columbia 
Plan 2018 
 
City Council District:2 
 
Proposal:Request that City Council adopt the West Gervais District Plan as an addendum to the City of 
Columbia’s Comprehensive Plan. 
  
Applicant:City of Columbia 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval  
 
PC Recommendation: 07/11/2016; Deferred; 08/01/2016; Approval with Modification (6-1) 

ZONING PUBLIC HEARING - 7:00 P.M. 

AMENDMENT TO THE GUIDELINES - FIRST READING 

54. Pursuant to §17-654(B), Amend the Design Guidelines for the West Gervais Historic 
Commercial District (§17-681(D)(1)) and the West Gervais Historic Protection Area 
District (§17-681(C)(6))  

Council District: 2 
 



 

 
Page 12 of 14 

Proposal: Request the adoption of revised guidelines for the West Gervais Historic Commercial District 
(§17-681(d)(1)) and the West Gervais Historic Protection Area District (§17-681(c)(6)) pursuant to §17-
654(b). 
 
Applicant: Krista Hampton, Planning & Development Services Director, City of Columbia 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 
 
D/DRC Recommendation:07/14/2016; Approval (7-0) 
 
PC Recommendation: 07/11/2016; Deferred; 08/01/2016; Approval (6-1) 

MAP AMENDMENT - FIRST READING 

55. 1104 Deerpark Drive, TMS# 28900-01-41  

City Council District:4 
 
Proposal:Request to establish City of Columbia zoning of Planned Unit Development-Residential District, 
and -Flood Protective Area where applicable (PUD-R, -FP) on the property. The property was annexed on 
July 19, 2016 
 
Applicant:Prime Development LLC 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 
 
PC Recommendation: 06/06/2016; Approval (7-0) 

56. The Village, Phase 1A, 9 & 13 S. Olmsted Lane, TMS# 28902-14-01 and 28902-14-02  

City Council District:4 
 
Proposal: Request to establish City of Columbia zoning of Planned Unit Development-Residential District 
(PUD-R) on the property. The property was annexed on July 19, 2016. 
 
Applicant: D.R. Horton, Inc. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 
 
PC Recommendation: 04/04/2016; Approval (7-0) 

57. 2210 Rosewood Drive, TMS#11313-17-03  

Council District: 3 
 
Proposal: Rezone the parcel from C-1 to C-2 
 
Applicant:Tony Moreland 
 



 

 
Page 13 of 14 

Staff Recommendation: Denial 
 
PC Recommendation: 07/11/2016; Approval (7-0) 

58. 1012 Woodrow Street, TMS#11413-05-2  

Council District: 3 
 
Proposal: Rezone the parcel from C-1 to C-2 
 
Applicant:Sharon D. Kerr 
 
Staff Recommendation: Denial 
 
PC Recommendation: 07/11/2016; Denial (6-0) 

ANNEXATION, COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AMENDMENT & ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT - FIRST READING 

59. 523 Winmet Drive, TMS #11702-02-12 and N/S Amberley Road, TMS #11702-02-21  

Ordinance No.: 2016-082 - Annexing and Incorporating 523 Winmet Drive and N/5 Amberley Road, 
Richland County TMS #11702-02-12 and 11702-02-21 into the Plan Columbia Land Use Plan Putting the 
Pieces Together adopted by Ordinance No.: 2015-014 on February 17, 2015 
 
Council District:1 
 
Proposal for 523 Winmet Drive: Request to annex, assign Urban Core Community Activity Center (UCAC-
2) Land Use Classification and RG-1 Zoning. The property is currently classified as Mixed Residential - 
High Density by Richland County and zoned as RM-MD by Richland County. Proposal for N/S Amberley 
Road: Request to annex, assign Urban Edge Residential - Small Lot (UER-1) Land Use Classification and 
RS-1 Zoning. The property is currently classified as Mixed Residential - High Density by Richland County 
and zoned as RM-MD by Richland County. 
 
Applicant: Minhaj-Ul-Quran USA (MQ-USA) 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 
 
PC Recommendation: 08/01/16; Approval (6-0) 

APPOINTMENTS 



 

 
Page 14 of 14 

60. Council is asked to approve two (2) appointments and eight (8) re-appointments to the 
Citizens Advisory Council for the Police Department. Staff recommends staggering all 
terms by two and three years.  

61. Council is asked to approve one (1) appointment and one (1) re-appointment to the 
Municipal Election Commission.  

62. Council is asked to approve one (1) appointment and one (1) re-appointment to the 
Planning Commission.  



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 9:08 AM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Office of Business Opportunities 
 
FROM: Tina Herbert, 

 
SUBJECT: Two Notch Road (Phase 1) Facade Project Update - Ms. Gerry 

Lynn Hall, Program Coordinator for the Office of Business 
Opportunities 

 
PRESENTER: Gerry Lynn Hall 

 
ORIGINAL BUDGET: $173,301.85 
 
BUSINESS PROGRAM: Small Business Enterprise 
 
CLEAN WATER 2020?: No 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Business Growth & Investment 
 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Facade_Phase1_Performance_8-8-16 (3) (DOCX) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

1

Packet Pg. 15



ColumbiaSC.net 

Office of Business Opportunities 
1225 Lady Street, Columbia, SC 29201 /  Phone 803.545.3950  /  Fax  803.255.8912 

 

 

To: Erica Sally, City Clerk     Date:   Monday, August 08, 2016 

From: Gerry Lynn Hall     RE: Façade Improvement Program 
 Office of Business Opportunities    Two Notch Road – Phase 1  
 Façade Improvement Program    Performance Update 

 

We would like to request placement on a September City Council Work Session Agenda for the following: 

 The Office of Business Opportunities’, Gerry Lynn Hall, will update City Council on the Façade 
Improvement Program’s performance for Two Notch Road – Phase I.  Ms. Hall will also give a program 
overview of the next target area, Two Notch Road between Covenant Road and the City Limits 
(Cushman Drive). 

Please advise OBO of the Agenda date upon which this Façade Update will be placed.  Thank you. 

1.a

Packet Pg. 16



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 9:06 AM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: Public Life Public Space Action Plan - Mr. John Fellows, AIA, 

AICP, Planning Administrator for the Planning and 
Development Department and Ms. JoAnn Turnquist, President 
& CEO of the Central Carolina Community Foundation 

 
PRESENTER: JoAnn Turnquist and John Fellows 

 
ORIGINAL BUDGET: $0 
 
CLEAN WATER 2020?: No 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Business Growth & Investment, Invest in Infrastructure 
 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-9-20 Memo to Council (PDF) 
 Columbia PSPL_Final_Spreads (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

2

Packet Pg. 17



2.a

Packet Pg. 18



Public Space 
Public Life 
Action Plan
Columbia, SC

Columbia Today

Public Life in Columbia

Public Space in Columbia

Guiding Strategies

Pilot Concepts

P. 02

P. 16

P. 36

P. 40

P. 48

Prepared by Gehl
June 20, 2016

2.b

Packet Pg. 19



Vibrant districts for 
people are not afraid to 
try new things, offering 
streets and spaces that 
invite us to stop and stay 
a while. 

Imagine a 
Columbia that:

Supports & Attracts 
Creative Talent

Is a Leader in the 
Region for Family 
Friendly Public Life

Columbia aspires to be a 
family-friendly, walkable, and 
bikeable downtown, and grow 
as an attractive hub for young, 
creative talent – competitive 
in the region with cities like 
Greenville SC, Raleigh NC, 
and Lexington KY.  

What sets these cities as 
excellent benchmarks is that 
they are not afraid to try new 
things to invite public life. 
For Columbia to cultivate 
this exciting shift to a lively, 
people-first city, it will need 
to do the same: be bold and 
test new ways to attract more 
people downtown — and 
outside — while inviting them 
to stay longer.  In other words: 
create everyday spaces and 
experiences for people.

01

02

June 2016 GehlColumbia on the Move2 3
2.b

Packet Pg. 20



The public support and 
energy is there for a more 
dynamic downtown public 
life. People want it, and 
they show their enthusiasm 
by 'voting with their feet' 
during city events. Here are 
examples of Columbia at its 
most active, during events 
like First Thursdays and Soda 
City. How can Columbia invite 
some of the energy of events 
into its everyday public life?

Good News: 
People Are 
on Board! 
The City is thirsty to be out 
downtown, together. Events 
are popular and visioning 
efforts draw tremendous 
public imagination, rethinking 
downtown Columbia as a 
regional magnet for people. 
The city is not starting from 
scratch. Still, everyday public 
life remains relatively quiet. 
How might Columbia bridge this 
gap between an event-based 
city and one that hums with daily 
public life? 

June 2016 GehlColumbia on the Move4 5
2.b

Packet Pg. 21



PUBLIC
REALM

GETTING TO KNOW
COLUMBIA’S 

This is where 
Gehl enters.

We help imagine the untapped 
potential in the space between 
buildings. How can they work 
together to create a more 
magnetic downtown, rich with 
Public Life?
 
We start with an honest look at 
how people experience Downtown 
Columbia today to understand how 
it can change to better support 
people first tomorrow. 

Main Street stays active through 
dinner and beyond even on 
week nights. But it remains 
concentrated around one of the 
few restaurants with tables and 
chairs outside. Here, passers-
by banter with a group out for 
dinner.  Columbia is a sociable 
urban center - something 
special to leverage moving 
forward. 

Public life is what happens in the 
spaces between buildings. It is what a 
collective group of people create when 
they live their lives outside of their 
home, workplace, and car. 

We believe that robust public life is 
the essence of our cities.  Public space 
knits the components of public life—
people, place, and culture—together. 

1. Public life is Authentic. It reflects 
the culture and social norms unique 
to a place. It is derived from history- 
political, economic, and intellectual.  

2. Public life is Dynamic. It has an 
infectious energy. People like to be in 
the company of other people and public 
space allows them to do so.

3. Public life is Contextual. It 
responds to and varies according to 
the surroundings. Public space can 
provide clues as to what participation is 
appropriate and encouraged.

wish we had 

a place to sit!

4. Public life is Inclusive. It 
encompasses the preferences and 
choices of the many and the few.  All 
are invited to participate in the activity 
of the city.

5. Public life is Spontaneous. It has a 
life of its own. Public life responds to 
the regular rhythms of people’s lives 
and the disruptions that unforeseen 
events cause.

What do we mean by 
Public Life? 

June 2016 GehlColumbia on the Move6 7
2.b

Packet Pg. 22



–

In the Fall of 2015 and Winter 
of 2016, Gehl Studio, with 
the support of the Knight 
Foundation, conducted a series 
of public workshops, pop-up 
"sidewalkshops" and online 
engagement. Listening and 
learning from a wide cross-
section of Columbians helped 
to identify where to look and 
what to measure. Where 
are the hot spots? Where do 
people steer clear? And what 
do Columbians want in their 
public realm? 

From there, we conducted 
a Public Space Public Life 
(PSPL) Survey to observe and 
measure what everyday life is 
like in the city. We looked at 
how people move through the 
city on foot and bicycle; where 
they stay, for how long, and 
what they are doing. 

PUBLIC
REALM

GETTING TO KNOW
COLUMBIA’S 

"It has a 
combination 

of history, 
art, vitality, 

and has 
a good 

pedestrian 
scale."

"I love the way it 
is getting more 

active and growing 
and changing. 

The potential is 
great too."

"It is nature right in 
the city, a peaceful 

and lovely place 
to go, at once 

convenient and 
secluded as well 

as solitary but with 
other people."

On the Riverfront

On Main Street

On the Vista

Gehl9
2.b

Packet Pg. 23



0201 Greenery & 
Plants

Water & Natural 
Resources

We started with a look at 
quality. What qualities do 
Columbians cherish most in 
their public space? Distilled 
from hundreds of public 
responses, key spatial 
qualities and shared values 
rose to the top, forming 
the foundation of what 
Columbians aspire for in 
their public spaces.

These can been seen as a 
guide for what future public 
spaces ought to pursue. 

03

04 05 06

090807

Relaxing & 
Peaceful

Color & Art Dynamic & 
Active Places to Sit

Closeness & 
Fine Grain Fun & PlayWhimsical & 

Creative

SHARED VALUES 
& QUALITY
CRITERIA

COLUMBIA’S

SHARED VALUES QUALITY CRITERIA

Gehl11

Residents are proud of maintaining 
and defining local identity (ies).

People want to expand their options 
to get around safely (biking and 
walking)

There is a collective delight in 
Columbia’s natural resources.

There is a collective curiosity, a 
thirst for places to draw you in, 
surprise you, and make you smile.

When there is a reason to come 
together, Columbians do it 
enthusiastically. 

Families want to feel invited, that 
includes places for kids and their 
parents.

2.b

Packet Pg. 24



With a clear picture of the 
qualities that Columbians 
aspire for their public realm, 
we then looked at public 
spaces in Columbia: where 
do people go and spend time 
today? What qualities draw 
people to these places?

We captured over 200 
responses. These favorite 
places are categorized on the 
map by: 

FAVORITE 
PLACES

COLUMBIA’S

Places I Go To Relax 
& Retreat

Places I Go To 
Learn Or Be

Places I Go To Eat, 
Drink, Shop, Socialize

Places I Wish I Could 
Spend More Time 

Gehl13
2.b

Packet Pg. 25



50 volunteers from various 
city departments and the 
university, as well as local 
urban enthusiasts, helped 
survey 20 locations over two 
days in Columbia. 

Because a flood closed the 
Riverfront to the public, 
volunteers were unable to 
survey that area.  

Clusters of activity started 
to emerge largely along 
Main street, the Vista and 
the Riverfront. But how are 
they supporting and inviting 
public life now? How can 
they improve for more in the 
future?  

Based on public feedback, 
we identified 11 focus areas 
(22 specific survey locations) 
for a Public Space Public 
Life survey, an architectural 
ethnographic analysis of the 
city that Gehl has employed 
around the world.  

OUR PSPL
LOCATIONS

WHERE TO 
MEASURE?

Innovista
Emerging "tech" 

neighborhood anchored 
by new USC buildings

The Vista
Arts and restaurant 

neighborhood

The Library
Well programmed 

public library a 
block from Main St. 

The University
Large student 

population

The Riverfront

Plaza and open space 
that extends along the 

waterfront 

The 
State House

The hub of downtown

Main Street
Offices, student 

housing, restaurants 
and shops

Memorial 
Park

Ceremonial Park at the 
edge of the Vista

Gehl15
2.b

Packet Pg. 26



How Are 
People Moving  
in Columbia?

01

June 2016 GehlPublic Life in Columbia16 17
2.b

Packet Pg. 27



Jaywalking.

Besides football, jaywalking 
might be the most popular 
sport in town. Columbians know 
where they're going, and they 
like to get there as quickly as 
possible. Every key intersection 
we surveyed saw significant 
jaywalking. Some, like those on 
Greene, Main, and Assembly, had  
over 1,000 people a day crossing 
against the "walk" signal or 
crossing mid-block.

Wait. Wait. Wait. Walk fast!!
 A word on signal timing.

One of the key issues is that 
signal timing leaves very little 
time for people to cross the 
street without walking against 
a no-walk signal. 

Walk!

7 seconds 60 seconds

(Example from Assembly / Greene)

Wait... wait

WEEKDAY
PEDESTRIAN 
MOVEMENT

These illustrative heat maps visualize 
how Columbia's foot traffic swells 
and dissipates throughout the day 
at key times. The morning commute 

Main Street by the State House sees 
its highest volume as people commute 
home or head out for happy hour. 

During the week, the hours after work 
see more people linger. The happy 
hour crowd energizes parts of Main 
Street and Lincoln. 

With over 1,200 ped/hour, lunch is one 
of the busiest times during the week. 
Hotspots include the university, Main 
St and Lincoln St.

Morning 
Commute

Commute 
Home

Happy 
Hour

Lunch
Break

is characterized by quiet pedestrian 
(ped) volumes throughout the district. 
Activity around the university is the 
exception.

Over 1,000 ped/hour at Assembly and 
Greene are mostly students going 
home to student housing after school.

8-10am

4-6pm 6-8pm

11-1pm

Number of Jaywalkers a day

Senate / Greene

Assembly / Greene

Main / Washington

Main / Taylor

Assembly / Hampton

Lincoln / Gervais

Sumter / Senate

Main / Gervais

Assembly / Gervais

0 2500 5000

weekday
weekend

Gehl19

62% 
31 - 64 y/o

94% 
20 - 30 y/o

1276
PEDS

328
PEDS

83% 
20 - 30 y/o

62% 
31 - 64 y/o

525
PEDS

507
PEDS

Gervais

Greene

Lady

Washington

Hampton

Assem
bly

M
ain

Lincoln

State
House

Finlay
Park

Memorial
Park

University

Gervais

Greene

Lady

Washington

Hampton

Assem
bly

M
ain

Lincoln

State
House

Finlay
Park

Memorial
Park

University

Gervais

Greene

Lady

Washington

Hampton

Assem
bly

M
ain

Lincoln

State
House

Finlay
Park

Memorial
Park

University

Gervais

Greene

Lady

Washington

Hampton

Assem
bly

M
ain

Lincoln

State
House

Finlay
Park

Memorial
Park

University

382
PEDS

994
PEDS

592
PEDS

126
PEDS

340
PEDS

335
PEDS

88
PEDS

300
PEDS

2.b

Packet Pg. 28



Men and Women Downtown.

Columbia has a consistently 
greater proportion of women to 
men on the weekend. This is likely 
because weekend events create a 
family friendly atmosphere and a 
destination.

WEEKEND
PEDESTRIAN 
MOVEMENT

Weekend mornings see two strong 
nodes of activity: Soda City market on 
Main Street and the academic buildings 
near Assembly and Greene. The rest of 
the district is very quiet.

The early afternoon leading to the 
evening sees downtown remain quiet. 
A stark contrast from the morning 
market. But, like the morning, 

At night, people are out and parking 
lots are full, but few people are seen 
walking around downtown. The Vista 
sees some activity, but this does not 

As the market powers down, so does 
the rest of downtown. Some people 
remain on Main Street, lingering by 
Boyd Plaza, but generally people leave.

Morning 
Market

Evening Where is 
everyone...

Lunch
Time

Assembly and Greene sees over 1100 
pedestrians as students head home.

match the energy in the restaurants 
and bars. How can we invite people to 
stick around and walk a bit more?

10-12pm

5-7pm 8-10pm

12-1pm

A.  Main / Taylor
B.  Main / Washington
C.  Main / Lady
D.  Assembly / Hampton
E.  Sumter / Senate
F.  Lincoln / Gervais
G.  Assembly / Greene
H.  Senate / Greene

H

A

Citywide

MEN WOMEN

B

C

D

E

F

G

50% 025 25 50%

weekday
weekend

1182
PEDS

1100
PEDS

Gehl21

746
PEDS

50% 
31 - 64 y/o

558
PEDS

351
PEDS

75
PEDS

Gervais

Greene

Lady

Washington

Hampton

Assem
bly

M
ain

Lincoln

State
House

Finlay
Park

Memorial
Park

University

Gervais

Greene

Lady

Washington

Hampton

Assem
bly

M
ain

Lincoln

State
House

Finlay
Park

Memorial
Park

University

Gervais

Greene

Lady

Washington

Hampton

Assem
bly

M
ain

Lincoln

State
House

Finlay
Park

Memorial
Park

University

Gervais

Greene

Lady

Washington

Hampton

Assem
bly

M
ain

Lincoln

State
House

Finlay
Park

Memorial
Park

University

728
PEDS

44
PEDS

2.b

Packet Pg. 29



8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

A1
Main & Taylor - north

8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

A2
Main & Taylor - west

8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

B1
Main & Hampton - south

8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

B2
Main & Hampton - west

8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

C1
Main & Lady - south

8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

C2
Main & Lady - west

8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

D1
Assembly & Hampton - south

8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

D2
Assembly & Washington

TH
U

R
SD

AY

0

800

1000

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
N

um
be

r 
of

 P
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

500

0

400

300

200

100

800

700

600

900

1000

8
A

M

9
A

M

1
0

A
M

1
1

A
M

1
2

P
M

1
P

M

2
P

M

3
P

M

4
P

M

5
P

M

6
P

M

7
P

M

500

0

400

300

200

100

800

700

600

900

1000

7
A

M

8
A

M

9
A

M

1
0

A
M

1
1

A
M

1
2

P
M

1
P

M

2
P

M

3
P

M

4
P

M

5
P

M

6
P

M

7
P

M

8
P

M

9
P

M

500

0

400

300

200

100

800

700

600

900

1000

1
0

A
M

1
1

A
M

1
2

P
M

1
P

M

2
P

M

3
P

M

4
P

M

5
P

M

6
P

M

7
P

M

8
P

M

9
P

M

1
0

P
M

When downtown Columbia is hosting an event, its peak 
pedestrian activity rivals the volume of activity in other 
great, similar sized cities (and even some notable 
larger cities, like Philadelphia). In other words, when 
people are invited, people head out. The rest of the day, 
however, is much quieter than comparable cities.

First Thursdays

7A
M

8A
M

9A
M

10
A

M

11
A

M

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

9P
M

8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
PM 1P

M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

9P
M

10
P

M

8A
M

9A
M

10
A

M

11
A

M

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

IN COMPARISON
PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC

Philadelphia, PA 
Market Street
Peak: 1470 per hour
Average: 668 per hour

Columbia, SC 
Main Street
Peak: 672 per hour
Average: 312 per hour

Lexington, KY 
Short Street
Peak: 1092 per hour
Average: 424 per hour

Charlotte, NC
Trade & Tryon Street
Peak: 900 per hour
Average: 533 per hour

Gehl23
2.b

Packet Pg. 30



TAKEAWAYS
WALKING IN COLUMBIA

People enjoy 
their downtown01

When there are events and 
reasons to be in town and 
outside, Columbians fill the 
sidewalks and streets with 
enthusiasm.

Few walking to 
and from work02

During commuting hours, 
especially in the morning, 
very few pedestrians are 
walking in the district.

People come 
out for Lunch03

There's an up-tick at 
lunchtime. People are out 
in the Vista and Main Street 
during lunch hours. Wouldn't 
it be great if there were 
places for people to sit and 
enjoy their lunch outside?

Few families 
downtown06

Columbia is segmented 
in two age groups: 
professionals and college 
students. With amenities 
geared toward these groups, 
there are few reasons for 
families and children to 
spend time downtown. Less 
than 2% of people downtown 
during the week were under 
14 years old.

What about 
Weekends?05

For the bursts of energy seen 
during weekdays after work, 
the weekend is comparatively 
much quieter. This isn't 
because people aren't out, 
they are just driving to their 
destination, and driving back 
home.

Happy Hour 
Crowd04

During the week people are 
out after work. Restaurant-
and bar- goers mingle with 
coworkers and passers-
by, lending to a dynamic 
weekday evening energy. 

Gehl25
2.b

Packet Pg. 31



No Separation Bollard Separation Bollard and Paint
A simple bollard-protected bike land on busy 
Walnut Street in Philadelphia helps make 
cyclists feel safe and visible.

Enhanced visibility in Denver further reduces 
the stress of cycling in the city, defining a clear 
path forward.

Bike Routes

Everything is so close in Columbia, 
but many destinations feel far away 
from each other. Bicycling collapses 
distances and helps overcome these 
perceived distances. Below are a few 
examples of "favorite" destinations 
linked in less than 10 minutes by bike. 

While the average number of cyclists per 
hour is low – 6 cyclists an hour – looking at 
Columbia's key streets together, there is 
evidence of a latent demand for cycling. At their 
peak, some streets see 40+ cyclists an hour. 
This occurs despite a lack of protected bicycle 
infrastructure.

8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

100

0

80

60

40

20

N
um

be
r 

of
 C

yc
lis

ts

8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

100

0

80

60

40

20

8A
M

9A
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

100

0

80

60

40

20

IN COMPARISON
CYCLING MOVEMENT

Columbia 
Key Streets - weekday
Peak: 72 per hour
Average: 6 per hour

Philadelphia 
Walnut Street
Peak: 150 per hour
Average: 75 per hour

Denver
15th Street
Peak: 108 per hour
Average: 63 per hour

riverfront

Riverfront - State House 

Main Street - Vista

Riverfront - University 

state house

vista

main st

riverfront

university

GREENE

DEVINE

P
U

LA
SK

I

SENATE

LA
D

Y

LADY

M
AI

N

LADY

M
AI

N

9mins!

5mins!

7mins!

Gehl27
2.b

Packet Pg. 32



TAKEAWAYS
CYCLING IN COLUMBIA

Mmm.. I’d love 

a slice. Where 

can I park?

`

People bike to 
work & school

Desire lines 
often thwarted

A marginal 
activity

Weekend 
warriors

For the young 
and able.

01 02

03

04

05

Outside student housing and 
offices on Main Street, bike 
parking is often spilling over. 
Folks are cycling!

There is often not enough 
infrastructure to support 
desire lines, so people bike 
on sidewalks. 

Existing bicycle lanes 
either squeeze cyclists 
to the edge of the road, 
unguarded, or they 
disappear, forcing bikers 
to share the road with cars 
(sharrows).

Few people cycle during the 
weekend. Those who do treat 
it more as a form of exercise 
or adventure rather than a 
simple mode of transport.  

Columbians who commute 
by bicycle today are fit, able, 
and to a certain extent, brave! 
Bicycling can be for everyone 
though. The key to unlocking 
everyday bicycling culture, for 
young and old, is a network of 
protected bicycle lanes. 

Gehl29
2.b

Packet Pg. 33



How Are 
People Staying  
in Columbia?

02

June 2016 GehlPublic Life in Columbia30 31
2.b

Packet Pg. 34



90% 

A closer look at staying activity 
in Columbia shows that 65% of 
people who stick around a place 
are standing. If there were more 
options to sit, then people would 
stay longer.

What are people 
doing in public space? 
Standing.

Places to sit?

of seating on 
Main Street is 
private

Including bus stops, restaurant 
outdoor seating, plazas, and private 
courtyards, Main Street has 262 
places to sit. But 90% of these 
seats  are private. This highlights 
a significant need. There are only 
about 30 public seats on Main 
Street for an area that sees up to 
700 pedestrians an hour.

Total Volume Stickiness

WEEKDAY WEEKDAY

0

Hourly Average of 
Pedestrians staying on 
Main Street

200 400

Two of Columbia's most popular 
events show a great increase in 
staying activity. But still, most 
people are standing.  

65% 
15% sitting

20% sitting
(pay to sit)

Standing

(public)

Non-event average

Soda City

First Thursday

WEEKEND

WEEKENDWEEKEND

These maps illustrate how 
many people stay and linger 
at a given place compared 
to the number that walk 
by. We call this stickiness. 
Comparing staying against 
pedestrian flow sheds some 
insight on how inviting a 
space is. In Columbia, with 
the exception of Main Street 
and the Statehouse, which 
attract about 1 of every 5 
people, few places attract 
more than 1 in every 40 
people that walk by. That's 
less than 3%. But, without 
many places to sit and stay, 
streets are designed less as 
places and more as corridors 
to move through.  

These maps illustrate the 
total number of people 
staying in a given location 
throughout the day. In 
general, more people are 
lingering and spending 
time on the weekend than 
on weekdays. Of particular 
note is Main Street, which 
during events, such as Soda 
City, Greek Fest, and St. Pats 
draws more than every other 
place combined.

285
daily total
persons

106
daily total
persons

29
daily total
persons

51
daily total
persons

69
daily total
persons

148
daily total
persons

21
daily total
persons

31
daily total
persons

81
daily total
persons

81
daily total
persons

787
daily total
persons

93
daily total
persons

24
daily total
persons

184
daily total
persons

86
daily total
persons 79

daily total
persons

72
daily total
persons

22
daily total
persons

112
daily total
persons

1/28
MAIN ST. north

1/4
MAIN ST. middle

1/17
MAIN ST. south

1/51
ASSEMBLY ST.

1/12
LINCOLN ST.

1/12
PARK ST.

1/85
INNOVISTA

1/64
UNIV. of S.C. POND

1/6
STATE HOUSE

1/14
MAIN ST. north

1/6
MAIN ST. middle

1/13
MAIN ST. south

1/40
ASSEMBLY ST.

1/50
MEMORIAL PARK

1/42
LINCOLN ST.

1/38
PARK ST.

1/45
INNOVISTA

1/129
UNIV. of S.C. POND

1/17
STATE HOUSE

Volume of 
Pedestrians 
walking by

Volume of 
Pedestrians 
sticking around

June 2016 GehlPublic Life in Columbia32 33

Least sticky!

Least sticky!

Most sticky!

Most sticky!

Over 100 more 
people stay on 
Main street than 
all the other 
spaces surveyed 
combined. 

2.b

Packet Pg. 35



From High 
Energy to Quiet01

Characteristic of an event- 
driven public life, Columbia 
sees tremendous bursts of 
energy downtown followed by 
long stretches of quiet.

TAKEAWAYS
STAYING IN COLUMBIA

Standing 
Town

Destination 
Spaces

07

04

Otherwise, with few places to 
sit, standing is prevalent.

Most public spaces are 
destinations for planned 
get-togethers, rather than 
spontaneous meet-ups and 
casual hanging out.

Secondary 
Seating08

People find their own places 
to sit or even bring their own 
bench.. or chair, or hammock!

Grab it– while 
you can!05

With few good public seating 
options in the city people are 
quick to take a load off where 
there is!

People pay 
to Sit06

The cafe and outdoor 
restaurant seats are 
consistently filled. People 
want to be outside when the 
weather is nice.

Water is a 
popular draw

Plazas are not 
that sticky02 03

Water features bring the 
crowds.

Daily life in most plazas sees 
little spontaneous activity.

Gehl35
2.b

Packet Pg. 36



How does 
Space support 
People?

There is great 
demand for public 
life in Columbia, 
why don’t we see it 
more daily? 

Let’s look at the 
quality of the supply.

While Columbia has some beautifully 
maintained streetscapes, great historic 
buildings, and a strongly programmed 
downtown event cycle, there are some 
prevailing challenges. As part of the 
PSPL survey, public space qualities 
were documented and qualified. Here 
are some key characteristics that rose 
to the top.

03

June 2016 GehlPublic Space in Columbia36 37
2.b

Packet Pg. 37



I may just beat m
y 

world record!

N

SENATE STSENATE ST

P
U

L
A

S
K

I 
S

T
P

U
L

A
S

K
I 

S
T

H
U

G
E

R
 S

T
H

U
G

E
R

 S
T

LADY STLADY ST

GERVAIS STGERVAIS ST

WASHINGTON STWASHINGTON ST

HAMPTON STHAMPTON ST

TAYLOR STTAYLOR ST

BLANDING STBLANDING ST

LAUREL STLAUREL ST

PENDLETON STPENDLETON ST

GREENE STGREENE ST

COLLEGE STCOLLEGE ST

DEVINE STDEVINE ST

G
A

D
S

D
E

N
 S

T
G

A
D

S
D

E
N

 S
T

W
A

YN
E

 S
T

W
A

YN
E

 S
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 S
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 S
T

P
A

R
K

 S
T

P
A

R
K

 S
T

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY
 S

T
A

S
S

E
M

B
LY

 S
T

M
A

IN
 S

T
M

A
IN

 S
T

S
U

M
TE

R
 S

T
S

U
M

TE
R

 S
T

M
A

R
IO

N
 S

T
M

A
R

IO
N

 S
T

H
E

N
D

E
R

S
O

N
 S

T
H

E
N

D
E

R
S

O
N

 S
T

B
U

L
L

 S
T

B
U

L
L

 S
T

P
IC

K
E

N
S

 S
T

P
IC

K
E

N
S

 S
T

N

SENATE STSENATE ST

P
U

L
A

S
K

I 
S

T
P

U
L

A
S

K
I 

S
T

H
U

G
E

R
 S

T
H

U
G

E
R

 S
T

LADY STLADY ST

GERVAIS STGERVAIS ST

WASHINGTON STWASHINGTON ST

HAMPTON STHAMPTON ST

TAYLOR STTAYLOR ST

BLANDING STBLANDING ST

LAUREL STLAUREL ST

PENDLETON STPENDLETON ST

GREENE STGREENE ST

COLLEGE STCOLLEGE ST

DEVINE STDEVINE ST

G
A

D
S

D
E

N
 S

T
G

A
D

S
D

E
N

 S
T

W
A

YN
E

 S
T

W
A

YN
E

 S
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 S
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 S
T

P
A

R
K

 S
T

P
A

R
K

 S
T

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY
 S

T
A

S
S

E
M

B
LY

 S
T

M
A

IN
 S

T
M

A
IN

 S
T

S
U

M
TE

R
 S

T
S

U
M

TE
R

 S
T

M
A

R
IO

N
 S

T
M

A
R

IO
N

 S
T

H
E

N
D

E
R

S
O

N
 S

T
H

E
N

D
E

R
S

O
N

 S
T

B
U

L
L

 S
T

B
U

L
L

 S
T

P
IC

K
E

N
S

 S
T

P
IC

K
E

N
S

 S
T

Found it!

Third 

time’s a 

charm!

SAT test?

No, pretty sure this is 

the way to the water... 

but th
anks

TAKEAWAYS
SPACE IN COLUMBIA

Long crossings 
/ Short signals

Just getting 
permission 
takes effort

Hardscapes & 
Blank Facades

Wow! it'
s 

all p
arking!

Confusing 
signage for 
people

05 06

08

07

Few invitations 
to stay a while03

With benches, seats, and 
shade in short supply, there 
are few places for people to 
stay and enjoy the special 
spaces in Columbia. Instead, 
people are nudged to just 
walk by - or be creative and 
find seating on steps, ledges, 
or elsewhere.

Long crossing distances + 
short crossing times = RUN! 
Walk signals are timed for 7 
seconds or less, while waiting 
can be over a minute. This is a 
recipe ripe for jaywalking.

Someplaces: 
Sidewalk SOS!04

Even with some high quality 
streetscaping and sidewalks, 
other places are neglected 
with crumbly sidewalks or 
simply no sidewalk at all. 

High quality 
streetscaping 01

Columbia has some 
beautifully landscaped and 
maintained streets and 
spaces, including Main, 
Lincoln, the Statehouse, and 
Riverfront to highlight a few 
key nodes.

Adding to the long signal 
timing, people need to 
announce themselves at each  
intersection. These buttons 
are not always consistently 
placed or marked. 

Incredible 
untapped assets02

From the riverfront to the 
Lincoln tunnel to the warm 
climate, Columbia is blessed 
with some unique and special 
physical assets.

Much of the built environment 
is characterized by dominating 
hardscapes & blank facades.

Signage is auto oriented. 
There are few markers for 
people to find their way to 
Columbia's great assets.

Parking

Sq
ua

re
 F

ee
t 

There is an 
enormous square 
footage of parking
in Columbia. Can 
these be opportunity 
spaces to reclaim 
space for people?

Aggregated parking to scale

10M

5M

0

15M

Pa
rk

in
g

B
ui

ld
in

gs
Pa

rk
s

Si
de

w
al

ks

Gehl39
2.b

Packet Pg. 38



Columbia has a lot of 
the pieces, they just 
need to be connected, 
leveraged, and 
celebrated – without 
spreading them out 
too thin.  

Guided by 6 Public Space Public Life 
strategies, Downtown Columbia can 
establish and reinforce a diverse 
network of public places and streets to 
create an inviting district for people.

DEFINE A 
PEOPLE-FIRST 
CORE 

01 PARK 
ONCE02

EMBRACE YOUR 
WATERFRONT & 
NATURAL ASSETS 03

FIND YOUR 
EAST-WEST 
CONNECTOR04

CREATE
STEPPING STONES 
IN BETWEEN06CELEBRATE 

AND ENRICH 
YOUR HUBS05

June 2016 GehlPublic Space in Columbia40 41
2.b

Packet Pg. 39



Safe and Slow Streets
 - Reduce traffic speeds to 25 mph.
 - Create visible crosswalks at key 

intersections.
 - Ensure sidewalks are complete 

and in good condition.
 - Make longer, more people friendly 

signal timing.
 - Implement traffic calming.

Bicycle Network
 - Prioritize improved bicycle 

infrastructure and bike lanes 
within the core.

DEFINE A 
PEOPLE-FIRST 
CORE 

PARK 
ONCE01 02

HAMPTON ST.

SU
M

TER
 ST.

LI
N

CO
LN

 S
T.

GERVAIS ST.

STATE
HOUSE

UNIVERSITY OF
SOUTH CAROLINA

CONGAREE
RIVERFRONT

THE VISTA &
INNOVISTA

C
O

N
G

AR
EE R

IVER

C
O

N
G

AR
EE R

IVER

Define a core where pedestrian, 
cyclist, and transit experiences 
are prioritized ahead of auto 
efficiency. Pedestrian intersection 
improvements, including signal 
timing and crosswalks, should be 
prioritized within this core. 

People drive in and out of Columbia. 
That’s okay. To make room for pedestrians 
in the 'people core', however, Columbia 
should find creative ways to encourage 
parking in the city just once - and walking 
from destination to destination from 
there. This strategy should focus on key 
parking spaces and lots at the edge of 
the people core that link into important  
streets like Main, Lady, and Lincoln.

Key Car Parks
 - Identify key parking lots at the 

periphery of the pedestrian core and 
pilot incentives such as inexpensive 
or free tolls in these lots. 

 - Couple this with no free parking in 
the core. 

Around, not Though
 - Traffic mobility through the core 

should not be prioritized. 

June 2016 GehlPublic Space in Columbia42 43
2.b

Packet Pg. 40



Columbia has great stuff on both 
east and west. Now it's time to 
connect them. The city's strong 
north–south people corridors — 
Main Street, Lincoln Street, and 
the waterfront — are not brought 
together by any clear link. Columbia 
should look to Lady Street as a 
human scaled street to bring people 
from east to west.

FIND YOUR 
EAST-WEST 
CONNECTOR

04
EMBRACE YOUR 
WATERFRONT & 
NATURAL ASSETS 

03

C
O

N
G

AR
EE R

IVER

LADY STREET

C
O

N
G

AR
EE R

IVER

Use what you’ve got. Columbia 
can celebrate its natural assets, 
embrace the warm climate, and 
leverage the great access to water 
as a defining and differentiating 
feature of the city. Denver and other 
active cities can provide inspiration 
and strategies that enmesh nature 
and recreation in the urban fabric. 

Riverfront as an Urban Amenity
 - Make the waterfront part of the 

city's network of parks and public 
spaces, not just a destination to 
drive to. 

Connective Tissue
 - Improve pedestrian and bicycling 

connections to the waterfront 
and other key parks downtown, 
foe example, Finlay and the 
Statehouse.

Event Life
 - Make Lady Street an event space 

similar to Main Street to pilot 
new activities and make it part of 
people's mental map of the city as 
a place for people before cars. 

People First Wayfinding
 - Direct people to and along Lady 

with clear, fun, vernacular 
wayfinding for people, e.g. "2 
blocks to Lincoln Street!" 

Cars Second
 - Take cues from Columbia's other 

people friendly streets, Lincoln 
Street and Main Street. Cars are 
permitted but their mobility is not 
prioritized. 

Warm Climate
 - With the city's warm climate, 

working outside can be part of 
everyday life. Support this with 
great shaded spaces, tables and 
seating.

June 2016 GehlPublic Space in Columbia44 45
2.b

Packet Pg. 41



CREATE
STEPPING STONES 
IN BETWEEN

06
Make places feel as close as they 
are. Key hubs in Columbia are within 
a 5- to 10-minute walk or bike 
ride from each other, but they feel 
farther and it’s not always clear how 
to get from A to B. Make it clear and 
inviting by laying "stepping stones" 
in between key destinations.

CELEBRATE 
AND ENRICH 
YOUR HUBS

05
Before developing new hubs and 
centers of activity, enrich existing 
hotspots within the core to build 
momentum while broadening 
amenities so they feel more 
welcoming and safer for families 
and people of all ages, young and 
old.

C
O

N
G

AR
EE R

IVER

C
O

N
G

AR
EE R

IVER
5 MIN BIKE

5 MIN WALK

People First Wayfinding
 - Direct people to and along Lady 

Street with clear, fun, vernacular 
wayfinding for people, e.g. "2 
blocks to Lincoln Street". 

Moments of Art and Delight
 - Fill in the gaps between two hubs 

of activity with engaging art pieces 
and creative street furnishing.

More Places to Stay
 - Expand public seating
 - Ensure facades are active on 

pedestrian corridors 

More Places to Play
 - Find places downtown to be active, 

and where families can bring 
children to play. 

More Places to Work
 - WiFi is available downtown, 

now encourages people to work  
outside with tables, chairs and 
shade (umbrellas)

June 2016 GehlPublic Space in Columbia46 47
2.b

Packet Pg. 42



The following low-cost, high-impact 
pilot projects are prototypes that 
can be experienced, measured, and 
evaluated for refinement by the 
City of Columbia, the Community 
Foundation, and other partners and 
local champions. Developed to meet 
the five PSPL strategic objectives, 
each project invites stakeholders 
and users to see new possibilities 
and test ideas in the district. The 
intention is to attract new users to 
stay and begin to develop an identity 
for Downtown Columbia as a vital 
people-first place. 

By making people a part of the pilot 
project process, Columbia can start 
to build consensus and excitement 
around improvements, creating a 
case for longer-term interventions. 

3 / Refine2 / Test1 / Measure

3 / Refine2 / Test1 / Measure

1 / Measure

Pilot example:
São Paulo Pilot

3 / Refine

2 / Test

Testing 
Strategies 
through Pilot 
Projects

To realize these strategies, 
a series of temporary pilot 
projects, carried out in 
an iterative process, can 
generate buzz and begin 
to set the groundwork for 
a district that puts people 
first in the public realm.

3 / Refine2 / Test1 / Measure

Measured the site

Tested Pilot: chairs, 
shade, play.

Refined Pilot: 
evening 
programming

June 2016 GehlPilot Concepts48 49
2.b

Packet Pg. 43



N

SENATE STSENATE ST

P
U

L
A

S
K

I 
S

T
P

U
L

A
S

K
I 

S
T

H
U

G
E

R
 S

T
H

U
G

E
R

 S
T

LADY STLADY ST

GERVAIS STGERVAIS ST

WASHINGTON STWASHINGTON ST

HAMPTON STHAMPTON ST

TAYLOR STTAYLOR ST

BLANDING STBLANDING ST

LAUREL STLAUREL ST

PENDLETON STPENDLETON ST

GREENE STGREENE ST

COLLEGE STCOLLEGE ST

DEVINE STDEVINE ST

G
A

D
S

D
E

N
 S

T
G

A
D

S
D

E
N

 S
T

W
A

YN
E

 S
T

W
A

YN
E

 S
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 S
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 S
T

P
A

R
K

 S
T

P
A

R
K

 S
T

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY
 S

T
A

S
S

E
M

B
LY

 S
T

M
A

IN
 S

T
M

A
IN

 S
T

S
U

M
TE

R
 S

T
S

U
M

TE
R

 S
T

M
A

R
IO

N
 S

T
M

A
R

IO
N

 S
T

H
E

N
D

E
R

S
O

N
 S

T
H

E
N

D
E

R
S

O
N

 S
T

B
U

L
L

 S
T

B
U

L
L

 S
T

P
IC

K
E

N
S

 S
T

P
IC

K
E

N
S

 S
T

The Front 
Porch
Creating Informal 
Places to Spend Time 
at the Statehouse

The Orbit
Park Once and 
Trolley or Bike

Crossing 
Greene
Safe and Playful 
Crossing Interventions 

THE
STATE HOUSE

3

7

6

People Day
Bringing it all 
Together

Lady Street
Linking Events: 
Connecting Two 
Hubs of Activity

Library 
Way
Rolling out 
the Carpet

Main Street
Creating places 
to stay a while on 
Columbia's most 
Active Hub

FARMERS’
MARKET

VISTA
GreenWAY

8

2

5
1

The Blue
Boulevard
A World Class Street for 
People

4

Set within a framework that 
focuses Columbia's energy within a 
defined pedestrian core, the pilots 
work together to leverage existing 
assets, fill in the gaps, connect east 
and west, and create new meeting 
places that invite more people to 
stay, and stay longer. 

02

01

03

Priority 
Pilot Areas

Opportunity 
Areas

Main Street
Creating invitations to stay and rest

The Blue Boulevard
Connecting people to the waterfront

Library Way 
Allowing for moments of delight

Crossing Greene
Creating safe and fun crossings

The Orbit
Park once and take trolley loop

People Day
Layering all initiatives on one day or 
weekend to show what's possible

Lady Street
Connecting anchors through program

The Front Porch
Creating an inviting asset for families

These 3 areas rose to the top for 
their potential impact. 

Overview of 
Pilot Projects

June 2016 GehlPilot Concepts50 51
2.b

Packet Pg. 44



Over 100 people at First 
Thursday on Main Street 
stopped by to share their 
thoughts and preferences on 
the pilot hunches, helping us 
zero in on three ideas to dive 
deeper into.

WHERE
TO START 
–NOW

PILOT PROJECT 
HUNCHES

To focus on three pilot areas, 
we engaged key stakeholders, 
city officials, and the broader 
public to help refine and 
prioritize some initial hunches 
for how to invite for public life. 
Participating in a generative 
charrette session centered 
around eight hunches, we 
wanted to know which had the 
greatest potential and which 
resonated most. 

Building on the six guiding 
strategies to carry forward 
Columbia's Public Space Public 
Life framework plan, all eight 
ideas found their respective 
champions, and each should be 
considered key opportunities 
to move forward. But, rising to 
the surface were: Main Street, 
Lady Street, and The State 
House.

N

MOVABLE 
SEATING

E3

E2E1
E1

E4

E2

E3

01 MAIN ROCKS

Over 2,800 people 
walk by during lunch 
time, but only 1 in 25 
are sticking around.

E4

Cut that Standing Out! Creating 
informal gathering places to linger 
and more invitations to rest and relax 
— without having to pay for it. 

LOCATION MAP

TAKEAWAYS IN FOCUS

EXISTING EXPERIENCE

7. 
Embrace Natural 
resources 

6. 
Expand the 
Hours & Users

5. 
Fill in the Gaps

4. 
Connect East 
and West 

3. 
Park 
Once

2. 
Pump up the 
Volume

1. 
Put People First 
in the Core!

Main Rocks. Make the 
rocking chair the symbol 
for Main Street: a playful 
way to invite for more 
everyday lingering 
activity. These can 
continue to be stewarded 
by local business, office, 
and residential buildings. 
Hi Top. Make the standing 
table gathering space for 
outdoor meeting, coffee, 
etc. 

POTENTIAL MOVES

WiFi Zone in “Lady Park.” 
Wifi is advertised along 
Main Street, but there 
is not clear place to surf 
the web, or do some work 
outside. Make the green 
space at Lady and Main 
a comfortable nook for 
gathering and working 
outside. Include kiosk 
and other light pop-up 
amenities.

A
SS

EM
B

LY
 S

T

M
A

IN
 S

T

SU
M

TE
R

 S
T

HAMPTON ST

TAYLOR ST

BLANDING ST

WASHINGTON ST

LADY ST

GERVAIS ST

OUTDOOR PLAY &
WORK SPACE

HIGH TABLE
HANGOUT

RELAXING
ROCKING CHAIRS

ROCKING CHAIR
ROW

N

HOW FAR IS IT TO 

THE RIVERFRONT?

Gervais is the most 
direct connection 
to the waterfront, 
one of Columbia’s 
most cherished 
assets. Walking along 
Gervais you wouldn’t 
know it though.

E1

02 THE BLUE BOULEVARD
Gervais for People: Connecting People 
East-West and to the waterfront along 
amenity-rich Gervais Street with 
a Low Stress Bikeway and a more 
engaging walking experience.

LOCATION MAP

TAKEAWAYS IN FOCUSEXISTING EXPERIENCE

Finding the Fine Grain. 
Build on the existing  
active pedestrian facade 
experiences by filling in the 
gaps in-between. Test with 
temporary micro-pods. A 
pleasant walking street is a 
pleasant biking street and 
vice-versa.
A Bold Gesture for Cycling. 
Hi-Visibility, bollard-
protected bike lanes in 
either direction. 

POTENTIAL MOVES

Summer Streets. Kick-start 
a summer event that closes 
one side of Gervais for 
cycling and leads to an event 
on the waterfront. 
A More Magnetic 
Waterfront. Make the 
waterfront more of a regular 
draw for people with events, 
food, and music, while 
modifying pedestrian access 
to be more apparent and 
seamless. 

Where am I? Pedestrian 
scale signage should find 
its place on Gervais. This 
should tie in with tourism 
Columbia and a great People 
Map!
Crossings. Key intersection 
improvements for people.

7. 
Embrace Natural 
resources 

6. 
Expand the 
Hours & Users

5. 
Fill in the Gaps

4. 
Connect East 
and West 

3. 
Park 
Once

2. 
Pump up the 
Volume

1. 
Put People First 
in the Core!

ACTIVE
FACADES

IMPROVED
INTERSECTION

WAYFINDING

VISTA
GreenWAY

THREE RIVERS 
GreenWAY

LIBRARY
WAY

THE
BOOMERANG

BIKE 
STATION

SENATE ST

LADY ST

TAYLOR ST

A
SS

EM
B

LY
 S

T

PA
R

K
 S

T

LI
N

C
O

LN
 S

T

G
A

D
SD

EN
 S

T

P
U

LA
SK

I S
T

H
U

G
ER

 S
T

M
A

IN
 S

T

SU
M

TE
R

 S
T

2 MIN2 MIN 2 MIN 2 MIN 2 MIN 2 MIN 2 MIN 2 MIN

5 MIN

6 MIN

N

RECLAIM SPACE 
FOR SEATING &

PROGRAMED 
AREA

TAKEAWAYS IN FOCUS

Over 1,000 jaywalkers 
a day.

For every 1 person that 
waits, 2 Jaywalk. 

5 seconds to cross the 
intersection with a 
walk signal — faster 
than Olympian Usain 
Bolt!

E1

E1

E2

E2

03 LIBRARY WAY

B
U
S

Rolling out the Carpet: Re-balancing 
Assembly Street around the Library — 
improving the crossing experience, inviting 
families, and allowing for moments of 
delight and shared experience. 

Reading Under the Trees. 
Create places to hang out 
in front of the library and 
in adjacent parking lot. 
Robust parklet.
Play. Create family-
friendly active zone and 
playground.
Crossings. Bold crossing 
treatment; longer 
pedestrian crossing time; 
mid-block crossings

POTENTIAL MOVES

LOCATION MAP

EXISTING EXPERIENCE

Median. Reclaim portions 
of this median for people.
Branding. Rename 
Assembly in this 4 
block area Library way. 
The people gateway to 
Columbia!

7. 
Embrace Natural 
resources 

6. 
Expand the 
Hours & Users

5. 
Fill in the Gaps

4. 
Connect East 
and West 

3. 
Park 
Once

2. 
Pump up the 
Volume

1. 
Put People First 
in the Core!

A
SS

EM
B

LY
 S

T

M
A

IN
 S

T

SU
M

TE
R

 S
T

PA
R

K
 S

T

LI
N

C
O

LN
 S

T

HAMPTON ST

LIBRARY

WASHINGTON ST

LADY ST

DOWNTOWN
GATEWAY

RECLAIM
MEDIAN

MID-BLOCK
CROSSING

FAMILY-FRIENDLY
ACTIVE ZONE

MAJOR
INTERSECTION
TREATMENT

N

E1

E2

People love their 
events in Columbia. 
Over 7,000 pedestrians 
during Soda City. But it 
remains concentrated. 
Leverage this energy 
and draw people west 
with another event at 
Lincoln to begin to build 
momentum for an East - 
West connector. 

E1

E2

04 LINKING EVENTS
Share the Love: Connecting two anchors 
on Main and Lincoln by programming 
parallel events and laying breadcrumbs 
along Lady Street to bring them 
together.  

LOCATION MAP

TAKEAWAYS IN FOCUS EXISTING EXPERIENCE

All Together Now! 
Plan two events that 
compliment each other 
at the same time on Main 
and Lincoln.
The Lincoln Tunnel for 
People. Leverage the 
unique local identity 
of this space to make a 
special nook for people.

POTENTIAL MOVES

Filling in the Gaps. 
Nurture and encourage 
that connection along 
Lady Street with micro-
pods, tents, cool signage, 
and safe crossings. 
Trace Memory. These 
simul-events should 
leave some trace behind 
after they end. Beginning 
to create that mental 
map for east-west 
connections.

7. 
Embrace Natural 
resources 

6. 
Expand the 
Hours & Users

5. 
Fill in the Gaps

4. 
Connect East 
and West 

3. 
Park 
Once

2. 
Pump up the 
Volume

1. 
Put People First 
in the Core!

MAIN 
STREET 
EVENT

LINCOLN 
EVENT

MICRO-
PODS

STREET 
LIFE ZONE

LADY ST

WASHINGTON ST

HAMPTON ST

TAYLOR ST

M
A

R
IO

N
 S

T

SU
M

TE
R

 S
T

A
SS

EM
B

LY
 S

T

PA
R

K
 S

T

LI
N

C
O

LN
 S

T

G
A

D
SD

EN
 S

T

N

PROGRAMMING!

E1

E2

EXISTING EXPERIENCE

E1
E2

06 CROSSING GREENE
Crossing Safely and with a smile along 
Greene Street. 

LOCATION MAP

TAKEAWAYS IN FOCUS

Current bike 
lane requires 
circus 
balance...

About 1,100 people 
walk through Greene 
and Sumter every 
hour, which is on par 
with Madison Avenue 
in New York City. Yet, 
the intersections are 
designed and timed for 
cars, not for people.

Performing Crossings. 
Making people visible. 
At Sumter and Greene 
program a series of 
irreverent, playful, and 
engaging performances. 
(Improv Everywhere.)
Safe Crossings. At 
Assembly, less but still 
cheeky: grab a balloons 
or flag to cross. At both, 
better cross timing and 
paint for visibility.

POTENTIAL MOVES

Tight Rope. The existing 
meager bike lanes not 
only conveys the wrong 
message, it makes safe 
urban cycling a physical 
and mental challenge. As 
well as, it opens motorists 
to confront cyclist when 
they’re balancing act is 
off and they bike outside 
the lines. Follow NACTO 
guidelines for bike path: 6 
feet. 

7. 
Embrace Natural 
resources 

6. 
Expand the 
Hours & Users

5. 
Fill in the Gaps

4. 
Connect East 
and West 

3. 
Park 
Once

2. 
Pump up the 
Volume

1. 
Put People First 
in the Core!

IMPROVED
INTERSECTION

PROTECTED
BIKE LANE

MAJOR 
INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS

MAJOR 
INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS

WIDEN
EXISTING

BIKE LANE
PEDESTRIAN
CORRIDOR

COLLEGE ST

GREENE ST

DEVINE ST

LI
N

C
O

LN
 S

T

G
A

D
SD

EN
 S

T

PA
R

K
 S

T

A
SS

EM
B

LY
 S

T

M
A

IN
 S

T

SU
M

TE
R

 S
T

N

PARK ONCE!

E1

E2

E1

E3

E3

E2

Getting Around: Encouraging people 
to park once and take trolley loop and 
bike share.

TAKEAWAYS IN FOCUS EXISTING EXPERIENCE

The Comet is leading 
the way re-branding the 
transit experience in 
Columbia. Build on this 
energy and focus one 
excellent loop within 
the “People Core.”

07 THE BOOMERANG 

Not Just a Shelter. 
Make the Columbia bus 
shelters newsworthy. 
Identify key bus shelters 
to be mini-labs for testing 
play: swings, idea boards, 
monkey bars, and so on.
Where am I? Really clear 
bus map. Show where key 
destinations are and what 
bus to take to get there. 

POTENTIAL MOVES

Trolley Loop. Connecting 
key recreational, 
commercial, and Main 
Street assets along an 
intuitive trolley and bike 
loop. 

7. 
Embrace Natural 
resources 

6. 
Expand the 
Hours & Users

5. 
Fill in the Gaps

4. 
Connect East 
and West 

3. 
Park 
Once

2. 
Pump up the 
Volume

1. 
Put People First 
in the Core!

WALKABLE 
PARKING
GARAGES

TROLLEY
LOOP

BIKE 
LANE 
NETWORK

TAYLOR ST

HAMPTON ST

WASHINGTON ST

LADY ST

GERVAIS ST

SENATE ST

PENDLETON ST

GREENE ST

SU
M

TE
R

 S
T

A
SS

EM
B

LY
 S

T

LI
N

C
O

LN
 S

T

G
A

D
SD

EN
 S

T

PA
R

K
 S

T

W
AY

N
E 

ST

P
U

LA
SK

I S
T

H
U

G
ER

 S
T

2 MIN2 MIN 2 MIN

N

E1

E1

08 PEOPLE DAY
Pilot the Future: Layering all the 
people-first initiatives in Columbia —
and more — on one day or weekend to 
create great impact and show what’s 
possible.

LOCATION MAP

TAKEAWAYS IN FOCUS EXISTING EXPERIENCE

Columbia is an event 
city. People come out 
in amazing numbers. 
There is a thirst to 
park the car and be 
out, together. 

Coordinate and Layer. 
1) Bike to Work Day
2) Parking Day
3) First Thursdays on Main 
and Lincoln
4) Work Outside Day
5) Restaurant Week
6) Music Festival. 

POTENTIAL MOVES

7. 
Embrace Natural 
resources 

6. 
Expand the 
Hours & Users

5. 
Fill in the Gaps

4. 
Connect East 
and West 

3. 
Park 
Once

2. 
Pump up the 
Volume

1. 
Put People First 
in the Core!

LADY ST

GERVAIS ST

SENATE ST

WASHINGTON ST

HAMPTON ST

TAYLOR ST

SU
M

TE
R

 S
T

M
A

IN
 S

T

A
SS

EM
B

LY
 S

T

G
A

D
SD

EN
 S

T

Prioritize!

Prioritize!
N

SOCIAL SEATING

1 in 6 stick around on a 
weekday and 1 in 3 stick 
around on a weekend, 
but the volume of 
people is low. The State 
House functions as 
a destination; but, it 
could be a spontaneous 
place to spend time. The 
latent demand is there.

E1

E2

05 THE FRONT PORCH
A Hub For People: Creating an Inviting 
Neighborhood Asset for Families. 
Fulfilling a Latent Demand for Hanging 
out, while re-imagining the State 
House as a great public Front Porch. 

LOCATION MAP

TAKEAWAYS IN FOCUS EXISTING EXPERIENCE

Social Objects. Inject 
the area with some play 
and draw on Columbians 
curiosity with some fun 
furniture options.
Summer Field. Re-brand 
a portion of the grounds 
as “Summer Field” and 
Plan events / concert 
series on weekends in the 
summer.

POTENTIAL MOVES

Lighting. Dark pockets 
make this area uninviting 
at night. Improve 
lighting. 
Outdoor Meetings. WiFi 
zone ideal for outdoor 
conferences and working. 

7. 
Embrace Natural 
resources 

6. 
Expand the 
Hours & Users

5. 
Fill in the Gaps

4. 
Connect East 
and West 

3. 
Park 
Once

2. 
Pump up the 
Volume

1. 
Put People First 
in the Core!

E1

E2

PROGRAMMING

GERVAIS ST

SENATE ST

PENDLETON ST

COLLEGE ST

PA
R

K
 S

T

A
SS

EM
B

LY
 S

T

SU
M

TE
R

 S
T

M
A

R
IO

N
 S

T

Prioritize!

Gehl53
2.b

Packet Pg. 45



LADY ST

WASHINGTON ST

MAIN ST

MAIN 
STREET

During events like First 
Thursdays and Soda City, Main 
Street comes alive. But when 
the events power down, so does 
the energy of the street. Some 
hotspots continue to flicker 
where there happens to be 
some outdoor seating (around 
Drip Coffee's cafe benches and 
Bourbon's picnic tables). The 
latent demand to stay is there. 
There are just so few invitations 
to sit, stay, and enjoy the space. 
Main Street should be humming 
with people throughout the day, 
not just at events; it should be 
considered just as much a place 
as a corridor.

Creating informal 
gathering places to linger 
and more invitations to 
rest and relax — without 
having to pay for it. 

Enhance crosswalk 
visibility, defining 
pedestrian priority 
zones

Modular
Furnishings

5-minute 
rest zones. 
Rechargeable nooks 

Playful
Lighting

Food Kiosk

Wayfinding

Lounging 
Space

Playful crossing 
activity for increased 
pedestrian visibility

A

B

G

C

D

F
E

H

Main Street is a beautifully 
landscaped and maintained street, 
with great wide sidewalks lined with 
lush trees and plantings. It has many 
of the top qualities that Columbians 
cherish and aspire for in their public 
realm. Whereas most cities work 
to reclaim a few on-street parking 
spaces for parklets or outdoor 
furniture, Columbia's Main Street 
has already done the hard work. 
The space is there. There are just no 
places to stop, sit, and stay a while to 
enjoy it. 

MOVES IN FOCUS

This pilot aims to test seating on 
Main Street, defining three seating 
typologies between Gervais and 
Blanding Street: the 5-minute pit-
stop zone; the 15-minute meeting 
zone; and the 30-minute hang out 
zone. The corner of Main and Lady 
presents an excellent first step to 
pilot each of type.

June 2016 GehlPilot Concepts54 55

01

2.b

Packet Pg. 46



L
A

D
Y 

S
T

L
A

D
Y 

S
T

G
E

R
VA

IS
E

 S
T

G
E

R
VA

IS
E

 S
T

W
A

S
H

IN
G

TO
N

 S
T

W
A

S
H

IN
G

TO
N

 S
T

H
A

M
P

TO
N

 S
T

H
A

M
P

TO
N

 S
T

TA
YL

O
R

 S
T

TA
YL

O
R

 S
T

B
L

A
N

D
IN

G
B

L
A

N
D

IN
G

ASSEMBLY STASSEMBLY ST

MAIN STMAIN ST

SUMTER STSUMTER ST

E3

30
min

15
min

5
min

5-minute pit-stop
Areas along Main Street for the 
informal quick stop and chat. These 
can be simple secondary seating 
options that connect to existing 
infrastructure.

15-minute meeting place
A small nook, similar to a parklet, 
with tables, chairs, lighting, and a 
food kiosk. These should be on the 
widest portions of Main Street's 
sidewalks. This type of seating space 
should be prioritized. 

30+ minute hang out
Places for people to sit outside, 
have lunch, and hang out with 
friends without having to pay for 
a restaurant table are few and far 
between on Main Street. But the 
demand is there. WiFi is advertised 
along Main Street, but there are no 
comfortable places to sit, surf the 
web, or do some work outside. Make 
the green space at Lady and Main a 
comfortable area for gathering and 
working outside. Include kiosk and 
other inexpensive pop-up amenities. 

30
min

30
min

30
min

15
 min

15
 min

15
 min

15
 min

15
 min

15
 min

5
5

555
5

55
5

5

5
min

Leisure duration
Along Main Street there are a 
number of spaces and extra wide 
sidewalks perfect for different types 
of leisure. To start, focus seating 
on Main Street between Lady and 
Washington.

Seating types
Examples of seating options for 
each space type.

June 2016 GehlPilot Concepts56 57

E1

E2

15
min

30
min

2.b

Packet Pg. 47



KEY FINDINGS TRACKING SUCCESS

1.
Main Street comes alive during 
its events, but gets really quiet 
the rest of the day.

More People Out and About
Most pedestrian activity is 
concentrated around events 
and dinner hours.  A more 
pedestrianized urban core will 
invite more people to walk along 
Main Street throughout the day 
and stick around. 
Target: More people heading 
out for lunch and enjoying Main 
Street 

Take a Seat
A more evenly balanced split 
between people standing and 
sitting on Main Street. 
Target: People are heading out 
and enjoying their lunch outside 
on public seating

2. 
Even during events, 
Main Street remains a 
predominantly "standing 
room only" zone.

Standing Sitting

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

9P
M

A1
Main & Taylor - north

A2
Main & Taylor - west

B1
Main & Hampton - south

B2
Main & Hampton - west

C1
Main & Lady - south

C2
Main & Lady - west

D1
Assembly & Hampton - south D2

Assembly & Washington

SA
TU

R
D

AY

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

9P
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

9P
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

9P
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

9P
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

9P
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

9P
M

10
AM

11
AM

12
P

M

1P
M

2P
M

3P
M

4P
M

5P
M

6P
M

7P
M

8P
M

9P
M

0

800

1000

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

1000

0

800

600

400

200

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
N

um
be

r 
of

 P
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns

85%  v.  14%

First step
Modular cube seating is a playful way to 
invite for more everyday lingering. These 
can be combined to create a bench, or 
stacked for a table. But, simple movable 
bistro chairs can be just as effective if easier 
to source as a first step.

Charger bench
Soofa produces benches 
that let you charge 
your devices while 
you hang out. This 
type of infrastructure 
can work both for 
the quick pit-stop, or 
equally, to invite for 
longer outdoor working 
sessions.

June 2016 GehlPilot Concepts58 59

LADY ST

WASHINGTON ST

MAIN ST

2.b

Packet Pg. 48



LADY STLADY ST

GERVAISE STGERVAISE ST

WASHINGTON STWASHINGTON ST

HAMPTON STHAMPTON ST

TAYLOR STTAYLOR ST

G
A

D
S

D
E

N
 S

T
G

A
D

S
D

E
N

 S
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 S
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 S
T

P
A

R
K

 S
T

P
A

R
K

 S
T

G
A

D
S

D
E

N
 S

T
G

A
D

S
D

E
N

 S
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 S
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 S
T

P
A

R
K

 S
T

P
A

R
K

 S
T

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY S
T

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY S
T

M
A

IN
 S

T
M

A
IN

 S
T

SODA
CITY

400
peds/hr

People love their events in 
Columbia. Over 7,000 pedestrians 
walk through and visit Soda City 
on Main Street for example. But it 
remains concentrated, focused on 
one or two blocks of Main. There 
is an opportunity to leverage this 
energy and draw people west 
along Lady with an another event 
on Lincoln Street. This could 
begin to build momentum for an 
East - West connector. 

Share the Love: program 
parallel events on Main 
and Lincoln Street, while 
creating stepping stones 
along Lady Street to draw 
people along.

Temporary bulb-
outs and playful 
crossing action First 

Pavilion
Park

Re-focus events 
two blocks south 
on Main Street, 
down near Lady 
Street

Main Street HubLincoln Street Hub

Vendors 
and playful, 
engaging 
treatments in 
parking spaces

Two-way protected
bicycle boulevard

Temporary
one-way traffic

Wayfinding 
for people

Vista Greenway
Gateway

Cantina 76

Southern 
SqueezedSweat

Cycle Studio

LADY
STREET

A

B

D

F

G

E
C

MOVES IN FOCUS

Lady Street has a great human scale 
and quiet traffic. The potential is 
there to make it a great people-first 
east-west connector. 

Shift events closer to Lady. 
Move Soda City and other events 
down a couple of blocks between 
Washington and Lady, using First 
Pavilion Park as a place for people 
to gather.

All Together Now! 
Plan two events that compliment 
each other at the same time on Main 
Street and Lincoln Street.

Morning Market. 
Leveraging the energy of Soda City 
specifically, plan a concurrent event 
on Lincoln Street, by the tunnel.

The Lincoln Tunnel for People. 
Leverage the unique local identity 
of this space to make a special nook 
for people. The second event can 
happen here.

Filling in the Gaps.
Nurture and encourage the 
connection along Lady Street with 
stepping stones, which might be pop 
up retail, tents, cool signage, or safe 
crossings. 

Assembly Crossing. 
Create bold crossing treatment and 
improved signal timing on Assembly 
and Lady.

Trace Memory. 
These events should leave some 
trace behind after they end. This 
would begin to create a mental map 
for east-west connections.

June 2016 GehlPilot Concepts60 61

02

2.b

Packet Pg. 49



Vendors and playful 
features filling in 
the gaps along Lady 
Street

B

The approach to the Lincoln 
Street tunnel provides an 
excellent opportunity to anchor 
the west end of the Soda City 
events and create a public 
space for art, events, and 
hanging out. A playful, visual 
canopy can create a draw and 
some shade, while modular 
furniture along the edges leave 
room for people to pass through 
unencumbered, or stay.

Lady between 
Assembly and 
Park

Lady between 
Main and 
Assembly

Lady between 
Park and 
Lincoln

Vista Green WayA

Stepping stones
Lining Lady Street with small moments of 
delight to draw people through might vary 
from cool signage and lighting to more 
interactive, playful features.

Creating place
Leveraged for their unique physical 
qualities, these spaces provide an 
example that the Lincoln tunnel 
should follow.

June 2016 GehlPilot Concepts62 63
2.b

Packet Pg. 50



LADY ST

WASHINGTON ST

MAIN ST

Over 
daily jaywalks on 
Assembly!

6000

Assembly Crossings

Assembly is one of the key 
barriers hindering fluid 
east-west connections. 
This is an opportunity to 
prototype improved crossing 
experiences on Assembly 
at key intersections: Lady, 
Hampton, and Green. Surface 
treatment along with improved 
signalization will signal to 
motorists to slow down, while 
softening the pedestrian 
experience.

First Pavilion Park

A key move before kicking 
off simultaneous events on 
Lincoln and Main is to shift 
Soda City down a couple of 
blocks between Washington 
and Lady, using First 
Pavilion Park as a place for 
people to gather.

E

KEY FINDINGS TRACKING SUCCESS

1.
Moving east to west on foot 
is made difficult by Assembly 
Street, which cuts downtown in 
two halves. People are putting 
their lives at risk to cross!

Less Jaywalkers, but More East 
West Walking.
More people will be crossing 
along Assembly with the 
pedestrian signal to get from the 
Vista to Main street and beyond.
Target: Significantly fewer 
jaywalkers. 

Stretch Out.
The great number of people that 
pour on to Main Street for Soda 
City yet remain concentrated 
in just one block speaks to how 
much Columbians enjoy being out 
together, but also shows that there 
are few invitations to draw that 
crowd beyond the immediate event. 
Columbia can capitalize on the event 
crowd to start building energy along 
Lady and Lincoln Street.
Target: When people think of Soda 
City, they think of a network of 
spaces and events, not simply a 
block of Main Street. 

2. 
Tremendous energy concentrates 
on one block of Main Street; it's 
very quiet a few blocks away

753 people
at Main and Washington

But just 

47 people
three blocks away

Assembly Today
Precedents

G

June 2016 GehlPilot Concepts64 65
2.b

Packet Pg. 51



THE FRONT 
PORCH

A Hub For People: 
Creating an inviting 
neighborhood asset for 
families and fulfilling 
a latent demand for 
hanging out, all while re-
imagining the State House 
as a great public front 
porch for all. 

The statehouse can be a 
canvas and a beacon to express 
different events during the year: 
graduation, astrology night, 
earth day, and so on. 

Today the stairs are used by a great 
cross section of Columbians: from 
joggers getting some exercise, to 
teenagers hanging out, to families 
finding a place to rest while their 
kids play in the field. More formally 

inviting people to the statehouse with 
playful furniture and easier access 
across Gervais street will make this a 
hub for people and a defining space in 
Columbia.

Today, the State House 
functions as a destination and 
a ceremonial center of the city, 
but it's positioned to be much 
more. By formalizing more 
invitations for people to stay, 
the State House could become 
a spontaneous place to spend 
time and transform into an active 
'central park' play, leisure, and 
outdoor working space. The 
latent demand is there. During its 
most active hours on weekends, 
1 in 3 people stick around, and 
the variety of activity is diverse: 
from yoga, to exercise, to simply 
hanging out and enjoying the 
space. 

June 2016 GehlPilot Concepts66 67

03

2.b

Packet Pg. 52



SENATE STSENATE ST

LADY STLADY ST

GERVAISE STGERVAISE ST

PENDLETON STPENDLETON ST

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY S
T

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY S
T

S
U

M
TE

R
 S

T
S

U
M

TE
R

 S
T

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY S
T

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY S
T

M
A

IN
 S

T
M

A
IN

 S
T

S
U

M
TE

R
 S

T
S

U
M

TE
R

 S
T

SENATE STSENATE ST

GERVAISE STGERVAISE ST

PENDLETON STPENDLETON ST

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY S
T

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY S
T

M
A

IN
 S

T
M

A
IN

 S
T

S
U

M
TE

R
 S

T
S

U
M

TE
R

 S
T

MOVES IN FOCUS

This pilot looks to facilitate access 
from Main Street and the University 
by improving intersection treatment 
at Gervais and Senate, inviting 
people to stay with playful seating, 
and flipping the perception of the 
space from a serious and ceremonial 
place to a State House for everyone 
with inclusive, family-oriented 
programming. 

Social Objects. Inject the area with 
some play and draw on Columbians' 
curiosity with fun furniture options. 
Summer Field. Re-brand a portion of 
the grounds as “Summer Field” and 
plan events / concert / movie series 
on weekends in the summer.
Under the Stars. Dark pockets make 
this area uninviting at night. Improve 
lighting throughout. 
Outdoor Meetings. Create a WiFi 
zone, ideal for outdoor conferences 
and working. 

People already bring 
their own color and 
play to the space. 
Support this with a 
series of light, playful 
furniture options.

KEY FINDINGS TRACKING SUCCESS

1.
Compared to other spaces 
surveyed, the State House saw 
a strong proportion of physical 
activity and play in the space - 
about 1/5 of all activity. 

A redefined hub.
The space should become a hub not 
just for planned activities, but also 
for spontaneous ones.
Target: During lunch and weekends 
1 of 2 pedestrians walking by ought 
to stay. 

2. 
The State House is a destination. 
We observed lots of get 
togethers: yoga, bike meets, 
a running club. The space 
functions as a hub and meeting 
place for people.

Quality.
The State House should ace 
Columbia's Quality Criteria. Target:

Water & 
Natural 

Resources

Greenery & 
Plants

Relaxing & 
Peaceful

Color & 
Art

Dynamic & 
Active Togetherness

Closeness & 
Fine Grain

Whimsical 
& Creative

Fun & 
Play

Standing

Physical 
Activity

20%

Bench Sitting

Secondary
Sitting

Social Stair
Activation Playful 

Lighting

Work / Play

Intersection
Improvements

Statehouse 
Facade 
Projection

Art Under the Stars

Zen Zone

A
B

C

D

E

F

G

June 2016 GehlPilot Concepts68 69
2.b

Packet Pg. 53



Getting there: 
First steps

Columbia is well positioned to 
accomplish great, people-first 
initiatives downtown. With the 
Mayor's leadership and the 
council's support, the political 
will to implement public realm 
improvements is there. Combine 
this with a public enthusiasm 
to create and participate in 
engaging events and experiences 
downtown, the opportunity is now 
to be bold and test these pilots. 

Each pilot can be undertaken in any sequence, but 
ideally they would happen in order: first establishing 
some seating on Main Street between Lady and 
Washington targeting the wide sidewalk spaces and 
First Pavilion park; then building energy east and west 
on Lady Street; and finally defining a new people-first 
landmark and "Central Park" in the statehouse. 

June 2016 GehlPilot Concepts70 71
2.b

Packet Pg. 54



Gehl 

Gehl is a people first design 
consultancy. We work with clients 
to create mutually beneficial 
relationships between people’s 
quality of life and their built 
environment.

We are Urban Planners, 
Designers, Architects, Landscape 
Architects, Sociologists, and Real 
Estate Professionals. 

Project Team

Client Team

Central Carolina 
Community Foundation 

The City of Columbia

With Support from 
the Knight Foundation

2.b

Packet Pg. 55



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:26 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Assistant City Manager for Operations 
 
FROM: Missy Gentry, Assistant City Manager 

 
SUBJECT: Changes in Parking Enforcement Hours in Five Points - Ms. 

Melissa Gentry, P.E., Assistant City Manager for Operations 
 
PRESENTER: Missy Gentry 

 
As the City continues to experience vast growth and a surge in downtown living, the parking 
challenges that once were weekday only challenges are now being felt at various other times in 
some areas.  Parking meters are the primary tool used to encourage turnover within high demand 
areas and help ensure businesses have ample parking for their patrons.  As of such, the City has 
discussed expanded enforcement hours within the various hospitality districts to help address 
concerns regarding lack of patron parking caused by spaces being used for long durations by 
individuals who are not patrons of the area.  While there is a need to implement a plan that 
addresses those concerns, there is also the need to limit unintended negative impacts on both the 
retail and hospitality businesses in the area.   
 
Since the last City Council meeting, we have been working with and listening to concerns 
expressed by stakeholders across the three districts.  The meters in the Main Street and Vista 
areas currently reflect enforcement hours as 9am - 6pm Mon - Sat.  Five Points enforcement 
currently reflects 11am - 6pm.  It is requested by Five Points Association (FPA) that we continue 
to enforce the 11am - 6 pm schedule but we add Saturday enforcement as well.   
 
At this time, staff recommends expanding enforcement in Five Points to include Saturday, as 
requested by FPA and continuing to enforce as normal in the other areas, with the recognition 
that Saturday enforcement is a possibility if parking problems arise that result in the need for 
such.  We will continue to work closely with all three districts to identify parking patterns that 
need to be addressed to ensure ample parking is available for the patrons of the businesses in the 
area.   

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

3

Packet Pg. 56



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 12:57 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 
 
FROM: Erika Moore, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Parking Ordinance Revisions - Ms. Melissa Gentry, P.E., 

Assistant City Manager for Operations and Ms. Jeanne 
Lisowski, Esq., Assistant City Attorney 

 
As previously discussed, various changes to the Parking Ordinance are scheduled to be 
recommended in the coming months.  The first series of changes are proposed in order to reflect 
current practices.  Additional changes will be recommended in the coming months. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-090 amend Ch 12 Art 11 Stopping Standing and Parking (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

4

Packet Pg. 57



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-090 

Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 12, Motor 
Vehicles and Traffic, Article 11, Stopping, Standing and Parking, Division 1, Generally, Sec. 12-43 Parking 

prohibited during certain hours in designated places; Sec. 12-45 Stopping, Standing or parking in 
loading zone; Sec. 12-49 Parking for certain purposes prohibited; Sec. 12-51 Use of loading zones; 
Sec. 12-52 Certain parked vehicles declared nuisance; Division 2 Parking Meter Zones, Sec. 12-72 

Location and operation of meters; Sec. 12-73 Marking of spaces; vehicles to be parked within 
markings; Sec. 12-74 Parking position; Sec. 12-75 Deposit of coin; Sec. 12-76 Overtime parking; Sec. 

12-77 Depositing slugs; Sec. 12-78 Defacing or injuring meters; Sec. 12-80 Disposition of revenue; and 
Sec. 12-81 Exemptions 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council this __ day of , 2016, that the 
1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 12, Motor Vehicles and 
Traffic, Article 11, Stopping, Standing and Parking, Division 1, Generally, Sec. 12-43 Parking prohibited 
during certain hours in designated places; Sec. 12-45 Stopping, Standing or parking in loading zone; Sec. 
12-49 Parking for certain purposes prohibited; Sec. 12-51 Use of loading zones; Sec. 12-52 Certain 
parked vehicles declared nuisance; Division 2 Parking Meter Zones, Sec. 12-72 Location and operation 
of meters; Sec. 12-73 Marking of spaces; vehicles to be parked within markings; Sec. 12-74 Parking 
position; Sec. 12-75 Deposit of coin; Sec. 12-76 Overtime parking; Sec. 12-77 Depositing slugs; Sec. 12-
78 Defacing or injuring meters; Sec. 12-80 Disposition of revenue; and Sec. 12-81 Exemptions, are 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 12-43. Parking prohibited during certain hours in designated places. 
When signs are erected in each block giving notice thereof, no person sfta.l+ may park a vehicle as 
prohibited by such signage between the hours and days so designated on any day except Sundays and 
public holidays. 

Sec. 12-45. Stopping, standing or parking in loading zone. 
(a) No person sfta.l+ may stop, stand or park a veh ide for any purpose or period of time other than for 
the expeditious loading or unloading of passengers in any place marked as a passenger zone during hours 
when the regulations applicable to such passenger zone are effective, and then only for a period not to 
exceed three minutes. 
(b) No person sfta.l+ may stop, stand or park a vehicle for any purpose or length of time other than for 
expeditious unloading and delivery or pickup and loading of materials in any place marked as a loading 
zone during the hours of &.007:00 a.m. to 11 :00 a.m., Monday through Saturday. In no case shall the 
stop for loading and unloading of materials exceed 30 minutes. Unless otherwise posted by the traffic 
engineer, any vehicle may occupy a loading zone on Sunday, or for a period not to exceed +5 30 
minutes after 11 :00 a.m. and before 8:00a.m. on Monday through Saturday. 

Sec. 12-49. Parking for certain purposes prohibited. 
No person sfta.l+ may stand or park a vehicle upon any roadway, city parking garage or city parking lot 
for the principal purpose of: 
(1) Displaying it for sale; and/or 
(2) Washing, greasing or repairing such vehicle, except repairs necessitated by an emergency. 

Last revised: 9/14/2016 
16170905 

4.a

Packet Pg. 58



Sec. 12-51. Use of loading zones. 
(a) Parking places marked as loading zones sftaU may be used only by vehicles actually engaged in 
loading or unloading, pickup or delivery of merchandise to or from a business which can be served from 
the loading zone within a period of 30 minutes. 
(b) It shall be unlawful for any vehicle, regardless of size or tonnage, to occupy any loading zone 
unless the owner has first obtained an annual permit from the chief of police parking services division, 
which shall run from July 1 to June 30. The chief of police parking services division shall issue permits 
only for those vehicles which have as their principal business purpose the transporting of goods and 
merchandise, and he sftaU may collect an annual fee of $5.00 for one vehicle permit, provided that 
additional vehicles under the same ownership may be issued permits for a fee of $2.00 each. 
(c) The owner of any vehicle found in violation of this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, 
punishable, upon conviction, in accordance with section 1-5, and the permit, if any, issued for the 
vehicle, shall be revoked in addition to other penalties provided by law. 

Sec. 12-52. Certain parked vehicles declared nuisance. 
Any vehicle parked continuously in any metered parking space, city controlled parking lot or city 
parking garage for 24 hours or more or parked on any street or other public property, whether in an 
authorized or unauthorized zone, which is found to be the subject of $5G:B91 00.00 or more past due on 
outstanding bonds under the city parking ordinance, is hereby declared to be a public nuisance. 

Sec. 12-72. Location and operation of meters. 
Parking meters installed in the parking meter zones established by the provisions of this division shaH may 
be placed upon the curb immediately adjacent to the individual parking places described in this division. 
Each parking meter shall be placed or set in such a manner as to show or display by a signal or through 
an electronic method that the parking space adjacent to such meter is or is not tegaHy in use. Each 
parking meter sftaU may be installed and set to display, upon the deposit of a $0.25 coin of the United 
States coins, prepaid parking card or by an electronic payment method authorized by the city, a 
signal indicating tegal purchased parking for one half hour up to the maximum time allowed by the 
meter, in such zones as are designated by the city council. Each meter shall also be arranged so that upon 
the expiration of the tegal purchased parking time, it will indicate by a mechanical operation and the 
dropping of the proper signal or through an electronic method of notification that that the ktwftH 
purchased parking has expired. Parking payment methods such as pay-by-space and pay-and-display 
may be installed in areas designated by the city manager within parking meter zones to provide 
convenient methods of payment for parking. Where meters or other devices are not practical in the 
judgment of parking services, signage may be erected at parking spaces and at the entrance to 
public off-street parking lots or garages to allow members of the public to use alternative methods 
of payment. The city may provide a pay-by-phone or other remote payment service to the public for 
payment of parking fees. 

Sec. 12-73. Marking of spaces; vehicles to be parked within markings. 
The city manager is hereby instructed to have lines or markings painted or placed upon the curb or upon 
the street adjacent to each parking meter for the purpose of designating the parking space for which such 
meter is to be used, and each vehicle parked alongside of or next to any parking meter shall park within 
the lines or markings so established. Parking services may have lines, markings or signage painted or 
placed upon the curb or upon the street adjacent to each parking meter, parking control device or 

Lastrevised: 9/14/2016 
16170905 2 

4.a

Packet Pg. 59



spaces controlled by a parking payment program, for the purpose of designating the parking space. 
Each vehicle parked within the space shall park within the lines or markings so established. It shall be 
unlawful and a violation of this division to park any vehicle across any such line or marking or to park 
such vehicle in such position that the vehicle shall not be entirely within the area so designated by such 
lines or markings or to park a vehicle in a partially obstructed space, which would prevent the vehicle 
from parking within the designated lines or markings. 

Sec. 12-74. Parking position. 
When a parking space in any parking meter zone is parallel with the adjacent curb or sidewalk, any 
vehicle parked in such parking space shall be parked so that the foremost part of such vehicle shall be 
alongside of and nearest to the parking meter or sign. When a parking space 6ft in any parking meter 
zone is diagonal to the curb or sidewalk, any vehicle parked in such parking space shall be parked with 
the foremost part of such vehicle directed at and nearest to such meter or sign. The total length of any 
vehicle parked in a designated compact space shall not extend beyond the designated lines or 
markings. 

Sec. 12-75. Deposit of ffiitt payment. 
When any vehicle shall be parked in any space alongside or next to which a parking meter, parking 
control device or space controlled by a remote payment method is located in accordance with the 
provisions of this division, the operator of such vehicle shall, upon entering the parking space, 
immediately deposit or cause to be deposited a coin of the United States or prepaid parking card in 
such parking meter or other parking control device, or purchase time by other designated electronic 
method, and the parking space may then be lawfully occupied by such vehicle during the period 
provided. If such vehicle shall remain parked in any such parking space beyond the parking time limit, the 
parking meter shall display a sign or signal showing tUegaJ expired parking or the operator shall be 
notified by electronic means, and in that event such vehicle shall be considered as parked overtime and 
beyond the period of legal purchased parking time, and the parking of a vehicle overtime or beyond the 
period of legal purchased parking time in any such part of a street where any such meter is located shall 
be a violation of this division. 

Sec. 12-76. Overtime parking. 
It shall be unlawful for any person to cause, allow, permit or suffer any vehicle registered in his name, or 
which he has leased or rented from another person, to be parked longer than the maximum period of 
legal purchased parking time established for any parking meter zone as described in this division, as 
shown on the face of the meter or through other established parking control devices or approved 
electronic methods. The provisions of this section apply whether or not aft additional coin is put parking 
time is purchased by an electronic method or by depositing additional coins in the meter after the 
vehicle has remained parked longer than the maximum period shown on the meter face or parking 
control device. 

Sec. 12-77. Depositing slugs and alteration of payment methods. 
It shall be unlawful to deposit or cause to be deposited in any parking meter any slug, device or metallic 
substitute for a coin of the United States or to use any method to alter any device or software to avoid 
paying parking fees. 

Last revised: 9/14/2016 
16170905 3 

4.a

Packet Pg. 60



Sec. 12-78. Defacing or injuring meters. 
It shall be unlawful for any person to deface, injure, tamper with, open or willfully break, destroy or 
impair the usefulness of any parking meter, parking device, signage or parking payment software 
installed or authorized under the provisions of this division. 

Sec. 12-80. Disposition of revenue. 
The funds derived from parking meters, parking control devices and alternative parking payment 
methods as provided in this divisionL are hereby levied and assessed as fees to provide for the proper 
regulation and control of traffic upon the public streets, and to cover the cost of the supervision, 
inspection, installation, operation, maintenance, control and use of the parking spaces and regulating the 
parking of vehicles in the parking meter zones created by this division. 

Sec. 12-81. Exemptions. 
(a) All commercial trucks while actually loading and unloading are required to pull in to the curb 
without charge in metered spaces. 
(b) Any commercial truck parked in a meter space longer than while actually loading and unloading 
will be in violation of this division. 
(c) Disabled operators of vehicles bearing license plates issued by the state highway department 
indicating that the operator is disabled shall be exempt from the requirements of this division pertaining 
to the payment of parking fees deposit of coins in parking meters. All other parking and meter 
regulations, in dud ing overtime parking prohibitions except timed parking, shall apply to such operators. 
(d) Witnesses who testify or are subpoenaed to testify in criminal cases in the circuit court, while in 
attendance at court, shall not be subject to parking meter requirements for deposit of coins or overtime 
parking, and parking meter tickets certified by the clerk of court as exempt under this subsection shall be 
cancelled. 

Requested by: 

Mayor Benjamin 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised 9/14/2016 
16170905 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

4 

4.a

Packet Pg. 61



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 2:59 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Assistant City Manager for Operations 
 
FROM: Missy Gentry, Assistant City Manager 

 
SUBJECT: Storm Water Project List / Proposed Bond Discussion - Ms. 

Melissa Gentry, P.E., Assistant City Manager for Operations 
 
PRESENTER: Missy Gentry 

 
As the City proceeds towards the analysis related to a proposed storm water bond, staff has 
reviewed the storm water project list for the purpose of identifying projects to be funded with the 
potential bond.  Request time during the work session agenda to discuss the list and obtain 
feedback from Council that will be used as the process proceeds forward.    

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

5

Packet Pg. 62



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:27 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: ACM for Finance & Economic Services 
 
FROM: Jeff Palen, Chief Financial Officer 

 
SUBJECT: Discussions incident to proposed contractual arrangements - 

§30-4-70(a)(2): - Parking 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

6

Packet Pg. 63



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 1:33 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: ACM for Finance & Economic Services 
 
FROM: Jeff Palen, Chief Financial Officer 

 
SUBJECT: Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, 

expansion, or the provision of services encouraging location or 
expansion of industries or other businesses in the area served 
by the public body – S.C. Code §30-4-70(a)(5) 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

7

Packet Pg. 64



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/15/2016 3:28 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 
 
FROM: Erika Moore, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Receipt of legal advice which relates to matters covered by 

attorney-client privilege - S.C. Code  §30-4-70(a)(2) 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: US DOT v. Association of American Railroads 

8

Packet Pg. 65



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/14/2016 8:25 AM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 
 
FROM: Erika Moore, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Chaplain Billie Bright, Columbia Fire Department 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

Packet Pg. 66



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 9:34 AM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Economic Development 
 
FROM: Ryan Coleman, 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve a Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Contract 

Renewal for Professional Services related to the retention of 
Military Personnel, Services and Operations located at Fort 
Jackson during the upcoming rounds of Base Realignment and 
Closure (BRAC) and Sequestration, as requested by the 
Economic Development  Department. Award to the Greater 
Columbia Chamber of Commerce in the amount of $53,500.00. 
This firm is located in Columbia, SC. 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Chamber of Commerce Contract (2016-17) (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source: Special Contracts 5511301-638300 - The 
original budgeted amount is $53,500.00. 

9

Packet Pg. 67



9.a

Packet Pg. 68



9.a

Packet Pg. 69



9.a

Packet Pg. 70



9.a

Packet Pg. 71



9.a

Packet Pg. 72



9.a

Packet Pg. 73



9.a

Packet Pg. 74



9.a

Packet Pg. 75



9.a

Packet Pg. 76



9.a

Packet Pg. 77



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 9:34 AM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Economic Development 
 
FROM: Ryan Coleman, 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve a Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Contract 

Renewal for Professional Services for Assistance with Cluster 
Development, Project Management, Promotions, Marketing 
and Research, as requested by the Economic Development 
Department. Award to EngenuitySC in the amount of 
$65,000.00. This firm is located in Columbia, SC. 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 EngenuitySC Contract (2016-17) (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source: Special Contracts 5511301-638300 - The 
original budgeted amount is $65,000.00. 

10

Packet Pg. 78



10.a

Packet Pg. 79



10.a

Packet Pg. 80



10.a

Packet Pg. 81



10.a

Packet Pg. 82



10.a

Packet Pg. 83



10.a

Packet Pg. 84



10.a

Packet Pg. 85



10.a

Packet Pg. 86



10.a

Packet Pg. 87



10.a

Packet Pg. 88



10.a

Packet Pg. 89



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 9:33 AM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Economic Development 
 
FROM: Ryan Coleman, 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve a Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Contract 

Renewal for Professional Services for Assistance with 
Recruitment, Project Management, Promotions, Marketing, 
and Research, as requested by the Economic Development 
Department. Award to Central SC Alliance in the amount of 
$120,500.00. This firm is located in Columbia, SC. 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Central SC Contract (2016-17) (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source: Special Contracts 5511301-638300 - The 
original budgeted amount is $120,500.00. 

11

Packet Pg. 90



11
.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
1



11
.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
2



11
.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
3



11
.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
4



11
.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
5



11
.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
6



11
.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
7



11
.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
8



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 1:35 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Procurement and Contracts 
 
FROM: Sandra Wright, Purchasing Agent 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve the Purchase of seventy-five (75) 

Safariland Body Armor, as requested by the Police 
Department.  Award to Lawmen's using the SC State Contract 
in the amount of $59,535.00. This vendor is located in 
Columbia, SC. 

 
ORIGINAL BUDGET: $59,535.00 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Increase Public Safety Services 
 
The Police Department requests City Council’s approval for the purchase of Safariland Body 
Armor. 
 
We respectfully request approval for this purchase using the SC State Contract #440006623 
vendor, Lawmen’s, at the following cost plus sales tax. 
 

Qty Description Unit Price Extended 
Amt 

Total 

 75 Body Armor  $735.00  $55,125.00  
 SC Tax 8%        4,410.00  
 Total Cost   $59,535.00 

 
    
Lawmen’s is located in Columbia, SC 29210. 
 
This will be charged as follows: 
Police Department - Uniforms and Clothing 
1012402 -624100       $59,535.00 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source:Police Department – Uniforms and 
Clothing,1012402 –624100. The original budgeted amount 
is $59,535.00. 

12

Packet Pg. 99



Action Item (ID # 2891)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/13/2016 1:35 PM  Page 2 

     
Sec. 2-204.-Item (9) - Competitive sealed bidding required; exceptions.  All city contracts shall 
be awarded by competitive sealed bidding except the following as determined pursuant to 
definitions and standards set by regulations, or except as otherwise provided in this article: 
When purchasing through state contracts. 

  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Lawmen's Quote (PDF) 
 SC State Contract #4400011992 (PDF) 

12

Packet Pg. 100



12.a

Packet Pg. 101



12.b

Packet Pg. 102



12.b

Packet Pg. 103



12.b

Packet Pg. 104



12.b

Packet Pg. 105



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:28 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Communications 911 
 
FROM: Kimberly Gathers, 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve a Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Contract 

Renewal for Emergency Notification System Services, as 
requested by Columbia-Richland 911 Communications. Award 
to Everbridge Systems in the amount of $75,500.00. This firm 
is located in Columbia, SC. 

 
PRESENTER: Director Kimberly Gathers 

 
ORIGINAL BUDGET: $75,500.00 
 
CLEAN WATER 2020?: No 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Improve Communication 
 
Please find attached for your review and approval the 2016/2017 Everbridge Emergency 
Notification System Renewal Service Agreement between the City of Columbia and Everbridge 
Systems. 
 
This agreement will continue service through August 31, 2017 and is jointly funded (50/50 split) 
with Richland County: 
 
City Account  1012701  Object Code  638200  $37,750.00 
County Account   2082702  Object Code 638200 $37,750.00 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-2017 EVERBRIDGE RENEWAL SERVICE AGREEMENT (PDF) 
 EVERBRIDGE - City of Columbia, South Carolina_Fully Executed 

Amendment_07_2014 (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source: City Account:1012701-638200 ($37,750)  
and County Account: 2082702-638200 ($37,750). The 
original budgeted amount is $75,500.00. 

13

Packet Pg. 106



Action Item (ID # 2831)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:28 PM  Page 2 

 EVERBRIDGE - City of Columbia_Fully Executed SA_06_2012 (PDF) 

13

Packet Pg. 107



13.a

Packet Pg. 108



13.a

Packet Pg. 109



13.a

Packet Pg. 110



13.a

Packet Pg. 111



13
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
12



13
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
13



13.c

Packet Pg. 114



13.c

Packet Pg. 115



13.c

Packet Pg. 116



13.c

Packet Pg. 117



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 1:34 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Procurement and Contracts 
 
FROM: Sandra Wright, Purchasing Agent 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve a Contract to Provide Project 

Management Services, as requested by the Budget and 
Program Management Office. Award to Advanced Automation 
Consulting in the amount of $76,440.00. This firm is located in 
Irmo, SC. 

 
ORIGINAL BUDGET: $76,440.00 
 
CLEAN WATER 2020?: No 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Invest in Infrastructure 
 
Advanced Automation Consulting will work with the Project Management Office to manage 
deliverables and to drive assigned projects to successful completion. The contract shall expire 
June 30, 2017. 
 
I respectfully request City Council's approval for this service to Advanced Automation 
Consulting at an amount not to exceed $76,440.00 at an hourly rate of $95.00. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 AAC Terms (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source: General Admin Information 
Tech/Professional Services, 6218954-636600. The original 
budgeted amount is $76,440.00. 

14

Packet Pg. 118



14.a

Packet Pg. 119



14.a

Packet Pg. 120



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 9:12 AM A Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Procurement and Contracts 
 
FROM: Sandra Wright, Purchasing Agent 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve the Purchase of one (1) Heavy 

Duty Backhoe, as requested by the Wastewater Maintenance 
Division. Award to Blanchard Machinery, a Local Business 
Enterprise using the SC State Contract in the amount of 
$101,655.00. This vendor is located in Columbia, SC. 

 
ORIGINAL BUDGET: $101,655.00 
 
BUSINESS PROGRAM: Local Business Enterprise Program 
 
CLEAN WATER 2020?: No 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Invest in Infrastructure 
 
I respectfully requests Council's approval for this purchase at the following cost plus sales tax.   
 
420 F2 Heavy Duty Backhoe        $101,355.00 
Sales Tax                 300.00 
Total         $101,655.00 

     
Sec 2-204. (9) of the City Ordinance.  Competitive sealed bidding required; exceptions allow the City to 
purchase goods and services without competitive sealed bidding when purchasing through state contracts.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 R177136 - BLANCHARD MACHINERY QUOTE (PDF) 
 R177136 - BLANCHARD MACHINERY SC CONTRACT (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source: Utilities Water Distribution and 
Maintenance / Auto, Trucks, Heavy Equipment Capital 
5516203 - 658500. The original budgeted amount is 
$101,655.00. 

15

Packet Pg. 121



. . 

anchard ml] 
3151 Charleston Hwy 
West Columbia SC 29172 
Phone (803) 518-0113 bsmith@blanchardmach1nery.com 

CITY OF COLUMBIA 
MR EDGAR HEUSTESS 

Reference Number -----
450-8448 420F2 BHL ST, TIER 4, HRC 

206-i747 BELT, SEAT, 2" SUSPENSION 

Quo·ation 
DATE 8/23/2016 

Prepared by: Brian Smith 

Description Sales Price 

,..._.__ ---- --------------------
219-3387 BUCKET-HD, 24", 6.2 CFT 

f-- 33-7 --7-38_5 __ __,_B_U_C-KET -GP, 1.25 CYD 
- -- _, - ---

337-9695 COUNTERWEIGHT, 530 LBS 
1-----

379-2160 TIRES, 11L-16/19.5L-24.GY. 2WD 
----· 

430-9944 INSTRUCTIONS, ANSI 

433-4806 SEAT, DELUXE FABRIC 

I 450-8525 HYDRAULICS, GP, 5FCN/7BNK, ST 

I 450-8600 PT. 2WD, STD SHIFT 

I 450-8683 CAB, DELUXE 

450-8714 ,HEATER. T4 

t 
450-8715 .AIR CONDITIONER, T4 ------
450-8729 STICK, STANDARD, 14FT 

I 450-8757 ENGINE, 74 .5KW,C4.4 ACERT, T4F 
I 

L - --
9R-1085 STABILIZER PADS, STREET ---- ----- - ---.+1------; 
9R-5321 CUTIING EDGE . TWO PIECE 

447-0049 PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR 

STATE CONTRACT 4400012165 HEAVY DUTY BACKHOE PRICE 72,307.00 

ADD REMOVE GP FRONT BUCKET AND ADD 337-7436 4 IN 1 FRONT BUCKET 4,023.00 I -------------
ADD 

ADD 

ADD 

ADD 

~--A_D_D __ 

ADD 

ADD 

ADD 

450-8608 PT, 4WD, STD SHIFT 9,460.00 
- -----t 

REMOVE 2WD TIRES AND ADD 379-2161 TIRES 12.5 80/19.5L-24, GY - - ..!--~450.00 ! 
REMOVE GP HYDRAULICS AND ADD 450-8528 5 FN/78NKMP HYD 1,845.00 --- - ----- ___ ._..... ___ -- ---, 
REMOVE STREET PADS AND ADD 9R-6007 FLIP OVER PADS 330.00 --- ____ _,_ __ 
AUXILIARY HYDRAULIC LINES PICK 398-2852 OR 398-2853 3,450~ 1 
433-0154 MAGNEnC BEACON, STROBE 336.00 

444-7500 COUPLER, PG, MANUAL, DUAL LOCK 2,026.00 
--- - ---------;· --- --

ADD 450-8682 CANOPY, BASE AND DELETE ENCLOSED CAB (4,089.00) 
~---------

ADD 

ADD 

ADD 

ADD 

DELETE 450-8714 AND 450-8715 HEAT AND AC 

317-0993 HAMMER CONNECTING LINES 

423-8307 TOOL, IN LINE CHISEL HAMMER 

435-5218 CAT H65E HAMMER AND 439-4471 MOUNTING BRACKET 

(1,493.00) 

457.00 __ __,__ __ -
322.oo I 

10,931.00 

36 MONTH I 5,000 HOUR POWERTRAIN AND HYDRAULIC WARRANTY 
------------~ 

------ -· - -· --- --- ------
SC SALES TAX ---- ----------·-

TOTAL PRICE 

300.00 

5101,655 

15.a

Packet Pg. 122



Sheila Willis, Procurement Manager 
Email : swillis@mmo.sc.gov 
Tele: (803) 737-4417 

MAKE: 

MODELS: 

VENDOR: 

CONTACT NAME: 

PHONE NO.: 

E-MAIL ADDRESS: 

VENDOR NO.: 

F.E.I.N.: 

CONTRACT NO.: 

!BACK TO TOP) 

Materials Management Office 
1201 Main Street, Suite 600 
Columbia. South Carolina 29201 

CATERPILLAR 

Section: R 
Page: 103 
Date: 01/12/2016 

415F2 (Medium Duty Backhoe) ......... Click Here to See Contractor's Offer 

420F2 (Heavy Duty Backhoe) 
420F2 IT (Super Duty Backhoe) 
120M2 (Heavy Duty Motor Grader) 

Blanchard Machinery 
P.O.Box7517 
Columbia, SC 29202 

Brian Smith 

(803) 518-0113 

bsmith(a{blanchardmachinerv .com 

7000052564 

57-0528296 

4400012165 

15.b

Packet Pg. 123



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/15/2016 2:56 PM A Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Procurement and Contracts 
 
FROM: Sandra Wright, Purchasing Agent 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve the Purchase of a 2016 Caterpillar 

Excavator, as requested by the Wastewater Maintenance 
Division. Award to Blanchard Machinery, a Local Business 
Enterprise using the SC State Contract in the amount of 
$128,320.20. This vendor is located in Columbia, SC. 

 
ORIGINAL BUDGET: $128,320.20 
 
BUSINESS PROGRAM: Local Business Enterprise Program 
 
CLEAN WATER 2020?: No 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Invest in Infrastructure 
 
I respectfully requests Council's approval for this purchase at the following cost plus sales tax.   
 
2016 Caterpillar 308E2 Excavator       $118,815.00 
Sales Tax              9,505.20 
Total         $128,320.20 

     
Sec 2-204. (9) of the City Ordinance.  Competitive sealed bidding required; exceptions allow the City to 
purchase goods and services without competitive sealed bidding when purchasing through state contracts.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 R177611 BLANCHARD MACHINERY QUOTE (PDF) 
 R177611 BLANCHARD MACHINERY SC CONTRACT (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source: Utilities Wastewater Maintenance / 
Machinery and Equipment Capital 5516205 - 658300. The 
original budgeted amount is $128,320.20. 

16

Packet Pg. 124



Blanchard 
COMPACT EQUIPMENT 

City of Columbia 

Attn: Edgar Heustess 

New 2016 Caterpillar 308E2 Excavator 

CAB WITH HEAT & AC 

91 " BLADE W/ BOLT-ON WEAR EDGE 

AUXILIARY & QC HYDRAULICS 

LONG STICK 

COMPASS SYSTEM, CONTROL PATTERN CHANGER 

ALARM, TRAVEL 

HEATER, JACKET WATER 

HIGH AMBIENT COOLING PACKAGE 

RADIO, AM/FM 

BUCKET LINKAGE WILIFTING EYE 

TRACKS 450MM TRIPLE GROUSER W/RUBBER PAD 

MANUAL QUICK COUPLER-- $1 ,829 

HYDRAULIC THUMB -- $3 ,288 

H65E HAMMER BRACKET AND PINS-- $1 ,401 

24" HD CAT BUCKET -- $1 ,972 

List less 20% Discount... State Contract #5000013452 

Machine Sale Price --- $118,815 + applicable tax 

Included warranty: 1 year unlimited hour Premier 
5 years/5000 hours Power Train 

August 25, 2016 

COLUMBIA • GREENVILLE • HILTON HEAD • MYRTLE BEACH • ROCK HILL • SPARTANBURG • SUMMERVILLE 

P.O. Box 7517 • Columbia, SC 29202 • 877.626.9414 • www.BianchardMachinery.com 

16.a

Packet Pg. 125



Michael Speakman, Procurement Manager 
Email: mspeakmonl@mmo.sc. gcw 
Telephone: (803)737-9816 

Materials Management Office 
1201 Main Street Suite 600 
Columbia. SC 29201 

LOT 4- CATERPILLAR 

ENTIRE LOT- DIESEL ONLY 

% Discount - Equipment: 20% 
% Discount- Attachments: 15% 
% Discount - Accessories: 15% 

PLACE ALL ORDERS DIRECTLY WITH THE VENDOR BELOW: 

VENDOR: 

CONTACT: 
TELEPHONE: 
FAX: 
E-MAIL: 

CONTRACT#: 

FEIN#: 

SCVENDOR#: 

DELIVERY: 

Blanchard Machinery Company, Inc 
PO Box 7517 
Columbia, SC 29202 

Don Wise 
(803) 309-7227 
(803) 333-8953 
dwise@blanchardmachinery.com 

5000013452 

59-0681683 

7000052564 

0- 120 Days ARO 

Section: L 
Page: 144 
Date: 05/16/1 3 

MAIN INDEX LOT 4 INDEX 

16.b

Packet Pg. 126



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 1:37 PM A Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Procurement and Contracts 
 
FROM: Sandra Wright, Purchasing Agent 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve the Purchase of 3,000 Green 

ninety-six (96) Gallon Toter Roll Carts, as requested by the 
Solid Waste Division. Award to Wastequip, using the National 
Joint Powers Alliance Cooperative Contact in the amount of 
$163,895.13. This vendor is located in Charlotte, NC. 

 
ORIGINAL BUDGET: $163,895.13 
 
CLEAN WATER 2020?: No 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Invest in Infrastructure 
 
I respectfully request City Council’s approval for this open purchase order not to 
exceed the following quantity and cost plus S.C. sales tax. 
 
Qty Description Unit Price Extended Amount Request Total 
3000 79296 Toter 96 Gallon Cart $      47.10 $141,300.00   
1 Shipping and Handling  $   10,454.75  
1 Sales Tax  $   12,140.38  
    $ 163,895.13 
 
Wastequip NJPA contract number is 060612-WQI. 
 
Sec 2-204. (10) of the City Ordinance.  Competitive sealed bidding required; exceptions allow 
the City to purchase goods and services without competitive sealed bidding when purchasing 
through cooperative purchasing.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 WASTEQUIP QUOTE WQ-10024618 (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source: Solid Waste Roll Carts-Roll Carts and 
Recycle Bins 1014401-627600. The original budgeted 
amount is $163,895.13. 

17

Packet Pg. 127



Action Item (ID # 2892)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/13/2016 1:37 PM A Page 2 

 NJPA 060612-WQI (PDF) 

17

Packet Pg. 128



17.a

Packet Pg. 129



17.a

Packet Pg. 130



17.b

Packet Pg. 131



17.b

Packet Pg. 132



17.b

Packet Pg. 133



17.b

Packet Pg. 134



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 1:44 PM A Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Procurement and Contracts 
 
FROM: Sandra Wright, Purchasing Agent 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve the Purchase of one (1) Ford F750 

Truck with a Crane Mount, as requested by the Water 
Distribution Division. Award to H & E Equipment Services, 
using the National Joint Powers Alliance Cooperative Contract 
in the amount of $191,160.00. This vendor is located in 
Columbia, SC. 

 
ORIGINAL BUDGET: $191,160.00 
 
CLEAN WATER 2020?: No 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Invest in Infrastructure 
 
I respectfully request City Council’s approval for this purchase at the following 
cost plus S.C. sales tax.  
 
Qty Description Unit Price Extended 

Amount 
Request 
Total 

1 571E2 National Crane Mount $177,000.00 $177,000.00  
1 Sales Tax  $ 14,160.00  
    $191,160.00 
 
H&E Equipment Services NJPA contract number is 032515-GUS. 
 
Sec 2-204. (10) of the City Ordinance.  Competitive sealed bidding required; exceptions allow 
the City to purchase goods and services without competitive sealed bidding when purchasing 
through cooperative purchasing.  
  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source: Utilities Water Dist & Maint - Autos, 
Trucks, Heavy Equipment Capital 5516203-658500. The 
original budgeted amount is $191,160.00. 

18

Packet Pg. 135



Action Item (ID # 2890)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/13/2016 1:44 PM A Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 H&E QUOTE (PDF) 
 NJPA 03215-GUS (PDF) 

18

Packet Pg. 136



18.a

Packet Pg. 137



18.a

Packet Pg. 138



18.a

Packet Pg. 139



18.a

Packet Pg. 140



18.a

Packet Pg. 141



18.b

Packet Pg. 142



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 1:45 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Procurement and Contracts 
 
FROM: Sandra Wright, Purchasing Agent 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to ratify the approval of Project SS739901; 

Sewer Replacement on Tanglewood Road, as requested by the 
Utilities and Engineering Department.  Award to Shady Grove 
Construction in an amount not to exceed $391,770.50, which 
includes the contractor's bid amount of $356,155.00 and the 
owner's contingency amount of $35,615.50.  This firm is 
located in Irmo, SC. 

 
ORIGINAL BUDGET: $390,890.50 
 
BUSINESS PROGRAM: Local Business Enterprise Program 
 
CLEAN WATER 2020?: Yes 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Invest in Infrastructure 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source: Capital Improvement Fund, 5529999-
658650/SS739901-658650 - This is a Clean Water 2020 
Program Project and the origial budgeted amount is 
$390,890.50.  
 
Sub-consultant services will be at $105,140.00 of the 
contract value. 
 
$12,740.00 - Fortiline Waterworks of Columbia, SC will 
provide pipe and appurtenances 
$32,400.00 - Capital Concrete of Lexington, SC will provide 
flowfill 
$60,000.00 - B&H Paving of Gaston, SC will provide 
asphalt/paving 

19

Packet Pg. 143



Action Item (ID # 2910)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/13/2016 1:45 PM  Page 2 

Three (3) bids were received for the construction services for Tanglewood Road 
Sewer Replacement (BID016-16-17-TBR) as requested by Utilities and 
Engineering.  
 
The total construction time allocated for this project is twenty one days after the 
notice to proceed is issued.  I respectfully request City Council’s approval of these 
services from Shady Grove Construction, a certified local business enterprise, at an 
amount not to exceed $391,770.50.   
 
Base Bid $356,155.00 
Contingency $35,615.50 
Total (Not to Exceed) $391,770.50 
 
Shady Grove Construction is located in Irmo, SC 29063. 
     
This will be charged as follows: 
 
CIP Improvement Fund  
5529999-658650/SS739901-658650  $391,770.50 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 BID016-16-17-TBR Tanglewood Road Sewer Replacement Council Documents (PDF) 

19

Packet Pg. 144



19.a

Packet Pg. 145



19.a

Packet Pg. 146



19.a

Packet Pg. 147



19.a

Packet Pg. 148



19.a

Packet Pg. 149



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/7/2016 9:30 AM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-083 - Granting an Easement to South 

Carolina Electric and Gas Company (SCE&G) along a portion 
of 4011 Beltline Boulevard, Richland County TMS#11610-05-
26 for utilities to serve the City’s new Water and Wastewater 
Office Facility; CF#250-412 - First reading approval was given 
on September 6, 2016. 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-083 SCEG Easement City Water-Wastewater Facility 4011 Beltline (PDF) 
 
 
HISTORY: 

09/06/16 City Council APPROVED ON FIRST READING   

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

20

Packet Pg. 150



~ -------------------------------------------------

ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-083 

Granting an Easement to South Carolina Electric and Gas Company (SCE&G) along a portion 
of 4011 Beltline Boulevard, Richland County TMS#11610-05-26 

for utilities to serve the City's new Water and Wastewater Office Facility; CF#250-412 

WHEREAS, South Carolina Electric & Gas Company (SCE&G) has made a request for an 
easement crossing the City-owned property identified as 4011 Beltline Boulevard, Richland County TMS 
# 11610-05-26, for installation of electric lines to serve the new facility; and, 

WHEREAS, the plans for the proposed utility installations have been reviewed and approved by 
the Department of Utilities & Engineering and there are no -conflicts with existing nor planned City 
utilities; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Cou cil of the City of Columbia, South Carolina this 
___ day of , 2016, for an m consideration of the S!Jm of One and No/100 
($1.00) Dollar, each to the other paid, the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an easement on 
behalf of the City of Columbia to SOUTH CAROLINA ELECTRIC & GAS COMPANY for ingress, 
egress, installation and maintenance of electric lines and app rtenances along 4011 Beltline Boulevard, 
Richland County TMS #11610-05-26. 

The referenced easement is shown on a drawll,lg repared (or: "Columbia Waste Water Division", 
sheet 1 of 1, Drawing #D-080150, and beiqg on file 1n the office of the Department of Utilities and 
Engineering under file reference #250-412. A copy of said drawing being attached hereto and made a part 
hereof as Exhibit "A" 

Requested by: 

City Attorney 

Introduced 
Final Reading 

Last revised: 8/12/2016 
1617080298 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

20.a

Packet Pg. 151



EXHIBIT "A" 
SCE&G DRAWING #D-080 150 
PROJECT NAME: COLUMBIA WASTEWATER DIVISION 

Last revised: 8/12/2016 
1617080298 

20.a

Packet Pg. 152



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 8/17/2016 1:43 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-084 - Authorizing the conveyance of 

approximately 0.010 acre (428 square feet) portion of  
Richland County TMS #22906-04-22 to Richland County for 
Intersection Improvements at  North Springs Road (S40-1834) 
and Risdon Way (S40-2271); CF#250-398 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-084 convey ROW N Springs-Risdon Way Project to Richland County (PDF) 
 
 
HISTORY: 

09/06/16 City Council APPROVED ON FIRST READING   

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

21

Packet Pg. 153



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-084 

Authorizing the conveyance of approximately 0. 010 acre ( 428 square feet) portion of 
Richland County TMS #22906-04-22 to Richland County for Intersection Improvements at 

North Springs Road (840-1834) and Risdon Way (840-2271); CF#250-398 

WHEREAS, Richland County has made a request for conveyance of right of way containing 
0.0 I 0 acre ( 428 square feet) along Richland County TMS #22906-04-22 for the North Springs Road and 
Risdon Way Intersection Improvements Project funded by the penny,~;x. program; and, 

/ ''·-;y 

WHEREAS, the project plans have been reviewed and,.ved by the Department of Utilities & 
Engineering and there are no conflicts with existing nor plal}n~g,Cftyutilities; NOW, THEREFORE, 

:;:,<;:;{' ' 

, ,_ --:J_jf?'Y ··-:~·;_.·,, 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Cou'ij~il of the Cit'y?~~.Columbia, South Carolina this 

day of , 2016, for and in qdjj$itl~~ation of the s\i~;pf One and Noll 00 ($1.00) 
Dollar, each to the other paid, the City Manager1shet~by authorized to eX'~utethe Title to Real Estate 
on behalf of the City of Columbia to RICHLAND 'COUNTY for conveyance o~ro.o I 0 acre ( 428 square 
feet) portion of Richland County TMS #22906-04-2i"~·~~' . ',',',, 

'·::.·:~~?~;~\ ? 

Reference is made to right-of- . \\;'ing prepare [;the North Springs Roa~I and Risdon Way 
Intersection Improvements Project, Proj ~~7}, Tract 40~~ted May 4, 2016, and being on file in 
the o:fice ~f the Department of Utilities a · ;,EngNf~tigg un_d:r ''fit~~yference #250-398. A copy of said 
drawmg bemg attached hereto and made a p~jft,ereof as,~?$!ubrt "A'~::' 

Requested by: <?f/ · /:~;w?~',i:,l,;,:,~,J<.~ .. ,:t ~~~y ,v •. 

~~ -------------Assistant City Manager Oen4Y 

City Attorney 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised: 8/12/2016 
1617080299 

CV;;> 

\f~1f~ 
'<t:%0~. 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

21.a

Packet Pg. 154



r - -···· --·······-····-········--·······························------

EXHIBIT II A II !!U.9h'.Mil!,.~_,_________ . 
P:Ol STA <lS4DO.~ $-111..!;• \ '"'- / 

ror ., .. , .... " ••. ,, / ",. r-- '·-' 

i 0-

1
1 0-T-;;r~~TG -r --v; \ '',,,_ 

1
1 ~- --~-\. /. "'r_--e-----1~.-~--(;2;·· ··

1

; 

II I I I \ \ ""-,, . />'.,~ ~·l '··· 
r I · \~ c~ l CD // c~~ " . 0) , I 

I If It It t' G) '\ {,~5 \\ I // . 1 JVI t 
I 0 \\ :!1 / 

4(1 

•. ·-~L-.~b~:=Jk,J~"'''~~,·~t~~;'"~~o~\llk;~::~~ 

22906·01-?2 
OFJT AJN • 428 S.F. 

W!J!O AL".J 

<!_) j '-~"" '· 
\ 

"' 
\ _ _... 

~) ; '-...-/. ~j;;~l . 
!! 1' 8~~· 

·-u ... 
v 
< 

"' ... 
r ... 
'" 0 z 

f
-~-RlCfftAND.C"OUNTY ·-·- -

. __ ARE;\ __ c;IC,rQUJSITION FRO!!'f.T.FJAq_T 40 __ f'~QJJ:(?!l/D~S]J 
PRefWle(> 5(l 0 100 COtiN lY 

. --~ •<. • If ·~' - - ''• --------... -~ ... , .•. --.. ·-"" _OS/04~ SCAtE ~~~---- .. ..:.:1-!.:=!__ ~!£!!:!:':!!! 

CF:ft ?.5o-3qg 

21.a

P
acket P

g
. 155



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:29 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Resolution No.:  R-2016-063 - Authorizing consumption of beer 

and wine only at the Chili Cook Off in Five Points in the 700 
and 800 blocks of Pavilion Avenue and 2100 and 2200 blocks of 
Greene Street on Saturday, November 12, 2016 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 R-2016-063 Five Points Chili Cookoff (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

22

Packet Pg. 156



Last revised:  9/7/2016 
1617080305 

RESOLUTION NO.: R-2016-063 
 

Authorizing consumption of beer and wine only at the Chili Cook Off in Five Points in the 
700 and 800 blocks of Pavilion Avenue and 2100 and 2200 blocks of Greene Street  

on Saturday, November 12, 2016 
 
 WHEREAS, the Five Points Association ("Organizer") is sponsoring the Chili Cook Off in Five Points in the 
2100 and 2200 blocks of Greene Street between Pavillion Street, the 700 block of Pavilion to the entrance of the 
Post Office and the 800 block of Pavilion Avenue to the entrance into Tripp's Cleaners, on Saturday, November 12, 
2016; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Organizer has requested permission for the temporary closing and use of the 800 block of 
Pavilion Street to the entrance into Tripp's Cleaners from 7:00 p.m. Friday, November 11, 2016 until 11:00 p.m. 
Saturday, November 12, 2016 and the 700 block of Pavilion Street to the entrance to the Post Office and the 2100 
and 2200 blocks of Greene Street from 5:00 a.m. until 11:00 p.m. Saturday, November 12, 2016 for preparation of 
the event, staging of the event, crowd control and overflow during the event to be held on Saturday,  November 12, 
2016 from 8:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m.; and  for patrons to consume beer and wine beverages only at the event on 
November 12, 2016 from 11:00 a.m. until 6:30 p.m.; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, it has been determined that such an event would be in the public interest; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council this ___ day of ________________, 2016, that the sale of beer 
and wine beverages only is authorized between the hours of 11:00 a.m. until 6:30 p.m. on Saturday, November 12, 
2016; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that possession and consumption of alcoholic liquors or alcoholic beverages 
other than beer and/or wine beverages only within the event area is prohibited; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that VIP tents or VIP areas for the possession and consumption of alcoholic 
liquors or alcoholic beverages, other than beer or wine beverages only, within the event area are prohibited; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that organizer is responsible or shall make arrangements for the cleanup of all 
trash and debris within the festival area and within the designated area of impact as shown on the attached drawing, 
and shall place same in the roll carts provided by the City.  Any overflow of trash and debris shall be placed in 
garbage bags with the top securely closed and placed beside the City roll carts.  The number of roll carts needed for 
the event shall be determined by organizer and the City Solid Waste Division prior to the event and placed 
throughout the event area to ensure that trash and debris are well contained. Roll carts and bagged trash and debris 
shall be returned to the collection point designated by the City in a timely manner.  If the organizer has not opted to 
use City services to clean up the festival area and within the designated area of impact as shown on the attached 
drawing, any costs incurred by the City in removing loose trash and debris within the festival area and within the 
designated area of impact as shown on the attached drawing, which the organizer has failed to clean up, shall be 
billed to and paid by the organizer; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all vendors be restricted to stationary location; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that outdoor possession and consumption of beer and wine beverages only, all 
outdoor musical performances and use of sound-amplifying devices shall end by 10:00 p.m. due to the proximity of 
the event to residential properties; and,  
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that only pedestrian traffic will be allowed within the area.  All other traffic, 
including, but not limited to, automobiles, trucks, motorcycles, mopeds, bicycles, skate boards, and horses, except 
police horses, is prohibited. All pets, including snakes, shall be prohibited. Coolers, glass bottles, breakable glasses 
and/or cups, large bags and backpacks shall be prohibited; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that during the designated time the closed portion of the 700 block of Pavilion  

22.a

Packet Pg. 157



to the entrance of the Post Office, the 800 block of Pavilion Avenue to the entrance into Tripp's Cleaners, and the 
2100 and 2200 blocks of Greene Street, with the exception of the parking area and any other areas posted as to not 
allow alcoholic beverages, shall be declared to be a Public Park and provisions of Chapter 15, Parks and Recreation, 
Sec. 15-1, 15-2 and 15-3, Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina are in effect Pursuant to 
Chapter 14, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, Article IV, Offenses Against the Public Peace and Order, Sec. 14-
99, 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, the 700 block of Pavilion to the entrance of 
the Post Office, the 800 block of Pavilion Avenue to the entrance into Tripp's Cleaners, and the 2100 and 2200 
blocks of Greene Street, with the exception of the parking area and any other areas posted as to not allow alcoholic 
beverages, is deemed to be the site of a public festival at which alcoholic beverages may be consumed and the 
prohibition against possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages set forth in Sec. 14-99 shall not apply. 
Possession and consumption of alcoholic beverages shall be permitted only in containers provided by vendors within 
the areas designated. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the event organizer shall provide the names and cell phone numbers of a least 
two contact persons who can receive complaints during the event, including any set up and breakdown times. The 
cell phones shall remain on at all times during the event and during any set up and breakdown time. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that failure of the event organizer to strictly comply with the time frames and other 
requirements and responsibilities set forth in this resolution may result in a denial of subsequent requests to allow the 
event. 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that no solicitation or transactions be made in violation of Sec. 14-32, 1998 Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in the event of inclement weather on Saturday, November 12, 2016, the 
City Manager is authorized to approve the rescheduling of the event for another date within one (1) week from the 
date of the originally scheduled event upon receiving twenty-four (24) hours written notice requesting the 
rescheduling of the event. The hours of operation for the event, service of beer and wine at the event and closing of 
streets for set up, clean up and crowd control of the event shall remain as outlined above. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that should the organizer reschedule the event for another date beyond one (1) 
week from the date of the originally scheduled event, a request for a resolution of City Council approving the new 
date of the event shall be required. 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

~ 
City Attorney 
Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised: 9/7/2016 
1617080305 

Mayor 

ATIEST: 

City Clerk 

22.a

Packet Pg. 158



DATE: !August 3, 2016 NAME OF REQUESTOR Five Points Association/Amy Beth Franks 

EVENT NAME/PURPOSE (i.e., St. Patrick's/Charity Fund-raiser 29th Annual Chili Cook-Off in Five Points 

DATE(S) OF EVENTS: !saturday, November 12,2016 

LOCATION OF EVENT 
(i.e., Amphitheater area 

2100 block of Greene Street 
2200 block of Greene Street 

of Finlay Park; 1200 and 1300 
blocks of Main Street) 

700 block of Pavilion Avenue- with one lane access for Post Office 
800 block of Pavilion Avenue- not to block Tripp's drive-thru 

STREET($) TO BE CLOSED 2100 block of Greene Street 
(i.e., 1200 and 1300 blocks of 2200 block of Greene Street 
Main Street and 1100 and 1200 700 block of Pavilion Avenue- with one lane access for Post Office 
blocks of Lady Street) 800 block of Pavilion Avenue- not to block Tripp's drive-thru 

HOURS FOR STREET(S) TO BE CLOSED 7pm on Friday, November 11th: CLOSE 800 block of Pavilion Avenue- not to block Tripp's drive-
(i.e., 5:00 p.m.m- 12:00 a.m. thru 
ALLOW TIME FOR SET UP/CLEAN UP All ELSE close Sam to 11 pm on Saturday, November 12th 

,, 
-'·'"' 

"p 

HOURS OF EVENT 
(i.e., 6:00 p.m. - 1 0:00 p.m.) 

HOURS OF SERVICE OF BEER/WINE 
(Service should end one-half hour prior to 

end of event, i.e., event is 6-10 p.m., beer/ 
wine service is 6-9:30 p.m.) 

11 am - 6:30pm 

Please submit requests by mail, e-mail or fax at least sixty (60) da,ys in advance of the event to allow for preparation and review of the Resolution and 
scheduling on Council's agenda. Requests may be sent by e-mail (slardis@columbiasc.net ), fax (737-4250) or mail, POB 147, Columbia, SC 29217. A 
draft Resolution will be prepared and forwarded for your review as well as to the Police Department Special Events office and to Parks and Recreation if 
the event is to be held in a City park. 

PLEASE NOTE: This form should only be used for public events where beer and/or wine are to be sold and consumed on City property (i.e., Five 
After Five, St. Patrick's Festival, Concerts in Finlay Park, etc.). 

This form should not be used tD request use of City property for private events (birthday, retirement, anniversary parties, etc.) nor for sidewalk sales. 
Requests for private events at City parks should be made through the Parks and Recreation Department. Requests for sidewalk sales should be made to 
the City Manager. 

Legal Department- Shari Ardis; 737-4242; slardis@columbiasc.net 
Police Department Special Events- Officer Robert Hall; 545-3535; rjhall@columbiasc.net 
Parks and Recreation- Loretta Coleman; 545-3100; 1u;:oleman@columbiasc.net 

Submit by Ert;~ciil 

22.a

Packet Pg. 159



22
00

LE
E 

ST

23
00

ST
AR

K 
ST

240
0G

REE
NE S

T

23
00

LE
E 

ST

900PINE ST

800HEIDT ST

700HEIDT ST

220
0SANTEE AVE

800OAK ST

916HARDEN ST

240
0S

TA
RK

 ST

700PINE ST
2204GREENE ST

800HARDEN ST
900WALNUT ST

21
00

DE
VI

NE
 ST

900OAK ST

800LAURENS ST

2101SANTEE AVE
20

00
GR

EE
NE

 ST

896MEADOW ST

900LAURENS ST

800MEADOW ST

22
00

DE
VI

NE
 ST

913HEIDT ST

24
00

LE
E 

ST

23
00

PR
ES

TO
N 

ST

800
PAV

ILLION AVE

700MEADOW ST

1000LAURENS ST

22
00

CO
LL

EG
E S

T
230

4S
AN

TE
E A

VE

230
0G

REE
NE S

T

800GREGG ST

800PINE ST

701SALUDA AVE

21
04

CO
LL

EG
E S

T

700HARDEN ST21
00

GR
EE

NE
 ST

1000PINE ST

20
00

SE
NA

TE
 ST

22
00

PE
ND

LE
TO

N S
T

947HEIDT ST

20
00

CO
LL

EG
E S

T

900GREGG ST

18
00

GR
EE

NE
 ST

19
00

CO
LL

EG
E S

T

700LAURENS ST

210
0S

TA
RK

 ST

0L
EE

 ST

1000WALNUT ST

110
0Q

UEE
N ST

19
00

GR
EE

NE
 ST

1000HARDEN ST

23
94

PR
ES

TO
N 

ST

24
00

SA
NT

EE
 AV

E

1G
IB

BE
S C

T

19
00

PE
ND

LE
TO

N S
T

900HEIDT ST

223
2G

REENE ST

20
00

DE
VI

NE
 ST

971HEIDT ST 2294SANTEE AVE

212
8S

TA
RK ST

24
00

CY
PR

ES
S S

T

23
01

GR
EE

NE
 ST

23
00

PE
ND

LE
TO

N S
T

22
00

ST
AR

K 
ST

21
00

PE
ND

LE
TO

N S
T 900HARDEN ST

706
PAV

ILLION AV
E

0P
RE

ST
ON

 ST

21
06

PE
ND

LE
TO

N S
T

826GREGG ST

0OAK ST

2200GREENE ST

738HARDEN ST

755SALUDA AVE

1022HARDEN ST

74
4S

AL
UD

A A
VE

1000OAK ST
20

21
GR

EE
NE

 ST

0D
EV

IN
E 

ST

0SANTEE AVE

23
21

CY
PR

ES
S S

T

21
00

CO
LL

EG
E S

T

19
20

GR
EE

NE
 ST

0HEIDT ST

µ 0
12

5
25

0
37

5
50

0
62

.5
Fe

et

Ch
ili 

Co
ok

-of
f in

 Fi
ve

 Po
int

s

Le
ge

nd
Ch

ili C
oo

k-o
ff

Pe
rim

ete
r C

lea
n-u

p B
ou

nd
ary

Bo
th 

Sid
es 

of 
the

 St
ree

t

Do
cum

en
t P

ath
: W

:\G
IS\

GI
S_

CO
C_

Pro
jec

ts\
De

pa
rtm

ent
s\P

ub
lic

_W
ork

s\A
dm

ini
str

ati
on

\20
14

05
19

_C
raw

fis
h_

jrti
nsl

ey
\m

xd
\08

18
20

16
_C

hil
iCo

ok
Of

f.m
xd

22
.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
60



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:31 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Resolution No.:  R-2016-065 - Authorizing consumption of beer 

and wine only at Soda City Crit on Saturday, December 17, 
2016 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 R-2016-065 Soda City Crit (Dec 17) (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

23

Packet Pg. 161



Last Revised: 9/8/2016 
1617080329 

RESOLUTION NO.: R-2016-065 
 

Authorizing consumption of beer and wine only at  Soda City Crit on Saturday, December 17, 2016 
 
 WHEREAS, Emile DeFelice ("Sponsor") is sponsoring the Soda City Crit to be held in the 1400 and 1500 blocks of 
Main Street between Taylor Street and Washington Street to include the intersection of Hampton Street, the half block area 
of the 1100 block of Hampton Street east to the entrance of the parking lot and the half block area of the 1200 block of 
Hampton Street west of the driveway entrance to the Marriott,  excluding Boyd Plaza from 9:00 a.m. until 3:30 p.m. on 
Saturday, December 17, 2016; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Sponsor has requested permission for the temporary closing and use of 1400 and 1500 blocks of Main 
Street between Taylor Street and Washington Street to include the intersection of Hampton Street, the half block area of 
the 1100 block of Hampton Street east of the entrance to the parking lot to allow for ingress and egress into the parking lot, 
the 1200 block of Hampton Street west of the driveway entrance to the Marriott to allow for ingress and egress into the 
Marriott driveway, excluding Boyd Plaza, from 7:00 a.m. until 4:30 p.m. on Saturday, December 17, 2016 for set up, clean 
up, staging of the event and crowd control and overflow for the event to be held on Saturday, December 17, 2016  from 
9:00 a.m. until 3:30 p.m. in the 1400 and 1500 blocks of Main Street between Taylor Street and Washington Street to 
include the intersection of Hampton Street, the half block area of the 1100 block of Hampton Street east of the entrance to 
the parking lot to allow for ingress and egress into the parking lot, the 1200 block of Hampton Street west of the driveway 
entrance to the Marriott to allow for ingress and egress into the Marriott driveway, excluding Boyd Plaza; and for patrons to 
consume beer and wine beverages only during the event hours of 9:00 a.m. until 3:00 p.m.; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, it has been determined that such an event would be in the public interest; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council this ___ day of _____________, 2016, that the sale of beer and wine 
beverages only is authorized between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. on Saturday, December 17, 2016; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all vendors be restricted to stationary location; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that outdoor possession and consumption of beer and wine beverages, all outdoor 
musical performances and use of sound-amplifying devices shall end by 10:00 p.m. due to the proximity of the event to 
residential properties; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that possession and consumption of alcoholic liquors or alcoholic beverages other 
than beer and/or wine beverages within the event area is prohibited; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that VIP tents or VIP areas for the possession and consumption of alcoholic liquors or 
alcoholic beverages, other than beer or wine beverages, within the event area are prohibited; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that organizer is responsible or shall make arrangements for the cleanup of all trash 
and debris within the festival area and within the designated area of impact as shown on the attached drawing, and shall 
place same in the roll carts provided by the City.  Any overflow of trash and debris shall be placed in garbage bags with the 
top securely closed and placed beside the City roll carts.  The number of roll carts needed for the event shall be determined 
by organizer and the City Solid Waste Division prior to the event and placed throughout the event area to ensure that trash 
and debris are well contained. Roll carts and bagged trash and debris shall be returned to the collection point designated by 
the City in a timely manner.  If the organizer has not opted to use City services to clean up the festival area and within the 
designated area of impact as shown on the attached drawing, any costs incurred by the City in removing loose trash and 
debris within the festival area and within the designated area of impact as shown on the attached drawing, which the 
organizer has failed to clean up, shall be billed to and paid by the organizer; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that only pedestrian traffic will be allowed within the area.  All other traffic, including, 
but not limited to, automobiles, trucks, motorcycles, mopeds, bicycles, skate boards, and horses, except police horses, is 
prohibited.  All pets shall be prohibited.  Coolers, glass bottles, breakable glasses and/or cups, large bags and backpacks shall 
be prohibited; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that during the designated time the closed portion of the 1400 and 1500 blocks of 
Main Street between Taylor Street and Washington Street, the intersection of Hampton Street, the half block area of the 

23.a

Packet Pg. 162



1100 block of Hampton Street east of the entrance to the parking lot to allow for ingress and egress into the parking lot, the 
1200 block of Hampton Street west of the driveway entrance to the Marriott to allow for ingress and egress into the 
Marriott driveway, excluding Boyd Plaza, with the exception of the parking areas, adjacent off-street parking areas and 
other areas posted as to not allow alcoholic beverages, shall be declared to be a Public Park and provisions of Chapter 15, 
Parks and Recreation, Sec. 15-1, 15-2 and 15-3, Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina are in effect 
Pursuant to Chapter 14, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, Article IV, Offenses Against the Public Peace and Order, 
Sec. 14-99, 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, the 1400 and 1500 blocks of Main Street 
between Taylor Street and Washington Street, the intersection of Hampton Street, the half block area of the 11 00 block of 
Hampton Street east of the entrance to the parking lot to allow for ingress and egress into the parking lot, the 1200 block of 
Hampton Street west of the driveway entrance to the Marriott to allow for ingress and egress into the Marriott driveway, 
excluding Boyd Plaza, with the exception of the parking areas, adjacent off-street parking areas and any other areas posted 
as to not allow alcoholic beverages, is deemed to be the site of a public festival at which beer and wine beverages may be 
consumed and the prohibition against possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages set forth in Sec. 14-99 shall not 
apply. Possession and consumption of beer and wine beverages shall be permitted only in plastic cups, plastic or aluminum 
bottles or aluminum cans provided by vendors within the areas designated. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the event organizer shall provide the names and cell phone numbers of a least two 
contact persons who can receive complaints during the event, including any set up and breakdown times. The cell phones 
shall remain on at all times during the event and during any set up and breakdown time. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that failure of the event organizer to strictly comply with the time frames and other 
requirements and responsibilities set forth in this resolution may result in a denial of subsequent requests to allow the event. 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that no solicitation or transactions be made in violation of Sec. 14-32, 1998 Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in the event of inclement weather on December 17, 2016, the City Manager is 
authorized to approve the rescheduling of the event for another date within one (1) week from the date of the originally 
scheduled event upon receiving twenty-four (24) hours written notice requesting the rescheduling of the event. The hours 
of operation for the event, service of beer and wine at the event and closing of streets for set up, clean up and crowd 
control of the event shall remain as outlined above. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that should the organizer reschedule the event for another date beyond one (1) week 
from the date of the originally scheduled event, a request for a resolution of City Council approving the new date of the 
event shall be required. 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last Revised: 9/8/2016 
1617080329 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

23.a

Packet Pg. 163



DATE Of REQUEST 10811612016 
REQUESTOR'S NAME/CONTACT 
INFORMATION (E-MAIU 
PHONE#/FAX#) 

EVENT NAME!PURPOSE (i.e., St. f'.atri<:k':.!Cit,nity funtl-rabcr 
!Soda City Crit 

DATE(S) OF EVENTS: 1211712016 

Emile DeFelice 
Market Hall 
sodacitySC@gmail.com 
803·917..0794 

1400 and 1500 blocks of Main Street between Taylor Street and Washington Street including the intersection of Hampton 
LOCATION OF EVENT Street and the half block area of the 1100 block of Hampton Street east of the entrance to the parking lot and the 1200 

(1.e., Amph1theater arf''* block of Hampton Street west of the driveway entrance to the Marriott 
of Finlay Park; 1 .JOO and 14iXl blocks 
of Main Street between Lady Street 
and Hampton Street) 

STREET{$) OR PARK AREA TO BE 
CLOSEIJ 

1400 and 1500 blocks of Main Street between Taylor Street and Washington Street induding the intersection of 
Hampton Street and the half block area of the 1100 block of Hampton Street east of the entrance to the parking lot and 
the 1200 block of Hampton Street west of !he driveway entrance to !he Marriott 

{i.e., 1 JOO and 1400 hktl:k~ of M<lin 
Street between lady Street and 
Hampton Street; Amphitheater area o 
Finlay Park; Boyd Plaza) 

HOURS FOR STREET(SJ OR PARK AREA TO 
BE CLOSED 
(U~ .• 5:00p.m. - 12:00 a.m. 
ALLOW TIME FOR SH UP/CLEAN UP 

j·~·~ HOURS OF f\ffNT 
(i.e., 6:00p.m.- 10:00 p.m.)' 

HOURS Of SERVICE OF BEER/WINE BEVERAGES ONLY {NO UQIJOO•*) lg:OOam-3:0Qpm 
(Service should end one-half hour prior to end of event, i.e, event is 6-l () p.m., beer /wine service is 
6-9:30 p.m.)• 

1 

Requests should be submitted by mail, e-mail or fax at least Nltif TY {9{1) davs in ad!lance of the event to allow for preparation and review of the Resolution and 
scheduling on Council's agenda. Requests may be sent by a-mall (slardis@c;J2lumbiasc.net ), fax (803-737-4250) or mailed to City Attorney's Office. ATTN: 
Shari Ardis, POB 667, Columbia, SC 29202. A draft Resolution will be prepared and forwarded for review to the event organizer, as well as to the City 
departments for coordination of City services and requirements (i.e., Police, Sofld Weste, Parks and R&ereation, etc.). ~Jrom the adjoining b~iOQ!Ill!£ 
pflX!611Y owners must be obtained befom your reauest will be submilte<1Jo .CiW CouncJlif streets are to be Closed .of( during business houN!. The event organizer 
is responsible for obtaining a permit or license if required by the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

*Outcloor poueasion and cooaumption of beer and wine beVftl'1lGU .only.,_.llll outdoor muslcai.J:IfllformanCB..and use of sound-amplifying devices shall 
end ~ 10:00 p.m. due to the proximity of the eyent to mldentlal pmperties 

**With the ex,gptlon of the parks Usted lp Sec. 15-1 Prohtblted acts in parks Ul), f'QSSESSION Of UQUOR IS STBI<CU.Y..£ROHJBITEO. YlP tenlS or VIP 
areas tor posuulon and consumption ofateoboli~_bftemUB.or~JiQuors within the event ama Jmt...Pf'Oh!bltf!d. 

NOTE: Ibll fimn thould Ollf.X l!:o !!led for oub!lc t'/8ll1ff where beer and/or wint are to be sold and con1umed Oil Clty.proJHlrtll (Le .• Five After Five, St 
Patrick's Festival, Concerts in Finlay Park, etc.). 

This form should not be used to request uso of City property for private events (birthday, retirement. anniVef'Sary parties. etc.) nor for sidewalk sales or 
neighbomood block parties. Requests for private events at City parks should be made through the Parks and Recreation Department. Requests for sidewalk 
sales should be made to !he City Manager. Requests for street closings for private neighborhood block parties should be made to the Police Department Speclal 
Events and Public Safely. 

Fire Marshal George N. Adams, Jr., 545-3703; 413-8553; cldgadams@columbtasc.net 
legal Department- Shari Ardis; 737 -4242; siardjs@columbiasc net • resolution preparation 
Police Department Special Events- Officer Robert Hall; 545-3535; rJhaiJ.@Yolumbiasc n~ 
Parks and Recreation- Loretta Coleman; 545-3100; peosoorne@columbi~ park reservations 
Police Department Community Services - Brenda Murphy; 545-3507; l!mmvrRilY@W.Ymt>iasc net street closing Last revised: 11101/2013 

~ 62D(~--c({;5 
I l<? 110~03d-~ 

23.a

Packet Pg. 164



1100 LADY ST

1500 M
A

IN
 ST

1300 M
A

IN
 ST

1200 LADY ST

1400 M
A

IN
 ST

1600 M
A

IN
 ST

1100 TAYLOR ST

1200 TAYLOR ST

1300 TAYLOR ST

1500 SU
M

T
E

R
 ST

1300 SU
M

T
E

R
 ST

1400 SU
M

T
E

R
 ST1100 HAMPTON ST

1200 HAMPTON ST

1400 A
SSE

M
B

LY
 ST

1500 A
SSE

M
B

LY
 ST

1300 A
SSE

M
B

LY
 ST

1100 WASHINGTON ST

1600 SU
M

T
E

R
 ST

1300 HAMPTON ST

1200 WASHINGTON ST

1100 BLANDING ST

1000 WASHINGTON ST

µ

0 150 300 450 60075
Feet

Legend
Event Area

Perimeter Clean-up Boundary

Document Path: W:\GIS\GIS_COC_Projects\Departments\Public_Works\Administration\20140519_Crawfish_jrtinsley\mxd\08062015_SodaCityOktoberfest.mxd

Both Sides of the Street

Boyd

Plaza

23.a

Packet Pg. 165



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:30 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Resolution No.:  R-2016-066 - Authorizing consumption of beer 

and wine only at Vista Lights 2016 on November 17, 2016 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 R-2016-066 Vista Lights (Nov 17) (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

24

Packet Pg. 166



 
Last revised: 9/8/2016 
1617080386 

RESOLUTION NO.: R-2016-066 
 

Authorizing consumption of beer and wine only at Vista Lights 2016 on November 17, 2016 
 
 WHEREAS, the Congaree Vista Guild ("Guild") is sponsoring Vista Lights on Thursday, November 17, 
2016 from 5:00 p.m. until 9:00 p.m.; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Guild  has requested permission for the temporary closing and use of the 1100 and 
1200 blocks of Lincoln Street between Senate Street and Lady Street, and the 1100 and 1200 blocks of Park 
Street between Lady Street and Senate Street from 5:00 p.m. until 10:00 p.m., and the 800 through 1000 
blocks of Gervais Street between Gadsden Street and Assembly Street, from 6:00 p.m. until 10:00 p.m. for 
preparation and staging of the area for an outdoor event to be held between 5:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m., and 
for patrons to consume beer and wine beverages only at the event during the hours of 5:00 p.m. and 9:30 
p.m.; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Guild has requested that the City Manager and the Parks and Recreation Director be 
authorized to sign the attached “Park Rules for the Congaree Vista Guild” so that the rules may be posted at all 
entrances into the event area; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, it has been determined that such an event would be in the public interest; NOW, 
THEREFORE, 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council this ___ day of ___________, 2016, that the sale of beer 
and wine beverages only in plastic containers or cans only is authorized between the hours of 5:00 p.m. and 
9:30 p.m. on Thursday, November 17, 2016; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager and Parks and Recreation Director are hereby 
authorized to sign the attached Park Rules for the Congaree Vista Guild to Conduct Street and Sidewalk Sales 
for Viva la Vista and that the rules shall be posted at all entrances into the event area; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all vendors be restricted to stationary location and that the Guild shall 
approve or disapprove all amplified entertainment activities; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that possession and consumption of alcoholic liquors or alcoholic 
beverages other than beer and/or wine beverages only within the event area is prohibited; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that VIP tents or VIP areas for the possession and consumption of 
alcoholic liquors or alcoholic beverages, other than beer or wine beverages only, within the event area are 
prohibited; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that organizer is responsible or shall make arrangements for the clean up 
of all trash and debris within the festival area and shall place same in the roll carts provided by the City.  Any 
overflow of trash and debris shall be placed in garbage bags with the top securely closed and placed beside the 
City roll carts.  The number of roll carts needed for the event shall be determined by organizer and the City 
Solid Waste Division prior to the event and placed throughout the event area to ensure that trash and debris 
are well contained. Roll carts and bagged trash and debris shall be returned to the collection point designated 

24.a

Packet Pg. 167



 
Last revised: 9/8/2016 
1617080386 

by the City in a timely manner.  If the organizer has not opted to use City services to clean up the festival area, 
any costs incurred by the City in removing loose trash and debris within the festival area, which the organizer 
has failed to clean up, shall be billed to and paid by the organizer;  and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that outdoor possession and consumption of beer and wine beverages 
only, all outdoor musical performances and use of sound-amplifying devices shall end by 10:00 p.m. due to 
the proximity of the event to residential properties; and, 
  
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that only pedestrian traffic will be allowed within the area.  All other 
traffic, including, but not limited to, automobiles, trucks, motorcycles, mopeds, bicycles, skate boards, and 
horses, except police horses, police golf carts, and horse-drawn carriages, is prohibited.  All pets, including 
snakes, shall be prohibited.  Coolers, glass bottles, breakable glasses and/or cups, large bags and backpacks shall 
be prohibited; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that during the designated time the closed portion of the 1100 and 1200 
blocks of Lincoln Street between Senate Street and Lady Street, and the 1100 and 1200 blocks of Park Street 
between Lady Street and Senate Street from 5:00 p.m. until 10:00 p.m., and the 800 through 1000 blocks of 
Gervais Street between Gadsden Street and Assembly Street from 6:00 p.m. until 10:00 p.m., with the 
exception of the parking area and any other areas posted as to not allow alcoholic beverages, shall be declared 
to be a Public Park and provisions of Chapter 15, Parks and Recreation, Sec. 15-1, 15-2 and 15-3, Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina are in effect.  Pursuant to Chapter 14, Offenses and 
Miscellaneous Provisions, Article IV, Offenses Against the Public Peace and Order, Sec. 14-99, 1998 Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina,  the closed portion of the 1100 and 1200 blocks of 
Lincoln Street between Senate Street and Lady Street, and the 1100 and 1200 blocks of Park Street between 
Lady Street and Senate Street from 5:00 p.m. until 10:00 p.m., and the 800 through 1000 blocks of Gervais 
Street between Gadsden Street and Assembly Street from 6:00 p.m. until 10:00 p.m., with the exception of the 
parking area and any other areas posted as to not allow alcoholic beverages, is deemed to be the site of a 
public festival at which beer and wine beverages only may be consumed and the prohibition against possession 
or consumption of alcoholic beverages set forth in Sec. 14-99 shall not apply.  Possession and consumption of 
beer and wine beverages only shall be permitted only in containers provided by vendors within the areas 
designated. 
 
 PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the event organizer shall provide the names and cell phone numbers of a 
least two contact persons who can receive complaints during the event, including any set up and breakdown 
times. The cell phones shall remain on at all times during the event and during any set up and breakdown time.  
 
 PROVIDED, FURTHER, that failure of the event organizer to strictly comply with the time frames and 
other requirements and responsibilities set forth in this resolution may result in a denial of subsequent requests 
to allow the event. 
 
 PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that no solicitation or transactions be made in violation of Sec. 14-32, 1998 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in the event of inclement weather on November 17, 2016, the City 
Manager is authorized to approve the rescheduling of the event for another date within one (1) week from the 
date of the originally scheduled event upon receiving twenty-four (24) hours written notice requesting the r 

24.a

Packet Pg. 168



escheduling of the event. The hours of operation for the event, service of beer and wine at the event and 

closing of streets for set up, clean up and crowd control of the event shall remain as outlined above. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that should the organizer reschedule the event for another date beyond 

one (1) week from the date of the originally scheduled event, a request for a resolution of City Council 

approving the new date of the event shall be required. 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

App~ 

City Attorney 

Introduced: 

Final Reading: 

Last revised: 9/8/2016 

1617080386 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

24.a

Packet Pg. 169



 
Last revised: 9/8/2016 
1617080386 

Park Rules for the Congaree Vista Guild to Conduct Street and Sidewalk Sales for Vista Lights 
(R-2016-066) 

 
 WHEREAS, Columbia City Council adopted Resolution R-2015-088 on October 20, 2015, allowing the Congaree 
Vista Guild to Conduct Street and Sidewalk Sales for the Vista Lights to be held on Thursday, November 17, 2016 in the 
area commonly known as the Vista; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, certain areas of the public rights of way and public property have been designated as a public park for 
the event as more particularly set forth in Resolution R-2016-066, which is incorporated herein by specific reference 
thereto; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City's Parks and Recreation Department hereby authorizes the use of the public park designated 
by R-2011-002 for the Congaree Vista Guild to Conduct Street and Sidewalk Sales for Vista Lights; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, City Ordinance Sec. 15-1 (12) and Sec. 15-3 permit the Director of Parks and Recreation to 
promulgate rules and regulations within a public park, subject to the approval of the City Manager; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, it is anticipated that a large number of City of Columbia citizens and visitors will attend the event and 
will be allowed to consume beer and wine only within the public park; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to promote the general health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Columbia and 
visitors attending the event, I find it necessary to promulgate rules and regulations to apply within the public park 
established pursuant to Resolution R-2016-066; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
 The following additional park rules are hereby promulgated for the Congaree Vista Guild to Conduct Street and 
Sidewalk Sales for Vista Lights and shall apply within the area designated as a public park and a violation thereof is 
unlawful: 
1.  Official festival tokens are required for the purchase of food and beverages within the designated park area. 
2.  Over age twenty-one (21) wristbands from the identification check station are required for patrons to consume beer or 
wine in the designated park area. 
3.  All persons under the age of sixteen (16) must be accompanied by an adult. 
4.  No glass containers are allowed. 
5.  No coolers, outside food or beverages (including alcohol) are allowed. 
6.  No backpacks or bags are allowed. 
7.  Only beer and wine are permitted.  No other alcoholic beverages of any kind are allowed, unless within an area 
permitted by an existing encroachment ordinance which permits the serving of beer, wine and other alcoholic beverages 
during its normal course of business. 
8.  All beer and wine must be served and consumed from a plastic cup, a plastic bottle, an aluminum can or an aluminum 
bottle. 
9.  No pets are allowed. 
 
 Violation of these rules may result in criminal prosecution.  The aforesaid rules shall be prominently displayed on 
signage which shall be located at all entrances into the designated park area. 
 
City of Columbia 
 
BY:  ___________________________________   Date: _____________________________ 
 Randy Davis 
ITS:   Interim Parks and Recreation Director 
 
 
I hereby approve the foregoing park rules this ____ day of _________________, 2016. 
 
City of Columbia 
 
BY:  ____________________________ 
 Teresa B. Wilson 
ITS: City Manager 

24.a

Packet Pg. 170



UA It: Ul" KtUUI:!) I I '8' I~ OJ I J lt 

EVENT NAME/PURPOSE (i.e., St. Patrick's/Charity Fund-raiser 51 0" a t1nual 

DATE(S) OF EVENTS: I 

LOCATION OF EVENT 
(i.e., Amphitheater area 
of Finlay Park; 1200 and 1300 
blocks of Main Street) 

11 J JO/lt 

n t tt ( 1-' 0 (.- fl1 t- V i B f-a 
t, in co h1 S+.. j> o. ( l<l S+-r eef; ~ e rV a j s S-r. 

STREET(S) TO BE CLOSED 
(i.e., 1200 and 1300 blocks of 
Main Street and 1100 and 1200 
blocks of Lady Street) 

1\ 0 0 4 1'2- 0 0 b l 0 (tfLS 

) \ 0 0 f Jt.,OO \o l ock-s 
a~ L-incoln s+. 
a¥ ?a ( Kt s+. 

( tl Ct}e 
f l--t<dy 

b) YW S' t(}ct ~ f 
)' 0 0 - t 0 0 0 b l 0 (; IGS a f G-e w a IS S+.. L 4 dY 

k:J J tv.J Gadsde~ J 

HOURS FOR STREET($) TO BE CLOSED 
(i.e., 5:00 p.m.m - 12:00 a.m. 
ALLOW TIME FOR SET UP /CLEAN UP 

HOURS OF EVENT 
(i.e., 6:00p.m. -10:00 p.m.) 

JJ oo 4 t~oo 
J l () 0 ~ l ~0 0 

~OV-1000 

HOURS OF SERVICE OF BEER/WINE 
(Service should end one-half hour prior to 
end of event, i.e., event is 6-1 0 p.m., beer/ 
wine service is 6-9:30 p.m.) 

A-ss em i:1 o/ 
l o c-K.S cr¥-- tn v n Sd-". 5':0 o --J()~O o J>m 

lalout.u av--- Pat~ Sd-- S~oo -J(I:bdfm 
\o I o C/ILJ 0:1- 6--C(J a ~.s Sf-. 6; 0 o <I JO~ 0 tljm 

Please submit requests by mail, e-mail or fax at least Nl/VI 1Y (90] da,vs in advance of the eveat to allow for preparation and review of the Resolution 
and scheduling on Council's agenda. Requests may be sent by e-mail (slardis@columbia~t.net ), fax (737-4250) or mailed to City Attorney's Office, 
ATTN: Shari Ardis, POB 667, Columbia, SC 29202. A draft Resolution will be prepared and forwarded for your review as well as to the Police 
Department Special Events office and to Parks and Recreation if the event is to be held in a City park. 

PLEASE NOTE: Ibis form should only be used for public events where beer and/or wine are to be sold and consumed on City property (i.e., Five 
After Five, St. Patrick's Festival, Concerts in Finlay Park, etc.). 

This form should not be used to request use of City property for private events (birthday, retirement, anniversary parties, etc.) nor for sidewalk sales or 
neighborhood block parties. Requests for private events at City parks should be made through the Parks and Recreation Department. Requests for 
sidewalk sales should be made to the City Manager. Requests for street closings for private neighborhood block parties should be made to the Police 
Department Special Events and Public Safety. 
Legal Department- Shari Ardis; 737-4242; slardi~Cwcolvmhia;;cnet 
Police Department Special Events- Officer Robert Hall; 545-35.35; rjhaiiCii>columhiasc.nct 
Parks and Recreation- Loretta Coleman; 545-3100; lacoll:m<tn(cvcolumbiaw.ll('t D . .')U' '} J ". , L}l .. h. 
Police Department Public Safety- Verna York; 545-3391; vbyork@columbiasc.net ~~ <:£ ' (.£J l.P'IJ 

24.a

Packet Pg. 171



L
A

D
Y

 S
T

G
E

RV
A

IS
 S

T

PARK ST

LINCOLN ST

ASSEMBLY ST

SE
N

A
T

E
 S

T

GADSDEN ST

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

T

MAIN ST

WAYNE ST

PE
N

D
L

E
TO

N
 S

T

µ 0
12

5
25

0
37

5
50

0
62

.5
F

ee
t

V
is

ta
 L

ig
ht

s

L
eg

en
d

V
is

ta
 L

ig
ht

s

P
er

im
et

er
 C

le
an

-u
p 

B
ou

nd
ar

y

B
ot

h 
Si

de
s 

of
 t

he
 S

tr
ee

t

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 W

:\G
IS

\G
IS

_C
O

C
_P

ro
je

ct
s\

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

\P
ub

lic
_W

or
ks

\A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n\

20
14

05
19

_C
ra

w
fi

sh
_j

rt
in

sl
ey

\m
xd

\0
91

72
01

5_
jr

tin
sl

ey
_V

is
ta

L
ig

ht
s.

m
xd

24.a

Packet Pg. 172



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:32 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Resolution No.:  R-2016-068 - Authorizing consumption of beer 

and wine beverages only at the USC Alumni Center 
Homecoming Celebration and Grand Opening of Foundation 
Square on November 4, 2016 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 R-2016-068 USC Alumni Center Concert (Nov 4) (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

25

Packet Pg. 173



RESOLUTION NO.: R-2016-068 

Authorizing consumption of beer and wine beverages only at the USC Alumni Center Homecoming 
Celebration and Grand Opening of Foundation Square on November 4, 2016 

WHEREAS, the My Carolina Alumni Association of the University of South Carolina ("Sponsor") is sponsoring 
the USC Alumni Center Homecoming Celebration and Grand Opening of Foundation Square in the 800 and 900 
blocks of Greene Street between Lincoln Street and Park Street and the 700 and 800 blocks of Lincoln Street 
between College Street and Devine Street on Friday, November 4, 2016; and, 

WHEREAS, Sponsor has requested permission for the temporary closing and use of the 900 block of Greene 
Street between Lincoln Street and Park Street from 1 :30 p.m. until midnight and the 800 block of Greene Street 
between Lincoln Street and Park Street, and the 700 and 800 blocks of Lincoln Street between College Street and 
Devine Street from 3:00 p.m. until midnight on Friday, November 4, 2016 for set up before and clean up after the 
event; for crowd control, overflow and staging of the event to be held on Friday, November 4, 2016 from 5:30p.m. 
until10:00 p.m., and for patrons to consume beer and wine beverages only at the event during the hours of 5:30 
p.m. until 9:30p.m. on Friday, November 4, 2016; and, 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that such an event would be in the public interest; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council this_ day of , 2016, that the sale of beer and 
wine beverages only is authorized between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 9:30 p.m. on Friday, November 4, 2016; 
and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that possession and consumption of alcoholic liquors or alcoholic beverages 
other than beer and/or wine beverages within the event area is prohibited; and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that VIP tents or VIP areas for the possession and consumption of alcoholic 
liquors or alcoholic beverages, other than beer or wine beverages, within the event area are prohibited; and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that organizer is responsible or shall make arrangements for the cleanup of all 
trash and debris within the festival area and within the designated area of impact as shown on the attached drawing, 
and shall place same in the roll carts provided by the City. Any overflow of trash and debris shall be placed in 
garbage bags with the top securely closed and placed beside the City roll carts. The number of roll carts needed for 
the event shall be determined by organizer and the City Solid Waste Division prior to the event and placed 
throughout the event area to ensure that trash and debris are well contained. Roll carts and bagged trash and debris 
shall be returned to the collection point designated by the City in a timely manner. If the organizer has not opted to 
use City services to clean up the festival area and within the designated area of impact as shown on the attached 
drawing, any costs incurred by the City in removing loose trash and debris within the festival area and within the 
designated area of impact as shown on the attached drawing, which the organizer has failed to clean up, shall be 
billed to and paid by the organizer; and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that outdoor possession and consumption of beer and wine beverages only, all 
outdoor musical performances and use of sound-amplifying devices shall end by 10:00 p.m. due to the proximity of 
the event to residential properties; and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all vendors be restricted to stationary location; and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that only pedestrian traffic will be allowed within the area. All other traffic, 
including, but not limited to, automobiles, trucks, motorcycles, mopeds, bicycles, skate boards, and horses, except 
police horses, is prohibited. All pets shall be prohibited. Coolers, glass bottles, breakable glasses and/or cups, large 
bags and backpacks shall be prohibited; and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that during the designated time that the closed portion of the 800 and 900 
blocks of Greene Street between Lincoln Street and Park Street and the 700 and 800 blocks of Lincoln Street 

Last revised: 9/7/2016 
1617090501 

25.a

Packet Pg. 174



between College Street and Devine Street, with the exception of the parking area and any other areas posted as to 
not allow alcoholic beverages, shall be declared to be a Public Park and provisions of Chapter 15, Parks and 
Recreation, Sec. 15-1, 15-2 and 15-3, Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina are in effect. 
Pursuant to Chapter 14, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, Article IV, Offenses Against the Public Peace and 
Order, Sec. 14-99, 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, the closed portion of the 800 
and 900 blocks of Greene Street between Lincoln Street and Park Street and the 700 and 800 blocks of Lincoln 
Street between College Street and Devine Street, with the exception of the parking area and any other areas posted 
as to not allow alcoholic beverages, is deemed to be the site of a public festival at which beer and wine beverages 
only may be consumed and the prohibition against possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages set forth in Sec. 
14-99 shall not apply. Possession and consumption of beer and wine beverages only shall be permitted only in plastic 
cups, plastic or aluminum bottles or aluminum cans provided by vendors within the areas designated. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the event organizer shall provide the names and cell phone numbers of a least 
two contact persons who can receive complaints during the event, including any set up and breakdown times. The 
cell phones shall remain on at all times during the event and during any set up and breakdown time. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that failure of the event organizer to strictly comply with the time frames and other 
requirements and responsibilities set forth in this resolution may result in a denial of subsequent requests to allow the 
event. 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that no solicitation or transactions be made in violation of Sec. 14-32, 1998 Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in the event of inclement weather on Friday, November 4, 2016, the City 
Manager is authorized to approve the rescheduling of the event for another date within one (1) week from the date 
of the originally scheduled event upon receiving twenty-four (24) hours written notice requesting the rescheduling of 
the event. The hours of operation for the event, service of beer and wine beverages only at the event and closing of 
streets for set up, clean up and crowd control of the event shall remain as outlined above. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that should the organizer reschedule the event for another date beyond one (1) 
week from the date of the originally scheduled event, a request for a resolution of City Council approving the new 
date of the event shall be required. 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Appro~ 

City Attorney 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised: 9/7/2016 
1617090501 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

25.a

Packet Pg. 175



DATE OF REQUEST 18/31/16 
REQUESTOR'S NAME/CONTACT 
INFORMATION (E-MAIU 
PHONE#/FAX#) 

Lynn Bradley 
777-3989. 608-1489 
lynnb@mailbox.sc.edu 

EVENT NAME/PURPOSE (i.e., St. Patrick's/Charity Fund-raiser 
Homecoming Celebration and Grand Opening of Foundation Square 

DATE(S) OF EVENTS: I Friday, November 4, 2016 

LOCATION OF EVENT 
(i.e., Amphitheater area 
of Finlay Park; 1300 and 1400 blocks 
of Main Street between Lady Street 
and Hampton Street) 

STREET(S) TO BE CLOSED 
(i.e., 1300 and 1400 blocks of Main 
Street between Lady Street and 
Hampton Street) 

800 and 900 block of Greene St. between Lincoln St and Park St. 
800 and 700 block of Lincoln Street between College St and Devine St. 

800 and 900 blocks of Greene Street and 800 and 700 blocks of Lincoln St. 

1 :30 p.m. - midnight 900 block of Greene Street 

HOURS FOR STREET(S) TO BE CLOSED 
(i.e., 5:00p.m.- 12:00 a.m. 

3:00p.m.- midnight 800 block of Greene Street and 800 and 700 blacks of Lincoln Street 

ALLOW TIME FOR SET UP/CLEAN UP 

HOURS OF EVENT 
(i.e., 6:00p.m.- 10:00 p.m.)* 

HOURS OF SERVICE OF BEER/WINE 
(Service should end one-half hour prior to end of event, i.e., event is 6-10 p.m., beer/wine 
service is 6-9:30 p.m.)* 

I''" -9,30 p.m 

Requests should be submitted by mail, e-mail or fax at least NJNE7Y (90) days in advance of the event to allow for preparation and review of the Resolution and 
scheduling on Council's agenda. Requests may be sent by e-mail (slardis@columbiasc.net ), fax (737-4250) or mailed to City Attorney's Office, ATTN: Shari Ardis, POB 
667, Columbia, SC 29202. A draft Resolution will be prepared and forwarded for review to the event organizer, as well as to the Police Department Special Events office 
and to Parks and Recreation if the event is to be held in a City park. Approval from the adjoining business/property owners must be obtained before your request will be 
submitted to City Council if streets are to be closed off during business hours 

*Outdoor possession and consumption of beer and wine beverages, all outdoor musical performances and use of sound-amplifying devices shall end by 10:00 p. 
m. due to the proximity of the event to residential properties. 

NOTE: This form should only be used for public events where beer and/or wine are to be sold and consumed on City property (i.e., Five After Five, St. Patrick's 
Festival, Concerts in Finlay Park, etc.). 

This form should not be used to request use of City property for private events (birthday, retirement, anniversary parties, etc.) nor for sidewalk sales or neighborhood 
block parties. Requests for private events at City parks should be made through the Parks and Recreation Department. Requests for sidewalk sales should be made to the 
City Manager. Requests for street closings for private neighborhood block parties should be made to the Police Department Special Events and Public Safety. If food is to 
be cooked at the event contact the Assistant Fire Chief Carmen Floyd at (803) 545-3402 or cfdcfloyd@columbiasc.net. 

Legal Department- Shari Ardis; 737-4242; slardis@columbiasc.net 
Police Department Special Events- Officer Robert Hall; 545-3535; rjhall@columbiasc.net 
Parks and Recreation- Loretta Coleman; 545-3100; lacoleman@columbiasc.net 
Police Department Community Services- Brenda Murphy; 545-3507; bmmurphy@columbiasc.net 

~~DI~;to~9)l 
I lP l19a~Revised: 3/14/2011 

25.a

Packet Pg. 176



900 PARK ST

700 PARK ST

800 PARK ST

600 PARK ST800 DEVINE ST

800 GREENE ST

700 DEVINE ST

900 DEVINE ST

900 GREENE ST

500 LINCOLN ST

900 LINCOLN ST

800 LINCOLN ST

600 LINCOLN ST

700 LINCOLN ST

801 BLOSSOM ST

600 GADSDEN ST

900 COLLEGE ST

1000 COLLEGE ST

700 GADSDEN ST

800 GADSDEN ST

1000 GREENE ST

901 BLOSSOM ST

0 MELTON ALY

701 BLOSSOM ST

900 ASSEMBLY ST

500 PARK ST

700 GREENE ST

800 ASSEMBLY ST

1000 LINCOLN ST

1000 PENDLETON ST

900 GADSDEN ST

900 PENDLETON ST

601 BLOSSOM ST

523 GADSDEN ST

921 PENDLETON ST

1000 PARK ST

2 FRATERNITY CIR

µ

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

Alumni Center Event

Legend
Alumni Center Event

Perimeter Clean-up Boundary

Both Sides of the Street

Document Path: W:\GIS\GIS_COC_Projects\Departments\Public_Works\Administration\20140519_Crawfish_jrtinsley\mxd\09082016_AlumniEvent.mxd

25.a

Packet Pg. 177



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 5:02 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Procurement and Contracts 
 
FROM: Sandra Wright, Purchasing Agent 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve Project WM423101; Canal 

Clearwell and High Service Rooms II & III  Improvements, as 
requested by the Utilities and Engineering Department. Award 
to M.B. Kahn Construction Company in an amount not to 
exceed $41,480,900.00. This firm is located in Columbia, SC. 

26

Packet Pg. 178



Action Item (ID # 2917)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/16/2016 5:02 PM  Page 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Funding Source: Water Improvement Fund, 5529999-
WM423101-658650. This is a Subcontracting Outreach 
Program Project. A portion of this project ($28,018,375.00) 
will be funded in the FY 15/16  CIP budget; the remaining 
amount of $13,462,525 will be funded from the FY 16/17  
CIP budget. 
 
The total subcontracting services for this project is 
$24,227,024.32 which is approximately 58.4% of the total 
contract value.  
  
In an effort to further increase DBE participation on this 
proposed project, the City has successfully renegotiated the 
subcontracting goals. This resulted in a total of $6,071,570 
(14.6% of the total project cost) being proposed for 
awarding to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs).   
 
There are twenty-two (22) subcontractors that have been 
identified to provide services under the proposed 
contractual agreement. Please refer to the attached 
Business Information Records. 
 
$158,000.00 (0.65%) - Harrelson Painting of Swansea, SC 
will provide painting services. 
 
$72,160.00 (0.3%) - Mid-Atlantic Crane of Raleigh, NC will 
provide bridge crane services. 
 
$850,500.00 (3.5%) - Blynn Metal Crafts, a Women Owned 
Business Enterprise of Willis, TX will provide misc. metals 
services. 
 
$4,584,000.00 (18.92%) - Utility Electric, a Women Owned 
Business Enterprise of Anderson, SC will provide electric 
services. 
 
$637,070.00 (2.6%) - Corley Construction, a Minority 
Business Enterprise of Irmo, SC will provide demolition 
stone base curb & gutter services. 
 
$477,900.00 (1.9%) - Industrial HVAC of Columbia, SC 
will provide Heating Ventilating & Air Conditioning 
services. 
 
$1,600,000.00 (6.6%) - ARGOS of Columbia, SC will 
provide concrete supply services. 
 
$1,300,000.00 (5.37%) - CMC of Columbia, SC will provide 

26

Packet Pg. 179



Action Item (ID # 2917)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/16/2016 5:02 PM  Page 3 

 
ORIGINAL BUDGET: $28,018,375.00 
 
BUSINESS PROGRAM: Subcontracting Outreach Program 
 
CLEAN WATER 2020?: No 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Invest in Infrastructure 
 
Two (2) bids were received for the Canal Clearwell and High Service rooms 2 & 3 
Improvements (ENGBID-WM423101) as requested by Utilities and Engineering. 
This project was under the provisions of the Subcontracting Outreach Program. 
 
The total construction time allocated for this project is Nine Hundred Fifty  (950) 
days after the notice to proceed is issued.  I respectfully request City Council’s 
approval of these services from M.B. Kahn Construction Company in an amount not 
to exceed $41,480,900.00. 
 
Base Bid $40,230,900.00 
Contingency $1,250,000.00 
Total ( Not to Exceed ) $41,480,900.00 
 
M. B. Kahn Construction Company is located in Columbia, SC. 
 
This will be charged as follows: 
 
CIP Improvement Fund - Water    5529999-WM423101-658650   $41,480,000.00 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Cover Sheet - Canal (PDF) 
 Attachment 1  Bid Tabulation (PDF) 
 (REVISED) Bid Results and Recommendation Memo_090816_2nd revision_compiled 

(Canal Clearwell) (PDF) 
 Attachment 3  Letters of Deductive Costs Proposals (PDF) 
 Attachment 5  Site Map (PDF) 
 Attachment 4  Business Information Records    (PDF) 

26

Packet Pg. 180



26.a

Packet Pg. 181



26.b

Packet Pg. 182



 

 
 

CITY OF COLUMBIA 
Inter-Office Memo 

 
  

 
DATE:  September 8, 2016 

 
TO: Joey Jaco, PE, Director of Utilities & Engineering   
     
FROM:  Clint Shealy, PE, Water Works Superintendent  
 Jason Shaw, PE, Water Engineer 
                 
RE:  Canal WTP Clearwell and High Service Pumping Improvements (WM4231) 

Bid Results and Recommendations     
 

 
On July 28th, 2016, the City received sealed bids for the referenced project.  Two general 
contractors provided bids, with M.B. Kahn Construction Company being the apparent low 
bidder with a bid value of $43,673,100.  The second bid received was for a value of 
$49,771,000 that includes 1.2% disadvantaged business participation.     
 
The results of the bid were higher than anticipated and considerably higher than the 
amount that the City has budgeted in the Capital Improvement Program (CIP). City staff has 
included $33.8 M in the CIP for construction of this project, and this amount was spread 
over fiscal years 15-16 and 16-17.  At the time of bid, the Consulting Engineer’s estimate 
was approximately $35.5 M, which is also much lower than the lowest bid received.  The 
Consultant, AECOM, was asked to review their cost estimate to determine if any items were 
omitted and to help determine whether the bid amount represents a reasonable cost for 
the work.   
 
After review, the Consultant determined that several large items were included in the 
project but omitted from the cost estimate.  These were items such as the stormwater 
tunnel improvements and security enhancements that had previously been deferred from 
other projects due to cost over-runs.  These items were added into this project, but not 
included in the Engineer’s final estimate.  In addition, the upgrade of an existing generator 
and improvements to some existing electrical equipment were inadvertently omitted from 
the Engineer’s final estimate.  Once these items were identified, the Engineer developed a 
revised estimate in the amount of $41.9 M.   Although the revised estimate does not reach 
the lowest bid, it is within a reasonable margin of the apparent low bid value.    
 
Another factor that may affect the cost of the work is the lack of bidders for the project.  As 
stated, only two Contractors provided bids for the project.  The bid was delayed for two 
weeks in an effort to gain more interest from Contractors.  In 2016, market conditions have 
improved for Contractors and there is a significant increase in the volume of water and  
wastewater work for Contractors to bid on.  Feedback from multiple Contractors has 
indicated that the City’s project is a very difficult one and that the Local Business  

26.c

Packet Pg. 183



 
 
 
Canal WTP Clearwell and High Service Pump Station Improvements 
Bid Results and Recommendations             Page 2 
 
 

 
 

Preference Policy and associated bidding complexities (Sub-contractor Outreach Program) 
in place may have been a deterrent when selecting which projects to pursue in the region.   
 
Other utility providers in North Carolina with large projects bidding around the time of this 
project also received a low number of bidders, reflecting the current market conditions.  
The large differential in the bid results may be indicative of the lack of interest by the 
higher bidder.  Based on the market conditions, rebidding the project may result in only 
one bidder (if any) and could potentially increase costs.   
 
This project is critically important for the Canal WTP.  The overall goals of the project are to 
improve the safety and reliability of electrical and high service pumping equipment and to 
replace very old finished water storage infrastructure.  The project was delayed due to the 
flooding in October of last year and staff believes that further delays subject our employees 
and customers to unnecessary risks from electrical, mechanical or structural failure of the 
existing aging infrastructure.    
 
Following serveral internal meetings, it was determined that the most feasible approach for 
moving forward with this critical project was to meet with M.B. Kahn Construction 
Company to discuss value engineering items that may result in cost reductions for the 
project.  In addition, M.B. Kahn was asked to clarify the portion of work that will be 
subcontracted to disadvantaged business enterprises.   
 
Several value engineering items were identified to reduce the project cost and these cost 
savings were negotiated with M.B. Kahn.  These cost savings items are listed below and the 
first two are documented in the attached correspondence: 
 

 Defer security improvements for a cost savings of $1,339,000. 
 Defer upgrades to existing electrical equipment for raw water pumps for a cost 

savings of $453,200. 
 Accept bid alternate for stormwater tunnel rehabilitation for a cost savings of 

$400,000 (deduct value included on original bid form). 
 
The total cost savings for these items is $2,192,200.  With these cost savings, the revised 
construction cost is $41,480,900.  AECOM was asked to develop a revised cost estimate to 
include the value engineering project reductions.  Their revised estimate is $39,381,874.    
Although the estimated cost is below the negotiated construction cost, the revised estimate 
is within approximately 5% of the project value.  
 
 
M.B. Kahn has also clarified the participation of disadvantaged business enterprises in the 
project.  A revised Business Records Information form is attached that accurately lists 
female and minority owned business enterprises.  Based on this information, $6,071,570 of 

26.c

Packet Pg. 184



 
 
 
Canal WTP Clearwell and High Service Pump Station Improvements 
Bid Results and Recommendations             Page 3 
 
 

 
 

the project value is proposed to be subcontracted to disadvantaged business enterprises.  
This represents approximately 25% of the total subcontract costs and approximately 
14.6% of the total project cost.   
 
Based on the cost reductions and additional clarifications provided, we are proposing that 
the project proceed with the negotiated contract value and subcontractor participation as 
outlined above.  In addition, we request that the negotiated contract value be compared to 
the revised cost estimate provided by AECOM when assessing the construction value of the 
project.  Due to the criticality of this project and the need to move forward with 
replacement of this aging infrastructure, we request that this project be awarded as soon as 
possible.    
 
Correspondence between AECOM and M.B. Kahn Construction Company is attached as 
supporting information, along with the Business Information Records form for the second 
bid.  Please let us know if you need additional information.  Thank you.     
 
 
 

26.c

Packet Pg. 185



 

 

URS Corporation 
101 Research Drive 
Columbia, SC  29203 
Tel: 803.254.4400 
Fax: 803.771.6676 

 

 

 

 

 

September 6, 2016 

 

Mr. Casey Byrd 

MB Kahn Construction Company 

101 Flint Lake Road 

Columbia, SC 29223 
 

RE: City of Columbia Canal Water Treatment Plant 

 High Service Pump Improvements in Rooms 2 

and 3 

 Clearwell Improvements, Reservoir Dredging 

 And Improvements 

CIP # WM3752, WM 4231, WM3774 

 URS Project No. 46422040 (11221) 

 

Dear Casey: 

 

As a follow up to our meeting with MB Kahn and the City of Columbia on Friday September 2, 

2016 at the Canal Water Treatment Plant, please provide deductive costs for review and approval for the 

following items originally submitted in the bid for the referenced project: 

 

• Security System Upgrades – deductive pricing to include deletion of the entire proposed 

security system, including cameras, building security features, perimeter security system 

(fence system), fiber optic cables, etc. 

• Modifications to the Existing Raw Water Pump VFD’s – deductive pricing to be 

inclusive of four (4) sub panels with PLC and PV and temperature upgrades for each of 

the existing raw water pump VFD’s. 

• Clearwell No. 1 and No. 2 Rock Anchors – provide deductive pricing to eliminate “rock 

anchors” for each of the clearwells.   

 

 In addition, per the meeting on Friday please submit clarification to your originally provided 

Business Information Records form in regards to minority and disadvantaged business participation for 

this project. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

URS Corporation 
 

        
 

V. Craig Metts, P.E. 

Senior Project Manager 

 

 

 

26.c

Packet Pg. 186



                  
                                    

P.O. BOX 1179  |  COLUMBIA, SC 29202  |  803.736.2950 

 

 

 

COLUMBIA, SC  |  GREENVILLE, SC  |  CHARLESTON, SC  |  ATLANTA, GA  |  RICHMOND, VA  |  CHARLOTTE, NC 

 

  Since 1927 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

September 7, 2016 

 

 

Mr. V. Craig Metts, PE 

Senior Project Manger 

URS Corporation 

101 Research Drive 

Columbia, SC  29203 

 

RE:   City of Columbia Canal WTP 

         Clearwell and High Service Pump Station Rooms 2 and 3 Improvements 

         CIP No. WM4231 

         URS Project No 46422040 (11221) 

 

Dear Craig: 

 

In response to your letter dated September 6, 2016, M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc. is pleased to provide 

the following deductive costs for review and approval: 

 

• Security System Upgrades – the total cost deduct for eliminating the entire proposed security 

system, including cameras, building security features, perimeter security system (fence system), 

fiber optic cables, electrical conduits, and conductors is -$1,339,000.00 (One million, three 

hundred, thirty-nine thousand dollars.)  

• Modifications to the Existing Raw Water Pump VFD’s – the total cost deduct for eliminating the 

modifications for 2 – 350 HP raw water pump VFD’s and 2 – 700 HP raw water pump VFD’s is -

$453,200.00 (Four hundred, fifty-three thousand, two hundred dollars.) 

• Clearwell No. 1 and No.2 Rock Anchors – URS’s structural engineer has advised that additional field 

tests will be required in order to determine the feasibility of eliminating any portion of the rock 

anchors; therefore no deductive costs will be offered at this time.  

 

As further clarification to the information included in our bid package, M. B. Kahn Construction has 

attached our revised Business Information Records, which now show DBE and MBE participants and their 

respective percentages. In summary, the Women Owned Business Enterprise participation value is 

$5,434,500.00, or approximately 22.5%, of our subcontractor participation.  The Minority Owned Business 

Enterprise participation value is $637,070, or approximately 3% of our subcontractor participation.  In  

 

26.c

Packet Pg. 187



 

 

COLUMBIA, SC  |  GREENVILLE, SC  |  CHARLESTON, SC  |  ATLANTA, GA  |  RICHMOND, VA  |  CHARLOTTE, NC 

 

 

 

addition, M. B. Kahn Construction estimates that approximately $2,000,000.00 or 8.3% of our 

subcontractors are local to greater Columbia and the immediate, surrounding areas.   

 

If you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me directly.  M. B. Kahn 

Construction looks forward to another successful project with our local partners and the City of Columbia.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

M.B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc. 

Water Works Division 

 

 

 

Casey Byrd 

Project Manager 

 

 

    

  

 

 

26.c

Packet Pg. 188



Harrelson Painting         Lee Sharpe                     Painting                            $158,000                    OBE

Swansea, SC                    803-960-1791                                                            0.7%

Mid-Atlantic Crane         Jim Sliwa                     Bridge Crane                 $72,160                          OBE

Raleigh, NC                                                                                                     0.3%

Blynn Metal Crafts        Becky Buckner         Misc. Metals                        $850,500                      DBE

Willis, TX                       936-228-7760                                                          3.6%                         (WBE)     

Utility Electric               Rick Brooks                Electric                           $4,584,000                    DBE

Anderson, SC                 864-964-1600                                                          19.4%

Corley Construction        Todd Corley               Demolition                       $520,000                                                MBE

Irmo, SC                          803-513-1269                                                          2.2%

(WBE)

6,184,660

9/7/2016

Industrial HVAC             Wes Carter                     HVAC                           $477,900                      OBE

Columbia, SC                  828-434-5757                                                            2.0%

6,662,560

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

William P. Edmonds; Executive Vice President

0.65%

0.3%

3.5%

19.0%

2.2%

1.9%

Stone base
Curb and Gutter

          $637,070

               2.6%

26
.c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
89



6.6%

5.4%

26
.c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
90



5.3%

5.9%

2.9%

26
.c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
91



0.66%

26
.c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
92



28.3%

7.6%

1.5%

0.4%

   $1,853,000

7.6%

26
.c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
93



6.5%

26
.c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
94



26
.c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
95



 
 
 
 
 
 
September 7, 2016 

 
Mr. Clint Shealy, PE 
City of Columbia 
Water Works Superintendent 
300 Laurel Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 

RE: City of Columbia Canal Water Treatment Plant 
 High Service Pump Improvements in Rooms 2 

and 3 Clearwell Improvements, Reservoir 
Dredging and Improvements 
CIP # WM3752, WM 4231, WM3774 

 URS Project No. 46422040 (11221) 
 
Dear Mr. Shealy: 
 

In response to our letter dated September 6, 2016, requesting deductive costs for bid of the 
referenced project, MB Kahn has submitted the costing in a letter dated September 7, 2016.  We have 
reviewed the submitted deductive costs and recommend that the City accept the deducts as proposed.  We 
have also reviewed the alternate product submitted by MB Kahn for the structural geopolymer lining 
system as specified and shown in the bid documents and recommend accepting the deductive cost 
proposed. 

 
Should you have any questions or require any further information from us please do not hesitate 

to give us a call. 
 

 
Very truly yours, 

 
URS Corporation 

 

        
 

V. Craig Metts, P.E. 
Senior Project Manager 

 
 
 

 

URS Corporation 
101 Research Drive 
Columbia, SC  29203 
Tel: 803.254.4400 
Fax: 803.771.6676 

26.c

Packet Pg. 196



26.c

Packet Pg. 197



26.d

Packet Pg. 198



26.d

Packet Pg. 199



26.d

Packet Pg. 200



26.d

Packet Pg. 201



26
.e

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
02



26.f

Packet Pg. 203



26.f

Packet Pg. 204



26.f

Packet Pg. 205



26.f

Packet Pg. 206



26.f

Packet Pg. 207



26.f

Packet Pg. 208



26.f

Packet Pg. 209



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 3:55 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Human Resources 
 
FROM: Pam Benjamin, 

 
SUBJECT: Introduction of the July 2016 Employee of the Month (Ms. 

Miranda Lurks, Telecommunicator) - Ms. Kimberly Gathers, 
Director of Columbia-Richland 911 Communications Center 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 July 2016 Employee of the Month Nomination (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

27

Packet Pg. 210



27.a

Packet Pg. 211



27.a

Packet Pg. 212



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/7/2016 3:51 PM B Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Public & Media Relations 
 
FROM: Leshia Utsey, Director 

 
SUBJECT: Presentation of the Commission on Accreditation for Law 

Enforcement Award to the Columbia-Richland 911 
Communications Center 

 
PRESENTER: City Manager or City Council 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

28

Packet Pg. 213



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 3:28 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 
 
FROM: Erika Moore, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: National Museum of African American History and Culture 

Day Proclamation - The Honorable Mayor Stephen K. 
Benjamin 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 National Museum of African American History and Culture Day (3) (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

29

Packet Pg. 214



 
 
 
 
 

 
City of Columbia 
A Proclamation 

 
WHEREAS, for one hundred and fifty years, from Black Civil War veterans who helped to reunite the nation and 

end slavery, to the architects of the passage of the 13th Amendment abolishing slavery, to the formerly 
enslaved and their children who marched together in Washington in 1915, and to the icons, institutions, 
and foot-soldiers who launched powerful campaigns in the 1960s, 1980s and 1990s, on behalf of their 
collective legacy of hope, courage and triumph, honoring centuries and generations of people of African 
descent brought to this nation; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a result of bipartisan support from Congress, President George W. Bush signed legislation on 

December 16, 2003 to build a National Museum devoted to the documentation of African American life, 
art, history, and culture and encompasses on a national level the period of slavery; the era of 
Reconstruction; the Harlem renaissance; the Civil Rights Movement; and other periods associated with 
African American life, art, history, and culture; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Museum’s Dedication involves partners across the country, who will have the opportunity to 

honor, commemorate, remember, and participate in celebrating the opening on dedication day and 
throughout the year. Participants in this national celebration include the US Conference of Mayors, 
cultural partners and friends, community groups, churches and a host of other organizations; and 

 
WHEREAS, today this Museum stands on grounds once tilled by the enslaved, next to the Washington Monument 

and within the shadow of the White House; This Museum is a place for collaboration and a beacon to 
draw millions from cities, counties, and parishes throughout America to Washington and then take their 
experiences back with them for deeper contemplation and examination in their local communities; This 
is a place to better understand and transform America’s history in a local and national context.  

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE I, Stephen K. Benjamin, Mayor of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, along with my fellow 
members of Columbia City Council, do hereby proclaim September 24, 2016 as  
 

National Museum of African American History and Culture Day  
 

in the great City of Columbia and urge my fellow citizens to recognize and participate in its observance. 
 
 
 

 
___________________________ 

 
Stephen K. Benjamin 

Mayor 
_____________________________                               _____________________________ 
Sam Davis            Tameika Isaac Devine 
District I, Council Member                  At-Large, Council Member      
 
 
_____________________________                             ______________________________ 
Leona Plaugh                                               Moe Baddourah 
District IV, Council Member                                           District III, Council Member 
 
 
____________________________                                                                        ___________________________ 
Howard E. Duvall, Jr.                                 Edward H. McDowell, Jr. 
At-Large, Council Member                                             District II, Council Member 

29.a

Packet Pg. 215



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 3:00 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 
 
FROM: Erika Moore, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Columbia Museum of Art Update - Ms. Karen Brosius, 

Executive Director / Columbia Museum of Art 
 
PRESENTER: Ms. Karen Brosius, Executive Director 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Columbia Museum of Art 9-20 presentation (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

30

Packet Pg. 216



Your Partner in Making Columbia  

a World-Class City 
Thank You for Your Support! 

30.a

Packet Pg. 217



30.a

Packet Pg. 218



Tourism & Attendance 

• Over 1.3 million people 

in the past 10 years 

• 250,000 youth served 

• Attendance & Outreach 

in 2016: 138,000 

• 79% from outside the 

City of Columbia 

30.a

Packet Pg. 219



The National Stage 

The National Medal and the SC Governor’s Award for the Arts 

30.a

Packet Pg. 220



The International Stage 

30.a

Packet Pg. 221



Partnership Snapshot 
Main Street District Partnerships + 
• Business: Mast General Store, Marriott, The Whig, BB&T, Nelson Mullins 

• City Center Partnership 

• First Thursdays on Main 

• Jam Room Music Festival 

• The Nickelodeon 

• Richland Library 

 

Cultural and Educational Partnerships + 
• All Richland and Lexington School Districts  

• Allen University, Benedict College, Columbia College, and USC 

• Central Carolina Community Foundation 

• Historic Columbia Foundation 

• SCETV 

• S.C. Philharmonic 

• S.C. State Library, Dept. of Education, and Arts Commission 

• S.C. State Museum 

• Trustus Theatre 

 

30.a

Packet Pg. 222



This Year 
CUT!  

Costume and the Cinema 
Enduring Spirit 

The Art of Tyrone Geter 

30.a

Packet Pg. 223



This Year 
Salvador Dalí’s  

Fantastical Fairy Tales 
ReTooled 

 

30.a

Packet Pg. 224



Exciting Renovations 

It’s About Our City 

30.a

Packet Pg. 225



Exciting Renovations 

It’s About Our Community 

30.a

Packet Pg. 226



Exciting Renovations 

It’s About Our Kids 

30.a

Packet Pg. 227



Thank You! 

30.a

Packet Pg. 228



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 3:56 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: Building Codes in Effect for South Carolina and City of 

Columbia (Items 31-39) 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016 Memo To Council RE  Code Changes (PDF) 
 International Code Council - 2015 Codes 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

Packet Pg. 229

http://codes.iccsafe.org/I-Codes.html#2015


 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: City Council 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director of Planning and Development Services 
CC: Teresa Wilson, City Manager and Melissa Smith-Gentry, ACM - Operations 
DATE: September 13, 2016 
RE: Building Codes in Effect for South Carolina and Columbia 
 
 
 
Council is asked to approve ordinances to adopt the most recent mandated building 
codes. Every municipality and county in South Carolina must enforce the mandatory 
building codes referenced in Section 6-9-50 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, 
1976 as Amended (SC Code), after they are reviewed and adopted by the Building 
Codes Council (Council). Municipalities and counties are restricted from writing or 
publishing any other building code, in whole or in part or adopting and enforcing 
building codes other than those referenced in Section 6- 9-50 of the SC Code.  
 
Unless modified by Council, all chapters (except the Administrative Chapter) of all 
codes must be enforced in their entirety.  Until July 2016, these had been the 2012 
set of codes as published by the International Codes Council.  The state recently 
updated the adopted codes to reflect the 2015 cycle, except for the Electric and the 
Energy Conservation Codes, which are 2014 and 2009 respectively.   
 
Chapter 5 of City of Columbia Code of Ordinances further codifies the adoption of 
theses codes.  The series of ordinances presented for Council’s consideration will 
amend the code to reflect the new cycle as adopted by the state.  The South 
Carolina Codes Council only permits modifications to the codes as they relate to the 
qualification, appointment, duties, and removal of the Building Official 
(Administrative Chapter).  The ordinances proposed for Council consideration 
exclude this section and instead we employ City policies and procedures for such 
matters. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

a

Packet Pg. 230



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/12/2016 3:08 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-068 - Amending the 1998 Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 
5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 2, 
Building Code, Sec. 5-51, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-068 amend Sec. 5-51, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Building Code
 (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

31

Packet Pg. 231



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-068 

Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, 
Chapter 5, Article 11, Building and Technical Codes, Division 2, 

Building Code, Sec. 5-51, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council this_ day of , 2016, that Chapter 5, 
Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 2, Building Code, Sec. 5-51, Adoption; conflicting 
provisions, of the 1998 Code of Ordinances of The City of Columbia, South Carolina, is amended to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 5-51. Adoption; conflicting provisions. 

. ."''}!;" 
(a) There is hereby adopted by and for the city the.lnternationanl~J:ilding Code -2-BH 2015 edition, 
as modified by amendment of the South Carolina Building Code CounciJ, which code is published 
separately in book form and is adopted by reference as though copied fully'i'il?this section, as published 
by the International Code Council, Inc. SpecificaHy~xcluded from the addption of the International 
Code referenced herein Section 103 in its entirety, ant:.Uts sub~ctions (enumer~ted as 103.1, 103.2, 
103.3 and 1 04.8). Any other provisionp()t specifically exclu<;le(f above which conc~rns.the qualification, 
removal, dismissal and duties of the bttJ1gtl!!jtpfficial or any otf:ier city official or employee are deemed 
excluded from this section. A file of recqrd of:ttli~.code is in the offices of the city clerk and building 
official. x;''i<:;s,, 

(b) l.n the ~vent of any~~g.~lict bet":een the provision~~~tthe cod~/flg2pted ~y this section ~nd state 
law or e~ty ordmances, ru~~'0rsregulat1ons, then the code aq2e~d bytf:l1s sect1on shall prevail and be 
controlling unless the{tode is spedfiC(llly amended by state lavv'~i<;:h shall prevail and be controlling. 

\\',c :•'.5:_?:, ' '', 

This ordinance is effective as ~f final read i 

AssistanfCi!:y Manager Gen.tt¥>:. 
...... ~.·· 

'~',~\..' \ 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last Revised: 8/3/2016 
1617080222 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

31.a

Packet Pg. 232



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 8/25/2016 12:42 PM A Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-069 - Amending the 1998 Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 
5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 3, Gas 
Code, Sec. 5-71, Adoption; Conflicting provision 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-069 amend Sec. 5-71, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Gas Code (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

32

Packet Pg. 233



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-069 

Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, 
Chapter 5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 3, 

Cas Code, Sec. 5-71, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council this_ day of , 2016, that Chapter 5, 
Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 3, Gas C9de, Sec. 5-71, Adoption; conflicting 
provisions, of the 1998 Code of Ordinances of The City of Co · ···a, South Carolina, is amended to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 5-71. Adoption; conflicting provisions. ".:~r. u;!.: 
(a) There is hereby adopted for the city the4nternational Fuel Gas ~q(je, Wl--2- 2015 edition as 
adopted and modified by amendment of the So~1tarolina Building Cod&{:ouncil, published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., which code is pubJl§~ed separ3;~~ly in book foh·n,and is adopted by 
reference as though copied fully in this section. Sp~f;Wcally excluded from tlife• adoption of the 
International Code referenced herein ti:Se.c~ion 103 and"·jtg·~~psections (enumerated'asSections 103.1, 
1 03.2, 103.3 and 1 03.4). Any other Ji~.¢ly1~i()~)pot specifi~ally. excluded above which concerns the 
qualification, removal, dismissal and dutiespf tfl'e:building officia.l or any other city official or employee 
are deemed excluded from this section. A fil~of recor(h:'>:f.this codti is in the offices of the city clerk and 
building official. ·•·>~~fJJi/, . · '• .· y, 
(b) In the event of (J.nyconflictpf).tween theHrpvisions oft~~~~Eie adopted by this section and state 
law or city ordinances~i'rules or regulations, therr+th~.~ode adoptedby this section shall prevail and be 
controlling unless the code is specificp;l1ly amended:~~ state law which shall prevail and be controlling. 

Thi,~X9r,qi~ahte is effective as~~final readJng .. · 
/)~~~;:)';> ,' . ''"<~iJ~~~~~*:~', 

Req ue§f~J.f;.by: 
-,:gy/ 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last Revised: 8/3/2016 

1617080223 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

32.a

Packet Pg. 234



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 8/25/2016 12:44 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-070 - Amending the 1998 Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 
5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 4, 
Plumbing Code, Sec. 5-91, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-070 amend Sec. 5-91, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Plumbing Code
 (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

33

Packet Pg. 235



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-070 

Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, 
Chapter 5, Article 11, Building and Technical Codes, Division 4, 

Plumbing Code, Sec. 5-91, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council this __ day of , 2016, that Chapter 5, 
Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 4, Plumbing C,q~e, Sec. 5-91, Adoption; conflicting 
provisions, of the 1998 Code of Ordinances of The City of Col~~'fJ~~~~ South Carolina, is amended to read 
as follows: . +:~,~>:>· 

Sec. 5-91. Adoption; conflicting provisions. . ... 
(a) There is hereby adopted for the city the International Plumbirtg;;f0pde, WH 2015 edition, as 
adopted by the South Carolina Building Code Council, published by the lnt&rnational Code Council, Inc., 
which code is published separately in book formand is adopted by reference ~*trough copied fully in 
this section. Specifically excluded from the adoption of the lot~n.ational Cod~?referenced herein is 
Section 103 and its subsections (enumerated as Section~~ .1~iJ03.2, 103.3 and 103.4.) Any other 
provision not specifically excluded ab6¥~~~~t~.b concerns th. .. lification, removal, dismissal and duties 
of the building official or any other city offi~iJFQ'(employee are'~~med excluded from this section. A file 
of record of this code is in the offices oftH€~'city'derk and building1official. 
(b) In the event of any ~g.qflict between to~ provisions of the c6'de adopted by this section and state 
law or city ordinances, rul~~~&:regulations, theQ)he code aqopted by this section shall prevail and be 
controlling unless the,fode is specifically amencte'dbystate laww~kh shall prevail and be controlling. 

,~·-' -' "-· ; 

~' . -,:f;;;~, ' 
This ordinance is el'f~ctive as 9ffinal reading •. 

' '' : : ~;j;',~!{1:;::<·~·-, ' 

Request~2~Jjf:' .. 

z~~~ , . ::,'~: .. "" 
Assistant•CitJ: Manager GerttpY'?, 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

~ 
City Attorney 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last Revised: 8/3/2016 
1617080224 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

33.a

Packet Pg. 236



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 8/24/2016 11:24 AM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-071 - Amending the 1998 Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 
5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 5, Electric 
Code, Sec. 5-111, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-071 amend Sec. 5-111, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2014 Electric Code
 (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

34

Packet Pg. 237



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-071 

Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, 
Chapter 5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 5, 

Electric Code, Sec. 5-111, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council this __ day of ____ , 2016, that Chapter 
5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 5, Electric Code, Sec. 5-111, Adoption; 
conflicting provisions, is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 5-111. Adoption; conflicting provisions. 
(a) There is hereby adopted for the city the Nationa .ctric Code, W++ 2014 edition, 
published by the National Fire Protection Association (NF .· .. ··.. . adopted by the South Carolina 
Building Code Council, which code is published separate~¥ in 63~kform and is adopted by reference 
as though copied fully in this section. Any provisionr:l?f~pecifidfl~~~~cluded above which concerns 
the qualification, removal, dismissal and duties of:~~%4building offici~! or any other city official or 
employee are deemed excluded from this section; ';;.~~"file of record of this .. cqde is in the office of the 

' . ··.,;..;,:fj:y 

city clerk and building official. Any other provision not specifically exclud~tl <!!Jove which concerns 
the qualification, removal, dismissal and duties of tbe buildi~ :.official or any;~ther city official or 
employee are deemed excluded from this section. A file qf k ·of this code is in the offices of the 
city clerk and building official. ~:. >· .. . '/:~::/ 
(b) In the event of any conflict be~e~11¥i:me provisions o(tbe code adopted by this section and, 
state law or city ordinances, rules or regulati0ns;~~la~!2. the code ~~opted by this section shall prevail 
and be controlling unless the code is speCifically ailt,.W,? by sf~$~2law which shall prevail and be 
controlling. ;</ · 

This ordinanc~i.s effective ;s of final reading. 

'~:.:.>:> 

~==-:.:~~-'-=~~-==:;,+---'<:v)}:::.: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last Revised: 8/3/2016 
1617080225 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

34.a

Packet Pg. 238



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/12/2016 3:09 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-072 - Amending the 1998 Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 
5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 6, 
Mechanical Code, Sec. 5-131, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-072 amend Sec. 5-131, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Mechanical Code
 (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

35

Packet Pg. 239



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-072 

Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, 
Chapter 5, Article 11, Building and Technical Codes, Division 6, 
Mechanical Code, Sec. 5-131, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council this_ day of , 2016, that Chapter 5, 
Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 6, Mechanical C .e~ Sec. 5-131, Adoption; conflicting 
provisions, of the 1998 Code of Ordinances of The City of Colu.,,; ta~South Carolina, is amended to read 
as follows: · .. · 

Sec. 5-131. . Adoption; conflicting provisions. . i~~. . · fJ . 
(a) There 1s hereby adopted by and for the ot}{;s~ lnternat1onaf"Me~han1cal Code, ~ 2015 
edition as adopted by the South Carolina Buildit;~g.~ode Council, published!:by the International Code 
Council, Inc., which code is published separatel)/'ijt;;'tJpok form and is adopte~B.¥,reference as though 
copied fully in this section. Specifically excluded from~;i3doptiort:~f the lnternafll!ihaJ Code referenced 
herein is Section 103 and its subsectioq,~.(enumerated ~S-P9Q~103.1' 1 03.2, 1 o:rrtand 1 03.4). Any 
other provision not specifically excludeg;;i'!~J!>\1:~ which conce·~~~\he qualification, removal, dismissal and 
duties of the building official or any oth~f;""~ft¥~~tficial or empt~y:e are deemed excluded from this 
section. A file of record of this code is in tne.offices;~~~tcity clerKi~[ld building official. 
(b) In the event of any,,~onftt~t between th~,.provision}~Jthe codEt~g0opted by this section and state 
law or city ordinances, ~ul~o(~ig~.!lations, thf~,the .<::od~.::if~p~~? bytflls section shall prevail and be 
controlling unless the q~e is speciq~~)ly amend~~'!~.,, e law whf~h shall prevail and be controlling . 

.. ~· .•,, ,· ... ~; 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last Revised: 8/3/2016 
1617080226 

reading~ 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

35.a

Packet Pg. 240



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 8/25/2016 12:24 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-073 - Amending Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, Buildings  
and Building Regulations,  Article II, Building and Technical 
Codes, Division 7, Property Maintenance Code, Sec. 5-151, 
Adoption; conflicting provisions 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-073 amend Sec. 5-151, Adoption; conflicting provisions  2015 Property 
Maintenance Code (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

36

Packet Pg. 241



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-073 

Amending Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, Buildings 
and Building Regulations, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 7, Property Maintenance Code, 

Sec. 5-151, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council this _ day of ----::---::--' 2016, that the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, Buildi.~ and Building Regulations, Article II, 
Building and Technical Codes, Division 7, Property Maintenance ' Sec. 5-151, Adoption; conflicting 
provisions, is amended as follows: 

Sec. 5-151. Adoption; conflicting provisions. 

(a) There is hereby adopted by and for the city the I 
published by the International Code Council Inc., . · .... 
by reference as though copied fully in this section.·· 
Maintenance Code is Section 103, and its subsections (en 
other provision not specifically excluded which rnonr<O•n 

the building official or any other city 
this code is in the offices of the city clerk 

(b) 

(c) 

is amended to read as follows: 
of the code official or a 
the board of appeals, 

after the day the decision, 
on a claim that the true 

nh>it!l··~ht:>l"<>under have been incorrectly interpreted, 
requirements of this code are adequately 

requirement of this code would cause 

nt<>.rn~oHnin=>l Property Maintenance Code is amended to read as follows: 
rty shall be maintained free from weeds or plant 

='-"'-'==· Weeds shall be defined as all grasses, annual plants 
or shrubs provided; however, this term shall not include 

agent having charge of a property to cut and destroy weeds after 
service of a notice of , they shall be subject to prosecution in accordance with Section 
106.3 and as prescribed by the authority having jurisdiction. Upon failure to comply with the 
notice of violation, any duly authorized employee of the jurisdiction or contractor hired by the 
jurisdiction shall be authorized to enter upon the property in violation and cut and destroy the 
weeds growing thereon, and the costs of such removal shall be paid by the owner or agent 
responsible for the property. 

(d) Section 304.14 of the W-1-r 2015 International Property Maintenance Code is amended to read as follows.;. 
304.14 Insect Screens. During the period from lanuary 1st to December 31st, every door, 
window and other outside opening required for ventilation of habitable rooms, food preparation 
areas, food service areas or any areas where products to be included or utilized in food for human 

Last Revised: 8/3/2016 
1617080227 

36.a

Packet Pg. 242



consumption are processed, manufactured, packaged or stored shall be supplied with approved 
tightly fitting screens of not less than 16 mesh per inch (16 mesh per 25 mm), and every screen 
door used for insect control shall have a self-closing device in good working condition. 

Exception: Screens shall not be required where other approved means, such as air curtains or 
insect repellent fans, are employed. 

(e) In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the code 
ordinances, rules or regulations, then the code adopted by this 
code is specifically amended by state law which shall prevail and >: 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon second 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

~ 
City Attorney 

Last Revised: 8/3/2016 
1617080227 

by this section and state law or city 
revail and be controlling unless the 

ling. 

36.a

Packet Pg. 243



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 8/24/2016 11:27 AM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-074 - Amending the 1998 Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 
5, Buildings and Building Regulations, Article II, Building and 
Technical Code, Division 8, Sec. 5-171, Adoption; conflicting 
provisions 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-074 amend Sec. 5-171. Adoption; conflicting provisions 2009 Energy 
Conservation Code (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

37

Packet Pg. 244



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-074 

Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, 
Buildings and Building Regulations, Article II, Building and Technical Code, Division 8, 

Sec. 5-1 71, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council this __ day of , 2016, that the 1998 
Code of Ordinances of The City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, Buildings and Building 
Regulations, Article II, Building and Technical Code, Division 8, Sec. 5-171, Adoption; conflicting 
provisions, is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 5-171. Adoption; conflicting provisions. 

(a) There is hereby adopted by and for the city the International Energy Conservation Code ~ 2009 
edition as adopted by the South Carolina Building Code Council, Inc,_, which code is published separately 
in book form and is adopted by reference as though copied fully in this section. Any provision concerning 
the qualification, removal, dismissal and duties of the building official or any other city employee are 
deemed excluded from this section. A file of record of this code is in the offices of the city clerk and 
building official. 

(b) In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the code adopted by this section and state law or 
city ordinances, rules or regulations, then the code adopted by this section shall prevail and be controlling 
unless the code is specifically amended by state law which shall prevail and be controlling. 

This ordinance is effective as of final reading. 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

~ 
City Attorney 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last Revised: 8/3/2016 

1617080228 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

37.a

Packet Pg. 245



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 3:57 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-075 - Amending the 1998 Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 
5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 9, 
International Residential Code for One- and Two Family 
Dwellings, Sec. 5-191, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-075 amend Sec. 5-191, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Residential 
Building Code (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

38

Packet Pg. 246



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-075 

Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 5, 
Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 9, International Residential Code 
for One- and Two- Family Dwellings, Sec. 5-191, Adoption; conflicting provisions 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council this_ day of , 2016, that the 1998 Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina Chapter 5, Article II, Building and Technical Codes, Division 9, 
International Residential Code for One- and Two- Family Dwellings, Sec. 5-191, Adoption; conflicting provisions, is 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 5-191. Adoption; conflicting provisions. 0,~~ 
(a) There is hereby adopted by and for the city the ~ 2Q;t5ifbternational Residential Code for One- and 
Two-Family Dwellings as adopted and modified by amend men · ·south c;~uolina Building Code Council, which 
code is published separately in book form and is adopted),>f:>p:i renee ast~'(}u$h copied fully in this section, as 
published by the International Code Council, Inc. Spedfl(:ally excluded fro!Wl~e adoption of the International 
Residential Code for One- and Two- Family Dwellings referenced herein are Section§,R1 03 in its entirety and its 
subsections (enumerated as Sections R1 03.1, R1 03.2, artd R1 03.3) and R1 04.8. Any olft~r provision not specifically 
excluded above which concerns the qualification, removal, dismissal an .. uties of the btHidi.ryg official or any other 
city official or employee are deemed excluded from this · of this codeJ~~~ the offices of the 
city clerk and building official. . ''"?r. ''fit 
(b) In the event of any conflict between'thepr(;)yisions of by this section and state law or city 
ordinances, rules or regulations, then the cod~.§ldop~ed by this . ·. II prevail and be controlling unless the 
code is specifically amended by state law wnl9b.shalfprevail and be'e:011trolling unless the code is specifically 
amended by state law which shall prevail and be,;mntrolling; .... 

' ' ',, ... //!:/.k¢.:~?f:?- /,. ' ' ' 

,fl:})~{ //p//4;;~~.~;·{:·-~,,. ,_. ':<'-

This ordinance;j~.~ffective as'::Qffinal reading:'' .· . 
':{~,' ' .<</. ·~ \.t~~:~\~~>· ', 

Requested by: 

v-,_ c>f 

'\}Wf~~~> 

City Manager '>'::~ 

City Attorney 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last Revised: 8/3/2016 

1617080229 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

38.a

Packet Pg. 247



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 8/24/2016 11:29 AM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-076 - Amending the 1998 Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 
9, Fire Prevention and Protection,  Article IV, Fire Prevention 
Code, Sec. 9-61, Adoption 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-076 amend Sec. 9-61, Adoption 2015 Fire Prevention Code (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

39

Packet Pg. 248



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-076 

Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 9, Fire 
Prevention and Protection, Article IV, Fire Prevention Code, Sec. 9-61, Adoption 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council this_ day of , 2016, that the 1998 
Code of Ordinances of The City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and 
Protection, Article IV, Fire Prevention Code, Sec. 9-61, Adoption, is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 9-61. Adoption. ;'!)i,;":;" 
~ There is hereby adopted by the city council, for. th~~urpose of prescribing regulations 
governing conditions hazardous to life and property frollltWe or'~~plosion, that certain code known 
as the WH 2015 Edition of the International Fire Codeiti;adopte~~,nd modified by amendment of 
the South Carolina Building Code Council and py~!k$ed by the lfit@tnational Code Council, Inc., 
Section 103 and its subsections (enumerated as sEl~tions 103.1, 103:2,103.3, 103.4 and 103.4.1) 
are expressly excluded from the Code of Ordinancesof the City of Columbi~"' 
(b) In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the cope adopted ·!}¥';this section and state 
law or city ordinances, rules or regulations, then the Code ad~~by this sectioh shall prevail and be 
controlling, unless the code is specifically amended<~ '<~W:te law which shalf:;;·prevail and be 
controlling. 

This ordinance is effective as of fin~I:~H~ading; 
--~-~%~;> : 

Requested by: 

'<: ~'v .:.:'>/,-, 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved ~$6f~.~; · 
. /~~;··· 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last Revised: 8/4/2016 
1617080230 

;~~?. 
Y//;(3; 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

39.a

Packet Pg. 249



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:32 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-088 - Authorizing the City Manager to 

execute a Lease Renewal Agreement with Branch Banking and 
Trust Company (BB&T) for use of 3905 Ensor Avenue 
(Lutheran Survey Building) 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-088 Lease Renewal 3905 Ensor (BB&T) (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

40

Packet Pg. 250



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-088 

Authorizing the City Manager to execute a Lease Renewal Agreement 
with Branch Banking and Trust Company (BB& T) for use of 

3905 Ensor Avenue (Lutheran Survey Building) 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council this_ day of ____ , 

2016, that the City Manager is authorized to execute the attached Lease Renewal 

Agreement with Branch Banking and Trust Company (BB& T) for 3905 Ensor Avenue 

(Lutheran Survey Building). 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Palen 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised: 9/9/2016 
1617080352 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

40.a

Packet Pg. 251



LEASE RENEWAL AGREEMENT 
(3905 Ensor Avenue) 

This Lease Renewal is made this _ day of , 2016, by and between the City of 
Columbia (hereinafter "Landlord") and Branch Banking and Trust Company, a North Carolina banking corporation 
(hereinafter "Tenant"). 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto entered into a Lease Agreement dated November 29, 2004, as extended by 
letter dated October 7, 2005; by letter dated September 19, 2006; by First Amendment dated October 3, 2008; and 
by Second Amendment dated November 29, 2008, and by Third Amendment dated December 16, 2009, and by 
Fourth Amendment dated April 16, 2013 (collectively the "Lease") for certain premises known as 3905 Ensor 
A venue (Lutheran Survey Building) in the City of Columbia, County of Richland, State of South Carolina, as more 
particularly described herein (there is no more particularly described herein); and, 

WHEREAS, the Lease term will expire on November 28, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the Fourth Amendment provided for two (2) additional renewal periods of one (1) year each by written 
mutual agreement thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the expiration of the current term; and 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to renew the Lease for an additional one (1) year term commencing on 
November 29, 2016; and, 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to renew the Lease on the same terms and conditions set for in the Lease for 
an additional one (1) year term; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 
the parties hereto agree as follows: 

I. The aforesaid Lease, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference thereto, is 
hereby renewed for a term commencing on November 29, 2016 and terminating at 11:59 p.m. on November 28, 
2017. 

2. With the exception of the term of the Lease as modified herein, the parties shall be bound by all other 
terms and conditions of the aforesaid Lease as if fully set out herein and except as modified hereby such terms shall 
be in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the duly authorized representatives of the Landlord and the Tenant have caused 
this Lease Renewal to be executed as of the day and year indicated above. 

WITNESSES: Landlord: CITY OF COLUMBIA 

BY: __ ~--~~~--------------
Teresa B. Wilson 

ITS: City Manager 
DATE: ________________________ __ 

Tenant: Branch Banking and Trust Company 

BY: __________________________ _ 

ITS: ________________________ _ 
DATE: ----------------------------

0 
Cl) 

ro 
:.0 
E 
:::J 

8 

40.a

Packet Pg. 252



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/14/2016 5:19 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-089 - Authorizing the City Manager to 

execute a Eighth Amendment to Purchase Agreement between 
the City of Columbia and Bright-Meyers 2001 LLC for the sale 
of 5.97 +/-acres (Capital City Stadium), Richland County TMS 
#11204-02-02 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-089 Bright-Meyers (Capital Stadium) 8th Amend Purchase Agreement (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

41

Packet Pg. 253



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-089 

Authorizing the City Manager to execute a Eighth Amendment to Purchase Agreement 
between the City of Columbia and Bright-Meyers 2001 LLC for the sale 

of 5.97 +/-acres (Capital City Stadium), Richland County TMS #11204-02-02 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council this_ day of _____ , 2016, that 

the City Manager is authorized to execute the attached Eighth Amendment to Purchase Agreement, 

or on a form approved by the City Attorney, between the City of Columbia and Bright-Meyers 2001 

LLC for the sale of 5.97 acres +/- (Capital City Stadium), Richland County TMS #11204-02-02. 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form : 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised: 9/9/2016 
1617090506 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

41.a

Packet Pg. 254



EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

This Eighth Amendment to Purchase Agreement entered into this_ day of , 2016, 
by and between the City of Columbia, hereinafter referred to as "Seller", and Bright-Meyers 2001 LLC, 
hereinafter referred to as "Purchaser". 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser have entered into a Purchase Agreement ("Agreement'') dated August 
27, 2012 ("Agreement"), which gives Purchaser the exclusive right to purchase the property described in the 
Agreement under the terms and conditions of the Agreement; and, 

WHEREAS, the Seller and Purchaser previously amended the Purchase Agreement; and, 

WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser mutually desire to further modify and amend said Agreement; NOW, 
THEREFORE 

IT IS HEREBY AGREED, for and in consideration of the sum of Twenty-Five Thousand and No/100 
Dollars ($25,000.00) as additional earnest money, which earnest money shall be applied to the purchase price, 
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Agreement is amended as follows: 

Paragraph 2(b) is amended to read " Upon delivery of the deed, Buyer shall pay to Seller Nine Hundred and 
Forty-Six Thousand and No/1 00 ($946,000.00) Dollars by cashier's check, electronic wire or certified check." 

Paragraph 14 is amended to allow for the closing to take place not later than August 1, 2017. 

Except as modified and amended hereby, all the terms, covenants and conditions of said Purchase 
Agreement shall continue and remain in fu ll force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Eighth Amendment to Purchase Agreement to be 
executed this day and year first above written. 

WITNESSES: 

Last revised: 9/13/2016 
1617090506 
2016-089 

SELLER: CITY OF COLUMBIA 

BY: __________ ~-----------------
Teresa B. Wilson 

ITS: City Manager 

PURCHASER: BRIGHT-MEYERS 2001 LLC 

BY: ____________________________ __ 

ITS: -------------------------------

Legal De 

41.a

Packet Pg. 255



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 3:58 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.: 2016-090 - Amending the 1998 Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 
12, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article II, Stopping, Standing 
and Parking, Division 1, Generally, Sec. 12-43 Parking 
prohibited during certain hours in designated places; Sec. 12-
45 Stopping, Standing or parking in loading zone; Sec. 12-9 
Parking for certain purposes prohibited; Sec. 12-51 Use of 
loading zones; Sec. 12-52 Certain parked vehicles declared 
nuisance; Division 2 Parking Meter Zones, Sec. 12-72 Location 
and operation of meters; Sec. 12-73 Marking of spaces; 
vehicles to be parked within  markings; Sec. 12-74 Parking 
position; Sec. 12-75 Deposit of coin; Sec. 12-76 Overtime 
parking; Sec. 12-77 Depositing slugs; Sec. 12-78 Defacing or 
injuring meters; Sec. 12-80 Disposition of revenue; and Sec. 12-
81 Exemptions 

 
As previously discussed, various changes to the Parking Ordinance are scheduled to be 
recommended in the coming months.  The first series of changes are proposed in order to reflect 
current practices.  Additional changes will be recommended in the coming months. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-090 amend Ch 12 Art 11 Stopping Standing and Parking (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

42

Packet Pg. 256



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-090 

Amending the 1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 12, Motor 
Vehicles and Traffic, Article 11, Stopping, Standing and Parking, Division 1, Generally, Sec. 12-43 Parking 

prohibited during certain hours in designated places; Sec. 12-45 Stopping, Standing or parking in 
loading zone; Sec. 12-49 Parking for certain purposes prohibited; Sec. 12-51 Use of loading zones; 
Sec. 12-52 Certain parked vehicles declared nuisance; Division 2 Parking Meter Zones, Sec. 12-72 

Location and operation of meters; Sec. 12-73 Marking of spaces; vehicles to be parked within 
markings; Sec. 12-74 Parking position; Sec. 12-75 Deposit of coin; Sec. 12-76 Overtime parking; Sec. 

12-77 Depositing slugs; Sec. 12-78 Defacing or injuring meters; Sec. 12-80 Disposition of revenue; and 
Sec. 12-81 Exemptions 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council this __ day of , 2016, that the 
1998 Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, Chapter 12, Motor Vehicles and 
Traffic, Article 11, Stopping, Standing and Parking, Division 1, Generally, Sec. 12-43 Parking prohibited 
during certain hours in designated places; Sec. 12-45 Stopping, Standing or parking in loading zone; Sec. 
12-49 Parking for certain purposes prohibited; Sec. 12-51 Use of loading zones; Sec. 12-52 Certain 
parked vehicles declared nuisance; Division 2 Parking Meter Zones, Sec. 12-72 Location and operation 
of meters; Sec. 12-73 Marking of spaces; vehicles to be parked within markings; Sec. 12-74 Parking 
position; Sec. 12-75 Deposit of coin; Sec. 12-76 Overtime parking; Sec. 12-77 Depositing slugs; Sec. 12-
78 Defacing or injuring meters; Sec. 12-80 Disposition of revenue; and Sec. 12-81 Exemptions, are 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 12-43. Parking prohibited during certain hours in designated places. 
When signs are erected in each block giving notice thereof, no person sfta.l+ may park a vehicle as 
prohibited by such signage between the hours and days so designated on any day except Sundays and 
public holidays. 

Sec. 12-45. Stopping, standing or parking in loading zone. 
(a) No person sfta.l+ may stop, stand or park a veh ide for any purpose or period of time other than for 
the expeditious loading or unloading of passengers in any place marked as a passenger zone during hours 
when the regulations applicable to such passenger zone are effective, and then only for a period not to 
exceed three minutes. 
(b) No person sfta.l+ may stop, stand or park a vehicle for any purpose or length of time other than for 
expeditious unloading and delivery or pickup and loading of materials in any place marked as a loading 
zone during the hours of &.007:00 a.m. to 11 :00 a.m., Monday through Saturday. In no case shall the 
stop for loading and unloading of materials exceed 30 minutes. Unless otherwise posted by the traffic 
engineer, any vehicle may occupy a loading zone on Sunday, or for a period not to exceed +5 30 
minutes after 11 :00 a.m. and before 8:00a.m. on Monday through Saturday. 

Sec. 12-49. Parking for certain purposes prohibited. 
No person sfta.l+ may stand or park a vehicle upon any roadway, city parking garage or city parking lot 
for the principal purpose of: 
(1) Displaying it for sale; and/or 
(2) Washing, greasing or repairing such vehicle, except repairs necessitated by an emergency. 

Last revised: 9/14/2016 
16170905 

42.a

Packet Pg. 257



Sec. 12-51. Use of loading zones. 
(a) Parking places marked as loading zones sftaU may be used only by vehicles actually engaged in 
loading or unloading, pickup or delivery of merchandise to or from a business which can be served from 
the loading zone within a period of 30 minutes. 
(b) It shall be unlawful for any vehicle, regardless of size or tonnage, to occupy any loading zone 
unless the owner has first obtained an annual permit from the chief of police parking services division, 
which shall run from July 1 to June 30. The chief of police parking services division shall issue permits 
only for those vehicles which have as their principal business purpose the transporting of goods and 
merchandise, and he sftaU may collect an annual fee of $5.00 for one vehicle permit, provided that 
additional vehicles under the same ownership may be issued permits for a fee of $2.00 each. 
(c) The owner of any vehicle found in violation of this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, 
punishable, upon conviction, in accordance with section 1-5, and the permit, if any, issued for the 
vehicle, shall be revoked in addition to other penalties provided by law. 

Sec. 12-52. Certain parked vehicles declared nuisance. 
Any vehicle parked continuously in any metered parking space, city controlled parking lot or city 
parking garage for 24 hours or more or parked on any street or other public property, whether in an 
authorized or unauthorized zone, which is found to be the subject of $5G:B91 00.00 or more past due on 
outstanding bonds under the city parking ordinance, is hereby declared to be a public nuisance. 

Sec. 12-72. Location and operation of meters. 
Parking meters installed in the parking meter zones established by the provisions of this division shaH may 
be placed upon the curb immediately adjacent to the individual parking places described in this division. 
Each parking meter shall be placed or set in such a manner as to show or display by a signal or through 
an electronic method that the parking space adjacent to such meter is or is not tegaHy in use. Each 
parking meter sftaU may be installed and set to display, upon the deposit of a $0.25 coin of the United 
States coins, prepaid parking card or by an electronic payment method authorized by the city, a 
signal indicating tegal purchased parking for one half hour up to the maximum time allowed by the 
meter, in such zones as are designated by the city council. Each meter shall also be arranged so that upon 
the expiration of the tegal purchased parking time, it will indicate by a mechanical operation and the 
dropping of the proper signal or through an electronic method of notification that that the ktwftH 
purchased parking has expired. Parking payment methods such as pay-by-space and pay-and-display 
may be installed in areas designated by the city manager within parking meter zones to provide 
convenient methods of payment for parking. Where meters or other devices are not practical in the 
judgment of parking services, signage may be erected at parking spaces and at the entrance to 
public off-street parking lots or garages to allow members of the public to use alternative methods 
of payment. The city may provide a pay-by-phone or other remote payment service to the public for 
payment of parking fees. 

Sec. 12-73. Marking of spaces; vehicles to be parked within markings. 
The city manager is hereby instructed to have lines or markings painted or placed upon the curb or upon 
the street adjacent to each parking meter for the purpose of designating the parking space for which such 
meter is to be used, and each vehicle parked alongside of or next to any parking meter shall park within 
the lines or markings so established. Parking services may have lines, markings or signage painted or 
placed upon the curb or upon the street adjacent to each parking meter, parking control device or 

Lastrevised: 9/14/2016 
16170905 2 

42.a

Packet Pg. 258



spaces controlled by a parking payment program, for the purpose of designating the parking space. 
Each vehicle parked within the space shall park within the lines or markings so established. It shall be 
unlawful and a violation of this division to park any vehicle across any such line or marking or to park 
such vehicle in such position that the vehicle shall not be entirely within the area so designated by such 
lines or markings or to park a vehicle in a partially obstructed space, which would prevent the vehicle 
from parking within the designated lines or markings. 

Sec. 12-74. Parking position. 
When a parking space in any parking meter zone is parallel with the adjacent curb or sidewalk, any 
vehicle parked in such parking space shall be parked so that the foremost part of such vehicle shall be 
alongside of and nearest to the parking meter or sign. When a parking space 6ft in any parking meter 
zone is diagonal to the curb or sidewalk, any vehicle parked in such parking space shall be parked with 
the foremost part of such vehicle directed at and nearest to such meter or sign. The total length of any 
vehicle parked in a designated compact space shall not extend beyond the designated lines or 
markings. 

Sec. 12-75. Deposit of ffiitt payment. 
When any vehicle shall be parked in any space alongside or next to which a parking meter, parking 
control device or space controlled by a remote payment method is located in accordance with the 
provisions of this division, the operator of such vehicle shall, upon entering the parking space, 
immediately deposit or cause to be deposited a coin of the United States or prepaid parking card in 
such parking meter or other parking control device, or purchase time by other designated electronic 
method, and the parking space may then be lawfully occupied by such vehicle during the period 
provided. If such vehicle shall remain parked in any such parking space beyond the parking time limit, the 
parking meter shall display a sign or signal showing tUegaJ expired parking or the operator shall be 
notified by electronic means, and in that event such vehicle shall be considered as parked overtime and 
beyond the period of legal purchased parking time, and the parking of a vehicle overtime or beyond the 
period of legal purchased parking time in any such part of a street where any such meter is located shall 
be a violation of this division. 

Sec. 12-76. Overtime parking. 
It shall be unlawful for any person to cause, allow, permit or suffer any vehicle registered in his name, or 
which he has leased or rented from another person, to be parked longer than the maximum period of 
legal purchased parking time established for any parking meter zone as described in this division, as 
shown on the face of the meter or through other established parking control devices or approved 
electronic methods. The provisions of this section apply whether or not aft additional coin is put parking 
time is purchased by an electronic method or by depositing additional coins in the meter after the 
vehicle has remained parked longer than the maximum period shown on the meter face or parking 
control device. 

Sec. 12-77. Depositing slugs and alteration of payment methods. 
It shall be unlawful to deposit or cause to be deposited in any parking meter any slug, device or metallic 
substitute for a coin of the United States or to use any method to alter any device or software to avoid 
paying parking fees. 

Last revised: 9/14/2016 
16170905 3 

42.a

Packet Pg. 259



Sec. 12-78. Defacing or injuring meters. 
It shall be unlawful for any person to deface, injure, tamper with, open or willfully break, destroy or 
impair the usefulness of any parking meter, parking device, signage or parking payment software 
installed or authorized under the provisions of this division. 

Sec. 12-80. Disposition of revenue. 
The funds derived from parking meters, parking control devices and alternative parking payment 
methods as provided in this divisionL are hereby levied and assessed as fees to provide for the proper 
regulation and control of traffic upon the public streets, and to cover the cost of the supervision, 
inspection, installation, operation, maintenance, control and use of the parking spaces and regulating the 
parking of vehicles in the parking meter zones created by this division. 

Sec. 12-81. Exemptions. 
(a) All commercial trucks while actually loading and unloading are required to pull in to the curb 
without charge in metered spaces. 
(b) Any commercial truck parked in a meter space longer than while actually loading and unloading 
will be in violation of this division. 
(c) Disabled operators of vehicles bearing license plates issued by the state highway department 
indicating that the operator is disabled shall be exempt from the requirements of this division pertaining 
to the payment of parking fees deposit of coins in parking meters. All other parking and meter 
regulations, in dud ing overtime parking prohibitions except timed parking, shall apply to such operators. 
(d) Witnesses who testify or are subpoenaed to testify in criminal cases in the circuit court, while in 
attendance at court, shall not be subject to parking meter requirements for deposit of coins or overtime 
parking, and parking meter tickets certified by the clerk of court as exempt under this subsection shall be 
cancelled. 

Requested by: 

Mayor Benjamin 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised 9/14/2016 
16170905 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

4 

42.a

Packet Pg. 260



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/14/2016 5:20 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.:  2016-091 - Amend Ordinance 2015-092 to 

Extend the Temporary Waiver of Permit Fees for Flood 
Damaged Property through January 31, 2017 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016-091 amend 2015-092 temporary emergency administrative procedures (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

43

Packet Pg. 261



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-091 

Amend Ordinance 2015-092 to Extend the Temporary Waiver of Permit Fees for 
Flood Damaged Property through january 31, 2017 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No.: 2015-092, enacted on November 18, 2015, a copy of which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, the Mayor and City Council approved, among other 
things, a temporary waiver for the issuance of building permit fees for properties damaged by the historic flood 
of October 201 5; and, 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that due to the severity of damage to structures and the process 
involved in determining the financial feasibility of repairing or rebuilding structures that it is in the best interest 
of the citizens to extend the deadline for issuance of temporary waiver of permit fees through January 31, 2017 
in order to assist homeowners and business owners affected by the floods; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, this_ day 
of , 2016 that Paragraph 5 of Ordinance 2015-092, a copy of which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, is amended as follows: 

5. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and remain in effect f&--a 
period of six (6) months, through January 31, 2017, at which time it shall have no furtherforce or effect. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that all other provisions set forth in Ordinance 2015-092 shall remain in 
full force and effect through January 31, 2017. 

Requested by: 

Councilmember Baddourah 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Final Reading: 

Last revised: 9/9/2016 
161709 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

43.a

Packet Pg. 262



43.a

Packet Pg. 263



43.a

Packet Pg. 264



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/14/2016 5:18 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.: 2016-085 - Annexing 1286 Beechfern Circle, 

1291 Beechfern Circle, 1335 Beechfern Circle, 1340 Beechfern 
Circle, 1341 Beechfern Circle, Detention Pond, 40 Foot Buffer, 
1311 Beechfern Circle, 1292 Beechfern Circle (Open Area), 
Richland County TMS# 25815-01-30, 25815-02-34, 25815-02-
27, 25815-01-21, 25815-02-26, 25815-01-20, 25815-01-19, 25815-
05-06, 25815-02-31 and 25815-01-29 

 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
The Park- Phase 3: 1286 Beechfern Circle, 1291 Beechfern Circle, 1335 Beechfern Circle, 1340 
Beechfern Circle, 1341 Beechfern Circle, Detention Pond, 40 Foot Buffer, 1311 Beechfern 
Circle, 1292 Beechfern Circle (Open Area)TMS# 25815-01-30, 25815-02-34, 25815-02-27, 
25815-01-21, 25815-02-26, 25815-01-20, 25815-01-19, 25815-05-06, 25815-02-31, 25815-01-
29 
 
Council District: 4 
 
Proposal: Annex, assign interim Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) Land Use 
Classification and interim zoning of PUD-R. The property is currently classified as 
Neighborhood (Medium Density) by Richland County and zoned PDD by Richland 
County. 
  
Applicants: Carolyn Walden Baxley, Christian B. Baxley, Devang Mehta, Alicia Mehta, 
OmarTorres, Madisa Torres, Loren P. Romeus, Bettina L. Romeus, Elaina N. Miller,Lamont 
Miller, Two Parks LLC 
 
Staff Recommendation: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning; Approve 
 
PC Recommendation: 05/02/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning; Approve 
(8-0) 
  

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

44

Packet Pg. 265



Action Item (ID # 2863)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/14/2016 5:18 PM  Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 FT-ANNEX-ThePark_Phase3 (PDF) 
 2016-085 annex Woodcreek Ph 3 (PDF) 

44

Packet Pg. 266



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
September 20, 2016 at 6:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 
 

ANNEXATION, INTERIM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AMENDMENT, AND 
INTERIM ZONING MAP AMENDMENT CASE SUMMARY  

THE PARK- PHASE 3: 1286 BEECHFERN CIRCLE, 1291 BEECHFERN CIRCLE, 1335 
BEECHFERN CIRCLE, 1340 BEECHFERN CIRCLE, 1341 BEECHFERN CIRCLE, 

DETENTION POND, 40 FOOT BUFFER, 1311 BEECHFERN CIRCLE, 1292 
BEECHFERN CIRCLE (OPEN AREA) 

TMS# 25815-01-30, 25815-02-34, 25815-02-27, 25815-01-21, 25815-02-26, 25815-01-20, 
25815-01-19, 25815-05-06, 25815-02-31, 25815-01-29 

  
 
Council District:  4 
 
Proposal: Annex, assign interim Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) 

Land Use Classification and interim zoning of PUD-R. The property is currently classified 
as Neighborhood (Medium Density) by Richland County and zoned PDD by Richland 
County.  

 
Applicants:  Carolyn Walden Baxley, Christian B. Baxley, Devang Mehta, Alicia Mehta, Omar Torres, 

Madisa Torres, Loren P. Romeus, Bettina L. Romeus, Elaina N. Miller, Lamont Miller, 
Two Parks LLC 

 
Staff Recommendation:    Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning     APPROVE 
PC Recommendation:  05/02/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning    APPROVE (8-0) 
Annexation, 1st Reading: PH 09/20/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning       PENDING 
Annexation, 2nd Reading: PH  10/04/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning      PENDING 
Comp Plan Amendment: PH 11/15/16: Confirm Land Use Classification          PENDING 
Map Amendment: ZPH  11/15/16: Confirm Zoning                                                                 PENDING 
 

CURRENT PARCEL CHARACTERISTICS/CONDITIONS 
 

Acreage: 6.82 acres  
Current Use: Residential lots 
Proposed Use: Residential lots 
Reason for Annexation: Secondary / Municipal Services 
Urban Service Area: Secondary 
Current Richland County Land Use Classification: Neighborhood (Medium Density) 
Proposed Land Use Classification: Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) 
Current Richland County Zoning: Planned Development District (PDD) 
Proposed Zoning: Planned Unit Development – Residential District (PUD-R) 
Census Tract: 114.07 
  

44.a

Packet Pg. 267



DETERMINATION FOR CITY SERVICES 
 

The following determination is an estimate of the benefits and costs associated with the annexation of the subject 
property.   
 
Police 
We find that the proposed annexations and assumed development will result in an increase number of calls for services 
and will cost the CPD $213.93 annually to provide service. 
 
Fire 
The proposed annexation will not result in additional costs or impact services being provided by this department. 
Annexation would lower the ISO rating of this property to a Class 1 from a Class 2. 
 
Solid Waste 
At this time the property is undeveloped and no service cost would occur.  The cost associated with solid waste service for 
these properties is $187.0 annually per household upon completion. 
 
Engineering 
Because water and sewer lines currently exist in this area and the developer has already installed new infrastructure at the 
time of development, the Utilities and Engineering Division will not incur any costs associated with this annexation. 
There is a tap fee for the property owner when developing a vacant residential lot. 
 
Water Customer Care 
Annexation will result in an approximately 40% reduction in water and sewer service rates for the customer. 
 
Planning & Development Services 
We recommend annexation of this property. The estimated annual City property tax revenue after annexation of these 
properties will generate approximately $2,802.97.  Note six of the lots are residential, while five of the lots are outlots 
with a value of $500. 
 
 
*Estimated City Tax Revenue calculated as: (Tax Value*Tax Rate)*City Millage Rate (.0981)) - (Tax Value*Local 
Option Sales Tax Credit (.002)). 

 
PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 

 
Urban Service Area  

 
Subject parcel is in a “Secondary Area” as identified in the Urban Service Area Map 
 
Principles and Goals of the Urban Service Area 
The Urban Service Area identifies those areas the City of Columbia wishes to provide with urban services.  
Primary emphasis will be given to annexing developed areas adjoining the city limits and “islands” of 
unincorporated territory surrounded by the city.  Primary, secondary, and long-range annexation priorities for 
specific areas may be identified.  Secondary areas may include higher value properties which assist the City in 
achieving a more balanced economic base. 
 
Secondary areas are those areas where the City determines it logical or advantageous to provide services, but 
where all services may not be at optimal levels for annexation at this time. For instance, it may be that the 
property is outside of the generally accepted fire response area, or the storm drainage and/or road system is 
substandard. Annexation in these areas may occur, but a more detailed analysis will need to be accomplished to 
determine the possible impact on revenue. As is stated in the policy, these areas may include “higher value” 
properties that would prove beneficial to revenues. 
  

The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  

44.a

Packet Pg. 268



Staff recommends that the subject parcel be designated Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) in The 
Columbia Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map. 

 
Urban Edge Residential Large Lot neighborhoods represent many of the City’s older residential neighborhoods in 
the outer areas of the City.  This development type is appropriate as development on remaining large lots or as 
redevelopment in the outer areas of Columbia.  Most of the existing developments occurred after 1950.  Urban 
Edge Residential Large Lot developments generally do not continue the grid and block pattern found in the urban 
neighborhoods, but do tend to have a consistently organized internal street network with loops and 
interconnections. 
 
Primary Types: 

• Single-family Detached 
*Accessory Dwelling Units 
 

Tertiary Types: 
• Single-family Attached 
• Two-family 
• Three-family 
• Small Format Business/Employment  
• Small Format Civic/Institutional 
• Cemeteries & Mausoleums 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcel is not covered by an area plan which has been adopted by the City of Columbia or Richland 
County. 

 
PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY 

 
The subject property is currently zoned Planned Development District (PDD) by Richland County, and surrounding 
parcels are currently zoned PDD by Richland County.  Surrounding parcels within the City of Columbia are zoned 
Planned Unit Development – Residential District (PUD-R). 
 
The proposed City of Columbia zoning district is Planned Unit Development – Residential District (PUD-R). 
 
Planned Unit Development Districts 
(a) Intent. The intent of planned unit development districts is to derive the benefits of efficiency, economy and flexibility 
by encouraging unified development of large sites, while also obtaining the advantage of creative site design, improved 
appearance, compatibility of uses, optimum service by community facilities, and better functioning of vehicular access 
and circulation. It is the intent of this article to allow development of large sites subject to specific regulations concerning 
permitted uses, but only subject to regulations concerning lot area, building coverage, yard spaces and building height 
insofar as the city council shall deem appropriate to fulfill the intent of this article, upon presentation of certification from 
the owners, developers or other parties at interest in the development of such sites that they will adhere to development 
policies which will fulfill the intent of this article. 
(b) Types of districts. Two types of districts accommodating primarily residential or nonresidential uses are created as 
follows: 

(1) PUD-R Planned Unit Development—Residential. The PUD-R district is intended to accommodate residential 
uses, with nonresidential uses integrated into the design of such districts as secondary uses. 
(2) PUD-C Planned Unit Development—Commercial. The PUD-C district is intended to accommodate primarily 
nonresidential uses, with residential uses integrated into the design of such districts as secondary uses. 

(c) Design and planning features. The types of residential dwelling units and the types of nonresidential uses allowed to 
be established in such districts increase with increasing site size of such districts, based upon the premise that increased 
site size will allow proper design, including functional interrelations, buffer treatments separating uses with potentially 
incompatible characteristics of use, design of access patterns, and relationships of uses within such planned unit 
developments with uses in adjacent districts. It is the intent of this article that such design and planning features be 
incorporated properly into any PUD district hereafter created, and that the planning commission and city council shall 

44.a

Packet Pg. 269



consider the existence and appropriateness of such features before any amendment to the zoning map is adopted to create 
such district. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Recommend to City Council annex said land with interim UER-2 land use classification and interim zoning of PUD-R. 
 

44.a

Packet Pg. 270



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AEX,
Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community, Esri, HERE, DeLorme,
MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user community

/

0 575 1,150287.5 Feet

CITY OF COLUMBIA GIS DATA DISCLAIMER
The City of Columbia GIS data represented on this map or plan is the product 
of compilation, as produced by others. It is provided for informational purposes 

only and the City of Columbia makes no representation as to its accuracy. 
Its use without field verification is at the sole risk of the user. 

Thursday, August 18, 2016

City of Columbia
The Park: Phase 3

44.a

Packet Pg. 271



UER-2

BEECHFERN CIR

CORDGRASS RDBEECHFERN CIR

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:

Leigh DeForth
August 16, 2016

I
0 100 20050

Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

The Park- Phase 3: 1286 Beechfern Circle, 1291 Beechfern Circle, 1335 Beechfern Circle, 1340 Beechfern Circle, 1341 
Beechfern Circle, Detention Pond, 40 Foot Buffer, 1311 Beechfern Circle, 1292 Beechfern Circle (Open Area); 
TMS#: 25815-01-30, 25815-02-34, 25815-02-27, 25815-01-21, 25815-02-26, 25815-01-20, 25815-01-19, 25815-05-06, 25815-02-31, 
25815-01-29; Existing Richland County FLU: Neighborhood (Medium Density); Proposed FLU: UER-2

44.a

Packet Pg. 272



PUD-R

PUD-R

PUD-R

BEECHFERN CIR

CORDGRASS RD

BRUSHFIELD PARK DR

BEECHFERN CIR

DISCLAIMER:
The City of Columbia Department of 
Planning and Development Services 
data represented on this map or plan 
is the product of compilation, as 
produced by others.  It is provided 
for informational purposes only and 
the City of Columbia makes no 
representation as to its accuracy.  Its 
use without field verification is at the 
sole risk of the user.

Zoning Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:
Leigh DeForth
August 16, 2016

D-1
RS-1
RS-1A
RS-1B
RS-2
RS-3
RD
RD-2
RG-1
RG-1A
RG-2
RG-3
UTD
MX-1
MX-2

C-1
C-2
C-3
C-3A
C-4
C-5
M-1
M-2
PUD-C
PUD-LS
PUD-LS-E
PUD-LS-R
PUD-R
OUT OF CITY

I
0 100 20050 Feet

Legend
CITY LIMITS
PARCELS

The Park- Phase 3: 1286 Beechfern Circle, 1291 Beechfern Circle, 1335 Beechfern Circle, 1340 Beechfern Circle, 1341 Beechfern Circle, 
Detention Pond, 40 Foot Buffer, 1311 Beechfern Circle, 1292 Beechfern Circle (Open Area); TMS#: 25815-01-30, 25815-02-34, 25815-02-27, 
25815-01-21, 25815-02-26, 25815-01-20, 25815-01-19, 25815-05-06, 25815-02-31, 25815-01-29; 
Existing Zoning (Richland County): PDD; Proposed Zoning: PUD-R

44.a

Packet Pg. 273



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-085 

Annexing 1286 Beechfern Circle, 1291 Beechfern Circle, 1335 Beechfern Circle, 1340 Beechfern Circle, 
1341 Beechfern Circle, Detention Pond, 40 Foot Buffer, 1311 Beechfern Circle, 1292 Beechfern Circle 

(Open Area), Richland County TMS# 25815-01-30, 25815-02-34, 25815-02-27, 25815-01-21, 25815-02-26, 
25815-01-20, 25815-01-19, 25815-05-06, 25815-02-31 and 25815-01-29 

WHEREAS, a proper petition has been filed with the City Council by one hundred (1 00%) percent of the 
property owners of the within described property under the provisions of South Carolina Ann. Sec. 5-3-150; and, 

WHEREAS, it appears to City Council that the annexation of the property would be in the best interest of 
the property owners and the City of Columbia; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, this_ day of 
_______ , 2016, that the property described herein is hereby annexed to and becomes a part of the 
City of Columbia effective immediately. This property shall be assigned interim zoning of PUD-R (Planned Unit 
Development- Residential District), apportioned to City Council District4, Census Tract 114.07, contains 6.82 
acres, and shall be assigned an interim land use classification of Urban Edge Residential- Large Lot (UER-2). 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 

Richland County TMS NO.: 

See Attached Exhibit "A" 

25815-01-30, 25815-02-34, 25815-02-27, 25815-01-21 
25815-02-26, 25815-01-20, 25815-01-19, 25815-05-06, 
25815-02-31 and 25815-01-29 

Also included in the territory hereby annexed are all contiguous portions of all public rights of way, 
streets and highways. 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

~ 
City Attorney 

Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised: 9/1/2016 
1617080308 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

44.b

Packet Pg. 274



EXHIBIT "A" 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-085 

All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with any improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying and 
being near the City of Columbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, and shown and delineated as 
Lot 67 on a Bonded Plat of Woodcreek Farms Areas, Section A-11, The Park-Phase 3-A by Belter & Associates, 
Inc. dated June 16, 2015, as revised, and recorded September 9, 2015 in the Office of the ROD for Richland 
County in Record Book 2057 at Page 671. Reference being made to said plat for a complete and accurate 
description thereof. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with any improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying 
and being near the City of Columbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, and shown and 
delineated as Lot 75 on a Bonded Plat of Woodcreek Farms Areas, Section A-11, The Park-Phase 3-A by Belter & 
Associates, Inc. dated June 16, 2015, as revised, and recorded September 9, 2015 in the Office of the ROD for 
Richland County in Record Book 205 7 at Page 671, the plat being incorporated by reference for a more complete 
and accurate description of the property. All measurements being a little more or less. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with any improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying 
and being near the City of Columbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, and shown and 
delineated as Lot 77 on a Bonded Plat of Woodcreek Farms Areas, Section A-ll The Park-Phase 3-A by Belter & 
Associates, Inc. dated June 16, 2015, as revised, and recorded September 9, 2015 in the Office of the ROD for 
Richland County in Record Book 2057 at Page 671. Being shown on a more recent plat as Lot 77, Woodcreek 
Farms Area A-11, The Park, Phase 3-A, prepared for Devang Mehta and Alicia Mehta by Inman Land Surveying 
Company, Inc. dated January 4, 2016, to be recorded. Plat being incorporated by reference for a more 
complete and accurate description of the property. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with any improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying 
and being near the City of Columbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, and shown as Detention 
Pond Parcel, 40' Buffer, Beechfern Circle 50' R/W, Lot 80, and Open Area (Detention Pond Access) on a plat 
prepared for Woodcreek Farms Area A-11 The Park- Phase 3-A dated June 16, 2015, last revised July 15, 2015, 
and recorded on September 9, 2015 in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Richland County in Book 2057 
Page 671, the Plat being incorporated by reference for a more complete and accurate description of the property. 
All measurements being a little more or less. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with any improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying 
and being near the City of Columbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, and shown and 
delineated as Lot 84 on a Bonded Plat of Wood creek Farms Areas, Section A-11, The Park-Phase 3-A by Belter & 
Associates, Inc. dated June 16, 2015, as revised, and recorded September 9, 2015 in the Office of the ROD for 
Richland County in Record Book 205 7 at Page 671, the plat being incorporated by reference for a more complete 
and accurate description of the property. All measurements being a little more or less. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with any improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying 
and being near the City of Columbia, 'lh the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, and shown and 
delineated as Lot 85 on a Bonded Plat of Woodcreek Farms,Areas, Section A-11, The Park-Phase 3-A by Belter & 
Associates, Inc. dated June 16, 2015, as revised, and recorded September 9, 2015 in the Office of the ROD for 
Richland County in Record Book 205 7 at Page 671, the plat being incorporated by reference for a more complete 
and accurate description of the property. All measurements being a little more or less. 

Last revised: 9/1/2016 
1617080308 

44.b

Packet Pg. 275



44.b

Packet Pg. 276



44.b

Packet Pg. 277



So
urc

e: 
Es

ri, 
Dig

ita
lG

lob
e, 

Ge
oE

ye
, E

art
hs

tar
 G

eo
gra

ph
ics

, C
NE

S/A
irb

us
 D

S,
 U

SD
A,

 U
SG

S,
 AE

X,
Ge

tm
ap

pin
g, 

Ae
rog

rid
, IG

N,
 IG

P, 
sw

iss
top

o, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

/

0
41

0
82

0
20

5
Fe

et

CI
TY

 O
F C

OL
UM

BI
A G

IS
 D

AT
A D

IS
CL

AI
ME

R
Th

e C
ity

 of
 C

olu
mb

ia 
GI

S 
da

ta 
rep

res
en

ted
 on

 th
is 

ma
p o

r p
lan

 is
 th

e p
rod

uc
t 

of 
co

mp
ila

tio
n, 

as
 pr

od
uc

ed
 by

 ot
he

rs.
 It 

is 
pro

vid
ed

 fo
r in

for
ma

tio
na

l p
urp

os
es

 
on

ly 
an

d t
he

 C
ity

 of
 C

olu
mb

ia 
ma

ke
s n

o r
ep

res
en

tat
ion

 as
 to

 its
 ac

cu
rac

y. 
Its

 us
e w

ith
ou

t fi
eld

 ve
rifi

ca
tio

n i
s a

t th
e s

ole
 ris

k o
f th

e u
se

r. 

Th
urs

da
y, 

Ma
rch

 24
, 2

01
6

Cit
y o

f C
olu

mb
ia

Th
e P

ark
 Ph

as
e 3

A

44
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
78



UE
R-

2

BE
EC

HF
ER

N

CORDGRASS

BRUSHFIELD PARK

MOSSY

WOODCREEK FARMS

GU
TH

RIE
 LO

OP

TH
AC

HE
R

OLD NATIONAL

DEER CROSSING

Fu
tur

e L
an

d U
se 

M
ap

**
 D

AT
A 

SO
UR

CE
 - C

IT
Y O

F 
CO

LU
MB

IA
, G

IS
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f P

lan
nin

g &
 

De
vel

op
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ces

OR
IG

IN
AL

 PR
EP

AR
AT

IO
N/

DA
TE

:
Th

is m
ap

 w
as 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 by
:

Ah
me

d A
bd

ull
ah

Ma
rch

 22
, 2

01
6

0
90

18
0

45
Fe

et

Le
ge

nd

PA
RC

EL
S

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS

CIT
Y O

F C
OL

UM
BIA

 PL
AN

NIN
G D

EPA
RTM

EN
T

THI
S M

AP
 IS 

THE
 PR

OD
UC

T O
F C

OM
PIL

ATI
ON

,
OR

 WA
S P

RO
DU

CE
D B

Y O
THE

RS
.  IT

 IS 
FO

R
INF

OR
MA

TIO
N O

NLY
 AN

D T
HE

 CIT
Y O

F C
OL

UM
BIA

MA
KE

S N
O R

EPR
ESE

NTA
TIO

NS
 AS

 TO
 ITS

 AC
CU

RA
CY 

OR
 US

E W
ITH

OU
T F

IEL
D V

ER
IFIC

ATI
ON

 
IS A

T TH
E S

OL
E R

ISK
 OF

 TH
E U

SE
R.

UC
MR

-1 
- U

rba
n C

ore
 M

ixe
d R

esi
de

nti
al-

1
UC

MR
-2 

- U
rba

n C
ore

 M
ixe

d R
esi

de
nti

al-
2

UE
MR

 - U
rba

n E
dg

e M
ixe

d R
esi

de
nti

al
UE

MF
 - U

rba
n E

dg
e M

ult
i-F

am
ily

UC
R-1

 - U
rba

n C
ore

 Re
sid

en
tia

l S
ma

ll L
ot

UC
R-2

 - U
rba

n C
ore

 Re
sid

en
tia

l La
rge

 Lo
t

UE
R-1

 - U
rba

n E
dg

e R
esi

de
nti

al S
ma

ll L
ot

UE
R-2

 - U
rba

n E
dg

e R
esi

de
nti

al L
arg

e L
ot

UC
AC

-1 
- U

rba
n C

ore
 Ne

igh
bo

rho
od

 Ac
tivi

ty C
en

ter
UC

AC
-2 

- U
rba

n C
ore

 Co
mm

un
ity 

Ac
tivi

ty C
ent

er
UE

AC
-1 

Urb
an

 Ed
ge 

Co
mm

un
ity 

Act
ivit

y C
en

ter
UC

AC
-3 

Urb
an

 Co
re 

Re
gio

na
l A

cti
vity

 Ce
nte

r
UE

AC
-2 

- U
rba

n E
dg

e R
eg

ion
al 

Act
ivit

y C
en

ter
AC

-1 
- N

eig
hb

orh
oo

d A
cti

vity
 Co

rrid
or

AC
-2 

- C
om

mu
nit

y A
cti

vity
 Co

rrid
or

AC
-3 

- R
eg

ion
al A

cti
vity

 Co
rrid

or
EC

 - E
mp

loy
me

nt 
Ca

mp
us

IND
 - I

nd
ust

ria
l

TU
 - T

ran
spo

rta
tio

n &
 Ut

ilit
ies

SD
-1 

- S
po

rts
/A

mu
sem

en
t D

istr
ict

SD
-2 

- C
ivic

/In
sti

tut
ion

al D
ist

ric
ts

SD
-3 

- C
en

tra
l B

usi
ne

ss 
Dis

tric
t

SD
-4 

- R
ive

rba
nk

s Z
oo

 an
d G

ard
en

SD
-5 

- U
niv

ers
itie

s/C
oll

ege
s 

SD
-6 

- F
ort

 Ja
cks

on

Th
e P

ar
k P

ha
se

 T
hr

ee
 A

. I
nte

rim
 F

LU
: U

ER
-2

SU
BJ

EC
T P

RO
PE

RT
IES

44
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
79



PU
D-

R

PU
D-

R

PU
D-

R

BE
EC

HF
ER

N C
IR

CORDGRASS RD

BRUSHFIELD PARK DR

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
:

Th
e C

ity
 of

 C
olu

mb
ia 

De
par

tm
en

t o
f 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d D
eve

lop
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ces

 
dat

a r
ep

res
en

ted
 on

 th
is 

ma
p o

r p
lan

 
is 

the
 p

rod
uc

t o
f c

om
pil

ati
on

, a
s 

pro
du

ced
 b

y o
the

rs.
  I

t i
s p

rov
ide

d 
for

 in
for

ma
tio

na
l p

urp
ose

s o
nly

 an
d 

the
 C

ity
 o

f 
Co

lum
bia

 m
ake

s 
no

 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 as
 to

 its
 ac

cu
rac

y. 
 Its

 
use

 w
ith

ou
t fi

eld
 ve

rif
ica

tio
n i

s a
t th

e 
sol

e 
ris

k 
of 

the
 

use
r.

Zo
nin

g M
ap

**
 D

AT
A 

SO
UR

CE
 - C

IT
Y O

F 
CO

LU
MB

IA
, G

IS
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f P

lan
nin

g &
 

De
vel

op
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ces

OR
IG

IN
AL

 PR
EP

AR
AT

IO
N/

DA
TE

:
Th

is m
ap

 w
as 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 by
:

Ah
me

d A
bd

ull
ah

Ma
rch

 22
, 2

01
6

D-
1

RS
-1

RS
-1A

RS
-1B

RS
-2

RS
-3

RD RD
-2

RG
-1

RG
-1A

RG
-2

RG
-3

UT
D

MX
-1

MX
-2

C-
1

C-
2

C-
3

C-
3A

C-
4

C-
5

M-
1

M-
2

PU
D-

C
PU

D-
LS

PU
D-

LS
-E

PU
D-

LS
-R

PU
D-

R
OU

T O
F C

ITY
Ft 

Ja
ck

so
n O

ve
rla

y

Th
e P

ar
k, 

Ph
as

e T
hr

ee
 A

ZO
NI

NG
: E

xis
tin

g:
  P

DD
 (C

ou
nt

y);
  P

ro
po

sed
: I

nt
er

im
 P

UD
-R

 (C
ity

)

0
60

12
0

30
Fe

et

Le
ge

nd CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS
PA

RC
EL

S

SU
BJ

EC
T P

RO
PE

RT
IES

44
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
80



44.b

Packet Pg. 281



44
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
82



44.b

Packet Pg. 283



44.b

Packet Pg. 284



44.b

Packet Pg. 285



44
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
86



44.b

Packet Pg. 287



44.b

Packet Pg. 288



44.b

Packet Pg. 289



44
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
90



44.b

Packet Pg. 291



44.b

Packet Pg. 292



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/15/2016 1:27 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.: 2016-086 - Annexing 509 Cordgrass Road, 521 

Cordgrass Road, 531 Cordgrass Road, 1347 Beechfern Circle, 
1361 Beechfern Circle, 1367 Beechfern Circle, 1378 Beechfern 
Circle, 1412 Beechfern Circle, Richland County TMS# 25815-
02-06, 25815-02-09, 25815-02-13, 25815-02-15, 25815-02-17, 
25815-02-18, 25815-01-11 and 25815-01-05 

 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
The Park- Phase 2: 509 Cordgrass Road, 521 Cordgrass Road, 531 Cordgrass Road, 1347 
Beechfern Circle, 1361 Beechfern Circle, 1367 Beechfern Circle, 1378 Beechfern Circle, 1412 
Beechfern Circle; TMS# 25815-02-06, 25815-02-09, 25815-02-13, 25815-02-15, 25815-02-17, 
25815-02-18, 25815-01-11, 25815-01-05 
 
Council District: 4 
 
Proposal: Annex, assign interim Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) Land Use 
Classification and interim zoning of PUD-R. The property is currently classified as 
Neighborhood (Medium Density) by Richland County and zoned PDD by Richland County.  
 
Applicants: Lara M. Druffner, Thomas C. Druffner, Clarence P. Toland, Arleatha M. Toland, 
NVR, Inc., June M. Harper, June Marie Rodriquez, Andre L. Walker, Kristy M. Walker, Gopu 
Rajasekharan, Varsha Pankajakshan, Invested Properties, LLC, 
Michael J. L. Vantooren 
 
Staff Recommendation: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning; Approve 
 
PC Recommendation: 04/04/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning; Approve 
(7-0) 
  

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

45

Packet Pg. 293



Action Item (ID # 2862)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/15/2016 1:27 PM  Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 FT-ANNEX-The Park_Phase 2 (part 2) (PDF) 
 2016-086 annex The Park Ph 2 Woodcreek (PDF) 

45

Packet Pg. 294



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
September 20, 2016 at 6:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 

ANNEXATION, INTERIM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AMENDMENT, AND 
INTERIM ZONING MAP AMENDMENT CASE SUMMARY  

THE PARK- PHASE 2: 509 CORDGRASS ROAD, 521 CORDGRASS ROAD, 531 
CORDGRASS ROAD, 1347 BEECHFERN CIRCLE, 1361 BEECHFERN CIRCLE, 1367 

BEECHFERN CIRCLE, 1378 BEECHFERN CIRCLE, 1412 BEECHFERN CIRCLE; 
TMS# 25815-02-06, 25815-02-09, 25815-02-13, 25815-02-15, 25815-02-17, 25815-02-18, 

25815-01-11, 25815-01-05 
  
 
Council District:  4 
 
Proposal: Annex, assign interim Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) 

Land Use Classification and interim zoning of PUD-R. The property is currently 
classified as Neighborhood (Medium Density) by Richland County and zoned 
PDD by Richland County.  

 
Applicants: Lara M. Druffner, Thomas C. Druffner, Clarence P. Toland, Arleatha M. Toland, 

NVR, Inc., June M. Harper, June Marie Rodriquez, Andre L. Walker, Kristy M. 
Walker, Gopu Rajasekharan, Varsha Pankajakshan, Invested Properties, LLC, 
Michael J. L. Vantooren 

 
Staff Recommendation:    Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning     APPROVE 
PC Recommendation:  04/04/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning   APPROVE (7-0) 
Annexation, 1st Reading: PH 09/20/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning   PENDING 
Annexation, 2nd Reading  10/04/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning   PENDING 
Comp Plan Amendment: 1st Reading: PH 11/15/16: Confirmation of Land Use Classification          PENDING 
Comp Plan Amendment: 2nd Reading 12//2016: Confirmation of Land Use Classification        PENDING 
Map Amendment: 1st Reading: ZPH 11/15/16: Zoning Confirmation                                                      PENDING 
Map Amendment: 2nd Reading     12//2016: Zoning Confirmation                                                      PENDING 
 

CURRENT PARCEL CHARACTERISTICS/CONDITIONS 
 

Acreage: 2.66 acres  
Current Use: Residential lots 
Proposed Use: Residential lots 
Reason for Annexation: Secondary / Municipal Services 
Urban Service Area: Secondary 
Current Richland County Land Use Classification: Neighborhood (Medium Density) 
Proposed Land Use Classification: Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) 
Current Richland County Zoning: Planned Development District (PDD) 
Proposed Zoning: Planned Unit Development – Residential District (PUD-R) 
Census Tract: 114.07  

45.a

Packet Pg. 295



DETERMINATION FOR CITY SERVICES 
 

The following determination is an estimate of the benefits and costs associated with the annexation of the subject 
property.   
 
Police 
We find that the proposed annexations and assumed development will result in an increase number of calls for services 
and will cost the CPD $106.24 annually to provide service. 
 
Fire 
The proposed annexation will not result in additional costs or impact services being provided by this department. 
Annexation would lower the ISO rating of this property to a Class 1 from a Class 2. 
 
Solid Waste 
At this time the property is undeveloped and no service cost would occur.  The cost associated with solid waste service for 
these properties is $187.0 annually per household upon completion. 
 
Engineering 
Because water and sewer lines currently exist in this area and the developer has already installed new infrastructure at the 
time of development, the Utilities and Engineering Division will not incur any costs associated with this annexation. 
There is a tap fee for the property owner when developing a vacant residential lot. 
 
Water Customer Care 
Annexation will result in an approximately 40% reduction in water and sewer service rates for the customer. 
 
Planning & Development Services 
We recommend annexation of this property. The estimated annual City property tax revenue after annexation of these 
properties will generate approximately $4,680.73.  Several of the lots annexed in this section currently have structures on 
them, while three lots are undeveloped. For lots undeveloped the average value of the developed lots was used to 
determine the estimate.   
 
*Estimated City Tax Revenue calculated as: (Tax Value*Tax Rate)*City Millage Rate (.0981)) - (Tax Value*Local 
Option Sales Tax Credit (.002)). 

 
PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 

 
Urban Service Area  

 
Subject parcel is in a “Secondary Area” as identified in the Urban Service Area Map 
 
Principles and Goals of the Urban Service Area 
The Urban Service Area identifies those areas the City of Columbia wishes to provide with urban services.  
Primary emphasis will be given to annexing developed areas adjoining the city limits and “islands” of 
unincorporated territory surrounded by the city.  Primary, secondary, and long-range annexation priorities for 
specific areas may be identified.  Secondary areas may include higher value properties which assist the City in 
achieving a more balanced economic base. 
 
Secondary areas are those areas where the City determines it logical or advantageous to provide services, but 
where all services may not be at optimal levels for annexation at this time. For instance, it may be that the 
property is outside of the generally accepted fire response area, or the storm drainage and/or road system is 
substandard. Annexation in these areas may occur, but a more detailed analysis will need to be accomplished to 
determine the possible impact on revenue. As is stated in the policy, these areas may include “higher value” 
properties that would prove beneficial to revenues. 
  
 
 

45.a

Packet Pg. 296



The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  
Staff recommends that the subject parcel be designated Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) in The 
Columbia Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map. 

 
Urban Edge Residential Large Lot neighborhoods represent many of the City’s older residential neighborhoods in 
the outer areas of the City.  This development type is appropriate as development on remaining large lots or as 
redevelopment in the outer areas of Columbia.  Most of the existing developments occurred after 1950.  Urban 
Edge Residential Large Lot developments generally do not continue the grid and block pattern found in the urban 
neighborhoods, but do tend to have a consistently organized internal street network with loops and 
interconnections. 
 
Primary Types: 

• Single-family Detached 
*Accessory Dwelling Units 
 

Tertiary Types: 
• Single-family Attached 
• Two-family 
• Three-family 
• Small Format Business/Employment  
• Small Format Civic/Institutional 
• Cemeteries & Mausoleums 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcel is not covered by an area plan which has been adopted by the City of Columbia or Richland 
County. 

 
PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY 

 
The subject property is currently zoned Planned Development District (PDD) by Richland County, and surrounding 
parcels are currently zoned PDD by Richland County.  Surrounding parcels within the City of Columbia are zoned 
Planned Unit Development – Residential District (PUD-R). 
 
The proposed City of Columbia zoning district is Planned Unit Development – Residential District (PUD-R). 
 
Planned Unit Development Districts 
(a) Intent. The intent of planned unit development districts is to derive the benefits of efficiency, economy and flexibility 
by encouraging unified development of large sites, while also obtaining the advantage of creative site design, improved 
appearance, compatibility of uses, optimum service by community facilities, and better functioning of vehicular access 
and circulation. It is the intent of this article to allow development of large sites subject to specific regulations concerning 
permitted uses, but only subject to regulations concerning lot area, building coverage, yard spaces and building height 
insofar as the city council shall deem appropriate to fulfill the intent of this article, upon presentation of certification from 
the owners, developers or other parties at interest in the development of such sites that they will adhere to development 
policies which will fulfill the intent of this article. 
(b) Types of districts. Two types of districts accommodating primarily residential or nonresidential uses are created as 
follows: 

(1) PUD-R Planned Unit Development—Residential. The PUD-R district is intended to accommodate residential 
uses, with nonresidential uses integrated into the design of such districts as secondary uses. 
(2) PUD-C Planned Unit Development—Commercial. The PUD-C district is intended to accommodate primarily 
nonresidential uses, with residential uses integrated into the design of such districts as secondary uses. 

(c) Design and planning features. The types of residential dwelling units and the types of nonresidential uses allowed to 
be established in such districts increase with increasing site size of such districts, based upon the premise that increased 
site size will allow proper design, including functional interrelations, buffer treatments separating uses with potentially 
incompatible characteristics of use, design of access patterns, and relationships of uses within such planned unit 
developments with uses in adjacent districts. It is the intent of this article that such design and planning features be 
incorporated properly into any PUD district hereafter created, and that the planning commission and city council shall 

45.a

Packet Pg. 297



consider the existence and appropriateness of such features before any amendment to the zoning map is adopted to create 
such district. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Recommend to City Council annex said land with interim UER-2 land use classification and interim zoning of PUD-R. 
 

45.a

Packet Pg. 298



45.a

Packet Pg. 299



UER-2

BEECHFERN CIR

CORDGRASS RD

BRUSHFIELD PARK DR

GUTHRIE LOOP

MOSSY LN

WO
OD

CR
EEK

 FA
RM

S R
D

THACHER LOOP

OLD NATIONAL HWY

DEER CROSSING RD

BEECHFERN CIR

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:

Leigh DeForth
August 16, 2016

I
0 100 20050

Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

The Park- Phase 2: 509 Cordgrass Road, 521 Cordgrass Road, 531 Cordgrass Road, 1347 Beechfern Circle, 1361 Beechfern 
Circle, 1367 Beechfern Circle, 1378 Beechfern Circle, 1412 Beechfern Circle; TMS#: 25815-02-06, 25815-02-09, 25815-02-13,
25815-02-15, 25815-02-17, 25815-02-18, 25815-01-11, 25815-01-05; 
Existing Richland County FLU: Neighborhood (Medium Density); Proposed FLU: UER-2

45.a

Packet Pg. 300



PUD-R

PUD-R

PUD-R

BEECHFERN CIR

CORDGRASS RD

BRUSHFIELD PARK DR

MOSSY LN

GUTHRIE LOOP

WOODCREEK FARMS RD

OLD NATIONAL HWY

DISCLAIMER:
The City of Columbia Department of 
Planning and Development Services 
data represented on this map or plan 
is the product of compilation, as 
produced by others.  It is provided 
for informational purposes only and 
the City of Columbia makes no 
representation as to its accuracy.  Its 
use without field verification is at the 
sole risk of the user.

Zoning Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:
Leigh DeForth
August 16, 2016

D-1
RS-1
RS-1A
RS-1B
RS-2
RS-3
RD
RD-2
RG-1
RG-1A
RG-2
RG-3
UTD
MX-1
MX-2

C-1
C-2
C-3
C-3A
C-4
C-5
M-1
M-2
PUD-C
PUD-LS
PUD-LS-E
PUD-LS-R
PUD-R
OUT OF CITY

I
0 100 20050 Feet

Legend
CITY LIMITS
PARCELS

The Park- Phase 2: 509 Cordgrass Road, 521 Cordgrass Road, 531 Cordgrass Road, 1347 Beechfern Circle, 1361 Beechfern Circle, 
1367 Beechfern Circle, 1378 Beechfern Circle, 1412 Beechfern Circle; TMS#: 25815-02-06, 25815-02-09, 25815-02-13, 25815-02-15, 
25815-02-17, 25815-02-18, 25815-01-11, 25815-01-05; Existing Zoning (Richland County): PDD; Proposed Zoning: PUD-R

45.a

Packet Pg. 301



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-086 

Annexing 509 Cordgrass Road, 521 Cordgrass Road, 531 Cordgrass Road, 1347 Beechfern Circle, 
1361 Beech fern Circle, 136 7 Beech fern Circle, 13 78 Beech fern Circle, 1412 Beech fern Circle, 

Richland County TMS# 25815-02-06, 25815-02-09, 25815-02-13, 25815-02-15, 25815-02-17, 
25815-02-18, 25815-01-11 and 25815-01-05 

WHEREAS, a proper petition has been filed with the City Council by one hundred (1 00%) 
percent of the property owners of the within described property under the provisions of South Carolina 
Ann. Sec. 5-3-150; and, 

WHEREAS, it appears to City Council that the annexation of the property would be in the best 
interest of the property owners and the City of Columbia; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, this 
_day of , 2016, that the property described herein is hereby annexed to and 
becomes a part of the City of Columbia effective immediately. This property shall be assigned interim 
zoning of PUD-R (Planned Unit Development - Residential District), apportioned to City Council 
District 4, Census Tract 114.07, contains 2.66 acres, and shall be assigned an interim land use 
classification of Urban Edge Residential- Large Lot (UER-2). 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: See Attached Exhibit "A" 

Richland County TMS NO.: 25815-02-06, 25815-02-09, 25815-02-13, 25815-02-15, 
25815-02-17, 25815-02-18, 25815-01-11 and 25815-01-05 

Also included in the territory hereby annexed are all contiguous portions of all public rights of 
way, streets and highways. 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

uty City Attorney 
Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised: 9/7/2016 
1617080317 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

45.b

Packet Pg. 302



EXHIBIT "A" 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-086 

All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, with improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying and being 
near the City of Columbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, containing 0.43 acres, 
more or less, being shown and delineated as Lot 59 on a Final Plat of Woodcreek Farms Section A-11, 
"The Park"- Phase 2, by United Design Services, Inc., dated November 7, 2012, last revised June 24, 
2013, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Richland County in Book 1875, at Page 2256, 
and having such boundaries and measurements as are shown on said plat. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, with improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying and 
being near the City of Columbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, containing 0.47 
acres, more or less, being shown and delineated as Lot 62 on a Final Plat of Woodcreek Farms Section 
A-11, "The Park"- Phase 2, by United Design Services, Inc., dated November 7, 2012, last revised june 
24, 2013, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Richland County in Book 1875, at Page 
2256,and having such boundaries and measurements as are shown on said plat. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with any improvements thereon, if any, 
situate, lying and being in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, and being shown and 
delineated as Lot 65 on a Final Plat of Woodcreek Farms, Section A-11, "The Park - Phase 2," by 
United Design Services, Inc., dated November 7, 2012, as revised, and recorded March 26, 2014, in 
the Office of the Register of Deeds for Richland County in Record Book 1934 at Page 3060, the Plat 
being incorporated by reference for a more complete and accurate description of the property. All 
measurements being a little more or less. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with any improvements thereon, if any, 
situate, lying and being in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, and being shown and 
delineated as Lot 49 on a Final Plat of Woodcreek Farms, Section A-11, "The Park"- Phase 2, by United 
Design Services, Inc., dated November 7, 2012, as revised, and recorded March 26, 2014, in the 
Office of the Register of Deeds for Richland County in Record Book 1934 at Page 3060, The Plat being 
incorporated by reference for a more complete and accurate description of the property. All 
measurements being a little more or less. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, with improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying 
and being near the City of Columbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, containing 
0.28 acres, more or less, being shown and delineated as Lot 51 on a Final Plat of Woodcreek Farms 
Section A-11, "The Park"- Phase 2, by United Design Services, Inc., dated November 7, 2012, last 
revised June 24, 2013, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Richland County in Book 
1875, at Page 2256, and having such boundaries and measurements as are shown on said plat. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with any improvements thereon, if any, 
situate, lying and being in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, and being shown and 

last revised: 9/7/2016 
1617080317 

45.b

Packet Pg. 303



delineated as Lot 52 on a Final Plat of Wood creek Farms, Section A-11, "The Park"- Phase 2 by United 
Design Services, Inc., dated November 7, 2012 as revised and recorded March 26, 2014, in the Office 
of the Register of Deeds for Richland County in Record Book 1934 at Page 3060, the Plat being 
incorporated by reference for a more complete and accurate description of the property. All 
measurements being a little more or less. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with any improvements thereon, situate, 
lying and being in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, and being shown and delineated as 
Lot 43 on a Final Plat of Woodcreek Farms, Section A-11, "The Park, Phase 2, " by United Design 
Services, Inc., dated November 7, 2012, as revised, and recorded March 26, 2014, in the office of the 
Register of Deeds for Richland County in Record Book 1934 at Page 3060, the Plat being incorporated 
herein by reference for a more complete and accurate description of the Property, all measurements 
being a little more or less. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, with improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying and 
being near the City of ColtJmbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, containing 0.34 
acres, more or less, being shown and delineated as Lot 37 on a Final Plat of Woodcreek Farms Section 
A-11, "The Park"- Phase 2, by United Design Services, Inc., dated November 7, 2012, last revised June 
24, 2013, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Richland County in Book 1875, at Page 
2256, and having such boundaries and measurements as shown on said plat. 

Last revised: 9/7/2016 
1617080317 

45.b

Packet Pg. 304



45.b

Packet Pg. 305



45.b

Packet Pg. 306



UE
R-

2

BE
EC

HF
ER

N C
IR

CO
RD

GR
AS

S R
D

BRUSHFIEL
D PARK DR

WOODCREEK FARMS RD

GU
TH

RIE
 LO

OP

MOSSY LN

DEER CROSSING RD

BE
ECH

FER
N C

IR

Fu
tur

e L
an

d U
se 

M
ap

**
 D

AT
A 

SO
UR

CE
 - C

IT
Y O

F 
CO

LU
MB

IA
, G

IS
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f P

lan
nin

g &
 

De
vel

op
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ces

OR
IG

IN
AL

 PR
EP

AR
AT

IO
N/

DA
TE

:
Th

is 
ma

p w
as 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 by
:

Le
igh

 D
eF

ort
h

Au
gu

st 
16

, 2
01

6I
0

75
15

0
37

.5
Fe

et

Le
ge

nd

PA
RC

EL
S

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS

CIT
Y O

F C
OL

UM
BIA

 PL
AN

NIN
G D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T
THI

S M
AP

 IS 
TH

E P
RO

DU
CT 

OF
 CO

MP
ILA

TIO
N,

OR
 WA

S P
RO

DU
CE

D B
Y O

TH
ER

S.  
IT I

S F
OR

INF
OR

MA
TIO

N O
NL

Y A
ND

 TH
E C

ITY
 OF

 CO
LU

MB
IA

MA
KE

S N
O R

EP
RE

SE
NT

ATI
ON

S A
S T

O I
TS

 AC
CU

RA
CY

 
OR

 US
E W

ITH
OU

T F
IEL

D V
ER

IFIC
ATI

ON
 

IS A
T T

HE
 SO

LE 
RIS

K O
F T

HE
 US

ER
.

UC
MR

-1 
- U

rba
n C

ore
 M

ixe
d R

esi
de

nti
al-

1
UC

MR
-2 

- U
rba

n C
ore

 M
ixe

d R
esi

de
nti

al-
2

UE
MR

 - U
rba

n E
dg

e M
ixe

d R
esi

de
nti

al
UE

MF
 - U

rba
n E

dg
e M

ult
i-F

am
ily

UC
R-1

 - U
rba

n C
ore

 Re
sid

en
tia

l S
ma

ll L
ot

UC
R-2

 - U
rba

n C
ore

 Re
sid

en
tia

l La
rge

 Lo
t

UE
R-1

 - U
rba

n E
dg

e R
esi

de
nti

al 
Sm

all 
Lot

UE
R-2

 - U
rba

n E
dg

e R
esi

de
nti

al 
Lar

ge 
Lot

UC
AC

-1 
- U

rba
n C

ore
 Ne

igh
bo

rho
od

 Ac
tivi

ty C
en

ter
UC

AC
-2 

- U
rba

n C
ore

 Co
mm

un
ity 

Ac
tivi

ty C
ent

er
UE

AC
-1 

Urb
an

 Ed
ge

 Co
mm

un
ity 

Ac
tivi

ty C
en

ter
UC

AC
-3 

Urb
an

 Co
re R

eg
ion

al A
cti

vity
 Ce

nte
r

UE
AC

-2 
- U

rba
n E

dg
e R

eg
ion

al A
cti

vity
 Ce

nte
r

AC
-1 

- N
eig

hb
orh

oo
d A

cti
vity

 Co
rrid

or
AC

-2 
- C

om
mu

nit
y A

cti
vity

 Co
rrid

or
AC

-3 
- R

egi
on

al A
cti

vit
y C

orr
ido

r
EC

 - E
mp

loy
me

nt 
Ca

mp
us

IND
 - I

nd
ust

ria
l

TU
 - T

ran
spo

rta
tio

n &
 Ut

ilit
ies

SD
-1 

- S
po

rts
/A

mu
sem

en
t D

ist
ric

t
SD

-2 
- C

ivic
/In

sti
tut

ion
al 

Dis
tric

ts
SD

-3 
- C

en
tra

l B
usi

ne
ss 

Dis
tric

t
SD

-4 
- R

ive
rba

nk
s Z

oo
 an

d G
ard

en
SD

-5 
- U

niv
ers

itie
s/C

oll
eg

es 
SD

-6 
- Fo

rt J
ack

son

Th
e P

ar
k-

 P
ha

se
 2 

(p
ar

tia
l);

 T
M

S#
: 2

58
15

-0
2-

06
, 2

58
15

-0
2-

07
, 2

58
15

-0
2-

09
, 2

58
15

-0
2-

13
, 2

58
15

-0
1-

17
, 2

58
15

-0
2-

15
, 

25
81

5-
01

-1
6, 

25
81

5-
02

-1
6, 

25
81

5-
02

-1
7, 

25
81

5-
01

-1
3, 

25
81

5-
02

-1
8, 

25
81

5-
02

-1
9, 

25
81

5-
01

-1
1, 

25
81

5-
02

-2
0, 

25
81

5-
01

-1
0, 

25
81

5-
01

-0
7, 

25
81

5-
02

-2
2, 

25
81

5-
01

-0
6, 

25
81

5-
02

-2
3, 

25
81

5-
01

-0
5;

 
Ex

ist
in

g R
ich

lan
d C

ou
nt

y F
LU

: N
eig

hb
or

ho
od

 (M
ed

iu
m 

De
ns

ity
); 

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
LU

: U
ER

-2

Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y

45
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
07



PU
D-

R

PU
D-

R

PU
D-

R

BE
EC

HF
ER

N C
IR

CO
RD

GR
AS

S R
D

BRUSHFIELD PARK DR

MOSSY LN

GU
TH

RIE
 LO

OPWOODCREEK FARMS RD

OLD NATIONAL HWY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
:

Th
e C

ity
 of

 C
olu

mb
ia 

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d D
ev

elo
pm

en
t S

erv
ice

s 
da

ta 
rep

res
en

ted
 on

 th
is 

ma
p o

r p
lan

 
is 

the
 p

rod
uc

t o
f 

co
mp

ila
tio

n, 
as 

pro
du

ce
d 

by
 o

the
rs.

  I
t i

s p
rov

ide
d 

for
 in

for
ma

tio
na

l p
urp

ose
s o

nly
 an

d 
the

 C
ity

 o
f 

Co
lum

bia
 m

ak
es 

no
 

rep
res

en
tat

ion
 as

 to
 it

s a
cc

ura
cy

.  
Its

 
use

 w
ith

ou
t fi

eld
 ve

rif
ica

tio
n i

s a
t th

e 
sol

e 
ris

k 
of 

the
 

us
er.

Zo
nin

g M
ap

**
 D

AT
A 

SO
UR

CE
 - C

IT
Y O

F 
CO

LU
MB

IA
, G

IS
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f P

lan
nin

g &
 

De
vel

op
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ces

OR
IG

IN
AL

 PR
EP

AR
AT

IO
N/

DA
TE

:
Th

is 
ma

p w
as 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 by
:

Le
igh

 D
eF

ort
h

Au
gu

st 
16

, 2
01

6

D-
1

RS
-1

RS
-1A

RS
-1B

RS
-2

RS
-3

RD RD
-2

RG
-1

RG
-1A

RG
-2

RG
-3

UT
D

MX
-1

MX
-2

C-
1

C-
2

C-
3

C-
3A

C-
4

C-
5

M-
1

M-
2

PU
D-

C
PU

D-
LS

PU
D-

LS
-E

PU
D-

LS
-R

PU
D-

R
OU

T O
F C

ITY

I
0

10
0

20
0

50
Fe

et

Le
ge

nd CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS
PA

RC
EL

S

Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y

Th
e P

ar
k-

 P
ha

se
 2 

(p
ar

tia
l);

 T
M

S#
: 2

58
15

-0
2-

06
, 2

58
15

-0
2-

07
, 2

58
15

-0
2-

09
, 2

58
15

-0
2-

13
, 2

58
15

-0
1-

17
, 2

58
15

-0
2-

15
, 2

58
15

-0
1-

16
, 

25
81

5-
02

-1
6, 

25
81

5-
02

-1
7, 

25
81

5-
01

-1
3, 

25
81

5-
02

-1
8, 

25
81

5-
02

-1
9, 

25
81

5-
01

-1
1, 

25
81

5-
02

-2
0, 

25
81

5-
01

-1
0, 

25
81

5-
01

-0
7, 

25
81

5-
02

-2
2, 

25
81

5-
01

-0
6, 

25
81

5-
02

-2
3, 

25
81

5-
01

-0
5;

 E
xis

tin
g Z

on
in

g (
Ri

ch
lan

d C
ou

nt
y):

 P
DD

; P
ro

po
se

d Z
on

in
g:

 P
UD

-R
45

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
08



45.b

Packet Pg. 309



45
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
10



45.b

Packet Pg. 311



45.b

P
acket P

g
. 312



45.b

Packet Pg. 313



45
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
14



45.b

Packet Pg. 315



45
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
16



45.b

Packet Pg. 317



45
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
18



45.b

Packet Pg. 319



45
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
20



45.b

Packet Pg. 321



45
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
22



45.b

Packet Pg. 323



45
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
24



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/14/2016 5:18 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No.: 2016-087 - Annexing N/S Deerpark Drive, N/S 

Island View Circle, and Jacobs Mill Pond Road, Richland 
County TMS #28912-02-01, 28912-03-01 and 28900-01-16 

 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
ANNEXATION, INTERIM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AMENDMENT, AND 
INTERIM ZONING MAP AMENDMENT N/S DEERPARK DRIVE, N/S ISLAND VIEW 
CIRCLE, JACOBS MILL POND ROAD, TMS# 28912-02-01, 28912-03-01, 28900-01-16 
 
Council District: 4 
 
Proposal:       Annex, assign an interim land use classification of Urban Edge Residential Large Lot 

(UER-2) and interim zoning of PUD-R,-FP where applicable. The property is currently 
classified as Neighborhood (Medium Density) by Richland County and zoned as PDD by 
Richland County.  

 
Applicant:  Prime Development, LLC / Beaver Lake Limited Partnership 
 
Staff:  Recommendation: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning; Approve 
 
PC Recommendation: 09/12/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning; Approve (6-0) 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 FT-ANNEX-Woodcreek East Woods_Lake B-3 (PDF) 
 2016-087 annex NS Deerpark NS Island View Jacobs Mill Pond Woodcreek (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

46

Packet Pg. 325



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
October 4, 2016 at 6:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 
 

ANNEXATION, INTERIM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AMENDMENT, AND 
INTERIM ZONING MAP AMENDMENT CASE SUMMARY  

N/S DEERPARK DRIVE, N/S ISLAND VIEW CIRCLE, JACOBS MILL POND ROAD, 
TMS# 28912-02-01, 28912-03-01, 28900-01-16 

  
 
Council District:  4 
 
Proposal: Annex, assign an interim land use classification of Urban Edge Residential Large Lot 

(UER-2) and interim zoning of PUD-R, -FP where applicable. The property is currently 
classified as Neighborhood (Medium Density) by Richland County and zoned as PDD by 
Richland County.  

 
Applicant: Prime Development, LLC / Beaver Lake Limited Partnership 
 
Staff Recommendation:           Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning  APPROVE 
 
PC Recommendation:              09/12/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning  APPROVE (6-0) 
Annexation, 1st Reading: PH   09/20/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning   PENDING 
Annexation, 2nd Reading: PH  10/18/16: Annex, Assign Interim Land Use and Interim Zoning   PENDING 
Comp Plan Amend: PH, 1st Reading    11/15/16: Confirm Land Use Classification   PENDING 
Map Amend: ZPH, 1st Reading     11/15/16: Confirm Zoning                                                               PENDING 
Comp Plan Amend: 2st Reading   11/18/16: Confirm Land Use Classification  PENDING 
Map Amend: 2st Reading     11/18/16: Confirm Zoning                                                               PENDING 
 

CURRENT PARCEL CHARACTERISTICS/CONDITIONS 
 

Acreage: 41.62 acres  
Current Use: Vacant land – the property is part of the Woodcreek Farms development agreement and the plan for this 
section has been reviewed by Richland County but the bonded plat will be submitted for review by the City. 
Proposed Use: Single family residential lots 
Reason for Annexation: Secondary / Municipal Services 
Urban Service Area: Secondary 
Current Land Use Classification: Neighborhood / Medium Density (Richland County) 
Proposed Interim Land Use Classification: Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) 
Current Richland County Zoning: Planned Development District (PDD) 
Proposed Interim Zoning: Planned Unit Development – Residential, -Flood Protective Area where applicable (PUD-R, -
FP where applicable) 
Census Tract: 114.07  

46.a

Packet Pg. 326



DETERMINATION FOR CITY SERVICES 
 

The following determination is an estimate of the benefits and costs associated with the annexation of the subject property.  
The property will eventually consist of 37 residential lots and associated open space.   
 
Police 
We find that the proposed annexations and assumed development will result in an increase number of calls for services and 
will cost the CPD $630.46 annually to provide service. 
 
Fire 
The proposed annexation will not result in additional costs or impact services being provided by this department. 
Annexation would lower the ISO rating of this property to a Class 1 from a Class 2. 
 
Solid Waste 
At this time the property is undeveloped and no service cost would occur.  The cost associated with solid waste service for 
these properties is $187.0 annually per household upon completion. 
 
Engineering 
Because water and sewer lines currently exist in this area and the developer will install new infrastructure at the time of 
development, the Utilities and Engineering Division will not incur any costs associated with this annexation. There is a tap 
fee for the property owner. 
 
Water Customer Care 
Annexation will result in an approximately 40% reduction in water and sewer service rates for the customer. 
 
Planning & Development Services 
We recommend annexation of this property. The estimated annual City property tax revenue after annexation occurs and the 
37 lots are built upon (with an estimated taxable value of $665,100 per lot) will generate approximately $43,557.   
 
*Estimated City Tax Revenue calculated as: (Tax Value*Tax Rate)*City Millage Rate (.0981)) - (Tax Value*Local Option 
Sales Tax Credit (.002)). 

 
PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 

 
Urban Service Area  

 
Subject parcel is in a “Secondary Area” as identified in the Urban Service Area Map 
 
Principles and Goals of the Urban Service Area 
The Urban Service Area identifies those areas the City of Columbia wishes to provide with urban services.  Primary 
emphasis will be given to annexing developed areas adjoining the city limits and “islands” of unincorporated 
territory surrounded by the city.  Primary, secondary, and long-range annexation priorities for specific areas may be 
identified.  Secondary areas may include higher value properties which assist the City in achieving a more balanced 
economic base. 
 
Secondary areas are those areas where the City determines it logical or advantageous to provide services, but where 
all services may not be at optimal levels for annexation at this time. For instance, it may be that the property is 
outside of the generally accepted fire response area, or the storm drainage and/or road system is substandard. 
Annexation in these areas may occur, but a more detailed analysis will need to be accomplished to determine the 
possible impact on revenue. As is stated in the policy, these areas may include “higher value” properties that would 
prove beneficial to revenues. 
  
 

46.a

Packet Pg. 327



The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  
Staff recommends that the subject parcel be designated Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) in The 
Columbia Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map. 

 
Urban Edge Residential Large Lot neighborhoods represent many of the City’s older residential neighborhoods in 
the outer areas of the City.  This development type is appropriate as development on remaining large lots or as 
redevelopment in the outer areas of Columbia.  Most of the existing developments occurred after 1950.  Urban 
Edge Residential Large Lot developments generally do not continue the grid and block pattern found in the urban 
neighborhoods, but do tend to have a consistently organized internal street network with loops and 
interconnections. 
 
Primary Types: 

• Single-family Detached 
*Accessory Dwelling Units 
 

Tertiary Types: 
• Single-family Attached 
• Two-family 
• Three-family 
• Small Format Business/Employment  
• Small Format Civic/Institutional 
• Cemeteries & Mausoleums 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcel is not covered by an area plan which has been adopted by the City of Columbia or Richland 
County. 

 
PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY 

 
The parcel is currently zoned Planned Development District (PDD) by Richland County, and surrounding parcels are 
currently zoned PDD by Richland County.  Surrounding parcels within the City of Columbia are zoned Planned Unit 
Development – Residential District (PUD-R), with –Flood Protective Area (-FP) where applicable. 
 
The proposed City of Columbia zoning district is Planned Unit Development – Residential District (PUD-R), with –Flood 
Protective Area (-FP) where applicable. 
 
Planned Unit Development Districts 
(a) Intent. The intent of planned unit development districts is to derive the benefits of efficiency, economy and flexibility by 
encouraging unified development of large sites, while also obtaining the advantage of creative site design, improved 
appearance, compatibility of uses, optimum service by community facilities, and better functioning of vehicular access and 
circulation. It is the intent of this article to allow development of large sites subject to specific regulations concerning 
permitted uses, but only subject to regulations concerning lot area, building coverage, yard spaces and building height 
insofar as the city council shall deem appropriate to fulfill the intent of this article, upon presentation of certification from 
the owners, developers or other parties at interest in the development of such sites that they will adhere to development 
policies which will fulfill the intent of this article. 
(b) Types of districts. Two types of districts accommodating primarily residential or nonresidential uses are created as 
follows: 

(1) PUD-R Planned Unit Development—Residential. The PUD-R district is intended to accommodate residential 
uses, with nonresidential uses integrated into the design of such districts as secondary uses. 
(2) PUD-C Planned Unit Development—Commercial. The PUD-C district is intended to accommodate primarily 
nonresidential uses, with residential uses integrated into the design of such districts as secondary uses. 

46.a

Packet Pg. 328



(c) Design and planning features. The types of residential dwelling units and the types of nonresidential uses allowed to be 
established in such districts increase with increasing site size of such districts, based upon the premise that increased site 
size will allow proper design, including functional interrelations, buffer treatments separating uses with potentially 
incompatible characteristics of use, design of access patterns, and relationships of uses within such planned unit 
developments with uses in adjacent districts. It is the intent of this article that such design and planning features be 
incorporated properly into any PUD district hereafter created, and that the planning commission and city council shall 
consider the existence and appropriateness of such features before any amendment to the zoning map is adopted to create 
such district. 
 
-Flood Protective Area (-FP) 
Certain areas within the city are subject to periodic inundation by floodwater, which results or may reasonably be foreseen 
to result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services and 
extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety and 
general welfare. These hazards are caused or extended in part by the occupancy of flood hazard areas by uses which 
increase flood damage upon other lands or uses which are vulnerable to floods because they are inadequately elevated or 
not otherwise protected from flood damages. It is, therefore, the intent of this article to lessen such hazards or losses by 
restricting or prohibiting uses which are dangerous to health, safety or property in times of flood or which cause excessive 
increases in flood heights or velocities; by requiring that uses vulnerable to floods be protected against flood hazards at the 
time of initial construction; and by controlling filling, grading, mineral extraction, placing of obstructions within flood 
channels and other activities, uses or characteristics of use which may increase flood damage. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends City Council annex said land with interim UER-2 land use classification and interim zoning of PUD-R, -
FP where applicable. 

46.a

Packet Pg. 329



46.a

Packet Pg. 330



UER-2

UER-2

UEMR

DEERPARK DR

ISLAND VIEW CIR

GOLF VIEW BND

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:

Leigh DeForth
August 16, 2016

I
0 200 400100

Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

N/S Deerpark Drive, N/S Island View Circle, Jacobs Mill Pond Road; TMS#: 28912-02-01, 28912-03-01,28900-01-16
Existing Richland County FLU: Neighborhood (Medium Density); Proposed FLU: UER-2

Subject Property

Subject Property

Subject Property

Subject Property

46.a

Packet Pg. 331



PUD-R

PUD-R

PUD-R

DEERPARK DR

ISL
AND VIE

W CIR

GOLF VIEW BND

DISCLAIMER:
The City of Columbia Department of 
Planning and Development Services 
data represented on this map or plan 
is the product of compilation, as 
produced by others.  It is provided 
for informational purposes only and 
the City of Columbia makes no 
representation as to its accuracy.  Its 
use without field verification is at the 
sole risk of the user.

Zoning Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:
Leigh DeForth
August 16, 2016

D-1
RS-1
RS-1A
RS-1B
RS-2
RS-3
RD
RD-2
RG-1
RG-1A
RG-2
RG-3
UTD
MX-1
MX-2

C-1
C-2
C-3
C-3A
C-4
C-5
M-1
M-2
PUD-C
PUD-LS
PUD-LS-E
PUD-LS-R
PUD-R
OUT OF CITY

I
0 200 400100

Feet

Legend
CITY LIMITS
PARCELS

Special Flood Hazard Area

N/S Deerpark Drive, N/S Island View Circle, Jacobs Mill Pond Road; TMS#: 28912-02-01, 28912-03-01, 28900-01-16
Existing Zoning (Richland County): PDD; Proposed Zoning: PUD-R, -FP

Subject Property

Subject Property

Subject Property

Subject Property

46.a

Packet Pg. 332



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-087 

Annexing N!S Deerpark Drive, N!S Island View Circle, and jacobs Mill Pond Road, 
Richland County TMS# 28912-02-01, 28912-03-01 and 28900-01-16 

WHEREAS, a proper petition has been filed with the City Council by one hundred (1 00%) 
percent of the property owners of the within described property under the provisions of South Carolina 
Ann. Sec. 5-3-150; and, 

WHEREAS, it appears to City Council that the annexation of the property would be in the best 
interest of the property owners and the City of Columbia; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, this 
_ day of , 2016, that the property described herein is hereby annexed to and 
becomes a part of the City of Columbia effective immediately. This property shall be assigned interim 
zoning of PUD-R and -FP (Planned Unit Development - Residential District and -Flood Protective 
Area), apportioned to City Council District 4, Census Tract 114.07, contains 41.62 acres, and shall be 
assigned an interim land use classification of Urban Edge Residential- Large Lot (UER-2). 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: See Attached Exhibit "A" 

Richland County TMS NO.: 28912-02-01, 28912-03-01 and 28900-01-16 

Also included in the territory hereby annexed are all contiguous portions of all public rights of 
way, streets and highways. 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 
., 

City Attorney 
Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

last revised: 9/9/2016 
1617080326 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

46.b

Packet Pg. 333



EXHIBIT "A" 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-087 

All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying 
and being located near the City of Columbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, 
consisting of approximately 13.39 acres, and designated as Woodcreek Farms Development, Area B2 
on a plat prepared for Woodcreek Development, LLC by United Design Services, Inc., dated October 
29, 2012 (the "Plat") and recorded in the Office of the Richland County ROD in Book 1820, Page 529, 
the plat being incorporated by reference for a more complete description of the property. 

ALSO: All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, together with improvements thereon, if any, situate, 
lying and being located near the City of Columbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, 
consisting of approximately 25.85 acres, and designated as Woodcreek Farms Development, Area B3 
on a plat prepared for Woodcreek Development, LLC by United Design Services, Inc., dated October 
29, 2012 (the "Plat") and recorded in the Office of the Richland County ROD in Book 1820, Page 529, 
the plat being incorporated by reference for a more complete description of the property. 

ALSO: All that piece, parcel or lot of land, with improvements thereon, if any, situate, lying and being 
near the City of Columbia, in the County of Richland, State of South Carolina, containing 2.38 acres, 
more or less, and shown and designated as block 01, lot 16 on Richland County Tax Map 28900. Said 
parcel having such boundaries and measurements as are shown on said tax map. 

Last revised: 9/9/2016 
1617080326 

46.b

Packet Pg. 334



46.b

Packet Pg. 335



46
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
36



UE
R-

2

UE
R-

2

UE
MR

DEERPARK DR

ISL
AN

D V
IEW

 CIR

GOLF V
IEW BND

Fu
tur

e L
an

d U
se 

M
ap

**
 D

AT
A 

SO
UR

CE
 - C

IT
Y O

F 
CO

LU
MB

IA
, G

IS
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f P

lan
nin

g &
 

De
vel

op
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ces

OR
IG

IN
AL

 PR
EP

AR
AT

IO
N/

DA
TE

:
Th

is 
ma

p w
as 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 by
:

Le
igh

 D
eF

ort
h

Au
gu

st 
16

, 2
01

6I
0

20
0

40
0

10
0

Fe
et

Le
ge

nd

PA
RC

EL
S

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS

CIT
Y O

F C
OL

UM
BIA

 PL
AN

NIN
G D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T
THI

S M
AP

 IS 
TH

E P
RO

DU
CT 

OF
 CO

MP
ILA

TIO
N,

OR
 WA

S P
RO

DU
CE

D B
Y O

TH
ER

S.  
IT I

S F
OR

INF
OR

MA
TIO

N O
NL

Y A
ND

 TH
E C

ITY
 OF

 CO
LU

MB
IA

MA
KE

S N
O R

EP
RE

SE
NT

ATI
ON

S A
S T

O I
TS

 AC
CU

RA
CY

 
OR

 US
E W

ITH
OU

T F
IEL

D V
ER

IFIC
ATI

ON
 

IS A
T T

HE
 SO

LE 
RIS

K O
F T

HE
 US

ER
.

UC
MR

-1 
- U

rba
n C

ore
 M

ixe
d R

esi
de

nti
al-

1
UC

MR
-2 

- U
rba

n C
ore

 M
ixe

d R
esi

de
nti

al-
2

UE
MR

 - U
rba

n E
dg

e M
ixe

d R
esi

de
nti

al
UE

MF
 - U

rba
n E

dg
e M

ult
i-F

am
ily

UC
R-1

 - U
rba

n C
ore

 Re
sid

en
tia

l S
ma

ll L
ot

UC
R-2

 - U
rba

n C
ore

 Re
sid

en
tia

l La
rge

 Lo
t

UE
R-1

 - U
rba

n E
dg

e R
esi

de
nti

al 
Sm

all 
Lot

UE
R-2

 - U
rba

n E
dg

e R
esi

de
nti

al 
Lar

ge 
Lot

UC
AC

-1 
- U

rba
n C

ore
 Ne

igh
bo

rho
od

 Ac
tivi

ty C
en

ter
UC

AC
-2 

- U
rba

n C
ore

 Co
mm

un
ity 

Ac
tivi

ty C
ent

er
UE

AC
-1 

Urb
an

 Ed
ge

 Co
mm

un
ity 

Ac
tivi

ty C
en

ter
UC

AC
-3 

Urb
an

 Co
re R

eg
ion

al A
cti

vity
 Ce

nte
r

UE
AC

-2 
- U

rba
n E

dg
e R

eg
ion

al A
cti

vity
 Ce

nte
r

AC
-1 

- N
eig

hb
orh

oo
d A

cti
vity

 Co
rrid

or
AC

-2 
- C

om
mu

nit
y A

cti
vity

 Co
rrid

or
AC

-3 
- R

egi
on

al A
cti

vit
y C

orr
ido

r
EC

 - E
mp

loy
me

nt 
Ca

mp
us

IND
 - I

nd
ust

ria
l

TU
 - T

ran
spo

rta
tio

n &
 Ut

ilit
ies

SD
-1 

- S
po

rts
/A

mu
sem

en
t D

ist
ric

t
SD

-2 
- C

ivic
/In

sti
tut

ion
al 

Dis
tric

ts
SD

-3 
- C

en
tra

l B
usi

ne
ss 

Dis
tric

t
SD

-4 
- R

ive
rba

nk
s Z

oo
 an

d G
ard

en
SD

-5 
- U

niv
ers

itie
s/C

oll
eg

es 
SD

-6 
- Fo

rt J
ack

son

N/
S D

ee
rp

ar
k D

riv
e, 

N/
S 

Isl
an

d V
iew

 C
irc

le,
 Ja

co
bs

 M
ill

 P
on

d R
oa

d;
 T

M
S#

: 2
89

12
-0

2-
01

, 2
89

12
-0

3-
01

,28
90

0-
01

-1
6

Ex
ist

in
g R

ich
lan

d C
ou

nt
y F

LU
: N

eig
hb

or
ho

od
 (M

ed
iu

m 
De

ns
ity

); 
Pr

op
os

ed
 F

LU
: U

ER
-2

Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y

Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y

Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y

Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y

46
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
37



PU
D-

R

PU
D-

R

PU
D-

R

DEERPARK DR

ISLAND VIEW CIR

GOLF VIEW BND

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
:

Th
e C

ity
 of

 C
olu

mb
ia 

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d D
ev

elo
pm

en
t S

erv
ice

s 
da

ta 
rep

res
en

ted
 on

 th
is 

ma
p o

r p
lan

 
is 

the
 p

rod
uc

t o
f 

co
mp

ila
tio

n, 
as 

pro
du

ce
d 

by
 o

the
rs.

  I
t i

s p
rov

ide
d 

for
 in

for
ma

tio
na

l p
urp

ose
s o

nly
 an

d 
the

 C
ity

 o
f 

Co
lum

bia
 m

ak
es 

no
 

rep
res

en
tat

ion
 as

 to
 it

s a
cc

ura
cy

.  
Its

 
use

 w
ith

ou
t fi

eld
 ve

rif
ica

tio
n i

s a
t th

e 
sol

e 
ris

k 
of 

the
 

us
er.

Zo
nin

g M
ap

**
 D

AT
A 

SO
UR

CE
 - C

IT
Y O

F 
CO

LU
MB

IA
, G

IS
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f P

lan
nin

g &
 

De
vel

op
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ces

OR
IG

IN
AL

 PR
EP

AR
AT

IO
N/

DA
TE

:
Th

is 
ma

p w
as 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 by
:

Le
igh

 D
eF

ort
h

Au
gu

st 
16

, 2
01

6

D-
1

RS
-1

RS
-1A

RS
-1B

RS
-2

RS
-3

RD RD
-2

RG
-1

RG
-1A

RG
-2

RG
-3

UT
D

MX
-1

MX
-2

C-
1

C-
2

C-
3

C-
3A

C-
4

C-
5

M-
1

M-
2

PU
D-

C
PU

D-
LS

PU
D-

LS
-E

PU
D-

LS
-R

PU
D-

R
OU

T O
F C

ITY

I
0

20
0

40
0

10
0

Fe
et

Le
ge

nd CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS
PA

RC
EL

S

Sp
ec

ial
 Fl

oo
d H

az
ard

 Ar
ea

N/
S D

ee
rp

ar
k D

riv
e, 

N/
S 

Isl
an

d V
iew

 C
irc

le,
 Ja

co
bs

 M
ill

 P
on

d R
oa

d;
 T

M
S#

: 2
89

12
-0

2-
01

, 2
89

12
-0

3-
01

, 2
89

00
-0

1-
16

Ex
ist

in
g Z

on
in

g (
Ri

ch
lan

d C
ou

nt
y):

 P
DD

; P
ro

po
se

d Z
on

in
g: 

PU
D-

R,
 -F

P

Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y

Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y

Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y

46
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
38



46.b

Packet Pg. 339



46
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
40



46.b

Packet Pg. 341



46.b

Packet Pg. 342



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/14/2016 5:20 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Resolution R-2016-069 - Adopting the All Natural Hazards 

Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plan for the Central Midlands 
Region of South Carolina Update 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Memo_HMP 2016 Update Final (PDF) 
 R-2016-069 Adopt Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

47

Packet Pg. 343



 

 

               1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 • Phone: 803-545-3020 • Fax: 803-343-8719 

To:  Teresa Wilson, City Manager 

From: Harry N. Tinsley, Emergency Management Director 

Date:  September 13, 2016 

Re:  2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan (HMP) Update 

 
The 2016 update of the Hazard Mitigation Plan for Central Midlands has been completed and 
is now ready to be adopted by City Council. 
 
The Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) is the lead agency to coordinate the 
revision, and just recently completed the update.  The CMCOG is made up of local jurisdictions 
and stakeholders from our region which includes Fairfield, Lexington, Newberry and Richland 
counties. 
 
The Hazard Mitigation Plan is an assessment of the hazards and historical impacts within our 
area, and allows jurisdictions to identify and prioritize mitigation strategies.  It is a 
requirement of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), and as part of the 
Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 for all counties (and municipalities) to create and maintain a 
Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 
A FEMA approved and locally adopted Hazard Mitigation Plan (HMP) is a requirement to 
solicit funds under the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP).  It is also a requisite for 
obtaining other federal grants such as Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) and Flood Mitigation 
Assistance (FMA) grants. 
 
The last plan update was in 2011, and was adopted by City Council in February 2012.  The plan 
is updated every five-years.   
 
Having the 2011 HMP previously adopted by City Council allowed the City to submit for Public 
Assistance (PA) funding for the reimbursement of actual damages resulting from the October 
2015 storm. To remain compliant for continued obligations through the FEMA process, the 
City will need to adopt the updated 2016 HMP. 
 
Below is a link to the updated HMP: 
https://drive.google.com/a/centralmidlands.org/file/d/0B1uhyKbzntgea1M1SnhScXdCZU0/view 
 

47.a

Packet Pg. 344

https://drive.google.com/a/centralmidlands.org/file/d/0B1uhyKbzntgea1M1SnhScXdCZU0/view


RESOLUTION NO.: R-2016-069 

Adopting the All Natural Hazards Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plan for the 
Central Midlands Region of South Carolina Update 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia, South Carolina ("Columbia") recognizes the threat that natural 
hazards pose to people and property; and, 

WHEREAS, undertaking hazard mitigation actions before disasters occur will reduce the potential for 
harm to people and property and save taxpayer dollars; and, 

WHEREAS, an adopted all hazards mitigation plan is required as a condition of future grant funding of 
mitigation projects; and, 

WHEREAS, Columbia participated jointly in the planning process with the other units of government in 
the Central Midlands region of South Carolina to prepare an all hazards mitigation plan; and, 

WHEREAS, Columbia is aware that revision and updating of the plan is critical for active and effective 
hazard mitigation and that Columbia will monitor and record hazard related data and events that can be used 
to update the all natural hazards mitigation plan; and, 

WHEREAS, since the completion of All Natural Hazards Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plan for the 
Central Midlands Region was completed, Columbia has become concerned that earthquakes pose a more 
serious threat to the community and environs and that a detailed earthquake assessment should be completed; 
NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia, South Carolina this_ day 
of , 2016, that the City of Columbia hereby adopts the update to the All Natural Hazards Risk 
Assessment and Mitigation Plan for the Central Midlands Region as an official plan and will undertake annual 
recording of hazard events, their impact, duration, and any expenditures made to remediate hazard events. 

Requested by: 

Senior Assistant City Manager Baker 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

In roduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised: 9/9/2016 
1617090534 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

47.b

Packet Pg. 345



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/19/2016 12:55 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Legal 
 
FROM: Shari Ardis, Legal Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Resolution No.:  R-2016-070 - Committing the City of 

Columbia to Providing a Local Match for a Municipal 
Association of South Carolina Hometown Economic 
Development Grant 

 
BUSINESS PROGRAM: Female Business Enterprise 
 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 R-2016-070 MASC Grant Match (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

48

Packet Pg. 346



RESOLUTION NO.: R-2016-070 

Committing the City of Columbia to Providing a Local Match for a 
Municipal Association of South Carolina Hometown Economic Development Grant 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, this_ day 

of September 2016, that the City of Columbia hereby commits to provide a local cash\in-kind match of at least 

Three Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty and No/100 ($3,750.00) Dollars, which equals the minimum fifteen 

(15%) percent local match required by the Municipal Association of South Carolina, to support the City's 

application for a Twenty-five Thousand and No/1 00 ($25,000.00) Dollars Hometown Economic Development 

Grant. These grant and local matching funds will be used for the CEZ, Inc., Small Business Economic 

Development Program. This resolution is made in regard to the submission of an application for Hometown 

Economic Development Grant funds to the Municipal Association of South Carolina due on or before 

September 30, 2016. 

Requested by: 

City Manager 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

Final Reading: 

Last revised: 9/19/2016\ 
1617090606 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

48.a

Packet Pg. 347



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/12/2016 11:56 AM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Community Development 
 
FROM: Gloria Saeed, Interim Director 

 
SUBJECT: 2015 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report - 

Ms. Gloria Saeed, Interim Director of Community 
Development 

 
PRESENTER: Gloria Saeed 

 
CLEAN WATER 2020?: No 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS: Invest in Infrastructure 
 
We are requesting to have the attached DRAFT 2015 Consolidated Annual Performance 
Evaluation Report (CAPER) presented to City Council and to hold the final Public Hearing for 
the 2015 CAPER Performance Review process at the September 20, 2016 City Council meeting.   
 
A brief PowerPoint presentation will be given before City Council is asked to approve the final 
2015 CAPER Draft for submission to HUD along with all citizen comments received during the 
30-day comment period.  
 
Please contact me at 545-3766 or Dollie Bristow at 545-3371 or ddbristow@columbiasc.net 
<mailto:ddbristow@columbiasc.net> if you have any questions regarding this information. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Memo City Council Agenda 2015 CAPER 090916 (PDF) 
 2015 CAPER Draftv2-090816 (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

49

Packet Pg. 348



 
 
 
 

 
INTER OFFICE MEMORANDUM 

 
 
DATE: September 9, 2016 
 
TO:   Erika Moore, City Clerk  
  Missy Gentry, Assistant City Manager 
 
FROM:  Gloria Saeed, Community Development Interim Director 
 
SUBJECT: Request for City Council Agenda - September 20, 2016 – Community Development 

DRAFT 2015 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER)/Final 
Public Hearing   

 
We are requesting to have the attached DRAFT 2015 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation 
Report (CAPER) presented to City Council and to hold the final Public Hearing for the 2015 CAPER 
Performance Review process at the September 20, 2016 City Council meeting.   
 
A brief PowerPoint presentation will be given before City Council is asked to approve the final 2015 
CAPER Draft be submitted to HUD along with all citizen comments received during the 30-day 
comment period.  
 
Please contact me at 545-3766 or Dollie Bristow at 545-3371 or ddbristow@columbiasc.net if you have 
any questions regarding this information. 
 
Thank you. 

49.a

Packet Pg. 349

mailto:ddbristow@columbiasc.net


 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 1 

 

  

 

Consolidated Annual Performance and 

Evaluation Report (CAPER) 

DRAFT 

2015  
 
City of Columbia  
Community Development Department 
1225 Lady Street, Suite 102 
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 
Phone: (803) 545-3373 
Fax: (803) 255-8912 

www.columbiasc.net 

 

  

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 350

http://www.columbiasc.net/


 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 2 

 

Columbia City Council 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Honorable Stephen K. Benjamin 
Mayor 

 
Council Members 

 

Honorable Sam Davis, District 1 
Honorable Tameika Isaac-Devine, At-Large 

Honorable Leona Plaugh, District 4 
Honorable Howard E. Duvall, Jr., District 2 

Honorable Edward H. McDowell, Jr., At-Large 
Honorable Moe Baddourah, District 3 

 
 

Teresa Wilson 
City Manager 

 

Gloria Saeed 
Interim Community Development Director 

49.b

Packet Pg. 351



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 3 

 

Contents 
CR-05 - Goals and Outcomes ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

CR-15 - Resources and Investments 91.520(a) ........................................................................................................................................................ 14 

CR-20 - Affordable Housing 91.520(b) ..................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

CR-25 - Homeless and Other Special Needs 91.220(d, e); 91.320(d, e); 91.520(c) ................................................................................................. 23 

CR-30 - Public Housing 91.220(h); 91.320(j) ............................................................................................................................................................ 28 

CR-35 - Other Actions 91.220(j)-(k); 91.320(i)-(j) (UNDER REVISION) ..................................................................................................................... 30 

CR-40 - Monitoring 91.220 and 91.230 .................................................................................................................................................................... 34 

CR-45 - CDBG 91.520(c) ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 37 

CR-50 - HOME 91.520(d) .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 38 

CR-55 - HOPWA 91.520(e) ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 42 

49.b

Packet Pg. 352



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 4 

 

 

CR-05 - Goals and Outcomes 

Progress the jurisdiction has made in carrying out its strategic plan and its action plan.  91.520(a)  
 

The Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) is an end-of-year requirement of the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The purpose of the CAPER is to provide an overall evaluation of federally-funded activities 
and accomplishments to HUD and the community. The performance report was prepared with public review and comment for Fiscal 
Year 2015-2016 CAPER and was submitted electronically to HUD via the Integrated Disbursement and Information System (IDIS) on 
September 28, 2016. 
 
IDIS is the reporting system for the following formula grant programs: 
 
• Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
• HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) 
• Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) 
 
During FY2015-2016, the City of Columbia is reporting on the outcomes of four (4) priority needs and thirteen (13) major goals and 
progress made through various projects and activities carried out throught the strategic and annual action plan.  

Priority Needs 

1) Improving Affordable Housing 

2) Expanding Economic Opportunities 

3) Providing for Suitable Living Environments  

4) Improving the Capacity of Area Housing & Community Service Providers 

 

Goals Summary Information  

1) Provide Homebuyer Opportunities 

49.b

Packet Pg. 353



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 5 

 

2) Increase and Improve the Supply of Affordable Rental Housing 

3) Assist Homeowners with Needed Repairs 

4) Provide for Special Needs Housing Opportunities 

5) Promote Fair Housing 

6) Provide Support to New and Expanding Businesses 

7) Provide Job Training and Job Placement Services 

8) Improve Access to Economic Opportunities 

9) Improve Access to Housing Opportunities 

10) Decrease Vacancy and Blight 

11) Reduce Hazards in Homes, including Lead-Based Paint, Mold, and Asbestos 

12) Improve the Availability of Public Services and Facilities 

13) Increase Capacity of Housing and Service Providers  

 
Comparison of the proposed versus actual outcomes for each outcome measure submitted with the consolidated plan and 
explain, if applicable, why progress was not made toward meeting goals and objectives.  91.520(g) 
Categories, priority levels, funding sources and amounts, outcomes/objectives, goal outcome indicators, units of measure, targets, actual 
outcomes/outputs, and percentage completed for each of the grantee’s program year goals. 

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 354



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 6 

 

Goal Category Source/Amoun
t 

Indicator Unit of 
Measure 

Expecte
d 

Stategic 
Plan 

 

Actual 
Strategi
c Plan 

% 
Completed 

Expected 
Annual 

Plan 

Actual 
Annual 

Plan 

% 
Completed 

Assist 

Homeow

ners with 

Needed 

Repairs 

Affordable 

Housing 
 CDBG/ 

Homeowner 

Housing 

Rehabilitated 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

100 7 7% 25 7 28.00% 

Improve 

Access to 

Economic 

Opportun

ities 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 CDBG/ 

Public service 

activities other 

than 

Low/Moderate 

Income 

Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
1000 150 15% 250 150 60.00% 

Improve 

Access to 

Economic 

Opportun

ities 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 CDBG/ 
Businesses 

assisted 

Businesses 

Assisted 
100 13% 0.00% 25 13 0.00% 

Improve 

Access to 

Housing 

Opportun

ities 

Affordable 

Housing 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 

CDBG/HOME/

General Fund 

Public service 

activities for 

Low/Moderate 

Income 

Housing 

Benefit 

Households 

Assisted 
2500 10% 0.00% 500 250 50%0% 

49.b

Packet Pg. 355



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 7 

 

Improve 

Services, 

Facilities, 

& 

Infrastruct

ure 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 CDBG/ 

Public Facility 

or 

Infrastructure 

Activities other 

than 

Low/Moderate 

Income 

Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
2500 20% 0.00% 500 500 100.00% 

Improve 

Services, 

Facilities, 

& 

Infrastruct

ure 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 CDBG/ 

Public service 

activities other 

than 

Low/Moderate 

Income 

Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
2500 20% 0.00% 500 500 100.00% 

Increase 

and 

Improve 

Affordable 

Rental 

Supply 

Affordable 

Housing 

Homeless 

 HOME/ 
Rental units 

constructed 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

100 0 0.00% 20 0 0.00% 

Increase 

and 

Improve 

Affordable 

Rental 

Supply 

Affordable 

Housing 

Homeless 

 HOPWA/ 
Rental units 

rehabilitated 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

100 3% 0.00% 20 3 15.00% 

49.b

Packet Pg. 356



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 8 

 

Increase 

Capacity 

of Service 

Providers 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 CDBG/HOME 

Public service 

activities other 

than 

Low/Moderate 

Income 

Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
2500 321 12.84% 500 321 64.20% 

Increase 

Capacity 

of Service 

Providers 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 CDBG/ 

Public service 

activities for 

Low/Moderate 

Income 

Housing 

Benefit 

Households 

Assisted 
500 321 46.20% 100 231 231.00% 

Promote 

Fair 

Housing 

Affordable 

Housing 
 CDBG/ 

Public service 

activities for 

Low/Moderate 

Income 

Housing 

Benefit 

Households 

Assisted 
2500 431 17.24% 500 431 86.20% 

Provide 

for 

Special 

Needs 

Housing 

Opportuni

ties 

Affordable 

Housing 
 HOPWA/ 

Tenant-based 

rental 

assistance / 

Rapid 

Rehousing 

Households 

Assisted 
530 105 19.81% 106 105 99.06% 

49.b

Packet Pg. 357



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 9 

 

Provide 

for 

Special 

Needs 

Housing 

Opportun

ities 

Affordable 

Housing 

 General 

Funds/ 

Homeless 

Person 

Overnight 

Shelter 

Persons 

Assisted 
250 50 20.00% 50 50 100.00% 

Provide 

for 

Special 

Needs 

Housing 

Opportun

ities 

Affordable 

Housing 
 CDBG/ 

Homelessness 

Prevention 

Persons 

Assisted 
750 43 5.73% 150 43 28.67% 

Provide 

for 

Special 

Needs 

Housing 

Opportun

ities 

Affordable 

Housing 
 HOPWA/ 

Housing for 

People with 

HIV/AIDS 

added 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

200 3 1.5% 40 3 7.50% 

Provide 

for 

Special 

Needs 

Housing 

Opportun

ities 

Affordable 

Housing 
 HOPWA/ 

HIV/AIDS 

Housing 

Operations 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

50 1.0% 0.00% 50 5 10.00% 

49.b

Packet Pg. 358



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 10 

 

Provide 

Homebuy

er 

Opportuni

ties 

Affordable 

Housing 
 HOME/ 

Homeowner 

Housing Added 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

50 7 1.43% 10 7 70.00% 

Provide 

Homebuy

er 

Opportuni

ties 

Affordable 

Housing 
 CDBG/HOME/ 

Direct Financial 

Assistance to 

Homebuyers 

Households 

Assisted 
100 25 25.00% 20 25 125.00% 

Provide 

Job 

Training & 

Job 

Placement 

Services 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 CDBG/ 

Public service 

activities other 

than 

Low/Moderate 

Income 

Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
500 435 87.00% 100 435 435.00% 

Provide 

Job 

Training & 

Job 

Placement 

Services 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 CDBG/ 
Jobs 

created/retained 
Jobs 50 0 0.00% 15 0 0.00% 

Provide 

Job 

Training & 

Job 

Placement 

Services 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 CDBG 
Businesses 

assisted 

Businesses 

Assisted 
50 13 26.00% 10 13 130.00% 

49.b

Packet Pg. 359



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 11 

 

Provide 

Support to 

New and 

Expanding 

Businesses 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 CDBG/ 
Jobs 

created/retained 
Jobs 60 13 21.67% 15 13 86.67% 

Provide 

Support to 

New and 

Expanding 

Businesses 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

  
Businesses 

assisted 

Businesses 

Assisted 
100 15 15.00% 20 15 75.00% 

Reduce 

Hazards 

in Homes 

Affordable 

Housing 
  

Homeowner 

Housing Added 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

25 7 28.00% 25 7 28.00% 

Reduce 

Hazards 

in Homes 

Affordable 

Housing 
  

Homeowner 

Housing 

Rehabilitated 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

60 10 16.67% 15 10 66.67% 

Reduce 

Vacancy 

and 

Blight 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

  
Buildings 

Demolished 
Buildings 50 0 0.00% 10 0 0.00% 

Reduce 

Vacancy 

and 

Blight 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

  

Housing Code 

Enforcement/F

oreclosed 

Property Care 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

50 12 24.00% 10 12 120.00% 

Table 1 - Accomplishments – Program Year & Strategic Plan to Date 

 

Assess how the jurisdiction’s use of funds, particularly CDBG, addresses the priorities and specific objectives identified in the plan, 

giving special attention to the highest priority activities identified. 

The City’s FY 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan and FY 2015-16 Action Plan identified the four (4) priority need areas:  (1) Improving Affordable 

49.b

Packet Pg. 360



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 12 

 

Housing Options, (2) Expanding Economic Opportunities, (3) Providing for Suitable Living Environments, (4)  Improving the Capacity 

of Area Housing & Community Service Providers.  These funding priorities were established based on the housing and community 

development needs identified through public and stakeholder input, the housing market analysis and the analysis of special 

populations. All of the proposed funding priorities serve low- and moderate-income households in the City of Columbia. In addition, 

the activities served special needs populations including: seniors, persons with disabilities, persons experiencing homelessness and 

at risk of homelessness, persons living with HIV/AIDS, at risk children and youth, housing authority residents, and persons returning 

to the community from correctional institutions and/or with criminal histories. 

49.b

Packet Pg. 361



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 13 

 

CR-10 - Racial and Ethnic composition of families assisted 

Describe the families assisted (including the racial and ethnic status of families assisted). 

91.520(a)  

Fiscal Year 2015 

RACE CDBG HOME HOPWA 
White 26 4 66 

Black or African American 446 25 583 

Asian 1 0 2 

American Indian or American Native 0 0 1 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Total 473 29 652 

Hispanic 0 0 1 

Not Hispanic 473 29 653 

Table 2 – Table of assistance to racial and ethnic populations by source of funds 

 

-Source of CDBG and HOME data is the City of Columbia Community Development Department. 

Data reflects IDIS default values. 

 

Narrative 

The City of Columbia identifies priority needs and offers services and programs to eligible 

households regardless of race or ethnicity. The table on this page depicts counts for Fiscal Year 

2015 by fund source. 

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 362



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 14 

 

CR-15 - Resources and Investments 91.520(a) 

Identify the resources made available 

Source of Funds Source Resources Made 
Available 

Amount Expended 
During Program Year 

CDBG Federal 3,600,000 1,811,145 

HOME Federal 1,700,000 1,490,204 

HOPWA Federal 4,800,000 1,039,424 

Table 3 – Resources Made Available 

Narrative 
 

During program year 2015, the City of Columbia Community Development Department 
administered CDBG funds through an altered Notice of Funds Available (NOFA) process due to 
the 2015 October Flood Disaster.  The process was to address immediate needs of individuals 
and communities impacted by th e flood.  The actual amount available for CDBG was 
$3,600,000 and the actual amount expended was $1,811,145 which is reflected in the table, 
and will include all expenditures through September 30, 2016. The actual amount available for 
HOME was $1,700,000 and actual amount expended was $1,490,204   which is reflected in the 
table, and will include all expenditures through September 30, 2016. The actual amount 
available for HOPWA was $4,80,000, and actual amount expended was $1,039,424 which is 
reflected in the table.     

Program income funds were designated for City public-use projects and were used prior to 
expending entitlement funds.  Also, approximately a total of $650,000 in HOME program 
income was designated to complete the eligible activities in the Annual Action Plan year.   

 Over ninety-eight (98%) percent of the funds were expended within the targeted 
redevelopment areas. The city also used private matching dollars for the required HOME match 
for the homebuyer assistance program. CDBG funding actually made up 35.64%, HOPWA made 
up 47.52% and HOME made up 16.83% of the overall source of entitlement funding available to 
the City of Columbia for the 2015-2016 fiscal year.   

 

 

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 363



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 15 

 

Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments 

Target Area Planned 
Percentage of 

Allocation 

Actual Percentage of 
Allocation 

Narrative Description 

Booker Washington Heights 
Redevelopment Area 

0.0% 0.0% n/a 

Eau Claire Redevelopment 
Area 

15.88% 
 

 
Incomplete 

Street Project, St. 
Lawrence Place, Ice 

House Project 

King/Lyon Street 
Redevelopment Area 

0.0% 0.0% n/a 

Edisto Court Redevelopment 
Area 

10.27% 0.0% Street Disaster  
Recovery Project 

Belevedere Redevelopment 
Area 

0.0% 0.0% n/a 

Brandon Acres-Cedar Terrace 
Redevelopment Area 

0.0% 0.0% n/a 

City-Wide 
 

43.73% 

 
 

Incomplete 

Administration, Public 
Services, Demolition, 

Board-out Project, 
Youth Homeless 

Prevention 

Flood Recovery Area 
 

26.01% 
 

Incomplete 
Street Disaster 

Recovery, Disaster 
Recovery Loan Fund 

NSRA 
 

4.10% 
 

Incomplete 
 

Façade Improvement 
Program 

Table 4 – Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments 
 

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 364



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 16 

 

 

 

Narrative 

The City of Columbia’s primary geographic distribution is citywide in which 44% of funding was 

allocated. However, the City prioritized using its federal funds in neighborhoods with the 

highest concentration of need for affordable housing and economic development:  Eau Claire 

Redevelopment Area (16%) King/Lyon Street Redevelopment Area, Booker Washington Heights 

Redevelopment, Edisto Court Redevelopment Area (10%), Brandon Acres/Cedar Terrace 

Redevelopment Area, Pinehurst Community Council Redevelopment Area, the Belvedere 

Redevelopment Area, and  the designated Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area (NRSA).  

During this reporting period, a modification to include the entire City of Columbia was done as 

the result of the October 2015 Flood Disaster.  Funds were diverted to address the immediate 

needs of flood impacted areas as well as unmet needs of businesses affected by the flood.  A 

substantial amendment was done to redirect funds ($375,292) from the Sidewalk Improvement 

Project to the Street Recovery Project, and funds ($100,000) from the Small Business Enterprise 

Program to the Disaster Recovery Loan Fund. As shown in the pie chart above, twenty-six 

percent, 26% of the allocated funds were redirected for flood disaster projects.  

 

 

Citywide , 43.73%, 
44% 

Booker-
Washington 

Heights , 0.00% 

Eau Claire 
Redevelopment 

Area 15.88%, 16% 

Flood Recovery 
26.01%, 26% 

Pinehurst, 0.00%,  

Brandon Acres - 
Cedar Terrace , 

0.00% 

Belvedere, 0.00% 

Edisto , 10.27%, 
10% 

King Lyon Street  
0.00% NRSA , 4.10%, 4% 

FY2015-16 Citywide

Booker-Washington
Heights
Eau Claire Redevelopment
Area
Flood Recovery

Pinehurst

Brandon Acres - Cedar
Terrace
Belvedere

Edisto

49.b

Packet Pg. 365



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 17 

 

Leveraging 

Explain how federal funds  leveraged additional resources (private, state and local funds), 
including a description of how matching requirements were satisfied, as well as how any 
publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that were used to address the 
needs identified in the plan. 

Fiscal Year Summary – HOME Match 
1. Excess match from prior Federal fiscal year 6,592,535.18 

2. Match contributed during current Federal fiscal year 401,346.60 

3. Total match available for current Federal fiscal year (Line 1 plus Line 2) 6,993,881.78 

4. Match liability for current Federal fiscal year 141,750.26 

5. Excess match carried over to next Federal fiscal year (Line 3 minus Line 4) 6,852,131.52 

Table 5 – Fiscal Year Summary - HOME Match Report 
 

 

HOME match is satisfied through private lenders contributions to the City’s affordable housing 

loan program for homebuyers.  The City partners with seven (7) local lenders that provide 

mortgage financing to eligible borrowers at reduced interest rates. The city partners are 

Security Federal Bank, Branch, Bank & Trust, South Carolina Bank & Trust, First Citizens, 

National Bank of South Carolina and Palmetto Citizens Federal Credit Union.  During the 2015 

reporting year, Wells Fargo was added to the partnership by committing funds to the City’s 

housing loan program. The City calculates match using the difference between the interest rate 

the borrower is receiving through obtaining the City’s financing and the interest rate that they 

would have normally received if they had received financing solely through the partner lender.  

The difference in payment over the life of the loan is what the City uses as match requirement.  

The amount of match required equals 12.5% of the amount drawn down for HOME projects 

during the Federal reporting period. The Match report reflects match for the 2015 fiscal year in 

which the City contributed $401,346.  Total excess match carried over to the next federal fiscal 

year in reserve carry over is $6,852,131.52. 

49.b

Packet Pg. 366

https://www.banknbsc.com/
http://www.shred360.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/03/PCFCU-Logo.jpg
https://www.firstcitizens.com/
http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCLv6t9XAs8cCFQWTDQodxQsIWw&url=http://www.postandcourier.com/article/20150422/PC05/150429801/south-state-buys-12-sc-branches-from-bank-of-america&ei=IprTVbvhMoWmNsWXoNgF&bvm=bv.99804247,d.eXY&psig=AFQjCNFwfULp4lJ_RysWTZpS-tk78BNXaA&ust=1440017236396639
http://www.google.com/url?url=http://www.forbes.com/companies/wells-fargo/&rct=j&frm=1&q=&esrc=s&sa=U&ved=0ahUKEwjKo_q40v3OAhXGSCYKHRvzAI4QwW4IFjAA&usg=AFQjCNHGkF8W3dPHlQBZoeN33m9OQ6ohkA


 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 18 

 

Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year 
 

Project No. or 
Other ID 

Date of 
Contribution 

Cash 
(non-Federal 

sources) 

Foregone 
Taxes, Fees, 

Charges 

Appraised 
Land/Real 
Property 

Required 
Infrastructure 

Site 
Preparation, 
Construction 

Materials, 
Donated labor 

Bond 
Financing 

Total Match 

1007- Morris 4/15/2016 0 $14,295.60 $61,384 0 0 0 $14,295.60 

1007- Elmore 4/15/2016 0 $20,937.60 $117,500 0 0 0 $20,937.60 

1232 Myers 2/19/2016 0 $116,000  0 0 0 $17,571.60 

1235 Riley 3/31/2016 0 $16,243 $104,400 0 0 0 $16,243 

1243 Collins 6/22/2016 0 $6,361.20  $69,400 0 0 $6,361.20 

1192- Santee 
Lynches 

7/17/2015 0 $184,906.80 $4,900 0 $356,470.10 0 $184,906.80 

1234-Bradey 3/8/16 0 0 $129,400 0 0 0  

1236 Trinity 
Housing 

4/15/2016 0 $141,033.60 $109,674.14 0 $59,943.69 0 $141,033.60 

Table 6 – Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year 

 

HOME MBE/WBE report (UNDER REVISION) 

 

Program Income – Enter the program amounts for the reporting period 

Balance on hand at begin-
ning of reporting period 

$ 

Amount received during 
reporting period 

$ 

Total amount expended 
during reporting period 

$ 

Amount expended for 
TBRA 

$ 

Balance on hand at end of 
reporting period 

$ 

$137,581.17 $751,732.22 $662,473.22 0 $89,261.10 

Table 7 – Program Income 
 

49.b

Packet Pg. 367



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 19 

 

Minority Business Enterprises and Women Business Enterprises – Indicate the number and dollar value 
of contracts for HOME projects completed during the reporting period 

 Total 
 
 

0 

Minority Business Enterprises White Non-
Hispanic Alaskan 

Native or 
American 

Indian 

Asian or 
Pacific 

Islander 

Black Non-
Hispanic 

Hispanic 

Contracts 

Dollar 

Amount 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub-Contracts 

Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Dollar 

Amount 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Total Women 
Business 

Enterprises 

Male 

Contracts 

Dollar 

Amount 0 0 0 

Number 0 0 0 

Sub-Contracts 

Number 0 0 0 

Dollar 

Amount 0 0 0 

Table 8 – Minority Business and Women Business Enterprises 

 
Minority Owners of Rental Property – Indicate the number of HOME assisted rental property owners 
and the total amount of HOME funds in these rental properties assisted 

 Total Minority Property Owners White Non-
Hispanic Alaskan 

Native or 

American 

Indian 

Asian or 

Pacific 

Islander 

Black Non-

Hispanic 

Hispanic 

Number 1 0 0 1 0 0 

Dollar 

Amount 

$1,19

5,194 0 0 $1,195,194 0 0 

Table 9 – Minority Owners of Rental Property 

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 368



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 20 

 

Relocation and Real Property Acquisition – Indicate the number of persons displaced, the cost of 
relocation payments, the number of parcels acquired, and the cost of acquisition 

Parcels Acquired 0 0 

Businesses Displaced 0 0 

Nonprofit Organizations 

Displaced 0 0 

Households Temporarily 

Relocated, not Displaced 0 0 

Households 
Displaced 

Total 
 
 
 
 

0 

Minority Property Enterprises White Non-
Hispanic Alaskan 

Native or 

American 

Indian 

Asian or 

Pacific 

Islander 

Black Non-

Hispanic 

Hispanic 

Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 10 – Relocation and Real Property Acquisition 

 

The City of Columbia is dedicated to the development and growth of small/minority/women 
owned business enterprises (SMWBEs).  The Office of Business Opportunities (OBO) 
coordinates several programs that involve opportunities for SMWBEs and maintains a complete 
list of SWMBEs that participate. 

During the reporting period the City of Columbia sponsored created promotions to increase 

support for SMWBE and celebrated National Small Business on 

Saturday, NOVEMBER 28, 2015. 

Throughout November, our Selfie Saturday winner, Sally Rickenbacker, 
criss-crossed Columbia and made purchases to support "shopping 
local"! Ms. Rickenbacker selected The Gourmet Shop, 724 Saluda 
Avenue - in Five Points. Sally received a $50 Gift Card from The 
Gourmet Shop.  

The City also has a Mentor Protégé program (MPP) for its Water and 
Sewer work that consists of SMWBE protégés. The MPP pairs small, 
minority, and women-owned business enterprises with corporations and/or prime contractors. 
The program is designed to motivate and encourage more prime contractors and construction 
firms to provide mutually beneficial development assistance to small businesses.  During 2015, 
the City awarded $25,882,842 to Mentor Protégé Teams, with $5,954,666 going to protégés.

49.b

Packet Pg. 369



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 21 

 

CR-20 - Affordable Housing 91.520(b) 

Evaluation of the jurisdiction's progress in providing affordable housing, including the 
number and types of families served, the number of extremely low-income, low-income, 
moderate-income, and middle-income persons served. 
 

 One-Year Goal Actual 

Number of Homeless households to be 

provided affordable housing units 25 54 

Number of Non-Homeless households to be 

provided affordable housing units 110 104 

Number of Special-Needs households to be 

provided affordable housing units 70 70 

Total 205 228 

Table 11 – Number of Households 

 

 One-Year Goal Actual 

Number of households supported through 

Rental Assistance 90 158 

Number of households supported through 

The Production of New Units 45 0 

Number of households supported through 

Rehab of Existing Units 40 3 

Number of households supported through 

Acquisition of Existing Units 10 10 

Total 205 171 

Table 12 – Number of Households Supported 
 

Discuss the difference between goals and outcomes and problems encountered in meeting 
these goals. 

The goals set for housing were pre-flood disaster and the outcomes over all were lower due to 

the 2015 October Flood Disaster in which affordable housing availability was diminished.  

However, the number of homeless housholds provided affordable housing units actually 

exceeded our goal due to the Housing First Program that housed 54 persons not including 9 

childern as a part of the families served.  During the reporting period 13 new clients were 

served. 

Discuss how these outcomes will impact future annual action plans. 

49.b

Packet Pg. 370



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 22 

 

The City has been awarded $19.989 million dollars in CDBG-DR funding over the next six (6) 

years and approximately 63.40% will be used for housing related programs that will regenerate 

the affordable housing stock within the City of Columbia.  This will greatly impact the 

availability of affordable housing to extremely low-moderate income persons and should 

increase our outcome numbers.  

Include the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income persons 
served by each activity where information on income by family size is required to determine 
the eligibility of the activity. 

Table 13 – Number of Persons Served 

Number  of Persons Served CDBG Actual HOME Actual 

Extremely Low-income 434 7 

Low-income 47 4 

Moderate-income 8 0 

Total 489 11 

 

Narrative Information 

Through the CDBG Program (City Lender Loans, Epworth Childrens Home, Clemson University, 

City Year, Trinity [St. Lawrence Place] and Fast Forward) the City Of Columbia assisted 434 

Extemely Low Income citizens, 47 Low Income Citizens and 8 Moderate Income Citizens.  

Additionally, thorugh the Bank On program and South Carolina HIV/AIDS Council, the City of 

Columbia was able to assist an additional 770 citizens.   

 

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 371



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 23 

 

CR-25 - Homeless and Other Special Needs 91.220(d, e); 91.320(d, e); 91.520(c) 

Evaluate the jurisdiction’s progress in meeting its specific objectives for reducing and ending 

homelessness through: 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their 

individual needs 

The City of Columbia actively participated in the local Continuum of Care, Midlands Area 

Consortium for the Homeless (MACH) by attending monthly planning meetings and engaging in 

community discussions to address the needs and gaps in services for the homeless and those at 

risk of homelessness.  In addition, was a part of the Midlands Flood Recovery Group formed in 

November 2015 to coordinate with federal, state, county, and city personnel, as well as 

nonprofit and volunteer organizations to provide assistance to individuals and families in the 

Midlands that lack the personal resources to rebuild their homes after the flood. Midlands 

Flood Recovery Group serves Richland and Lexington Counties.  

The City used General funds to provide financial assistance and case management to persons at 

risk of homelessness to maintain their housing stability or person who are currently 

experiencing homelessness to secure housing stability.  

The City’s Housing First Program housed 54 clients of which 13 were new, continues to provide 

affordable housing the most hard to reach chronic homeless.  The Housing First team works to 

provide intensive case management to clients who are historically difficult to engage. The 

services that we provide are crucial so that clients avoid returning to homelessness. Housing 

First staff provides and facilitates case management, outreach, medical adherence, mental 

health and substance abuse support services. Comprehensive, outcome-focused case 

management allows for linkage to resources including but not limited to primary medical care, 

Social Security benefits, health insurance, vocational rehabilitation, SNAP benefits, dental care, 

vision care, and prescription assistance The chart below indicates the total clients housed 

during FY2015-16.  

 Totals from 7/01/2015 – 6/30/2016  
(All numbers are unduplicated, persons served)  

Total clients housed  

(does not include 9 children and from 

family units)  

54  

New clients housed in FY 2015-2016  13  

Clients discharged in FY 2015-2016  13  

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 372



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 24 

 

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

In September of 2014, Columbia City Council approved an award to United Way of the Midlands 

(UWM) to Improve Regional Coordination of Homeless Services in the Midlands. The award was 

made in partnership with Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless (MACH), the 

community’s homeless coalition. In addition to the award for coordination, the City asked 

UWM to assume management of the program to provide emergency winter shelter from 

November 2014 through March 2015. The contracts to improve regional coordination and 

operate the winter shelter were renewed for the 2015-16 fiscal year. To follow is a report on 

activities July 2015 – June 2016.  

 
UWM serves as lead agency for the Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless (MACH) the 

14-county regional coalition and continuum of care for homeless services in the Midlands. 

UWM and MACH are partnered in improving quality and coordination of care in the Midlands. 

UWM also partnered with City Center Partnership, the Midlands Housing Trust Fund, and the SC 

National Alliance for the Mentally Ill- South Carolina to address the scope of work.  

The Inclement Weather Center (IWC) is contracted to open between November 1st and March 

31st when the temperature is expected to be 40 degrees and below according to the National 

Weather Service. The Center has the flexibility of opening when temperatures are close to 40 

degrees with precipitation and on holidays. The IWC serves adult women and men providing a 

nightly bed stay and food, outreach to link clients to community resources, hygiene products 

and shower. Clients arrive at the IWC via transportation coordinated under the contract – walk-

ups are not allowed due to the dangerous nature of crossing Huger Street to access the shelter.  

For 2015-16, the IWC opened for the first evening on November 13th. For the season, the 

Center was open 65 nights (compared to 83 in 2014-15) due to warmer temperatures, serving 

739 unduplicated clients with 8,562 nights of shelter equaling to 17,124 meals. Participation 

ranged from a low of 46 clients on December 31st to a high of 193 on January 23rd. Of the 739 

clients served, 31 were self-identified as veterans and 154 identified as chronically homeless 

(HUD definition). Of the 739, 213 (36%) only came to the IWC for 1-2 nights. Heavy use showed 

105 (14%) stayed for 22 nights or more (one third of the total nights open). UWM and partners 

are reviewing these clients in HMIS to determine patterns related to length of stays, tracking 

housing placement, and homeless recidivism over time. 

Point-in-Time Count - Each year, South Carolina conducts a ‘census’ of people living in shelters 

and on the streets called the ‘point-in-time count’. The count planning is led by the South 

Carolina Homeless Coalition in partnership with the four regional homeless coalitions which 

49.b

Packet Pg. 373



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 25 

 

implement a common methodology for the state. The 2016 count took place from January 27-

February 3, 2016. This annual census pulls information about people who are sheltered from 

the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS), the community’s bed reservation and 

client management system administered by UWM, and collects information from people who 

are unsheltered through individual surveys collected at service sites (soup kitchens, meal sites, 

the library, etc.). The Inclement Weather Center participated in the effort. Over 100 volunteers 

on 16 teams collected data in Richland County. 

In South Carolina, 5,050 people were identified as experiencing homelessness through the 2016 
count. This is a 5.6% decrease from 2015. In MACH’s 14-county area, 1,349 people were 
identified experiencing homelessness which reflects a 9% decrease from 2015.  
MACH (14-county) 2016 Point in Time data details:  

 339 individuals were unsheltered (16% decline from 2015)  

 174 were children and 75 were “youth-in-transition” (ages 18-24)  

 291 were chronically homeless individuals (22% of adults)  

 224 were Veterans (17% of adults)  

 258 adults (19%) self-reported a serious mental illness  

 274 adults (20%) self-reported a substance use disorder  

 26 adults (<1%) self-reported HIV/AIDS 
 
Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) - This web-based client and bed 

reservation system collects information on clients served at over 45 different programs and 

agencies in 14 South Carolina counties. In addition to providing counts of individuals and 

families experiencing homelessness, HMIS collects demographic and biographical information.  

 During calendar year 2015, 3,503 individuals received assistance in emergency or 
transitional housing in MACH’s 14-counties. 

 

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 

low-income individuals and families and those who are:  likely to become homeless after 

being discharged from publicly funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care 

facilities, mental health facilities, foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections 

programs and institutions);  and,  receiving assistance from public or private agencies that 

address housing, health, social services, employment, education, or youth needs 

Annually, UWM submits a consolidated funding application on behalf of MACH to the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to support new and existing housing 

programs. The HUD FY 2015 funding was awarded for $3.05 million dollars and included 15 

projects in the 14 counties. The awards included two new projects supporting Permanent 

Supportive Housing and four new projects supporting Rapid Rehousing. These new resources 

49.b

Packet Pg. 374



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 26 

 

reflect an additional 34 units of permanent housing for chronically individuals and four 

permanent units for families with an additional 36 households that will be helped to rapidly exit 

homelessness. 

Zero: 2016 initiative  
UWM/MACH proposed a number of strategies for improved coordination of and increased 

availability of housing resources including rapidly filling available units with eligible people; 

identifying market or other affordable units that people who are homeless could access and 

increasing the stock of units. We were one of 75 communities selected to participate in Zero: 

2016, a program of technical assistance to improve placement of veterans and people who are 

chronically homeless. Zero: 2016 supports the goals for improved coordination of housing 

placement of homeless people in the region. 

Since the start of the Zero: 2016 project in February 2015, the Midlands community has placed 

into permanent housing: 305 veterans, 114 chronically homeless veterans, and 59 chronically 

homeless non- veterans, for a total of 478 placements to date. 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 

with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 

permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 

individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 

and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 

recently homeless from becoming homeless again 

Youth in Transition (YIT)  

Increasing housing and services for youth is also a focus of our work on behalf of the City. UWM 

continues to coordinate the local effort of over 30 partners to improve services and housing for 

youth we refer to as “in transition.” Typically the youth and young adults are ages 17-24, lack 

the support to realize their potential and may be exiting foster care, justice systems, be 

runaways or otherwise without support of a family or guardian. The group has focused on three 

issues:  

 Outreach and engagement of youth  
 Housing  
 Improving the coordination of services 

In response to the growth in interest and services for these unaccompanied homeless youth, 

UWM has more than quadrupled its investment in programs serving youth in transition to 

$185,000/year. This is in addition to the $270,000 invested available to families of homeless 

49.b

Packet Pg. 375



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 27 

 

children identified through school districts. 

49.b

Packet Pg. 376



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 28 

 

CR-30 - Public Housing 91.220(h); 91.320(j) 

Actions taken to address the needs of public housing 

The Columbia Housing Authority is an autonomous agency, designated by Internal Revenue 

Service as a 509(a) tax-exempt public charity.  Its mission is to meet the emerging affordable 

housing needs of low to moderate-income individuals and families in Columbia and Richland 

County while promoting self-reliance and improving their quality of life.   

The City of Columbia will continue to partner with Columbia Housing Authority to provide safe, 

affordable housing.  The City supports Columbia Housing Authority’s plan for homeownership 

education and counseling and the use of Section 8 vouchers for homeownership.  Columbia 

Housing Authority plans to increase homeownership with 25 new homebuyer families.  The City 

also supports the Housing Authority’s use of Continuum of Care Supportive Housing Program 

funds for 25 units of permanent supportive housing for homeless persons. 

In May 2016, CHA is opened its waiting list for two housing programs and accepted 

applications: 

1. The Public Housing Program for Elderly Housing public housing apartments only for the 

Marion Street High-rise (1930 Marion Street) and the Oak-Read High-rise (2211 Read Street). 

Applicant for must be 62 years old or older. All persons in the household must be over 62. 

Income requirements: less than $35,950. 

 2. The Project Based Housing Choice Voucher Program (PBV). 

 Village at Rivers Edge (McQueen St., opening May, 2016) 2 and 3 bedroom units 

 Gable Oaks (901 Colleton St., opening summer, 2016) 1, 2, and 3 bedroom units 

 c. Lorrick Place (West Ave., opening 2017) 2 and 3 bedroom units 

For this PBV Program, the Voucher is connected to the apartment and not used at any other 

location. 

Actions taken to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in 

management and participate in homeownership 

49.b

Packet Pg. 377



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 29 

 

The CHA currently has 74 homeowners using a Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher.  The CHA was 

one of the first PHAs in the state to begin this program and it continues to be very successful.  

The City of Columbia has partnered with CHA on many financial litieraty initiatives including 

Bank On Columbia and the  Individual Development Account (IDA) Program.  

Actions taken to provide assistance to troubled PHAs 

During this reporting period.  There have been no major problems other than addressing the 

2015 October Flood Disaster.  The City has included CHA in their Community Development 

Block Grant Disaster Recovery Unmet Needs Assessment.  During the assessment, CHA 

reported that all major damage the their properties had been repaired and no unmet need 

existed.   

CHA is a High-Performing Housing Authority (Score 92 out of 100) in HUD’s Assessment of PHA 

Quality. 

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 378



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 30 

 

CR-35 - Other Actions 91.220(j)-(k); 91.320(i)-(j) (UNDER REVISION) 

Actions taken to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as 

barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning 

ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the 

return on residential investment. 91.220 (j); 91.320 (i) 

Actions taken to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs.  91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

By participating in the Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless (MACH), City staff is 

engaged in setting priorities and planning for the needs of the homeless in Columbia.  Through 

the City’s Housing First program, chronically homeless persons have obtained permanent 

housing and supportive services to maintain housing stability.  In addition, an Maintenance 

Assistance Program (MAP) has been developed to meet needs of homeowners that need repair 

to make homes more energy efficient.  The Individual Development Account (IDA) Program was 

established to meet the needs of low-moderate income persons that struggle with personal 

asset building.  The IDA’s are savings accounts that can be used only for purchasing a first 

home, capitalizing a small business, or for educational or job training expenses. Accounts are 

held at local financial institutions. Contributions by lower income participants are matched 

using both private and public sources to develop financial independence. All participants 

receive economic literacy training that includes workshops for cleaning up one's credit, setting 

up a budgeting and savings schedule, and other basics of money management. 

 

Actions taken to reduce lead-based paint hazards. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

The City of Columbia’s Housing Division within the Community Development Department 

maintains full compliance with Title X of the 1992 Housing and Community Development Act 

(24 CFR Part 35) on all housing units assisted with CDBG, HOME or HOPWA funding.  The intent 

of the Federal regulation is to identify and address lead-based paint hazards before children are 

exposed.  The City requires evaluation for lead-based paint hazards of all housing units 

constructed before 1978 that are slated for repairs, which may disturb any painted surfaces.  If 

lead paint hazards are found during an evaluation, they are addressed through HUD approved 

interim control or abatement protocol.  In particular, the City will comply with EPA regulations 

regarding the use of certified firms for the painting and/or rehabilitation of housing.  Prior to 

any project receiving funds, City staff will conduct an environmental review and determine if a 

lead-based paint hazard exists.  The City also distributes and maintains documentation of all 

required information for homes built before 1978, including the EPA Lead-based Pamphlet, 

Notification of Lead Hazard Evaluation, and notification of Lead Hazard Reduction.  During the 

49.b

Packet Pg. 379



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 31 

 

reporting period, there have been twenty-seven (27) Lead-Based Paint evaluations completed 

on homes in our Maintenance Assistance Program (MAP). 

Actions taken to reduce the number of poverty-level families. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

According to the most recent Census data, 23 of the 54 census tracts in the City of Columbia 
have more than 20% of the population living in poverty.  The poverty rate for the City of 
Columbia is 24.3%. 

The Community Development Department addresses the problem of poverty through its 
strategic goals.  Through a holistic approach that combines safe, decent affordable housing for 
low to moderate income families with social services, education, access to health and 
employment, the City strives to reduce the poverty rate.   The City, as lead agency in the 
implementation of the Consolidated Plan, will coordinate with local organizations to ensure 
that goals are met. 

Actions taken to develop institutional structure. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

The City of Columbia operates under a city manager-council form of government.  The City 
Council consists of seven members, four elected from single-member districts and three at-
large members (including the Mayor), for four-year terms.  Under this structure, the City 
Council employs a city manager who is responsible for administrative oversight of all city 
departments over which Council has authority. However, there have been several public forums 
that intended to explore the possibility of the Strong-Mayor form of Government. 

The Community Development Department is within the Bureau of Community Programs, 
Economic Development, and Governmental Services. The Mayor’s Office, Governmental Affairs, 
Development Corporations and Economic Development are other departments encompassed 
within this Bureau. The Community Development Department focuses on Grant Administration 
and Compliance, and Neighborhood Services and Residential Housing Development.  The 
Department’s offices are located at 1125 Lady Street in downtown Columbia.  During the 2015 
program year, Community Development suffered a great loss as the Director, Ms. Deborah 
Livingston passed away after a lengthy illness.  She was a great champion of Housing and 
Communty Development, and will be greatly missed by the department and the City of 
Columbia.  

 

Actions taken to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service 

agencies. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

The City of Columbia has strong intergovernmental cooperation with agencies.  The City 

coordinates with Richland and Lexington Counties, the Columbia Housing Authority, local 

49.b

Packet Pg. 380



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 32 

 

municipalities and neighboring jurisdictions on matters related to housing, economic and 

community development.  Collaboration is ongoing with community stakeholders and partners 

including neighborhood associations, non-profit agencies and service providers, state and 

federal agencies, the Faith-based community, Universities and Colleges, Richland 1 School 

District, and Health Institutions.  

 The City will engage a professional consultant to provide technical assistance services and 

programs related to community and economic development projects. The consultant will 

exercise a multi-disciplined approach to economic and community development projects 

through their expertise in real estate, industrial financing, bonding, syndications, federal and 

state funding mechanisms and private sector placement. 

The focus of this partnership will be to assist the City of Columbia with matching economic 

development financing needs with the best and most feasible capital resources. The consultant 

will work with the City to obtain private funding for projects by arranging meetings with private 

financial institutions similar to the functions performed by an investment banker or a mortgage 

broker. 

The sole purpose of this partnership is linking public and private sectors to create economic and 

housing development projects. In its catalyst role, the consultant’s primary objectives are job 

creation, business development and construction and/or rehabilitation of housing units. These 

are common objectives of the City and the federal and state programs with which it partners. 

Relationships are key to the success of housing, economic and community development efforts 

within the City of Columbia.  Community Development staff meets quarterly with staff from 

Richland County, Lexington County, Columbia Housing Authority and United Way of the 

Midlands to discuss development opportunities and regional cooperation.  

Identify actions taken to overcome the effects of any impediments identified in the 

jurisdictions analysis of impediments to fair housing choice.  91.520(a) 

Faced with the reality of limited Federal and local government resources for housing, Columbia 

has been challenged to create comprehensive, affordable housing programs to meet the 

demands of priority needs households along the entire housing continuum—rental, ownership, 

special needs, supportive housing, etc. While the unmet need for rental housing for extremely 

low income households might suggest that all resources should be devoted to addressing this 

gap, resources must also be devoted to addressing the housing needs of low and moderate 

income households that have cost burdens and other housing problems to ensure the housing 

continuum is intact and flowing. This includes enabling more homeownership among these 

49.b

Packet Pg. 381



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 33 

 

income groups, which the City has determined is important for stabilizing families and 

neighborhoods. It also includes preserving the existing affordable housing stock, also key for 

neighborhood revitalization particularly in the inner city and central city neighborhoods. 

However, as the result of the 2015 Flood Disaster, there in an increased unmet need of 

affordable housing for the low-moderate income renters who were the mosted impacted.    

(Under Revision) 

49.b

Packet Pg. 382



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 34 

 

CR-40 - Monitoring 91.220 and 91.230 

Describe the standards and procedures used to monitor activities carried out in furtherance 

of the plan and used to ensure long-term compliance with requirements of the programs 

involved, including minority business outreach and the comprehensive planning 

requirements 

The City of Columbia recognizes the importance of maintaining appropriate performance 

measurements of its CDBG and HOME projects and programs.  CD staff provides management 

for the CDBG, HOME and HOPWA programs and monitors activities and projects with 

developed guidelines that include performance measures to that the City of Columbia meets all 

federal requirements and remains in compliance.  Using the HUD monitoring checklist as a 

guide, the City will periodically evaluate staff performance and program performance against 

the current Consolidated Plan. 

 Columbia has financial and programmatic processes in place to ensure that sub-recipients and 

contractors are in compliance and that activity and procedures can be tracked accordingly.  This 

includes contract provisions that address affirmatively marketing for fair housing, and 

procurement procedures to ensure minority participation.  The City will also address 

compliance with program requirements including public service caps and timely expenditure of 

federal funds.  A higher emphasis is given to project type and projects that require quicker 

expenditures with a larger impact on the budget.  

The City of Columbia has developed a comprehensive monitoring strategy inclusive of all 

entitlement programs for the 2015 program year. A team including program, financial, and 

construction personnel will conduct the monitoring. The schedule provides for all HUD funded 

departments and sub-recipients to be monitored bi-annually at a minimum. 

Monthly reports are currently required and are used as a method to detect areas of 

deficiencies, to customize technical assistance, and to monitor if goals and objectives are not 

being met. For those sub-recipients, monitoring will be provided more frequently to ensure 

compliance.  Complete files with all HUD related documentation are maintained on each 

monitored sub-recipient. This includes a HUD program checklist, risk analysis and supportive 

documentation from reviewed files. During the 2015-16 fiscal year, remote monitoring as well 

as a site visit took place for each CDBG sub-recipient.   

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 383



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 35 

 

Remote monitoring was conducted by evaluating in-house materials such as applications for 

funding, written agreements, progress reports, drawdown requests, previous monitoring 

documentation, and audits. 

The City of Columbia strives to provided sub-recipients with an on-site review summary within 

60 days of the completed review. All findings, concerns, and recommendations were 

documented, tracked and resolved with complete HUD compliance as the goal.    

Citizen Participation Plan 91.105(d); 91.115(d) 

Describe the efforts to provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to 

comment on performance reports. 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia wish to provide for maximum citizen 

participation in the development and implementation of the Annual Action Plan in accordance 

with the objectives of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974.   

The public notice was posted in the “State Newspaper” on August 19, 2016; the comment 

period began on August 22, 2016 and ended on September 21, 2016.  In addition, the Annual 

CAPER draft was available on the City’s website and at the Community Development Office, at 

1225 Lady Street.  

The 2015 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) Public Hearings 

were held August 30th and September 20th at 6:00 p.m.  During the final public hearing, the 

Citizens Advisory Committee Chairperson provided performance highlights of the three (3) 

entitlement programs and City Council gave approval to submit the final draft of the CAPER 

along with all citizens’ comments to HUD on or before the deadline date of September 29, 

2015. All public comments are included in this document. 

The City of Columbia Citizen Participation Plan encourages participation of all residents, 

especially the low and moderate-income population.  Formal and in formal approaches are 

used each year in the assessment process to provide adequate opportunities for citizens to 

participate in the development of the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 

(CAPER).  These actions include placing advertisements in the local newspapers, community 

forums, social media and appointment of citizens to the Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) by 

City Council, and public hearings at televised city council meetings. 

The CAC consists of seven (7) members, with at least one member from each of the four (4) City 

Council Districts and was established through the adoption of a resolution on August 6, 1975, 

49.b

Packet Pg. 384



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 36 

 

which outlined the Committee’s responsibilities. Meetings are held on the third Thursday of 

each month and their responsibilities include an annual review of performance of federal 

programs, CDBG, HOME and HOPWA.  Meetings are advertised to the public via postings at City 

buildings with high traffic and on the City’s webpage. All meetings are held in accessible 

locations.   The grassroots organization, Columbia Council of Neighborhoods (CCN) has grown 

into a large umbrella organization with over one hundred and sixteen (116) 

neighborhoods.  The Community Development Department assigns a staff member as 

Community Liaison to assist with the dissemination of information regarding city services, 

addressing neighborhood and community priorities needs within the four (4) City Council 

Districts.  

49.b

Packet Pg. 385



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 37 

 

CR-45 - CDBG 91.520(c) 

Specify the nature of, and reasons for, any changes in the jurisdiction’s program objectives 

and indications of how the jurisdiction would change its programs as a result of its 

experiences. 

As the result of the 2015 October Flood Disaster, the Community Development Department 

modified it’s FY2016-17 CDBG Notice of Funds Available (NOFA) process in order to provide 

time to access the needs of communities and individuals highly impacted by the flood.  As a 

result, programs that addressed the needs of the flood impacted were chosen to provide 

funding summaries. The services agencies that were awarded were The Cooperative Ministry – 

Autos for Opportunities Program; United Way of the Midlands – Mold Remediation Program; SC 

Habitat For Humanity – Neighborhood Assistance Program; Columbia Housing Authority – Learn 

to Build a House Program; City of Columbia – Art Center Retrofit Project and the Bellfield Center 

Commercial Kitchen Project.   

Does this Jurisdiction have any open Brownfields Economic Development 
Initiative (BEDI) grants? 

No 

[BEDI grantees]  Describe accomplishments and program outcomes during the last year. 

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 386



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 38 

 

CR-50 - HOME 91.520(d) 

Include the results of on-site inspections of affordable rental housing assisted under the 

program to determine compliance with housing codes and other applicable regulations  

The CD Compliance Team conducted an on-site monitoring reveiw on the TN Development 
Corporation.   The CD Monitoring team reviewed a random selection of tenant files from each 
of the projects, Waters Crest (8), Forest Oaks (6), Byrne’s Place (4) and Arbor Hill Apartments 
(15) to verify income eligibility.   

The On-site monitoring review revealed two (2) findings, four (4) concerns and two (2) 

recommendations as related to HOME Investment Partnership Program compliance under the 

following programmatic areas:  

Finding #1- §92.203 Income determinations 

Based on the overall reviewed documentation, TNCD did not adequately recertify income 

eligibility for tenants and is not in compliance with income determination.   

Concern #1 

Calculations to verify income were done in an inconsistent manner for annual recertification.   

§92.508 Recordkeeping (7): Records concerning other Federal requirements—(i) Equal 

opportunity and fair housing records 

Finding #2 - 92.508 Recordkeeping 

Records demonstrating that each family is income eligible should be found in each tenant file.   

Concern #2:  

In reviewing file (3869 Waters Crest) the tenant lease was renewed after numerous complaints 

even though documentation indicated that the lease would not be renewed.    

§92.508 Recordkeeping (6): Program administration records 

Concern #3   

In review of the Policy and Procedure Manuel and interview of TNDC staff, CD staff discovered 

that the key control log process being used did not follow the written policy and procedure 

manual.  

49.b

Packet Pg. 387



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 39 

 

Concern #4 

When TNDC staff was interviewed, they did not have knowledge of certain policies and 

procedures nor did they use established policies and procedures in day to day operations. 

Property Standards  (§92.251 Property standards) 

 Physical Deficiency #1:  (134 Forest Oak) – Switch plate missing behind refrigerator and 
cracked.   

 Physical Deficiency #2:  (134 Forest Oak) Cracked switch plate cover by front door.  

 Physical Deficiency #3:  (Forest Oak) Broken Outlet in Laundry Room.  

 Physical Deficiency #4: (Byrnes Place) Smoke detectors not hard wired together so that 
when one alarm sounds they all sound.  

 Physical Deficiency #5:  (Unit 2321A) Bathroom ceiling popcorn is cracking.  
 

Corrective Action was suggested and resolved.  The reviewer orally summarized the conclusion 
reached during the monitoring in the exit conference and followed up in writing to the 
Subrecipient. Conclusions and suggested resolutions were supported with documentation and 
the Subrecipient responded to the City of Columbia satisfactorily within the allotted time (45 
days).  All documentation is being kept in the Subrecipient project file.  

Please list those projects that should have been inspected on-site this program year based 
upon the schedule in §92.504(d). Indicate which of these were inspected and a summary of 
issues that were detected during the inspection. For those that were not inspected, please 
indicate the reason and how you will remedy the situation. 

All units of affordable housing produced by the City of Columbia Community Development 
Department are thoroughly inspected immediately following construction/rehab.  Additionally, 
during the 2015 fiscal year, our compliance staff completed an on site inspection of the TN 
Development to include the following units per our schedule (in compliance with §92.504(d)):  

- Arbor Hill  
- Byrnes Place 
- Forest Oaks 
- Water’s Crest 

Within the 2016 Fiscal Year, we plan to complete an on-site monitoring of Trinity Housing 
Corporation and Community Assistance Providers.  We then plan to monitor (on-site) Columbia 
Housing Development Corporation and Affordable Housing Resources during the 2017 Fiscal 
Year.  Each year that we do not complete an onsite monitoring, we plan to execute a desk 
monitoring of the remaining subrecipient agencies, throughout the affordability periods.  We 
will add new subrecipients into this mix as the time arises.  

49.b

Packet Pg. 388



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 40 

 

Provide an assessment of the jurisdiction's affirmative marketing actions for HOME units. 

92.351(b) 

The City of Columbia Community Development Department has complied with the Affirmative 

Marketing Plan as set out in their Policies and Procedures.  The Community Development 

Department, through monitoring, has ensured that subrecipients have complied with their 

Policies pertinent to Affirmative Marketing.  The City of Columbia is committed to the goals of 

non-discrimination and equal access. In addition, the City of Columbia is committed to the 

goals of increasing the housing opportunities of those with limited English proficiency, low-

income residents and under-represented ethnic and racial groups. These goals will be reached 

through the implementation of the City’s Affirmative Marketing Plan.   

The goal of the affirmative marketing procedures and outreach efforts are to ensure that 

all persons – regardless of their race, color, national origin, age, religion, sex, disability, 

familial status– are aware of the affordable housing opportunities generated by federal 

HOME, CDBG, HOPWA funds and City G e n e r a l  Funds and program activities, in 

accordance with 24 CFR 108.1. 

The City of Columbia is responsible for the implementation of the Affirmative Marketing Plan 

and all owners, developers, Community Housing Development Organizations and other 

nonprofits must comply with this policy for all CDBG, HOME, HOPWA and City funded housing 

developments. 

Refer to IDIS reports to describe the amount and use of program income for projects, 

including the number of projects and owner and tenant characteristics 

HOME Program Income was used to support affordable housing loans.  During the 2015 fiscal 

year, the Community Development Department utilized $643,198.21 in program income, with a 

total match amount of $401,349.60.   

Describe other actions taken to foster and maintain affordable housing.  91.220(k) (STATES 

ONLY: Including the coordination of LIHTC with the development of affordable housing).  

91.320(j) 

The City of Columbia Community Development Department continues to prioritize the 
creation of quality, affordable housing as an integral component of its development programs.  
The City has created partnerships with several local banks (BB&T, NBSC, Security Federal, First 
Citizens, South State Bank and Palmetto Citizens Federal Credit Union).  The City’s various 
housing initiatives seek to develop new partnerships with local lenders for leveraged private 
dollars. The Community Development Housing Loan office has been diligently working with 

49.b

Packet Pg. 389



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 41 

 

residents to encourage homeownership. The Loan Officers continued to provide credit 
counseling and homeownership one-on-one sessions and participated in various local events 
to educate the public on homeownership. They have provided the counseling to over 350 
participants.  
 
Additionally, during the reporting period the City of Columbia City Lender Program has 
partnered with Wells Fargo NeighborhoodLIFT program. This program is designed to help 
qualified individuals buy a home by providing up to $7,500 downpayment assistance.  

49.b

Packet Pg. 390



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 42 

 

CR-55 - HOPWA 91.520(e) 

Identify the number of individuals assisted and the types of assistance provided  

Table for report on the one-year goals for the number of households provided housing through 

the use of HOPWA activities for: short-term rent, mortgage, and utility assistance payments to 

prevent homelessness of the individual or family; tenant-based rental assistance; and units 

provided in housing facilities developed, leased, or operated with HOPWA funds. 

Number  of Households Served Through: One-year Goal Actual 

Short-term rent, mortgage, and utility 
assistance payments 

95 252 

Tenant-based rental assistance 110 106 

Units provided in transitional housing 
facilities developed, leased, or operated 
with HOPWA funds 

 
0 

 
0 

Units provided in permanent housing 
facilities developed, leased, or operated 
with HOPWA funds 

152 49 

Total   
Table 14 – HOPWA Number of Households Served 

Narrative 

The City of Columbia administers HOPWA funding as a formula entitlement for the City of 

Columbia and the following counties: Calhoun, Fairfield, Kershaw, Lexington, Richland, and 

Saluda.  All City of Columbia HOPWA Grant awards are made through a competitive application 

process based on client needs, gaps in services, and ability of agency to successfully implement 

the program.  The City HOPWA funding process opens in the fall for the fiscal year funding 

beginning the following July 1st.  Each fiscal year, the City of Columbia receives a HOPWA 

formula allocation HUD to ensure that supportive services, short-term emergency assistance, 

and permanent housing vouchers are available to eligible HOPWA clients in all six counties of 

the Columbia Eligible Metropolitan Statistical Area (EMSA).   

HOPWA funding allocated each year for the City’s 2015-2019 priority order of funding HOPWA 

services: 

1. Permanent Housing Program   
2. Permanent Housing Vouchers   
3. Emergency Housing Assistance   
4. Supportive Services     
 

49.b

Packet Pg. 391



 

2015 Draft.v2                                                             CAPER Page 43 

 

HOPWA services funded through the City of Columbia during FY2015-16 included: Supportive 

Services to assist clients in maintaining stable housing, Short-term Emergency Rent, Mortgage, 

and Utility Assistance (STRMU), and Permanent Housing through two voucher programs for 

persons living with HIV/AIDS. The City was awarded $1,196,205 in HOPWA funds for Program 

Year 2015 services. 

These services were available to clients residing in all six counties of the Columbia EMSA 

(Richland, Kershaw, Lexington, Fairfield, Calhoun, and Saluda).  Supportive Services were 

provided by the University of South Carolina, Department of Medicine (USCDOM), Upper 

Savannah Care Consortium (USCC) and Palmetto AIDS Life Support Services (PALSS).  The 

STRMU services were available to income eligible clients for 21 weeks (non-consecutive) during 

the program year in cases of evictions, foreclosure, or utility shut-off in order to prevent 

homelessness. Applicants must demonstrate financial need and attempt to utilize other funding 

sources. The Cooperative Ministry (TCM) provided STRMU services in partnership with 

USCDOM and PALSS. The housing voucher programs, similar to Section 8 housing vouchers, 

were provided in Richland and Lexington counties through the Columbia Housing Authority. 

 

49.b

Packet Pg. 392



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 3:59 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: 1104 Deerpark Drive, TMS# 28900-01-41 
 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 09-20-2016_ZPH_Case Summary_COMP PLAN_1104 Deerpark (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Ordinance No.: 2016-079 - Amending the City of Columbia 
Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map to include 
1104 Deerpark Drive, Richland County TMS # 28900-01-
41; annexed by Ordinance No.: 2016-04 7 enacted July 19, 
2016 
 
Council District: 4 
 
Proposal:Request to amend Chapter 8.3 of The Columbia 
Plan: 2018 - Future Land Use Map to include the above 
property and confirm interim land use classification of 
Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) The property 
was annexed on July 19, 2016.  
 
Applicant:Prime Development LLC, 1712 Woodcreek 
Farms Road, Elgin, SC 29045 
 
Staff Recommendation:Approval 
 
PC Recommendation:06/06/2016; Approval (7-0) 

50

Packet Pg. 393



Action Item (ID # 2864)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/16/2016 3:59 PM  Page 2 

 2016-079 add 1104 Deerpark Drive to Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map
 (PDF) 

50

Packet Pg. 394



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
September 20, 2016 at 6:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT  
CASE SUMMARY  

1104 DEERPARK DRIVE, TMS# 28900-01-41 
 
 
Council District: 4 
 
Proposal: Request to amend Chapter 8.3 of The Columbia Plan: 2018 - Future Land Use Map to 

include the above property and confirm interim land use classification of Urban Edge 
Residential Large Lot (UER-2) The property was annexed on July 19, 2016.  

 
Applicant: Prime Development LLC, 1712 Woodcreek Farms Road, Elgin, SC 29045 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval 
 
PC Recommendation:          06/06/2016; Approval (7-0) 
 
Public Hearing/1st Reading:  09/20/2016; Confirm Land Use Classification; Pending 
 
Public Hearing/2nd Reading:  10/04/2016; Confirm Land Use Classification; Pending 
 
 

CURRENT PARCEL CHARACTERISTICS/CONDITIONS 
 

Acreage: 200.42 acres  
Current Use: Undeveloped 
Proposed Use: Residential development; plans have already been approved by Richland County. 
Current Interim Land Use Classification: Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) 
Proposed Land Use Classification: Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) 
Current Interim Zoning: PUD-R, -FP where applicable (Planned Unit Development – Residential District, -Flood 
Protective Area) 
Census Tract: 114.07 
 

PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 

 
The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  

Staff recommends that the subject parcel be designated Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) in The 
Columbia Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map. 

 
Urban Edge Residential Large Lot neighborhoods represent many of the City’s older residential neighborhoods in 
the outer areas of the City.  This development type is appropriate as development on remaining large lots or as 
redevelopment in the outer areas of Columbia.  Most of the existing developments occurred after 1950.  Urban 
Edge Residential Large Lot developments generally do not continue the grid and block pattern found in the urban 

50.a

Packet Pg. 395



neighborhoods, but do tend to have a consistently organized internal street network with loops and 
interconnections. 
 
Primary Types: 

• Single-family Detached 
*Accessory Dwelling Units 
 

Tertiary Types: 
• Single-family Attached 
• Two-family 
• Three-family 
• Small Format Business/Employment  
• Small Format Civic/Institutional 
• Cemeteries & Mausoleums 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcel is not covered by an area plan which has been adopted by the City of Columbia or Richland 
County. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that City Council consider the adoption of the attached ordinance to amend Chapter 8.3 of The 
Columbia Plan: 2018 – Future Land Use Map to include the subject property and confirm the land use classification of 
UER-2.  
 
 

50.a

Packet Pg. 396



UER-2

UEMR

UER-2

UER-2 JACOBS MILL POND RD

COUNTY LINE RD

DEERPARK DR
SANDY OAKS RD

INTERSTATE 20 W

PALM SEDGE LOOP

GOLF VIEW BND

BUCKVIEW LN

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:

Leigh DeForth
May 24, 2016

I
0 500 1,000250

Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

1104 Deerpark Drive, TMS#: 28900-01-41
Existing FLU: Neighborhood - Medium Density (Richland County); Proposed FLU: UER-2

Subject Property

50.a

Packet Pg. 397



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-079 

Amending the City of Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map to include 
1104 Deerpark Drive, Richland County TMS # 28900-01-41; annexed by 

Ordinance No.: 2016-04 7 enacted july 19, 2016 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia and community at large recognize the value of planning for future 
development and growth; and, 

WHEREAS, City Council approved Ordinance No.: 2008-085 on October 1, 2008 adopting the City of 
Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 in accordance with the South Carolina Comprehensive Planning Act of 1994 
(Title 6, Chapter 29 of the SC Code); and, 

WHEREAS, City Council approved Ordinance No. : 2015-014 on February 17, 2015 amending the City of 
Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 deleting the "Existing and Future Land Use Components of the Physical Area 
Development Element of The Columbia Plan: 2018" and replaced it with "Plan Columbia Land Use Plan Putting the 
Pieces Together", along with all the maps and policies contained therein; and, 

WHEREAS, 1104 Deerpark Drive, Richland County TMS #28900-01-41 filed for petition on May 24, 2016, 
and were not included within Plan Columbia Land Use Plan Putting the Pieces in Place adopted by City Council on 
February 17, 2015, and shall be assigned the designated future land use classification of Urban Edge Residential -
Large Lot (UER-2), and the Future Land Use Map shall be amended accordingly; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia Planning Commission has provided input and recommendations in 
response to the public input and findings NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia this_ day of , 2016, 
that 1104 Deerpark Drive, Richland County TMS #28900-01-41, annexed into the City of Columbia by Ordinance 
No.: 2016-047 enacted on July 19, 2016, shall be incorporated into Plan Columbia Land Use Plan Putting the 
Pieces Together adopted by O rd inance No.: 2015-014 on February 17, 2015. This property shall be apportioned to 
City Council District 4, Census Tract 114.07, contains 200.42 acres, and shall be assigned a land use classification of 
Urban Edge Residential- Large Lot (UER-2). 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney 
Introduced : 
Final Reading: 

last revised: 8/9/2016 
1617080279 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

50.b

Packet Pg. 398



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 3:59 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: The Village, Phase 1A, 9 & 13 S. Olmsted Lane, TMS# 28902-

14-01 and 28902-14-02 
 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Ordinance No.: 2016-078 - Amending the City of Columbia 
Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map to include 
9 South Olmsted Lane, Richland County TMS # 28902-14-
02; and 13 South Olmsted Lane, Richland County TMS # 
28902-14-01 annexed by Ordinance No.: 2016-045 enacted 
July 19, 2016 
 
Council District: 4 
 
Proposal:Request to amend Chapter 8.3 of The Columbia 
Plan: 2018 - Future Land Use Map to include the above 
property and confirm interim land use classification of 
Urban Edge Residential Small Lot (UER-1). The property 
was annexed on July 19, 2016 
 
Applicant:D.R. Horton, INC. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 
 
PC Recommendation: 04/04/2016; Approval (7-0) 

51

Packet Pg. 399



Action Item (ID # 2865)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/16/2016 3:59 PM  Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 09-20-2016_ZPH_Case Summary_COMP PLAN_TheVillage-Phase-1A (PDF) 
 2016-078 add 9 and 13 S. Olmsted Ln to Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use 

Map (PDF) 

51

Packet Pg. 400



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
September 20, 2016 at 6:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT  
CASE SUMMARY  

THE VILLAGE, PHASE 1A, 9 & 13 S. OLMSTED LANE,  
TMS# 28902-14-01 AND 28902-14-02 

 
 
Council District: 4 
 
Proposal: Request to amend Chapter 8.3 of The Columbia Plan: 2018 - Future Land Use Map to 

include the above property and confirm interim land use classification of Urban Edge 
Residential Small Lot (UER-1).  The property was annexed on July 19, 2016. 

 
Applicant: D.R. Horton, INC. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval 
 
PC Recommendation:          04/04/2016; Approval (7-0) 
 
Public Hearing/1st Reading:  09/20/2016; Confirm Land Use Classification; Pending 
 
Public Hearing/2nd Reading:  10/04/2016; Confirm Land Use Classification; Pending 
 
 

CURRENT PARCEL CHARACTERISTICS/CONDITIONS 
 

Acreage:  0.5 Acres 
Current Use:  Single Family Spec. Homes 
Proposed Use:  Residential 
Current Interim Land Use Classification:  Urban Edge Residential Small Lot (UER-1) 
Proposed Land Use Classification: Urban Edge Residential Small Lot (UER-1) 
Current Interim Zoning: PUD-R (Planned Unit Development – Residential District) 
Census Tract: 114.07 

 
PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 

    
The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  

Staff recommends subject parcels be designated Urban Edge Residential Small Lot (UER-1) in The Columbia 
Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map. 

 
Urban Edge Residential Small Lot neighborhoods account for a significant portion of the City’s existing 

51.a

Packet Pg. 401



residential neighborhoods.  This development type is appropriate as development on large lots or as 
redevelopment in the outer areas of Columbia.  Most of these developments are relatively modern and occurred 
after 1970.  Urban Edge Residential Small Lot developments generally do not continue the grid and block pattern 
found in the urban core neighborhoods, but do tend to have a consistently organized internal street network with 
loops and interconnections. Culs-de-sac are the most prominent in this development type. 
 
Primary Types 

• Single-family Detached 
 

Tertiary Types 
• Single-family Attached 
• Two-family 
• Three-family 
• Multi-family Small 
• Small Format Business/Employment (excl. Flex) 
• Small Format Civic/Institutional 
• Cemeteries and Mausoleum 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcels are not covered by an area plan which has been adopted by the City of Columbia or Richland 
County. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that City Council consider the adoption of the attached ordinance to amend Chapter 8.3 of The 
Columbia Plan: 2018 – Future Land Use Map to include the subject property and confirm the land use classification of 
UER-1.  
 

51.a

Packet Pg. 402



UER-2

UER-2

UER-1

UER-2

AC-1

UER-2

UER-1

AC-1
UER-2

UER-2

JACOBS MILL POND

GILLON

WOODCREEK FARMS

THACHER

UPPER WILL

GUTHRIE LOOP

UPPER LAKE

SIDNEY

OLMSTEAD

BEAVER LAKE

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:
Ahmed Abdullah
March 22, 2016

0 90 18045
Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

The Village, Phase 1A: 9 & 13 S. Olmsted Lane
TMS# 28902-14-01 and 28902-14-02. Interim FLU: UER-1

SUBJECT PROPERTIES

51.a

Packet Pg. 403



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-078 

Amending the City of Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map to include 
9 South Olmsted Lane, Richland County TMS # 28902-14-02; and 13 South Olmsted Lane, 

Richland County TMS # 28902-14-01 annexed by Ordinance No.: 2016-045 enacted july 19, 2016 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia and community at large recognize the value of planning for future 
development and growth; and, 

WHEREAS, City Council approved Ordinance No.: 2008-085 on October 1, 2008 adopting the City of 
Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 in accordance with the South Carolina Comprehensive Planning Act of 1994 
(Ti tle 6, Chapter 29 of the SC Code); and, 

WHEREAS, City Council approved Ordinance No.: 2015-014 on February 17, 2015 amending the City of 
Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 deleting the "Existing and Future Land Use Components of the Physical Area 
Development Element of The Columbia Plan: 2018" and replaced it with "Plan Columbia Land Use Plan Putting the 
Pieces Together", along with all the maps and policies contained therein; and, 

WHEREAS, 9 South Olmsted Lane, Richland County TMS #28902-14-02; and 13 South Olmsted Lane, 
Richland County TMS #28902-14-01 filed for petition on June 6, 2016, and were not included within Plan 
Columbia Land Use Plan Putting the Pieces in Place adopted by City Counci l on February 17, 2015, and shall be 
assigned the designated future land use classification of Urban Edge Residential - Small Lot (UER-1 ), and the Future 
Land Use Map shall be amended accordingly; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia Planning Commission has provided input and recommendations in 
response to the public input and findings NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia this_ day of , 2016, 
that 9 South Olmsted Lane, Richland County TMS #28902-14-02; and 13 South Olmsted Lane, Richland County 
TMS #28902-14-01 , annexed into the City of Columbia by Ordinance No. : 2016-045 enacted on July 19, 2016, 
shall be incorporated into Plan Columbia Land Use Plan Putting the Pieces Together adopted by Ordinance No.: 
2015-014 on February 17, 2015 . This property shall be apportioned to City Council District 4, Census Tract 114.07, 
contains 0.5 acres, and shall be assigned a land use classification of Urban Edge Residential- Small Lot (UER-1 ). 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

/2--
City Attorney 
Introduced : 
Final Reading: 

l ast revised : 8/9/201 6 
1617080278 

Mayor 

ATIEST: 

City Clerk 

51.b

Packet Pg. 404



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/12/2016 3:47 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: 4202-06 N. Main Street, 4201-05 Horry Street, 1206-10 

Kinderway Avenue, TMS #09215-14-01 
 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 09-20-2016_ZPH_Case Summary_COMP PLAN_4202-4206_NMain-4201-
4205_Horry-1206-1210_Kinderway (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Ordinance No.: 2016-080 - Amending the City of Columbia 
Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map for 4202 
North Main Street,4204 North Main Street, 4206 North 
Main Street; 4201 Harry Street, 4205 Harry Street, 1206 
Kinderway Avenue, and 1210 Kinderway Avenue, 
Richland County TMS #09215-74-01 
 
City Council District: 1 
 
Proposal: Request to amend Chapter 8.3 of The Columbia 
Plan 2018 - Future Land Use Map to modify the land use 
classification from UCMR-1 to SD-5. 
  
Applicant: City of Columbia 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 
 
PC Recommendation: 07/11/2016; Approval (7-0) 

52

Packet Pg. 405



Action Item (ID # 2866)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/12/2016 3:47 PM  Page 2 

 2016-080 amend Comprehensive Plan add N Main Horry & Kinderway (PDF) 

52

Packet Pg. 406



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
September 20, 2016 at 6:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT  
CASE SUMMARY  

4202-06 N. MAIN STREET, 4201-05 HORRY STREET, 
1206-10 KINDERWAY AVENUE, TMS# 09215-14-01 

 
 
City Council District:  1 
 
Proposal: Request to amend Chapter 8.3 of The Columbia Plan 2018 – Future Land Use Map to 

modify the land use classification from UCMR-1 to SD-5.  
 
Applicant:   City of Columbia 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval 
 
PC Recommendation:          07/11/2016; Approval (7-0) 
 
Public Hearing, 1st Reading:  09/20/2016; Pending 
 
Public Hearing, 2nd Reading:  10/04/2016; Pending 
 
 

CURRENT PARCEL CHARACTERISTICS/CONDITIONS 
 

Acreage:   ~2.6 acres  
Current Use: Institutional; dormitories and two single family homes  
Proposed Use:   Institutional; minor amendment to PUD-C  
Land Use Classification: Urban Core Mixed Residential – Type 1 (UCMR-1)  
Current Zoning:  Planned Unit Development-Commercial District (PUD-C)  
Proposed Land Use Classification: Universities/Colleges (SD-5) 
Census Tract: 2 
 

PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 
 

The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  
Subject parcel is currently designated Urban Core Mixed Residential –Type 1 (UCMR-1) in The Columbia Plan 
2018 Future Land Use Map. 
 
Urban Core Mixed Residential Type 1 neighborhoods are appropriate in the central City and near major corridors 
throughout Columbia.  This development type may represent existing and historic neighborhoods or a vision for 
intensification of transitional areas between lower density neighborhoods or a vision for intensification of 
transitional areas between lower density neighborhoods and higher activity corridors and centers.  Traditional and 
contemporary architectural styles have a place in Urban Core Mixed Residential neighborhoods but scale is 

52.a

Packet Pg. 407



always important.  Urban core Mixed Residential Type 1 will usually transition to Urban Core Mixed Residential 
Type 2 as development moves further from main arterials and activity centers. 
 
Staff recommends that the subject parcel be designated Universities/Colleges (SD-5) in The Columbia Plan 2018 
Future Land Use Map. 
 
There are a number of universities and colleges located within Columbia including, but not limited to, University 
of South Carolina, Columbia College, Columbia International University, Allen University, Lutheran Theological 
Southern Seminary, Midlands Technical College, Webster University, ECPI University, Strayer University, and 
the University of Phoenix. Any facility with multiple buildings within a large block campus or spanning several 
blocks would be classified as a University/College Special District. These development types range in size, 
organization, and intensity, but all represent a unique district or campus within the city.  Typically viewed as 
campuses, these special districts often have an institutionally managed master plan for internal circulation and 
building locations. The city should work with these institutions to ensure compatible transitions to surrounding 
development types are made, and that critical circulation patterns are maintained. 
 
 
Urban Core Mixed Residential -1: 
Primary Types 

• Multi-family Medium 
• Multi-family Small to Medium Mixed-

use 
• Single-family Attached 

 
Secondary Types 

• Multi-family Large 
• Multi-family Small 
• Two-family 
• Three-family 
• Single-family Detached  

 
Tertiary Types 

• Small to Medium Format 
• Business/Employment (excl. Flex) 
• Small to Medium Civic/Institutional 
• Parking Structures and Lot 

 

 
SD-5 Colleges and Universities: 
Primary Types: 

• Civic/Institutional 
 
Secondary Types: 

• Small to Extra Larger 
Business/Employment  

• Parking Structures and Lots 
 
Tertiary Types 

• Multi-family Institutional 
• (Dormitories) 
• Power Utilities 
• Water and Wastewater 
• Treatment 

 
 
 
 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcel is covered by The Master Plan for the Villages of North Columbia, which was completed in 
December of 2005 and adopted by the City.  The majority of the Lenoir-Rhyne property is within the College 
Village area, and is designated by the Plan as Higher Education Institutions North of N. Main Street, while the 
area proposed for amendment, South of N. Main Street, is designated Medium Density Residential Townhomes, 
Duplex, Live Work Units.  The property is within a five-minute walking distance of the designated N. Main Street 
at Monticello Road Major Activity Node. The Plan recommended the development of historic guidelines and the 
adoption of a conservation overlay for the Seminary Ridge Neighborhood, which was subsequently completed.  
Recommendations along the North Main Street Corridor include the proactive rezoning of commercial and/or 
vacant property into medium to high density residential districts, and the adoption of guidelines that reinforce 
commitment to a pedestrian-friendly environment. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that City Council consider the adoption of the attached ordinance to amend Chapter 8.3 of The 
Columbia Plan: 2018 – Future Land Use Map to modify the land use classification for the property from UCMR-1 to SD-
5. 

52.a

Packet Pg. 408



52.a

Packet Pg. 409



UCR-1

SD-5

UCR-1

UCAC-2

UCMR-1

UCR-1

UEMR

UCAC-2

UCR-1

N MAIN ST

LORICK AVE

ARLINGTON ST

WILDWOOD AVE

HYATT AVE

WINDEMERE AVE

DUKE AVE
WENTWORTH DR

MULLER AVE

ENSOR AVE

KINDERWAY AVE
MOUNT VERNON ST

ARGENT CT

HORRY ST

SOUTH STJACKSON AVE

HELMS ST

MARSTELLE
R ST

E MULLER AVE

JOHNSON AVE

KINDERWAY AVE

HYATT AVE

KINDERWAY AVE

ARGENT CT

JACKSON AVE

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:

Leigh DeForth
June 29, 2016

I
0 100 20050 Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

4202-06 N. Main Street, 4201-05 Horry Street, 1206-1210 Kinderway Avenue, TMS#: 09215-14-01
Existing FLU: UCMR-1; Proposed FLU: SD-5

Subject Property

52.a

Packet Pg. 410



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-080 

Amending the City of Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map for 4202 North Main Street, 
4204 North Main Street, 4206 North Main Street; 4201 Harry Street, 4205 Harry Street, 

1206 Kinderway Avenue, and 1210 Kinderway Avenue, Richland County TMS #09215-74-01 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia and community at large recognize the value of planning for future 
development and growth; and, 

WHEREAS, City Council approved Ordinance No.: 2008-085 on October 1, 2008 adopting the City of 
Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 in accordance with the South Carolina Comprehensive Planning Act of 
1994 (Title 6, Chapter 29 of the SC Code); and, 

WHEREAS, City Council approved Ordinance No.: 2015-014 on February 17, 2015 amending the 
City of Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 deleting the "Existing and Future Land Use Components of the 
Physical Area Development Element of The Columbia Plan: 2018" and replaced it with "Plan Columbia Land 
Use Plan Putting the Pieces Together", along with all the maps and policies contained therein; and, 

WHEREAS, 4202 North Main Street, 4204 North Main Street, 4206 North Main Street; 4201 Horry 
Street, 4205 Harry Street, 1206 Kinderway Avenue, and 1210 Kinderway Avenue, Richland County TMS 
#09215-14-01 was included within Plan Columbia Land Use Plan Putting the Pieces in Place adopted by City 
Council on February 17, 2015, and was assigned the designated future land use classification of Urban Core 
Mixed Residential -Type 1 (UCMR-1 ), while the future land use classification of Universities/Colleges (SD-5) is 
more appropriate, and the Future Land Use Map shall be amended accordingly; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia Planning Commission has provided input and recommendations in 
response to the public input and findings NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia this_ day of , 
2016, that the designated land use for 4202 North Main Street, 4204 North Main Street, 4206 North Main 
Street; 4201 Horry Street, 4205 Horry Street, 1206 Kinderway Avenue, and 1210 Kinderway Avenue, Richland 
County TMS #09215-14-01 was identified as Urban Core Mixed Residential - Type 1 (UCMR-1) in Plan 
Columbia Land Use Plan Putting the Pieces Together adopted by Ordinance No.: 2015-014 on February 17, 
2015. This property is apportioned to City Council District 1, Census Tract 2, contains 2.6 acres, and the land 
use classification shall be amended to Universities/Colleges (SD-5). 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

~ 
City Attorney 
Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised: 8/10/2016 
1617080281 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

52.b

Packet Pg. 411



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:00 PM A Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: West Gervais District Plan 
 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 09-20-2016_PH_CaseSummary_COMPPLAN_WestGervais (PDF) 
 2016-081 adopt West Gervais District Plan (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Ordinance No.: 2016-081 - Adopting the West Gervais 
District Plan as an addendum to The Columbia Plan 2018 
 
City Council District:2 
 
Proposal:Request that City Council adopt the West Gervais 
District Plan as an addendum to the City of Columbia’s 
Comprehensive Plan. 
  
Applicant:City of Columbia 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval  
 
PC Recommendation: 07/11/2016; Deferred; 08/01/2016; 
Approval with Modification (6-1) 

53

Packet Pg. 412



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
September 20, 2016 at 6:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT CASE SUMMARY  
WEST GERVAIS DISTRICT PLAN 

 
 
City Council District:  2 
 
Proposal: Request that City Council adopt the West Gervais District Plan as an addendum to the 

City of Columbia’s Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Applicant:   City of Columbia 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval  
 
PC Recommendation:  07/11/2016; Deferred  
    08/01/2016; Approval with Modification (6-1) 
 
Public Hearing, 1st Reading:  09/20/2016; Pending 
 
Public Hearing, 2nd Reading:  10/04/2016; Pending 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 

Introduction to Plan: 
Staff recommends approval of a resolution recommending the adoption of the West Gervais District Plan be adopted as 
part of the City of Columbia’s Comprehensive Plan.   Staff recommends to City Council the adoption of an ordinance 
adopting the West Gervais District Plan as part of the City of Columbia’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The Study Area: 
The heart of the Vista was used for this study area, which was defined by the Congaree River to the West and Assembly 
Street to the East.  The study area abuts the Innovista District to the South and follows the natural line of collective uses 
along Washington and Hampton to the North.   The planning area is 184 acres, and the majority of the area is utilized for 
commercial and entertainment uses.  The planning area also contains a number of landmarked structures and two –Design 
and Preservation Area Zoning Overlay Districts: the West Gervais Historic Commercial District and the West Gervais 
Historic Protection Area District. 
 
Purpose: 
The West Gervais District planning area is one of South Carolina’s premier arts and entertainment districts, and a vital 
economic and cultural driver in Columbia today.  The last planning for this area occurred in the late 1980’s and was 
followed by implementation over the following 20 years.  As many implementation items have been completed, market 
trends have changed and increased development is anticipated within this area an update to the 1980’s planning efforts 
was requested.  The development of an area Plan, especially as the City embarks upon a substantial code rewrite, has the 
ability to identify this vision and provide implementable strategies to make this vision a reality.   
  

53.a

Packet Pg. 413



Summary of the Plan and Organization: 
The Plan analyzes the existing conditions in the District, as well as the numerous comments received during the public 
input process.  A vision statement frames the discussion of future land use, where specific recommendations are made for 
ground floor activity zones, mixed-use residential zones, mixed-use commercial and office zones, a height overlay district, 
and a setback zone along Huger Street. The Plan discusses connectivity, citing the adoption of Walk Bike Columbia, and 
incorporating those recommendations within the West Gervais District Plan.  A discussion of the public realm follows, 
where recommendations are made for outdoor dining and plazas, wayfinding, site furnishings, shade, and public art.  The 
possibility of the creation of a pedestrian zone and the development of a plaza at Lincoln Street and Lady Street is 
specifically mentioned within the public realm section.  The Plan further notes that the West Gervais District is an 
excellent location for the development of green alleys, green roofs, and parklets.  Based upon the issues and opportunities 
identified through the planning process and within the Plan text, a series of implementable policy and physical 
recommendations conclude the Plan document.  These recommendations include concise strategies, assign responsible 
parties, and identify a timeframe for completion (short-, mid-, or long-term). 
 
Vision Statement: 
The West Gervais District Plan is guided by a Vision Statement developed in collaboration with community stakeholders 
and confirmed by hundreds of participants over the course of multiple public outreach meetings. 

1. The West Gervais District is a mixed-use neighborhood with a coordinated development pattern that celebrates 
the past through conservation of historic resources and looks to a vibrant future. 

2. The West Gervais District is a place that provides a mix of transportation choices with a strong commitment to the 
pedestrian environment; a City neighborhood that has a high level of internal and external connectivity and 
accessibility with the urban form. 

3. The West Gervais District is a district that provides a high level of transportation amenities. 
4. The West Gervais District is an urban neighborhood that allows for individuality yet encourages an aesthetic 

quality that keeps a pedestrian-scaled development pattern, promoting increased retail, entertainment, 
employment and residential units throughout. 

 
Future Steps: 
The document, if adopted by City Council, will serve as guidance for elected and appointed officials and City staff when 
making decisions about infrastructure improvements, amendments to local ordinances, and development reviews where 
applicable.  The policy recommendations related to zoning will be taken into consideration as part of the code rewrite 
process. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that City Council adopt of the West Gervais District Plan be adopted as part of the City of Columbia’s 
Comprehensive Plan as written.   
 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Planning Commission recommends that City Council adopt of the West Gervais District Plan be adopted as part of 
the City of Columbia’s Comprehensive Plan with the removal of 1015 Lady Street, TMS 09013-10-12, which consists of 
approximately 2.3 acres, from the planning area and recommendations within the document.   
 

53.a

Packet Pg. 414



LADY

PA
RK

HU
GE

R

GERVAIS

LIN
CO

LN

PU
LAS

KI

AS
SE

MB
LY

GA
DS

DE
N

WA
YN

E

SENATE

GIS
T

HAMPTON

WI
LLI

AM
S

PENDLETON

CITY CLUB

SHORTLEAF

WASHINGTON JUS
TIC

E

WAYNE
SENATE

WA
YN

E

PENDLETON

WASHINGTON

[

TMS 09013-10-12
Removal from Planning Area 

recommended by Planning Commission

West Gervais Study Boundary

53.a

Packet Pg. 415



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 416



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 417



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 418



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 419



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 420



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 421



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 422



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 423



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 424



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 425



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 426



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 427



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 428



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 429



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 430



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 431



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 432



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 433



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 434



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 435



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 436



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 437



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 438



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 439



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 440



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 441



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 442



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 443



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 444



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 445



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 446



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 447



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 448



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 449



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 450



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 451



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 452



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 453



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 454



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 455



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 456



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 457



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 458



D
R
A
FT 6

.2
1.

16

53.a

Packet Pg. 459



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-081 

Adopting the West Gervais District Plan as an addendum to The Columbia Plan 2018 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia and community at large recognize the value of planning for future 
development and growth; and, 

WHEREAS, City Council approved Ordinance No.: 2008-085 on October 1, 2008 adopting the City of 
Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 in accordance with the South Carolina Comprehensive Planning Act of 1994 
(Title 6, Chapter 29 of the SC Code); and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia Planning Department guided the visioning and creation of the West 
Gervais District Plan in response to and in partnership with the community; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia Planning Department has engaged the public and solicited feedback 
throughout the planning process by utilizing various public outreach techniques and holding a number of public 
meetings; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia Planning Commission has reviewed the West Gervais District Plan (dated 
june 21, 2016), has received input from members of the public, and has recommended that City Council adopt said 
plan with a modification to the planning area; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia this_ day of , 2016, 
that the West Gervais District Plan as dated June 21, 2016, a copy of which is attached hereto, is hereby adopted as 
an addendum to The Columbia Plan 2018 and is effective as of final reading of this ordinance; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that copies of the West Gervais District Plan, as an addendum to The Columbia 
Plan 2018, be made available for public inspection and copying in the offices of the City Clerk and the Planning and 
Development Services Department; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia direct the City 
Manager and City Departments to begin implementation of the West Gervais District Plan; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the City of Columbia should periodically review the West Gervais District 
Plan. 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

~·-
City Attorney 
Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised: 8/1 0/2016 
1617080284 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

53.b

Packet Pg. 460



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:01 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: Pursuant to §17-654(B), Amend the Design Guidelines for the 

West Gervais Historic Commercial District (§17-681(D)(1)) 
and the West Gervais Historic Protection Area District (§17-
681(C)(6)) 

 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Guidelines Amendment-West Gervais Guidelines (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Council District: 2 
 
Proposal: Request the adoption of revised guidelines for the 
West Gervais Historic Commercial District (§17-681(d)(1)) 
and the West Gervais Historic Protection Area District 
(§17-681(c)(6)) pursuant to §17-654(b). 
 
Applicant: Krista Hampton, Planning & Development 
Services Director, City of Columbia 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 
 
D/DRC Recommendation:07/14/2016; Approval (7-0) 
 
PC Recommendation: 07/11/2016; Deferred; 08/01/2016; 
Approval (6-1) 

54

Packet Pg. 461



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
September 20, 2016 at 7:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 

DESIGN GUIDELINES AMENDMENT CASE SUMMARY  
 

PURSUANT TO §17-654(b), AMEND THE DESIGN GUIDELINES FOR THE WEST 
GERVAIS HISTORIC COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (§17-681(d)(1))) AND THE WEST 

GERVAIS HISTORIC PROTECTION AREA DISTRICT (§17-681(c)(6)) 
 
 
 
Council District:   2 
 
Proposal: Request the adoption of revised guidelines for the West Gervais Historic Commercial 

District (§17-681(d)(1)) and the West Gervais Historic Protection Area District (§17-
681(c)(6)) pursuant to §17-654(b). 

 
Applicant:   Krista Hampton, Planning & Development Services Director, City of Columbia 
 
Staff Recommendation:  APPROVAL  
 
D/DRC Recommendation: 07/14/2016; APPROVAL (7-0) 
 
PC Recommendation:  07/11/2016; DEFERRED 
    08/01/2016; APPROVAL (6-1)  
 
ZPH, 1st Reading:   09/20/2016; Pending 
 
2nd Reading:    10/04/2016; Pending 
 
 

DETAIL 
 

The purpose of this amendment is to ensure that the process for reviewing development within the two districts is 
clarified.  Several years ago the City was asked to update the guidelines for the West Gervais Historic Commercial 
District and the West Gervais Historic Protection Area.  The result is a document that is updated with consistent language 
and photographs that reinforce the principles that have always been a part of the guidelines for these areas.  Since these 
districts are also within the City Center Design/Development District, those principles have been placed into this one 
document as well, making this a singular source for design review for the Design/Development Review Commission and 
for the public.  The development of the draft guidelines does not represent changes in the scope of review, and these 
guidelines have been presented to and reviewed by the community affected.   
 

PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 
 

The Planning Commission has also been asked to review the draft West Gervais District Plan, which recommends the 
modification of historic guidelines in Section 1.2 of the Plan.  The plan notes that the modification of guidelines for both 

54.a

Packet Pg. 462



the Historic Commercial District and the Historic Protection Area District is encouraged in order to address the 
preservation of existing resources and promote compatible development patterns. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends City Council adopt the revised guidelines for the West Gervais Historic Commercial District and the 
West Gervais Historic Protection Area District pursuant to §17-654(b). 
 

54.a

Packet Pg. 463



W E S T  G E R VA I S  S T R E E T  H I S T O R I C  C O M M E RC I A L  D I S T R I C T

d e s i g n  g u i d e l i n e s

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 464



D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 465



TABLE OF CONTENTS

4  Introduction
District Principles and Goals 

Underlying Basis
 History
10  Review Process and Administration

Review of Projects
12  Design/Development Review Commission

Other Reviews
14  Guidelines for New Construction
24  Guidelines for Rehabilitation and Maintenance
31  Demolition 
32  Signage
42  Site Design
48  Other Resources

W E S T  G E R VA I S  S T R E E T  H I S T O R I C  C O M M E RC I A L  D I S T R I C T

d e s i g n  g u i d e l i n e s

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 466



4
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

A. DISTRICT PRINCIPLES AND GOALS

 The purpose of these guidelines is to enable property owners within the district to utilize a 

common framework to retain the historic character of the area and to construct new buildings that 

complement the existing built environment. The goals are to continue the successful adaptive reuse 

of the area while minimizing impact on historic resources and to allow new buildings to enhance the 

pedestrian experience, reinforce the characteristics of the area, and complement the existing scale 

and patterns in the district. 

 These design guidelines are criteria and standards that the Design/Development Review  

Commission (D/DRC) must consider to determine the appropriateness of proposed work within the 

historic district, in order to accomplish the following goals:

  1     Protect the beauty of the city and improve the quality of its environment  

through identification, recognition, conservation, maintenance and enhancement  

of areas, sites and structures that constitute or reflect distinctive features of the  

economic, social, cultural or architectural history of the city and its distinctive  

physical features; 

  2     Foster appropriate use and wider public knowledge and appreciation of such  

features, areas, sites, and structures; 

  3     Resist and restrain environmental influences adverse to such purposes;

  4    Encourage private efforts in support of such purposes; and 

  5     By furthering such purposes, promote the public welfare, strengthen the  

cultural and educational life of the city, and make the city a more attractive  

and desirable place to live and work.

 Since 1994, the West Gervais Street Historic 

Commercial District has witnessed a multitude  

of renovation and new construction projects  

in the unique commercial heart of the Vista.  

Assisted by design guidelines, City Staff and  

the Design/Development Review Commission,  

these projects have enabled an historic ware-

house, retail and railroad district to maintain its 

charm and character well into the twenty-first 

century. 

I. INTRODUCTION

4

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 467



5
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

B. UNDERLYING BASIS (SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS)

 This historic district’s guidelines are based on the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation. The Secretary of the Interior  

maintains the honorary National Register of Historic Places program and oversees the National Park Service, which generates the Standards 

for the Treatment of Historic Properties. These standards are used nationwide to protect the architectural integrity of historic properties by  

encouraging the preservation of original materials. For clarity, the Standards for Rehabilitation are listed below: 

1  A property will be used as it was historically or be given a  
new use that requires minimal change to its distinctive  
materials, features, spaces, and spatial relationships. 

2  The historic character of a property will be retained and  
preserved. The removal of distinctive materials or alteration  
of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that characterize  
a property will be avoided. 

3  Each property will be recognized as a physical record  
of its time, place, and use. Changes that create a false sense  
of historical development, such as adding conjectural  
features or elements from other historic properties,  
will not be undertaken. 

4   Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in 
their own right will be retained and preserved. 

5   Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction  
techniques or examples of craftsmanship that characterize a 
property will be preserved. 

6   Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than  
replaced. Where the severity of deterioration requires  
replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will match 
the old in design, color, texture, and, where possible, materials. 
Replacement of missing features will be substantiated by  
documentary and physical evidence. 

7  Chemical or physical treatments, if appropriate, will be  
undertaken using the gentlest means possible. Treatments that 
cause damage to historic materials will not be used. 

8   Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. 
If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures will be 
undertaken. 

9   New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction 
will not destroy historic materials, features, and spatial  
relationships that characterize the property. The new work  
shall be differentiated from the old and will be compatible  
with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, 
and massing to protect the integrity of the property and  
its environment. 

10  New additions and adjacent or related new construction  
will be undertaken in a such a manner that, if removed in the 
future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property 
and its environment would be unimpaired.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 468



6
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

the wounded Confederates right near the tracks. 

East of the South Carolina Railroad Depot, the area 

was a mix of houses, small wood shops, the city gas 

works, the city machine works and the Congaree 

(also called Rose’s) Hotel at the corner of Gervais 

 Centered on popular Gervais Street, the area that 

came to be known as the “Vista” has had a colorful 

past. Essentially divided near the middle, the west-

ern half is reminiscent of the warehouse and railroad 

district that created the city’s massive transportation 

industry, while the eastern half reinvented itself in 

the early 1900s into a retail oriented, dense market-

place that followed building trends using brick walls 

and cast iron storefronts.

 Early development of the area was due to the 

railroad, which came to Columbia in the 1840s. 

By the Civil War the area was busy transporting 

soldiers and war goods, leading to the nation’s first 

wayside hospital when a group of ladies tended to 

and Assembly Streets during the late 1800s. Some of 

the houses on Gates Street, later named Park Street, 

were well-known brothels that were even identified 

publicly in the city directories. A saw mill and a few 

other establishments filled up Lady Street and more 

business took over the main corridor of Gervais 

Street by the late 1890s. Fire was a constant threat, 

and after the turn of the century the eastern part of 

the Vista matured into a retail corridor with brick 

buildings and cast iron storefronts that rivaled the 

main business district along Main Street.

 The dozens of railroad lines and spur tracks feed-

ing the many industries in the Vista and traveling 

further south to the cotton warehouses and textile 

mills relied on the depots near Gervais Street, and 

these industries helped lead to a boom period. The 

Vista was offering wholesale groceries, pharmacies, 

flour mills and retail stores, as residential develop-

ment filled in the city blocks along Washington, 

Lady, Senate and Pendleton Streets by the 1910s

 By the 1920s and 1930s new brick warehouses 

and retail building filled in Lady Street, and the city 

braced for the Great Depression. African-Americans 

developed a business district along Washington 

Street, and purchased the old House of Peace Syna-

gogue for use as a dance club, where the Big Apple 

dance was created. By the early 1940s the country 

C. HISTORY, STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE, AND DESIGN CHARACTERISTICS

1880s image of the wood-burning South Carolina Railway Company train in the Vista (Image courtesy Richland Library)

Nineteenth-century buildings in the 700 block of Gervais Street - 
ca. 1905 photograph. (Courtesy Richland Library)

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 469



7
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

millions of dollars on several large-scale projects 

including the burying of power lines, the burying 

of the railroad tracks, and the recreation of Sydney 

Park, later named Finlay Park.

 The Vista was recognized not just as a prime  

retail corridor but also as a historic gem in the city. It 

gained a listing in the National Register of Historic 

Places in the 1980s, followed up by historic district 

listing with the City of Columbia in the early 1990s. 

Subsequent private development was measured in 

was at war, and soldiers once again traveled through 

the Vista railroads and depots, on their way to 

foreign battlefields. The war’s end, however, brought 

about a different kind of boom period in expansion 

and development, with new suburban neighbor-

hoods drawing residents and businesses away from 

the downtown. 

 During the 1970s the Vista remained a com-

mercial district and had a variety of businesses, 

including tire stores, antique stores and other retail. 

Interest in the area grew as artists and small business 

owners found the Vista an inexpensive place to open 

shop by the 1980s. City officials turned a great deal 

of attention to the area during the same time, nam-

ing it the Congaree Vista and ultimately spending 

the millions of dollars, resulting in a vibrant, walk-

able hospitality district that has a unique character 

in the city, maintaining both its nineteenth century 

warehouses and railroad depot, as well as its early 

twentieth century retail buildings, harmonizing with 

new hotels, apartments, stores, offices and banks that 

round out this unique space.

A simple, multi-bayed cast iron storefront is shown on this ca. 1906 
image of 810-816 Gervais Street, which was perhaps the earliest 
multi-story retail building in the Vista. (Courtesy Richland Library)

A ca. 1905 photograph of the 1200 block of Lincoln Street, showing the passenger canopy and train station on the right and the old 
city gas works silo toward the left, with some evidence of brick paving on Gervais Street in the foreground.D

R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 470



8
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

THE STORE

The retail buildings in the district were created  
to display retail goods. They usually have the  
highest degree of ornamentation of all three  
building types. 

 •  Large expanses of glass on the first floor to  
display merchandise  

 • Recessed entries

 • Brick corbeling

 •  Projecting cornices contrasts in materials or brick 
designs in upper floors 

 • Upper floors typically have vertical windows

THE OFFICE

Created for office space, these buildings are some-
times attached to the front of warehouses. 

 •  Often have a symmetrical arrangement of  
openings on the façade 

 •  Single or double doors and windows, though 
there may have been multiple façade doors 

 •  First-floor windows were sized generally the 
same as those on the second floor

 • Often two stories

 •  Some have ornamentation in the form of brick 
corbeling, a cornice, or minor details at windows 
and doors 

 THE WAREHOUSE

As part of the railroad industry, warehouses were 
constructed to store and receive goods transported 
along the rail lines. 

 • Typically one-story

 • Constructed of either wood or brick

 •  Located adjacent to railroads and sometimes  
attached to the back of an office building

 •  Often had simple exteriors, gable roofs, and large 
openings along the side walls

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE  The West Gervais Street Commercial District is significant as a unique historic commercial location within the city of  

Columbia that has a cohesive character defined by consistent use of brick as a major building material. Developed over a number of years as a mixed residential and 

transportation area with a myriad of train tracks and warehouses, the district transformed around the turn of the twentieth century, gaining retail buildings and  

losing residential ones. With the earliest railroad dating to the early 1840s, the earliest historic building dating to around 1846 and a heyday of commercial  

construction that continued into the 1930s, this area represents a commercial and warehouse district distinct from the city’s historic retail business district along 

Main Street. The period of significance is from 1846 to 1940. 

THREE PREDOMINANT HISTORIC BUILDING TYPES IN THE DISTRICT

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 471



9
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

D. DESIGNATION BACKGROUND

Th e West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District was fi rst designated in 1994 as a result of several years of work to recognize and protect 

the large number of historic resources concentrated in the blocks surrounding West Gervais Street. Th is is an area that is unique in the city as it 

contains a mixture of warehouse, retail and offi  ce buildings that span from the 1840s to the 1930s, as well as the remnants of the mighty railroad 

system that fi rst spurred development along this major east to west route into the city. 

E. BOUNDARY MAP

D
R

A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

P
acket P

g
. 472



10
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

A. ACTIONS THAT REQUIRE DESIGN REVIEW

 Changes to the exterior of a building that are visible from any public right-of-way require  

design review, and City Planning staff will help determine that visibility. Changes that must be 

reviewed include: 

 •   New construction 

 •   Additions and/or enclosures

 •   Maintenance* 

   •    Any actions that alter the exterior appearance  
of a building

    •    Any actions that remove/change original materials  
or features of a building

   •    Site improvements such as paving, parking lots,  
screening of dumpsters, steps, fencing, retaining walls,  
decks, ramps, etc. 

 •   Signage

 •   Demolition or relocation

*Maintenance as a review item is further explained in section D. 

 

ITEMS NOT REVIEWED

 Changes to the interior of a building do not require design review UNLESS they affect  

the exterior, such as changes to windows, doors, etc. Building and Zoning permits are often  

required and it is the contractor and property owner who are responsible for obtaining  

all applicable permits.

II. Review Process &   
Administration

 Projects affecting buildings and sites with-

in the West Gervais Street Commercial District  

require review by the City Planning Department 

or the Design/Development Review Commis-

sion, which means that these projects receive an 

extra level of design review in addition to the nor-

mal city processes for issuing building and zon-

ing permits. Contact the City Planning staff at the 

first opportunity to determine whether a project 

may be reviewed “at staff level” by a staff member 

or by the Design/Development Review Commis-

sion (D/DRC). 

 The City of Columbia Zoning Ordinance 

dictates what may be reviewed at staff lev-

el and what must be reviewed by the D/DRC.  

Projects vary in their scope and impact on a  

historic building and the historic district;  

typically larger projects must go to a D/DRC  

meeting, which occurs once a month. Staff  

review may be accomplished in as little as one  

day or may take longer, depending upon the 

project. If the review process results in an  

approval for a project, then staff will issue a  

Certificate of Design Approval (CDA) and the  

applicant may pursue the proper permits.

10

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 473



11
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

D. GENERAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

 Contact the City’s Development Center at  

before a project begins to determine if any permits 

or temporary encroachment approvals are required. 

However, whether a permit is required or not,  

Planning Staff must be contacted with a scope of 

work for any exterior general maintenance, repair,  

or cleaning project. 

 •     If only a limited amount of rotted or  

severely deteriorated materials on the  

exterior of a building are being repaired  

or replaced, the same materials and  

appearance (ex. wood for wood, same size 

and details) should be used. 

 •     Any cleaning project that involves the  

exterior of a building must use the  

gentlest means possible, which typically in-

volves low pressure water and mild  

detergents. Maintenance projects require a 

CDA from Planning Staff to ensure that they 

comply with the guidelines.

Additional rehabilitation techniques and resources 

can be found in the addendum.

C. CERTIFICATES OF DESIGN APPROVAL

 Projects located in the district that fall under 

the review purview of these guidelines must obtain 

a Certificate of Design Approval (CDA) issued by 

Planning Staff. The CDA is a written description of 

the project and includes any conditions of approval 

as determined by Staff or the D/DRC.

B. ITEMS REVIEWED BY STAFF VS. D/DRC

 In an effort to streamline the review process  

for projects in the district, several items have been 

designated to staff for review:

 1  Staff Review: General maintenance,  
minor actions and alterations,  
site improvements, most signage, etc.

 2  D/DRC Review: New construction,  
additions, enclosures, major actions and 
alterations, demolition, relocation, etc.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 474



12
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

DESIGN/DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMISSION MEETINGS

 D/DRC meetings are held monthly. Projects on the agendas for these meetings are required 

to be publicly noticed, so a blue D/DRC public hearing notification sign will be placed on the 

property 15 days prior to the meeting. Staff will remove the sign after the meeting, usually within 

1-2 business days. 

 At the D/DRC meeting, staff presents an evaluation of the project based on the guidelines  

for the district, which is followed by discussion by the commission members. You will be given 

an opportunity to speak to the D/DRC about your project and answer any questions the  

D/DRC may have. Usually, but not always, the project is decided on the same day. If the project  

is approved with no unresolved details or conditions, Staff will prepare a Certificate of Design 

Approval (CDA) within the next 1-2 business days.  

 The CDA signifies that your project was approved and lists any conditions required by  

the D/DRC. This CDA is forwarded to the Development Center and the Zoning Department 

which will not issue permits without this document. If your project was not approved, then you 

may revise your project and re-apply or, if you feel the decision was made in error, you may  

appeal the decision to the local circuit court.

III. Design/Development 
Review Commission

 The Design/Development Review Commis-

sion (D/DRC) is a nine member quasi-judicial  

board appointed by City Council. Commissioners 

are those who by virtue of experience and/or  

education have insight into architecture and  

design review. They are responsible for evaluating 

projects within the City’s design and historic  

districts, as well as those involving individual  

historic landmarks, based upon the established 

guidelines for each.

12

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 475



13
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

 

IV. Other Reviews

 Any project within the city limits is subject  

to the City Code of Ordinances, the adopt-

ed building codes, zoning code, fire and safety 

codes, etc. For larger projects, the City’s Devel-

opment Center will coordinate the review of your  

project through the various departments that 

have purview and shepherd the project through 

the entire process. Smaller projects may not  

require this sort of coordinated review and may 

simply require a building or zoning permit;  

however, no permit will be issued from the City 

for any project until a CDA has been received 

from the Planning Division, indicating review 

and approval have taken place. Calling early in 

your planning process will assist in keeping your  

project on schedule.

Level of  
review  

required is 
determined

Staff
review

The D/DRC  
reviews projects

at regularly 
scheduled monthly
meetings. Decisions
are typically made  

in only one  
meeting.

D/DRC
review

Approved

Denied

Approved

Certificate of Design Approval is issued

DESIGN REVIEW PROCESS

 Consult with staff prior to beginning work to ensure the most efficient process

13

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 476



14
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

c.    Proportions of openings on each level (upper and 
lower stories) should be consistent with the  
building type (see pg. 8) and with historic examples 
of the type within the district. If no historic exam-
ples of the type exist then follow typical proportion 
patterns found on nearby historic buildings.

d.  Architectural features (ex. columns, pilasters)  
on the first floor of the façade should reference  
features and sizes of those found on historic  
buildings of the same type nearby.

 f.  The scale of each floor of a multi-story building 
should reflect the patterns of nearby historic  
  buildings of the same type.

g.  Whenever an infill building is proposed  
between two adjacent commercial structures,  
the characteristic rhythm, proportion and  
spacing of existing door and window  
openings should be maintained in  
the new construction.

1 Height

  Consult the current Zoning Ordinance for  
regulations regarding building height.

2 Size and scale

  The size and scale of historic buildings in the 
district varies between one story buildings and 
three story buildings along street frontages.  
The scale of the buildings is pedestrian friendly; 
it does not overwhelm the streets. 

 a.    The size and scale of a new building shall  
be visually compatible with surrounding  
buildings.

 b.    Buildings that are wider than the average 
width of the historic buildings or storefronts  
are to be broken up into vertical elements  
so as to segment the façade and respect the 
contextual, historic patterns of size and scale 
found on the block or street.

 There are relatively few noncontributing structures and very few vacant lots available for new  
construction. Each new or replacement structure can affect the character of the district positively or  
negatively and therefore must be undertaken with great sensitivity to the existing buildings on a block 
or street in terms of height, scale, proportion and rhythm of openings, setbacks, orientation, spacing 
and ground elevation relative to the street and surrounding development. New construction should be 
sympathetic to the architecture of an earlier period, and must take into account significant themes, such 
as height, materials, roof form, massing, set-back, and the rhythm of openings to insure that any new 
building blends with its context.

A. BUILDINGS 

    V.   Guidelines for 
New Construction

 The character of the West Gervais Street  

Commercial District has been retained and  

enlivened through the use of sensitive new  

construction through the last few decades.  These 

guidelines are helpful in encouraging develop-

ment that is respectful of the unique historic  

surroundings that make up the Vista.

14

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 477



15
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

3 Setbacks

  Historic buildings in the district are situated 
directly on the street front, or sidewalk. This 
emphasizes the dense, urban, pedestrian-friendly 
character of the area.

 a.    Situate buildings along the front lot line so that 
there is no setback on the lot.

 b.    Buildings on corners should be situated  
with a zero lot line setback on all street facing 
elevations.

 c.    All exterior walls should be parallel to the street 
they address.

INAPPROPRIATE
(setback is not aligned 
with adjacent buildings)

APPROPRIATE 
(setback is aligned with 
adjacent buildings)

4 Massing 

  Massing in the district is very simple. Exterior 
walls, excluding storefronts, generally do not 
have bays that recess or project. Each exterior 
wall remains on a single plane. 

 a.    Massing should reflect the simple historic 
exteriors that have single-plane exterior walls 
and should refrain from recessed or projecting 
single bays. 

 b.    Recessed or projecting vertical “blocks” should 
be used to break up a large-scale elevation that 
is much wider than historic elevations found 
on the same block or street to what is found on 
nearby historic buildings.

 c.    Architectural elements, contrasting materials, 
and detailing may be used to help break up 
massing on a façade that is wider than typical 
historic buildings in the district.

 d.    Design window and door openings to  
generate a ratio that is consistent with  
historic architectural patterns nearby,  
in order to break up massing in a way that  
conforms to the district.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 478



16
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

f.  If the building is on a corner lot, orient the  
storefront and main entry to the major  
pedestrian traffic pattern. Corner entries  
should not occur.

g.  New storefronts should feature recessed entries 
with a maximum depth of 5 feet.

h.  The storefronts of buildings constructed  
for uses other than retail may utilize  
patterns and sizes of openings from historic  
examples in the district, for example warehouse or 
office buildings.

i.  NanaWall or other movable wall systems which 
can reference historic patterns or details may be 
used in a storefront provided that the storefront 
can retain a delineated presence along the street 
when those systems are in use. 

b.  Utilize original patterns and details in unaltered, 
nearby historic buildings to provide context and 
guide new designs for rhythm of openings, size of 
openings, recessed entries, and other details.

c.  The storefront of a retail building should have a 
large percentage of glass; the glass should be as 
clear as possible (such as Ti-AC-36 or National 
Park Service approved product of equal perfor-
mance) to engage the pedestrian while meeting  
applicable building and energy codes. Tint applica-
tions after installation are not permitted.

d.  Retail storefront glazing should maximize the visi-
bility of storefront displays, and should avoid using 
small panes of glass, muntins or grids.

e.  The top of the bulkheads should be no lower  
than 18 inches and no higher than 36 inches  
from the ground.

5 Storefronts

  Historic commercial buildings, regardless of size 
and height, typically feature three main compo-
nents: the storefront, the upper façade and the 
upper cornice. Storefronts play an  
important role in the function of buildings as 
they provide display space for retailers and  
shelter for pedestrians when equipped with  
awnings and recessed entries. Therefore, the 
storefront is a highly visible component  
that enables pedestrians to interact with the 
building on a human scale. A storefront can be 
any first story of a building located adjacent to  
a street front and conform to the building type, 
for example warehouse, office or retail types.

 a.   Storefronts on new construction  
should follow the established patterns  
of historic storefronts in the district,  
which are limited to the first floor only;  
however, they should never attempt  

to create a false historical appearance.

  

Original storefront windows and doors at 1225 Lincoln Street

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 479



17
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

the block or street. Maintain a similar ratio  
of height to width in the bays of the façade.  
Arrange the relationship of solid components 
(ex. walls, columns, etc.) to open spaces  
(ex. windows, doors, arches) so that it is  
compatible with existing historic buildings  
on the block or street.

 b.    Rhythm of openings should be compatible with 
the type of building proposed and its historic 
precedent in the surrounding historic buildings. 
For example, retail buildings of two or more 
stories should feature large glass windows in 
the storefront but have more solid wall than 
glass in the upper stories.

 c.    If the type of building does not have a historic 
precedent, follow the prevailing patterns of the 
majority of the nearby historic buildings. 

 d.     Whenever an infill building is proposed, the 
common horizontal elements (e.g., cornice 
line and window height, width, and spacing) 
established by neighboring structures  
should be identified and the infill design  
should complement and accentuate what is 
already in place.

 e.    Windows should maintain vertical alignment 
between floors on multi-storied buildings  
to be consistent with the historic entry and  
fenestration patterns in the district.

openings on side elevations found in historic 
warehouse buildings, including size, scale, 
rhythm and other detailing.

 f.    Doors to retail shops should contain a high 
percentage of glass in order to view the retail 
contents, and should have a visible frame.

 g.    Main entries shall not occur on the corners 
of buildings; they should occur on the main 
façade to mimic historic patterns.

7 Rhythm of Openings

  Most of the historic buildings feature a high 

degree of symmetry in their fenestration and 

entries, and maintain vertical alignment between 

floors on multi-storied buildings. 

 a.    Construct new buildings so that the  
relationship of width to height of windows 
and doors, and the rhythm of solids to voids is 
visually compatible with historic buildings on 

6 Sense of Entry and Directional Expression

  Main entries on historic buildings in this  

district are located on the fronts of these  

building. On most of the buildings they are  

ornamented or recessed, sometimes within a 

storefront. No historic entries are located  

on the corners of buildings.

 a.    Place the main entrance and the associated 
architectural elements so that they are  
compatible to surrounding structures.  
Entries should reference historic openings near-
by in size and pattern.

 b.    Entries should reference historic openings near-
by in size and pattern.

 c.    Entries shall be distinctive, using recesses, 
arches, lintels, flanking pilasters, transoms  
or other features found on historic buildings  
in the district, or a modern interpretation  
of those features, to reference the attention  
paid to entries in the district.

 d.    On a building with multiple storefronts  
or bays, a main entrance may be located in 
each storefront.

 e.   Openings on side elevations may include  
small storefronts, pedestrian entrances  
or large openings. Large openings for warehouse 
buildings should reference historic patterns of 

Central entryway with symmetrical fenestration

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 480



18
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

c. Eaves, cornices, brackets, and chimneys

  Historic buildings in the district often have  

cornice, eave and roof features including  

chimneys, stepped parapets, brick, wood or 

metal cornices, and projecting eaves supported 

by brackets that add character.

 1.    Articulate the top of the walls with decorative 
elements reflective of patterns on nearby his-
toric buildings with original detailing.

 2.    Avoid exaggerated features that are out of pro-
portion to the building or that detract from the 
overall character of the building and district.

 3.   Modern designs can be used to interpret  
these elements if they can successfully reference 
these elements/features while respecting the 
building’s massing, scale, rhythm of openings, 
or materials. 

b. Materials

 Hip, gable and barrel roofs 

  The only roof materials that will likely be visible 

will be those on hip, gable or barrel roofs. Flat 

roofs are typically hidden behind parapet walls. 

 1.    Use roof materials that are visually compatible 
with those of surrounding buildings. 

 2.    If the roof material will be visible to any  
public right of way it should be consistent  
with a material typical for the type of  
building, for example seamed metal roofs  
are appropriate for warehouse roofs.

 3.    Standing seam metal with a traditional  
profile is acceptable for gable and hip roofs. 
Asphalt shingle is appropriate for gable  
and hip roofs. 

 4.    Other materials may be allowed if their  
used in the district on a similar roof type is 
substantiated by historic documentation.

 5.    Synthetic roof materials may be considered  
if they are able to correctly replicate historic  
appearance, finish, texture, size, shape and 
other detailing of historic materials.

8 Roofs

 a.  Types/forms

  The prevalent roof form in the area is flat, which 

is not visible to the public right-of-way due to 

the heights of the buildings and their parapets. 

This roof form is most popular for the twenti-

eth-century buildings. There are a few examples 

of hip roofs and one barrel roof, with gable roofs 

popular for a number of warehouses from both 

the 1800s and 1900s.

 1.    Use roof shapes and pitches that  
are visually compatible with those of  
surrounding buildings.

 2.    The roof form should match the types  
(flat, hip, gable, barrel) that are found within 
the same block or street. Flat roofs should  
utilize parapet walls to disguise them and any 
mechanical equipment from street view.

 3.    If using a gable or hip roof, the pitch  
should be comparable to historic examples 
found nearby within the district.

 4.    Radical roof pitches (steeply pitched, irregular, 
etc.) or architectural features that create overly 
prominent or out-of character buildings are  
not allowed. 

 5.    Roofs with outdoor spaces, including such 
features as trellises, walls, etc., should locate 
those features away from the street elevations 
in order to minimize their visibility.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 481



19
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

10 Materials, Textures and Details

  The existing context helps inform the materials for new construction in the district. Exterior wall materials 
that currently exist on historic buildings in the district include brick and stucco, with a singular surviving 
historic house that has wood clapboard. Brick found on these buildings has the traditional red clay color 
with a light-colored mortar. Secondary exterior materials include cast stone, stucco, natural stone, terra 
cotta, wood, cast iron, and other metals for cornices or other detailing. These historic materials have proven 
durable, and their prevalence in the district is an important part of what makes the area distinct. 

 a.    Use materials, textures, and architectural  
features that reference those of the historic 
buildings on the block or street. Materials should 
reference the finishes, details, textures, durability, 
shadow lines, sizes, shapes and orientation of the 
materials used historically.

 b.    The major exterior wall material should be brick 
or genuine stucco.

 c.    Secondary materials may include brick,  
genuine stucco, wood, cast stone, natural stone, 
terra cotta, metal, glass, and cast iron, with 
finishes that reference the surrounding  
historic district.

 d.    Utilize no more than three materials on the  
exterior walls.

 e.    Brick color should reflect the major trend of 
historic colors so that new construction can  
reinforce the ambience of the district.

 f.    Windows may be wood, aluminum-clad wood  
or metal. 

 g.    Details of new construction materials shall  
use depths, proportions, types, finishes and  
details of architectural features, including  
windows and doors, found on historic buildings 
in the district.

 h.    Foundation heights of new buildings should be 
consistent with those of historic buildings found 
adjacent or along the same street. 

 i.    Innovative, synthetic or sustainable products 
may be considered for exterior materials and 
secondary materials if they have proven to be 
durable and can create visual compatibility with 
the surrounding historic context and materials, 
including finishes, shadow lines, textures and 
details. 

9 Rear Elevations 

  When rear elevations are visible from  
surrounding public rights-of-way the following 
guidelines shall apply: 

 a.    The rear walls of buildings that are visible 
 to the public right-of-way will be treated  
as they are used. If they are used as a  
utilitarian area then their details and  
fenestration should reflect that use.  
Typically utilitarian elevations do not have  
a high level of architectural detail. 

 b.    If the rear wall fronts another street,  
regardless of its use as a utilitarian area,  
it shall address the street as though it  
were a façade.

 c.    The level of detail necessary for a rear  
elevation shall be related to its visibility, its  
impact on the district, and its use. If they are 
used as a main entry façade then they should 
reflect that use and reflect the patterns and 
details found in the facades of other nearby 
historic buildings.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 482



20
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

Rooftop Additions

1.  Rooftop additions are generally regarded as a case 
of last resort. The structure of the historic building 
should be studied to ensure the existing structure 
can withstand additional weight.  
If new components are proposed to strengthen 
existing structure, they must be done sensitively, 
without impacting the historic appearance  
of the building.

2.  Rooftop additions cannot exceed height allowances 
as dictated by zoning and guidelines. 

3.  The basic form and character of a building should 
be maintained with a rooftop addition.

4.  Rooftop additions should be set back to 
minimize visibility.

5.  Where visible, rooftop additions should be in  
keeping with the character of the building.

6.  Where additions would require the removal of a 
visible historic roof and its materials or a signifi-
cant architectural feature, or where it would alter 
the shape of a visible roof, rooftop additions shall 
not be permitted. 

7.  Additions are also subject to the guidelines for  
new construction.

 2.  Design additions to be compatible with the 
original structure in materials, style and  
detailing yet distinct enough to be an obviously 
new feature. For example, compatibility may  
be achieved through the use of the major  
building materials found on the existing  
structure, and distinction may be achieved 
through modern detailing.

 3.  Limit the size and scale of additions so that  
the integrity of the original structure is not com-
promised. The size and scale of the new addition 
shall be in proportion to the historic portion of 
the building and be clearly subordinate to it. 

 4.  Character defining features of a historic building 
shall not be radically changed, obscured,  
damaged, or destroyed in the process of adding 
new construction. Additions shall not signifi-
cantly alter original distinguishing qualities 
of buildings such as the basic form, materials, 
fenestration, and stylistic elements.

 5.  Additions should be able to be removed  
without harming the original building and  
its structural integrity. 

 6.  In rare cases, additions may be appropriate  
for facades of non-historic buildings.

 7.  Additions are also subject to the guidelines  
for new construction.

Additions 

Additions are appropriate to the rear of structures  
in the district, particularly on historic buildings.  
In some cases, where setbacks may allow, additions 
may be permitted on the side of a building  
if the side is not a significant elevation for that  
particular building.

 1.  Site additions so that they do not detract from 
or obstruct important architectural features 
of the existing building or others around it, 
especially the principle façades. Place additions 
away from the primary façade and allow the 
original façade and front bays of the side  
elevations to remain intact, if these sides are 
highly visible.

B. ADDITIONS, PORCHES AND DECKS

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 483



21
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

 3.  Porches and decks added to an existing historic 
building should be built so as to be removable 
in the future without impact on the associated 
historic structure. 

 4.  Porches or decks should be built to be distinct 
yet complementary to the associated structure. 

 5.  Prohibited materials include but are not limited 
to T-111 siding, unpainted or unstained treated 
wood, and vinyl. New materials must have a 
proven record of wear, and the ability to refer-
ence historic textures, finishes and details.

 6.  Where setbacks allow porches on the front of 
a building in the district, it shall be reviewed 
as a porch under these guidelines.  If the porch 
is later enclosed it shall be reviewed under the 
guidelines for additions. 

 7.  The design of porches shall not be oversized. 
Porches shall be integral to the design of the 
building and complement architectural details 
rather than obscuring such features.

 8.  If re-creating a porch detail that once existed 
on an existing building, use pictorial or historic 
evidence as the basis of design. The porch should 
be in proportion and scale as what would have 
been found historically, and should maintain 
the use of historically appropriate materials.  
It shall not be enclosed.

 9.  Porches should adhere to the guidelines for  
new construction.

Decks and Porches
Outdoor seating space is often sought after by  
business owners in the district where there is  
accommodation for them. Front porches are not a 
typical feature of historic buildings in the district. 

 a. For New Buildings

  1.  Porches or decks are most appropriate  
on the side or rear of new construction.  

  2.  If an outdoor dining area is desired on  
the front of a new building, it should be  
accommodated by the use of a movable  
wall system that allows the building to retain 
a street edge.

  3.  Prohibited materials include but are  
not limited to T-111 siding, unpainted or 
unstained treated wood, and vinyl.  
New materials must have a proven record 
of wear, and the ability to replicate historic 
textures, finishes and details.

  4.  Porches should adhere to the guidelines for 
new construction

 b. For Existing Buildings

  1.  Decks or porches are not appropriate for the 
facades (front) of most historic buildings in 
the district.  They may be located on the rear 
or sides of existing buildings where there is 
adequate clearance.

 2.  Side porches shall not be located flush with the 
street façade but rather will be set back to allow 
the original façade elevation and its corners to 
remain intact.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 484



22
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

B. FENCES, WALLS AND RAILINGS

Fences, walls and railings are not necessarily indicative  
of the historic character of the area; however, in certain  
circumstances, they may be required for purposes of  
enclosure or screening. 

 1.    Unless there is an extraordinary condition, front yard 
fencing and walls are not permitted. 

 2.    Materials and design should reflect the materials  
and architecture of the associated building and the  
district in general. Depending on the associated  
structure the following materials may be appropriate:

  •  Brick

  •  Wrought iron or metal

  •  Stucco

  •   Wood fences may be allowed provided they  
reference the associated building in design.

 3.    Prohibited materials include but are not limited to: 
  •   Concrete block (unless stuccoed or  

veneered with an appropriate material)

  •   Artificial siding (T-111 plywood,  
corrugated metal, vinyl)

  •  Metal chain link fencing

  •  Unfinished wood for fences or walls

  •   “Living fences” may be appropriate  
in certain locations.

 4.    Specific ordinances apply to fence heights and  
setbacks for side and rear yards. See Columbia Code  
of Ordinances for more information.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 485



23
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

 D. SECONDARY STAIRS AND ADA COMPLIANCE

Modern building codes and current law dictate a number of features that were likely not originally  
found on historic buildings. 

 1.    Attach secondary stairs, ADA compliance ramps, etc. to buildings in ways that minimize  
the physical and visual impact to the historic material and architecture.

 2.    Locate secondary stairs, ADA compliance ramps, etc. on new buildings in locations  
that minimize visual impact on the main elevations.

 3.    Ramps should use the primary building’s materials. Other materials, such as iron  
or concrete, may also be appropriate. 

 4.    For secondary stairs, etc., utilize materials that complement the building.

 5.    Do not introduce materials or designs for these features that are incongruent with the building  
design and materials.

C. SERVICE AREAS

Necessary to most businesses, service areas can be 
handled in sensitive ways to minimize their impact 
on the historic character of the district.

 1.    Service equipment such as the HVAC  
(heating-ventilation-air conditioning)  
units shall be placed in the least visible  
location of the site that is possible.

 2.    Roof mounted mechanical or utility equipment 
should be moved away from street frontages 
to minimize the need for added screening to 
shield them from view. If visible, the method 
of screening should be architecturally inte-
grated with the structure using like materials, 
colors, shapes and sizes. Equipment should 
be screened by solid building elements (e.g., 
parapet wall) instead of after-the-fact add-on 
screening (e.g., wood or metal slats).

 3.    Mechanical or utility equipment that must  
be located along a public alley or street shall  
be screened with elements matching the  
character and primary building material  
of the associated structure.

 4.    Vinyl fencing and lattice are not appropriate 
for screening of utility equipment within  
the district.

  5.   Refuse containers and actively-used service 
and loading areas must be screened from view 
by the buildings they serve or by solid masonry 
walls which are designed as an integral part  
of the building, finished with compatible  
materials and with a minimum height of at 
least one foot higher than the anticipated  
height of the dumpster. 

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 486



24
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

VI. Guidelines  
for Rehabilitation & 

Maintenance

 The character of the West Gervais Street  

Historic Commercial District is made up of  

surviving historic buildings that compose a rel-

atively intact example of a retail, warehouse 

and industrial district as it appeared in the  

early 1900s. Relatively little has changed on the  

surviving buildings, making them the most  

intact early twentieth century collection of  

commercial structures in the capital city. 

 In order to retain the high degree of integri-

ty that currently exists, it is important that their 

rehabilitation, adaptive reuse and maintenance 

strive towards retention of historic materials,  

details and characteristics.

a.  Existing historic materials including cornices,  
cast iron columns, windows, doors, transoms, 
specialty glasses (prismatic), bulkheads, and  
other decorative architectural details should be 
preserved to reinforce the traditional character of 
the district and add a richness of detail which is 
often irreplaceable at today’s costs. 

b.  Where the original storefront remains (little or no 
remodeling has occurred), it should be preserved 
and repaired with as little alteration as possible, 
and recessed sections shall not be enclosed.

c.  Where only part of the original storefront  
remains (limited remodeling has occurred),  
the storefront should be repaired, maintaining 
historic materials where possible, including  
the replacement of extensively deteriorated or 
missing parts with new parts based upon  
surviving examples of transoms, bulkheads,  
pilasters, signs, etc.

d.  Where the original storefront is completely  
missing (extensive remodeling has occurred),  
the first priority is to reconstruct the storefront 
based upon historical, pictorial and physical doc-
umentation. Where no documentation exists,  
the design of the new storefront should be  
compatible with the size, scale, proportion,  
material and color of the existing structure and 
follow local historic examples from the era.

e.  Clean historic storefronts using the gentlest  
methods possible. See addendum for more  
information. 

f.  Any repairs must use like materials (i.e., replace 
wood with wood, metal with metal, brick with 
brick, stone with stone, etc.).

g.    New material shall duplicate the original in size, 
shape, profile, thickness and texture as closely  
as possible. 

h.    Replacement material should consider original 
characteristics such as board width, length,  
exposure, and trim detailing. Plastic, vinyl, or 
PVC products are not permitted.

Many times in the remodeling of storefronts, original decorative architectural details are intact or simply 

covered up with subsequent construction. If the building is to be refurbished, these details should not be 

wasted, as they can often be restored as part of a reconstructed storefront. If only a few remain, they can be 

incorporated as features in a new design. In either case, the design of any improvements should grow out of 

the remaining traditional details and create a harmonious background which emphasizes them. 

A. STOREFRONTS

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 487



25
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 488



26
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

1.  Retain original doors, openings, surrounds, sidelights, 
trim, transoms and other details in their original loca-
tion and with their original size, materials and details. 
Openings that have gained historic significance but that 
are not original shall also be retained.

2.  Retain the original rhythm and pattern of door openings.

3.  Do not introduce new openings on the primary façade.

4.  Do not introduce new openings on highly visible  
elevations that would interrupt the original pattern of 
openings. If a new door is necessary (ex. for building 
codes) differentiate the opening so that it does not appear 
to be original to the building, but make it compatible 
with the materials and general design of the building.

5.  New entrances on secondary elevations should be placed 
away from the main elevation(s), should be differentiated 
from original openings in their design, and should main-
tain the rhythm of openings. For example, an  
existing window opening might be lengthened to convert 
to a door.

6.  Missing doors or doors deteriorated beyond repair should 
be replaced with doors that visually match the original, 
or that are of compatible design for the date of the build-
ing, and may be wood, metal or fiberglass.

7.   Nonfunctional entrances that are architecturally signifi-
cant should be preserved.

C. DOORS

Many existing historic doors feature half lite, ¾ glass, or full glass in wood frames with very simplistic designs 
and no added ornamentation. On side elevations the doors vary, with some large warehouse doors dotting 
lengthy brick walls.

B. ENCLOSURES

  Enclosing spaces can create a significant change 
on buildings. 

 1.    If the enclosure of a porch or other space is 
intended to maintain a porch atmosphere  
then transparent materials should be used. 
Place new material behind the columns  
and balustrade.

 2.    If a porch or other space is enclosed for the  
purpose of creating a new solid wall then it 
shall be subject to the guidelines for additions 
and new construction.

 3.    Temporary enclosures with plastic are not 
allowed without prior approval of the City’s 
Building Official or Fire Marshall, as per the 
City’s Building or Fire Code.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 489



27
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

7.  If no historic documentation exists as to the 
original windows and double-hung windows are 
appropriate for the window opening, then a 1/1 or 
6/6 configuration may be used, provided that there 
are exterior muntins on the 6/6 window capable of 
replicating historic detailing. For openings where 
different configurations would have been more 
likely, a new window shall conform with the mate-
rials and design typical for the style and era of the 
building. 

8.  Improve the thermal performance of existing 
historic windows through adding or replacing 
weather stripping and adding appropriate storm 
windows which are compatible with the character 
of the building and which do not damage window 
frames.

9. No plastic, vinyl or PVC windows are allowed.

5.  If a window is determined to be non-original 
or non-historic, a replacement window may be 
aluminum-clad with simulated divided lite of 
an appropriate design and configuration for the 
building’s era. If it is adjacent to historic windows 
it must match those windows in details and size.

6.  If wholesale replacement is found to be necessary, 
either match the original unit or substitute a unit 
appropriate to the building’s period of signifi-
cance, maintaining the use of historical materials. 
Aluminum-clad, double-pane wood windows may 
also be appropriate provided they can match the 
details, sizes and shapes of the historic windows.

1.  Retain original window openings in their original 
location and with their original size. Openings and 
windows that have gained historic significance but 
that are not original shall also be retained.

2.  Retain the original rhythm and pattern of window 
openings.

3.  When a building has original windows, jambs  
and trim, those items must be repaired rather than 
replaced. When a majority of the wood or metal is 
viable, repair of deteriorated or damaged windows 
shall be preferred over replacement.

4.  If replacement of a small number of units is 
deemed necessary by the D/DRC or City Staff after 
evaluating the sill, frame, sash, hardware, weath-
er-stripping, stops, trim, operability, and glazing, 
replace with units that match the original window 
and its various parts including detailing, size, 
reflective quality, and materials. 

D. WINDOWS

There are historic windows remaining in the district, though many are located in the upper floors of multi-story buildings. They are generally wood sashes with a  

double-hung appearance. Several buildings feature metal windows. Windows are a significant character-defining feature of any structure. Original wood windows were  

constructed so that individual components could be repaired instead of requiring wholesale replacement if one piece breaks or rots, and materials in historical wood  

windows tend to be of better quality than new wood windows.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 490



28
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

G. CORNICES 

Cornices are an important design element of several 
historic buildings in the district. Located at the top 
of the walls and near the roof, these elements are 
hallmarks of early twentieth century commercial 
design. 

1.  If a cornice is missing and there is documentary 
evidence as to its original or historic appearance 
then a replicated cornice may be installed. The 
new cornice may be of metal or wood or another 
material that closely resembles the appearance and 
durability of the original material.

2.   If a cornice is deteriorated it shall be retained and 
repaired using like materials.

3.  If a cornice has deteriorated beyond repair, or it 
is not an original cornice, it may be replaced by 
a cornice that matches the materials and details 
of the original cornice, or a material that is of the 
same appearance, detailing and durability.

F. ROOFS

Roofs are important features of historic buildings as 
well as the first line of defense against rainwater and 
other environmental elements. 

1.  If the roof material is not visible from the public 
right-of-way, the applicant may install any  
appropriate roof material for the slope and design 
of the roof.

2.  If the roof is visible then replacement material 
may be a commonly accepted modern item such as 
composition shingle or a historically appropriate 
material. Scallops or other unusual shingle shapes 
are not appropriate unless they have documenta-
tion proving they were originally on the building. 
The material currently on the roof may be repaired 
or replaced in kind. 

3.  Flat roofs that are experiencing water infiltration 
issues should be repaired with materials that are 
impermeable and should not receive any addition 
or change visible to the public right of way in order 
to amend water infiltration.

4.  Existing historic chimneys or features that are  
visible to the public right of way and contribute 
to the character of a historic building shall be 
retained and repaired in place. Removing and 
rebuilding a chimney is not encouraged.

E. SHUTTERS

There are some historic images depicting shutters  
on a few buildings; they tended to be solid and  
not louvered.

1.    Shutters should not be added to the exterior of a 
building if there is no evidence of them existing on 
the building.

2.    If shutters historically existed on the building, then 
new shutters may be added. They must be installed 
on hinges so as to appear functional and must 
appear to be able to cover the windows completely 
when closed. They must match the appearance of a  
historic shutter available at the time the building 
was constructed.

3.    If shutters are installed they must be wood or a 
material that has similar properties of durability 
and appearance; vinyl is not a permitted material.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 491



29
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

I. FOUNDATION 

The foundations of the historic buildings are either 
solid brick walls or are hidden behind brick founda-
tion walls, which gives a high degree of continuity 
between the brick walls and the foundation.

1.  Maintain a foundation and foundation walls  
in good condition and true to their historic  
appearance.

2.  Repoint brick as necessary with appropriate  
mortar and mimic original mortar lines in shape 
and size if making repairs.

3.  Avoid creating new openings in foundation walls 
unless absolutely necessary for access or mechani-
cal systems.

4.  Do not add stucco or other materials to historic 
foundation walls if there is no evidence they  
existed originally on the building.

J. GUTTERS 

Water infiltration around building foundations 
can be a major contributor to mortar loss in brick 
walls and wood rot in floor systems. Gutters are an 
important component of controlling rainwater and 
therefore preserving original masonry.

1.  Install gutters in locations that minimize their 
impact on important architectural features of  
the building.

2.  Minimize the visibility of gutters and downspouts 
by using materials with color tones sympathetic to 
the material to which they are attached.

3.  Gutters should be installed so that their water 
discharge is directed away from the building.

5.  Exterior wood features shall not be wrapped  
or covered in vinyl, metal or other synthetic  
materials, such as those designed to be used  
as a ceramic coating. 

6.  Exterior wood features shall be retained  
and repaired, using wood of the same size  
and dimension.

7.  Wood features that are missing or too deteriorated 
to be repaired must be replaced with wood or  
a substitute material that is visually compatible 
may be considered. 

8. No vinyl, plastic or PVC materials are allowed.

1.  Historic masonry shall be preserved and repaired 
using best practices for historic preservation so as 
not to cause further damage to historic materials.

2.  Repairs to historic masonry shall maintain  
original colors and materials; mortars used for  
repairs shall not be of a type to damage brick. 
Prior to repointing, a mortar analysis is  
highly recommended. 

3. Historic masonry shall not be painted.

4.  Historic masonry shall not be cleaned aggressively 
with high powered pressure washers, sand blasters, 
or other media blasters. Harsh chemicals shall not 
be used on the building, and sealers shall not be 
applied to the exterior brick.

H. EXTERIOR SIDING/TRIM

Almost all of the historic buildings in the district have masonry construction or masonry exterior walls. There 
are several examples of stucco, but unpainted brick is overwhelmingly used throughout, giving a continuity of 
appearance and color to this area that is unlike any other in the city. Masonry requires periodic maintenance 
such as repointing to keep the structure sound. D

R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 492



30
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

1. If placing exterior security bars over a window with 
muntins, attempt to align the vertical and horizontal 
bars with the muntins so that the security device is 
minimally visible. Paint the bars the same color as the 
muntins to further disguise them from view. 

2. Other security devices shall be evaluated based on 
their ability to conform with design elements found on 
the structure and on their visibility.

K. SECURITY BARS AND DEVICES 

Security bars may be necessary to avoid unwelcome 
intrusion, however these bars can be installed in sensi-
tive ways to minimize their visibility.

 

M. LIGHTING DESIGN

Well-designed lighting will highlight a building in 
ways that reinforce the historic nature of the district. 

1.Illumination should be soft and in keeping with the 
historic district. Generally, any lighting source that pro-
duces glare should be avoided, including but not limited 
to high pressure sodium/sodium vapor bulbs, tubular 
fluorescents, metal halide bulbs, etc. 

2. Lighting should produce a ‘wash’ of light rather than 
outlining a building’s façade or features.

3. Lighting should be clear in color.

4. Illumination should be directed and contained, 
should not create distortion, and should not ‘spill over’ 
onto other buildings or street frontage.

5. Lighting fixtures should be minimally sized, incon-
spicuous in color and design, and screened as much as 
possible from view. Wires and conduits should not be 
run on the primary building façade. 

The majority of historic buildings in this district are 
built with brick walls. It is unlikely they would make 
good candidates for a relocation project.

1. Relocation of a historic masonry building is   
highly discouraged.

2. Relocation of a wood frame, wood sided        
building is allowable.

N. RELOCATION

L. CANOPIES AND AWNINGS

Historically this district has featured several rigid, wood frame canopies extending from the sides of buildings to 
cover loading areas. Canvas awnings do not appear to have been used extensively along storefronts, but they are 
practical ways to protect windows from intense sunlight and add to the pedestrian experience. Awnings and cano-
pies can be located no less than eight feet from grade.

1.  Awnings should be attached to the building in mortar joints or in storefront framing so as to avoid damaging brick.

2.  Awnings should be a traditional shape that complements the architecture of the building. The awning shape should 
relate to the window or door opening and should not overlap adjoining features.

3.  Awnings may be made of a durable, commercial grade fabric, canvas or similar material having a matte finish with 
a single color, or they may be metal with traditional details and profiles.

4.  Awning frames and supports should be of painted or coated metal or other non-corroding material.

5.  When there are several businesses in one building, awnings of a single color should be used with simple signs on the 
valance flap.

6.  Canopies should be placed where they would have been found historically, typically along side elevations.

7.  Canopy materials should be wood or metal. If it is replicating a historic feature it should match in details, materials 
and profiles. 

8.  Canopies should be simple in design and should not detract from or obscure importance historic or architectural 
features of the building. 

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 493



31
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

A. Criteria for review of requests for demolition permits. The following criteria shall be used as a guideline by 
the DDRC or its staff for review of all requests for demolition permits. The commission may require the appli-
cant to provide certain information dealing with the criteria. The type of information which may be required is 
detailed in the commission’s rules and regulations; however, only that information which is reasonably available 
to owners may be required. 

1. The historic or architectural significance of a building, structure or object; 

2. A determination of whether the subject property is capable of earning a reasonable economic return on its value 
without the demolition, with consideration being given to economic impact to the property owner of the subject 
property; 
3. The importance of the building, structure or object to the ambience of a district; 

4. Whether the building, structure or object is one of the last remaining examples of its kind in the neighborhood, 
the city or the region; 

5. Whether there are definite plans for reuse of the property if the proposed demolition is carried out, and what the 
effect of those plans on the character of the surrounding area would be; 

6. The existing structural condition, history of maintenance and use of the property, whether it endangers public 
safety, and whether the city is requiring its demolition 

7. Whether the building or structure is able to be relocated, and whether a site for relocation is available; and

8. Whether the building or structure is under orders from the city to be demolished due to severe structural defi-
ciencies, and this criterion shall have added significance in comparison to the criteria mentioned in subsections (1) 
through (7) of this subsection.

B. In addition to the criteria above, if unapproved destruction of a historic building is the result of work being 
performed on the building, any proposed new construction shall recreate the size, scale and proportion of the 
demolished building. 

O. DEMOLITION

Demolition of historic buildings is greatly discouraged in the district. All demolition requests include the same 
basic review criteria as that found in the City Ordinance 17-674(e) and listed below:

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 494



32
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

VI. Guidelines for 
Signage

 

 Signage is an integral component to any  

business and has the ability to reinforce or detract 

from the appearance of the business as well as  

the historic district. It is necessary to maintain  

the positive and unique character of the dis-

trict while successfully identifying individual 

businesses. It is desired that all signage would  

communicate a clear message which reinforces 

the ease with which the area is navigated by pe-

destrians, drivers, and customers.

 Signage must also meet the Columbia Code  

of Ordinances. Sign permits are required for  

all signs, including temporary signage, and  

design review is required for all permanent  

signage. Signs extending into the public right-of-

way require encroachment permits and limited 

liability insurance. For further information, call 

Planning and Development Services.

Permitted signage

 Several types of signage are appropriate for  

the West Gervais Historic Commercial District.  

However, even permitted signage might be  

inappropriate for a building if signage is scaled  

too large or inappropriately placed. 

 The following sign types are historically  

appropriate for the West Gervais Historic  

Commercial District:

 •  Walls signs

 •  Projecting signs

 •  Free-standing signs (where space allows)

 •  Figurative signs

 •  Menu or directory signage

Prohibited signage

 Not all sign types are appropriate for historic  

districts and the West Gervais Historic Commer-

cial District specifically. Following is a list which 

includes but is not limited to the types of signs that 

do not contribute to the historic environment: 

 •   Signs with digital or changeable copy

 •  Signs employing visible LED lights

 •   Signs with internally illuminated  

channel letters

 •  Billboards

 •  Plastic cabinet boxes or panels

 •   Pin mounted letters intended for installation  

in historic masonry

 •  Any new signage painted on historic masonry

 •  Digital signage

 •  Poles topped with signage

A. PERMITTED AND PROHIBITED TYPES OF SIGNAGE

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 495



33
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

3 Installation/Attachment

  When installing signage on historic buildings, 

every effort should be made to install into the 

mortar (repairable) rather than the building’s 

masonry.

  Individually pin-mounted signs are highly 

discouraged where they penetrate into historic 

masonry. Raceways are preferable where they can 

be made to blend with the material in which they 

are installed. 

4 Materials

 Materials should be compatible with the                     

 associated building and the design of its facade.

1 Scale

  All signs shall be sized and installed in a manner 

that respects the design, scale and proportions  

of a building, including the arrangement of  

bays and openings, and should not obscure any 

ornamental or architectural features. 

2 Location

  Signs should be located where architectural  

features or details suggest a location, size, or 

shape for the sign.

  All signs in the district should always terminate 

below the roof line and should never be placed 

atop awnings or canopies. 

 

B. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SIGNAGE

Generally all signs should be compatible in material, size, color, etc., with the associated building and within the 

district. Likewise, the scale of new signage must be carefully considered and should be proportioned appropriately 

for the building. Signs throughout the district shall relate primarily to the sidewalk instead of motorists.  

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 496



34
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

5 Color

  The use of color in a sign should enhance it and 

contribute to its legibility. 

 •   Limit the number of colors used in any one 

sign. Too many colors used simultaneously 

can confuse and negate the message of a sign. 

Small accents of several colors may make  

a sign unique and attractive, but the  

competition of large areas of many different 

colors decreases readability. 

 •   Use sign colors that complement the  

colors used on the structure and the project  

as a whole. 

 •   Bright day-glo (fluorescent) colors are  

distracting and are discouraged.

4 Materials

  Materials should be compatible with their associated building and the design of its façade. 

Permitted materials:

 •   Wood carved, sandblasted, or etched signs are 

appropriate when and properly sealed, painted, 

or stained;

 •   Metal formed, etched, cast, engraved signs are 

appropriate when properly primed and painted, 

or factory coated to protect against corrosion. 

Metal composite materials such as alumicore or 

dibond are acceptable; 

 •   High-density pre-formed foam, and blasted, or 

etched signs are appropriate when simulating 

traditional wood signage. Similar material may 

be acceptable upon review; 

 •   Open faced custom neon tubing, in the form of 

graphics or lettering, logos, or imagery, may be 

incorporated into several of the above permitted 

sign types;

 •  Clear annealed or tempered glass;

 •  Die-cut vinyl

Prohibited materials:

 •  Plastic dimensional letters

 •  Internally illuminated channel letters

 •  Internally illuminated cabinet box signs

 •  Paper/cloth, balloons or inflatable materials

 •  Plexiglass 

 •  Any textured, frosted, or stained glass

 •  Any plastic boxes or panels

 •  Exposed diode bulbs

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 497



35
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

7 Illumination

  Like other aspects of signage, illumination will have a significant effect on the character of   

historic district. Appropriate lighting in the district will provide a more intimate feel to the area  

at night, reinforce the historic character, and still provide effective illumination for individual  

business signs. There are many excellent examples of such signage in the West Gervais Street Historic 

Commercial District. 

Permitted lighting choices

 •   First, consider no lighting at all. Evaluate if 

streetlights or interior lights may be sufficient to 

identify the business; signs should be lighted only 

to the minimum level required for nighttime 

readability.

 •   Indirect lighting is a highly encouraged form of 

lighting in the historic district and helps signage 

to become an integral part of the building’s 

façade. Indirect lights should be focused and 

shielded to prevent glare; lighting levels should 

be at the minimum level required for nighttime 

readability;

 •   Back-lit, or halo lit, lighting is also highly  

encouraged. Letters should be completely opaque 

to create a back-lit or halo effect and to facili-

tate the soft background glow which provides 

illumination;

 •   Open-faced neon, with no plastic surround or 

cover, is appropriate in the historic district. 

Prohibited lighting choices 

 •  Face-lit signs

 •  Internally illuminated channel letters; 

 •  Any cabinet sign with internal lighting;

 •   Bare-bulb lights which comprise a sign or are 

used as enhancements, as well as any signage 

with changing lights; 

 •  Any sign which employs visible LED lights

 •   Signs with changeable copy (unless manual-

ly changeable copy for a theater, directories, 

church, etc.); 

 •  Digital changeable copy;

 •  Neon encased in plastic

 •  Exposed diode bulbs

6 Sign Legibility

  An effective sign should do more than attract  

attention, it should communicate a message. 

 •   A careful choice of words and attention to brev-

ity is encouraged and increases the effectiveness 

of a sign. A sign with a brief, succinct message is 

easier to read and looks more attractive.

 •   Limit the number of fonts to increase legibility, 

using no more than two for small font and three 

for larger signs.

 •   Unless part of a registered trademark, avoid 

overly intricate typefaces or symbols which are 

difficult to read.

 •   Use symbols and logos in place of words wherev-

er appropriate. These will usually register more 

quickly in the viewer’s mind than a written 

message (see 4. Figurative Signs under ‘Types of 

Signs). 

 •   Avoid using high gloss finishes which are difficult 

to read.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 498



36
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

2 Projecting signs

  Projecting signs are generally two sided signs, 

suspended from an iron bracket or building  

element, are mounted perpendicular to the 

face of the building and require minimum 

anchoring, thus lessening damage to a facade. 

Projecting signs also provide high visibility to 

pedestrians and vehicular traffic since signs 

are mounted perpendicular to the right of 

way. They may be installed either vertically 

or horizontally. Any projecting sign requires 

at minimum an eight foot clearance from 

the bottom of a projecting sign to grade in a 

public right-of-way. Liability insurance is also 

required; please call the Zoning Department 

for more information.

1 Wall signs

  Wall-mounted signs are an appropriate and 

traditional form of signage in the district, indeed 

many historic commercial buildings featured an 

area above the storefront expressly for signage. 

Wall signs should continue to be located where 

architectural features or details suggest a  

location, size, or shape for the sign.

 •   Employ backer panels, which highlight text and 

minimize intrusions into historic materials. 

 •   Raceways may also be utilized. Raceways  

should match the building color where the sign 

is located.

 •   Pin-mounted letters are not appropriate for  

use in historic masonry but may be installed  

in mortar; also they may be installed in  

non-historic or repairable building material or 

upon a backer panel. 

 •   Wall mounted directory signs should be used  

on multi-tenant sites to reduce the visual clutter 

of many signs. Each nameplate should match 

each other in background color, size, and  

general style. 

C. SIGN TYPES

The following typify the signage historically found in the district. Signs should not overwhelm the archi-

tecture of a building and they should be scaled and placed on a building appropriately. These are provided 

to help ensure that signage supports a building’s architecture and the integrity of the district. 

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 499



37
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

 •   Projecting signs shall be limited to one per  

tenant space and regardless of tenant spaces 

shall be spaced no closer than 20 feet from  

one another.

 •   Signs throughout the district shall relate to 

the sidewalk instead of motorists. In this case, 

small projecting signs or signs under awnings 

are most appropriate. 

 •   Any under awning or canopy directional  

signage shall be a simple blade sign of metal 

or wood (or similar material) and shall be no 

more than 2 s.f. 

Large Scale Projecting Signs

Large scale projecting signs shall follow all  

applicable guidelines for small scale projecting 

signs. 

Additionally: 

 •   Large scale projecting signs will require 

significant engineering to attach to modern 

or historic structures. Detailed engineering 

drawings with specifics related to attachment 

to the structure shall be submitted with appli-

cations.

 •   Drawings shall provide specifics as to mounted,  

removal, drilling, and other connection tech-

niques to the structure. Damage to historic 

materials shall  

be minimized.

 •   Only one large scale projecting sign shall be  

permitted for a structure and shall be located 

on the upper floors of the building.

 •   Large scale projecting signs shall harmonize 

but not visually obscure other blade and pro-

jecting signs within the city block.

Small Scale Projecting Signs:

 •   Projecting signs should be hung at a 90 degree 

angle from the face of the building. 

 •   Signs should be mounted into the mortar of a 

masonry building as much as possible in order to 

avoid penetrating historic masonry. 

 •   Projecting signs in general shall be located near the 

business entry. Location shall be with the store-

front and more  

specifically mounted under the storefront cornice 

or second floor window sills. Determination of 

appropriateness shall be determined on a case by 

case base by Planning Staff based upon the unique 

design of each storefront façade.

 •   If more than one projecting sign is planned for a 

building, projecting signs on a building should be 

placed so that they harmonize but do not visually 

obscure one another. 

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 500



38
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

4 Figurative signs

  Signs which advertise the occupant business 

through the use of graphic or crafted symbols, 

such as shoes, keys, glasses, books, etc. are 

encouraged and should follow the same rules for 

placement, size, coordination with the building, 

etc., as other sign types.

3 Free-standing signs

  Free-standing signs are not common in the 

historic district since structures are typically 

required to be built to the front lot line. However, 

where there is adequate room on an existing lot, 

a monument sign might be employed.

 •   Monument signs should be no higher than  

6’ above grade and shall be incorporated into  

the street-side landscape buffer. 

 •   When a street side landscaping buffer is not 

present, new landscaping shall be provided 

around the base of the sign. Landscaping at the 

base may not be required when a monument 

sign is constructed in the hardscape of an urban 

area, such as a plaza, in order to reinforce the 

urban character of the area. 

 •   Monument signs shall appropriately transitioned 

into the landscape by incorporating a base and 

supporting structure that utilizes a building’s 

design, architectural features, and materials.  

In rare instances, lot configuration, buffer  

dimensions, and the grade of the lot may require 

a different configuration than a standard mon-

ument sign. Aside from material considerations, 

primary consideration should be an appropriate 

scale for pedestrians and the visual impact upon 

the building and its surroundings.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 501



39
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

6 Multiple establishment signage

  Where multiple businesses reside in one  

structure, an organized and coherent approach to 

signage will benefit both the businesses and the 

character of the Vista and other design districts. 

A master signage plan for these buildings is 

required. Multi-establishment signage plans are 

intended to create design compatibility among 

various tenants or buildings in a project.  

Compatibility does not necessarily meeting  

identical. Design compatibility should be  

accomplished by using two or more of the  

following elements:

 •  Common theme or design 

 •  Similar construction methods and/or materials

 •  Use of compatible colors, lettering, or style

 •  Compatible scale and size

  In buildings with more than two businesses,  

all signage should be coordinated in terms of 

size, placement, color, and overall design.

 5 Window signs

  Window signs have an ability to convey a  

message or store name to pedestrians. Window 

signs can be creative and come in many forms 

and styles. Window signs shall follow the follow-

ing guidelines:

 •   Should be limited to individual letters and logos 

placed on the interior surface of the window  

and which are intended to be viewed from  

the outside. 

 •   Glass-mounted graphic logos may be  

applied by silk screening or pre-spaced vinyl  

die-cut forms.

 •   Window signs shall not cover more than  

50% of the area of each panel of window  

glass; signage percentages will be measured using 

a geometric shape and anything that falls within 

this shape will count toward total square footage 

of signage.

  PLEASE NOTE: Check with the City’s Zoning 

Department if you are planning to hang signage 

on the interior of the building within 12” of the 

storefront. Regulations may apply. 

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 502



40
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

9 Menu Board Signage/Directory Signage

  A menu or directory board is a sign designed  

to advertise a menu for a restaurant or provide  

a list of building tenants. These signs are  

attached to the exterior of buildings near main 

entrances. Typically these signs consist of a tight 

weather proof box with glass or no breakable 

glass-like product to display menus, names or 

similar information.

 •   The menu/directory board shall be  

positioned to avoid obscuring or damaging 

architectural details. 

 •   The menu/directory board size and shape shall 

relate to the wall area in which is it mounted. 

 •   Menu/directory boards may or may not be  

illuminated. If illuminated the lighting shall  

be indirect or from an external source. Glowing 

plastic menu faces are not permitted.

7 Awnings

  When awnings are appropriate for a storefront 

and signage on the awning can be an appropriate 

way to convey a message or store name. 

 •   Signage shall be located upon the valance of  

the awning.

 •   Text copy is limited to the name of the business. 

 •   Text located upon the valance shall be limited to 

50% of the valance area.

  •   The color of the fonts shall contrast with the 

awning color (white/black), and be compatible 

with the building color scheme. 

 •   Awnings may not be illuminated from within 

but lighting directed to the sidewalk or to the 

storefront may be considered.

8 Sandwich boards 

  These are permissible per Zoning Department 

regulations and with adherence to the appropri-

ate insurance and ADA requirements. Sandwich 

boards do not require design review but they 

must have permits. Please contact Planning  

and Development Services, Zoning Division at 

(803) 545-3333.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 503



41
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

11  Historic Signs

  Historic signs can contribute greatly to the  

character of a historic district and where they 

exist, should be retained. Entirely aside from the 

architecture of the building upon which they  

reside, historic signs often easily signal another 

era and can become iconic in their own right. 

There are just a few historic signs still present  

and the City should retain these to help capture  

a snapshot of the area’s younger days. 

  Recognizing the significance of historic  

signage, The Columbia City Ordinance does  

not require the removal of historic signage no 

longer associated with a resident business,  

nor is historic signage included in an overall sign 

count, which is typically required by the Zoning 

Division’s review.

 •   Historic signs should remain as they were  

originally designed.

 •   Historic painted wall signs and “ghost” signs 

should be retained where feasible and should not 

be painted over.

 •   New signage shall be placed and incorporated 

with the old so as not to overwhelm either the 

building or the extant historic signage. 

10 Pedestrian Walkways:

  Commercial establishments are beginning to 

flourish in alleyways which run midblock and 

which often reference early railroad spurs. Today 

they serve as pedestrian connectors, and the 

identification of businesses or offices along them 

may be helpful for pedestrians as they navigate 

the district. 

 •   Identification of an alley and businesses therein 

might be handled either by a directory kiosk 

(which might include a formal directory with 

map, signage, store locations) or a pole sign 

with individual tenants listed with directional 

arrows. A pole height should terminate at 7’. 

Kiosks shall be scaled to pedestrians.

 •   Any kiosk or pole design should be coordinated 

with any City way-finding plans as well as the 

immediate surroundings. If a way-finding plan 

is not in place, then kiosks and other wayfinding 

structures should coordinate with one another 

throughout the historic district. 

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 504



42
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

14

•   Pedestrian connectivity is a priority throughout 

the District; 

•   Pedestrian safety and comfort including ADA 

accessibility, shade, and lighting are all critical 

elements that will be considered;

•   Pedestrians shall have a dedicated space or a 

delineated path to travel from parking areas to 

buildings or destinations; where possible, sepa-

rating the pedestrian from the vehicular way;

•   These spaces shall be designed to the highest urban 

design standards to contribute to the urban charac-

ter of the district;

•   The following elements will be considered, where 

applicable, as part of the site design review process: 

      • Building siting and orientation

      • Parking location, treatment, and screening

      • Open spaces, to include plazas, 

                   streetscapes, and  alleys

      • Lighting

      • Public art

A. URBAN DESIGN

Whether they are sidewalks, alleys, pathways through or alongside parking lots, or plazas, the exterior spaces 

within the District provide access for pedestrians to travel between destinations or simply to inhabit. The location 

and design of these spaces shall be considered with the following principles which reflect best practices for urban 

design:

    VII.   Guidelines for 
Site Design

 

 The spaces between and adjacent to buildings 

within the District are critical to the character and 

function of the urban environment. The princi-

ples of good urban design are consistent with the 

fabric of the historic district, as it was originally 

designed to accomodate and engage pedestrians 

in the 19th and early 20th century. These princi-

ples include locating and orienting the buildings 

toward the major street frontage, providing con-

tinuous, safe and comfortable pedestrian zones, 

and providing an interesting and stimulating 

environment to engage the pedestrian along the 

sidewalk.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 505



43
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

•   Generally, the parking required for each block 

should be contained within that block. Where 

parcels within a block are developed by different 

owners, the parking requirements of each develop-

ment should be accommodated within its own parcel 

unless a cooperative parking plan is submitted at the 

time of the earliest development. 

•  Development of surface parking on corner lots or 

adjacent to right-of-way shall be avoided.

•  Direct vehicular access into Gervais Street and 

other east west streets is discouraged; access to sur-

face parking behind Gervais Street should be from 

north south streets when possible. 

•  The use of an entire block for parking (either sur-

face or structured) is generally discouraged.

•  Parking structures shall be located within the 

block core, with actively programmed building space 

fronting on all streets. 

•  All parking shall be screened from the public 

right-of-way with a continuous evergreen hedge, 

2-3’ high.

•  Surface lots shall incorporate shade trees at regular 

intervals to provide a continuous canopy at full 

maturity. 

•  Where location of parking within the block core is 

not feasible, parking structures should be located to 

the rear of the principal-use building, with the prin-

cipal-use building oriented to front on the address 

•  An outdoor dining area, provided it is designed 

with commercial quality materials and furnishings 

that coordinate with the building design and the 

public right-of-way where appropriate or,

•A residential application, where individual stoops 

provide access and privacy is a concern.

One of the most difficult issues in urban develop-

ment is providing an adequate amount of conve-

nient parking without allowing parking structures 

and surface lots to dominate the urban setting. The 

amount of off street parking required for any new 

development is prescribed in the City’s Zoning 

Ordinance; the guidance provided herein should 

ultimately be reflected in the parking provisions 

of that ordinance. Following are several principles 

that should apply to all parking facilities within the 

District, both structured and surface.

The manner in which a building functions and how 

it is accessed on a site are critical to how the building 

contributes to the overall quality of the built environ-

ment. Primary access shall be provided from the pub-

lic sidewalk and consistent with the historic patterns 

of the District. New development in the West Gervais 

Street Historic District shall follow the guidelines 

in Section V. Guidelines for New Construction for 

setbacks. In very specific circumstances, an exception 

may be made by the DDRC, when certain conditions 

exist and where it is does not have a negative effect 

on the existing development pattern. Some possible 

conditions are as follows:

B. BUILDING SITING & ORIENTATION

C. PARKING

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 506



44
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

restaurants, residential units, or offices. 

Goals and methods for landscaping in an urban 

setting differ from common suburban practices; the 

following guidelines emphasize those differences, 

without attempting to cover all principles of sound 

site design and horticultural practices. 

• Maintenance resources should be given first 

consideration when planning the urban landscape. 

In most situations, ease of maintenance is of para-

mount importance. Complex designs should never 

be attempted unless the required maintenance can 

be assured.

• Site preparation and grading should respect 

traditional urban forms of development. Berms and 

other suburban land sculpturing techniques are not 

appropriate in the West Gervais Street Historic Dis-

trict.

• Shade trees shall be incorporated wherever 

possible, on streetscapes, in parking areas, and in 

pedestrian plazas and alleys. 

• Plant materials, particularly canopy trees, 

should be selected from varieties which are well 

adapted to the local climate and soils, resistant to 

pests, diseases, and drought; long-lived and strong, 

and free of excessive litter and other maintenance 

problems. Canopy trees should have an attractive 

The West Gervais Street District’s streets, with their 

street trees and pedestrian amenities, are its prima-

ry open space. The narrow setbacks are specifically 

intended to prevent development of the broad land-

scaped open spaces typical of suburban campus-like 

settings. Any unbuilt zones along the setback line 

(i.e., plazas, entrance courts) should be small, in-

tense areas that are placed and designed so that they 

will be occupied at various times of the day.

To invite public use and ensure user security, plazas 

or other public open spaces should be visible from 

streets and sidewalks, and should be surrounded by 

actively programmed building spaces such as shops, 

street. The ground floor of the parking structure 

should be actively programmed. 

•Structured parking configured as a base level 

podium supporting a high-rise tower should not be 

permitted.

•  The architectural treatment of parking structures 

should be compatible in quality, form, materials, col-

ors and textures with the structure(s) being served.

•  Parking structure roof lines which are visible from 

the street should be level; ramping should occur 

within the structure or on the interior of the block 

where it is screened from the street. 

• Light sources within parking structures 

shall be screened, whether architecturally or other-

wise, from the street.

• New parking lots and existing surface 

parking lots which are serving new or renovated 

buildings shall be designed to minimize the negative 

impact of large paved surfaces on the quality of the 

visual environment.

D. OPEN SPACES

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 507



45
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

• Site lighting shall be adequate for the 

security of the site while maintaining a low lighting 

profile that reduces overspill and glare.

• The maximum height for pole-mounted 

parking lot or site lighting shall be 15’ at the top of 

the light source.

• Use high-efficiency lighting with low cut-off 

angles and down-lighting for landscaping

• Use reflective-type lighting fixtures to 

reduce or eliminate glare and provide safer, more 

human-scaled nightscapes.

• Allow zero direct beam exterior lighting at 

the property line.

Public art should be incorporated into the District 

wherever possible to create a special identity and 

sense of place for important spaces including plazas, 

parks, and building entrance areas. The purpose of 

this section is not to create guidelines for the art it-

self, but rather to provide guidance for its placement.

Site Selection- when selecting a site, public art:

• Should be located on axes and circulation 

paths to take advantage of views, visibility, and ac-

cessibility; 

• Should anchor and activate its site; 

• Where installation of streetscape improve-

ments is required as part of the site plan, the City 

will provide design specifications on request; these 

specifications (including dimensions, materials, and 

planting methods) must be followed and will be 

subject to inspection.

• For any private use of public right-of-way 

such as for dining tables, planters, etc. the applicant 

must go through the encroachment process and 

follow the above guidelines for site furnishings.

Effective and efficient site lighting improves aesthet-

ics, reduces energy use and maintenance, and pre-

serves the night sky. This is particularly important in 

the West Gervais Street Historic District as it is very 

close the State Museum’s observatory. 

Pedestrian lights are generally set on 14 foot poles 

at 70 to 80 foot intervals. In addition to providing 

adequate ambient lighting for pedestrians and the 

street, they are a very important decorative element. 

The design of pedestrian lights should give a strong 

direction to the theme and character for the area. 

Where there is a City standard for street lighting, this 

shall be used by private developers when improving 

the right-of-way. 

crown structure; ground cover materials should have 

a tight, weed-resistant growth habit.

• Tree plantings shall follow the latest best 

practices for urban tree health, including but not 

limited to a minimum of 200 sf planting area, uti-

lizing structural soil or silva cells or similar where 

appropriate, and providing irrigation. 

• Every effort should be made to preserve ex-

isting trees. Where existing trees can be incorporated 

in new development, appropriate measures should 

be taken to protect them during construction.

 

• Paved surfaces, benches, trash receptacles 

and other exterior furnishings should be of the high-

est quality construction and should be compatible 

in design with the architecture of adjacent develop-

ment. 

• Site furniture shall be of sturdy, commer-

cial-grade construction designed for outdoor use.

• Site furniture and any other objects in 

private open spaces that are visible from the right-

of-way shall be maintained in like-new condition, 

without rust, dents, peeling paint, or graffiti. 

E. SITE FURNISHINGS

F. IMPROVEMENTS IN THE 

RIGHT-OF-WAY

G. SITE LIGHTING

H. PUBLIC ART

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 508



46
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

can be distracting, whereas similarly colored back-

grounds can result in lack of visibility.

• Art should be placed in a site where it will 

enhance its surroundings or at least not detract from 

it (creating a “blind” spot where illegal activity can 

take place).

• Artwork may or may not be illuminated.  

Artwork is encouraged to be illuminated, when 

illuminated it lighting used shall be soft wash of 

illumination, electrical fixtures and conduit shall be 

minimized from view.

Placement Criteria

Furthermore, there are guidelines for artworks 

placed within project sites, to ensure that the works 

are displayed prominently and clearly identifiable as 

artwork.

Artworks displayed in exterior public spaces should 

be publicly accessible 24 hours per day or, if they are 

sited in a setting such as a park, be accessible during 

the normal hours of that site’s operation.

Some other guidelines about public art site place-

ment include:

• Artworks should not block windows or 

entranceways, nor obstruct normal pedestrian circu-

lation in and out of a building (unless such alteration 

is specifically a part of the experience or design of 

the artwork).

• Art should not be placed in a given site if 

the landscaping and maintenance requirements of 

that site cannot be met.

• Art should be sited so as to be either imme-

diately visible or in a location where it will be visible 

by the most people.

• Placement should always take into consid-

eration the artist’s intent for how the piece should be 

viewed, such as distance, angle, and height

• Consider color and texture of backgrounds 

that are appropriate for the piece; busy backdrops 

• Should enhance the overall public environ-

ment and pedestrian streetscape experience; 

• Should help to create a place of congrega-

tion and activity; 

• Should be placed in a spot in which the 

scale of the piece does not overwhelm a small space 

or disappear into a very large space.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 509



47
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

The guidelines below generally reflect the original guidelines for the area. PLEASE NOTE that this area is also subject to 
the City Center Design/Development Guidelines.  Items such as parking, signage and awnings, etc. that are delineated in 
the guidelines for the West Gervais Historic Commercial District, also apply to this Protection Area.

I.  General Guidelines

1. The Protection Area is also subject to the guidelines from the City Center Design/Development District. Where the follow-
ing guidelines are stricter they are the prevailing rule.

2.  Guidelines for the West Gervais Historic Commercial District for awnings, fences and walls, service areas, signage,     
lighting, and site design apply to the Protection Area.

II.  New Construction/Existing Building Guidelines

1. Building Setback: The façade of the new building should be at the front lot line in order to mimic existing and historic 
patterns in the area.

2.  Building Form and Scale: The building should have a simple rectangular or square form to complement existing buildings. 
The scale should be compatible with existing buildings. Additions should be secondary to an existing building and be charac-
teristic of the building to which they are attached.

3.  Roof Shape: Roofs should generally be flat and hidden behind parapet walls to complement existing patterns.  Simple 
gable roofs with a low pitch may be appropriate as the same roof form is found on the Confederate Printing Plant at 501 
Gervais Street.

4.  Roof Material: If visible, the roof should have material that is consistent with the style of the building.  The roof material 
should generally be secondary to the character of the building and should not detract from the building’s integrity. 

5.  Materials and Finishes: No clapboards, unpainted wood or glass block are allowed.  Brick should be used as the main wall 
material, and may be painted.  No items on the “discouraged materials” list in the City Center Design/Development District 
guidelines may be used.  Finishes should match traditional patterns. On existing buildings, maintain original architectural 
features.

6.  Secondary Materials and Finishes: Secondary materials may be wood, stucco or metal, with traditional finishes.

7.  Entrances and Storefronts: Entrances should be reflective of historic patterns and not be located on a corner.  They should 
be located on the main façade and secondary entrances on secondary street fronts should be subordinate in design to the 
main entrance. No porches should be included in entrance or building designs.  Recessed entrances with storefronts are en-
couraged, using proportions and rhythms consistent with traditional patterns.

8.  Windows: Use window sizes, rhythms and proportions similar to historic designs. 

9.  Innovative Ideas: The commission may consider innovative ideas if they follow the general intent of the guidelines.

A. GUIDELINES

VIII.  Guidelines 
for West Gervais 
Protection Area

The West Gervais Protection Area 

is a buffer district located west of 

the West Gervais Historic Com-

mercial District.  It has a number 

of new buildings and altered 

older buildings, with a few historic 

structures generally located near 

the Huger Street corridor. It was 

established at the same time as 

the historic district with minimal 

guidelines aimed at new con-

struction and review of existing 

buildings.  

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 510



48
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

There are tax advantages for qualifying renovation 

projects for eligible historic buildings located in 

the district. 

Locally, the City offers the Bailey Bill, which can 

benefit an owner in the form of an abatement on 

the property tax for an eligible project.

A portion of the West Gervais historic district is 

also located within a National Register of Historic 

Places district. This may also allow an owner to 

pursue savings on their income tax through the 

assistance of the State Historic Preservation Office. 

Call Planning staff for more information on these 

resources. 

A. INCENTIVES

Using low to medium pressure water, non-ionic 

detergents and natural bristle brushes is the preferred 

method. High pressure water, harsh chemicals or 

sandblasting is not permitted.  Regulate high pres-

sure equipment to no more than 400psi, or mitigate 

high pressure by using higher degree nozzle tips to 

produce a wider fan pattern. In addition, increase the 

distance between the spray and the historic material 

to prevent damage. Do not use “chisel” nozzle tips 

that could abrade the surface and destroy mortar in 

historic brickwork.

A pure Portland Cement mortar is likely too strong 

to be used as mortar in most of these buildings; a 

Type N or Type O mortar is recommended for re-

pairs and repointing.

B. MASONRY CLEANING & REPOINTINING

    VIII.  Resources

Need some help? From under-

standing how to repoint your brick 

to potential savings on your tax 

bill, there are resources available 

to make your project clear and do-

able.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 511



49
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

• Preserving Historic Ornamental Plaster

• Heating, Ventilating, and Cooling Historic                

Buildings: Problems and Recommended         

Approaches

• The Preservation of Historic Signs

• The Preservation and Repair of Historic Log 

Buildings

• The Maintenance and Repair of Architectural 

Cast Iron

• Painting Historic Interiors

• The Repair, Replacement, and Maintenance of 

Historic Slate Roofs

• The Preservation and Repair of Historic Clay 

Tile Roofs

• Mothballing Historic Buildings

• Making Historic Properties Accessible

• The Preservation and Repair of Historic Stained 
14

Structural Glass (Vitrolite and Carrara Glass)

• The Repair and Thermal Upgrading of       Historic 

Steel Windows

• New Exterior Additions to Historic Buildings:   

Preservation Concerns

• Preservation of Historic Concrete

• The Use of Substitute Materials on Historic Building 

Exteriors

• Architectural Character—Identifying the Visual 

Aspects of Historic Buildings as an Aid to Preserv-

ing their Character

• Rehabilitating Interiors in Historic Buildings—

Identifying Character-Defining Elements

• The Repair and Replacement of Historic Wooden 

Shingle Roofs

• Repairing Historic Flat Plaster—Walls and Ceilings

• The Preservation and Repair of Historic Stucco

The National Park Service has published a num-

ber of briefs outlining best practices for main-

taining and repairing historic buildings. The titles 

to those briefs are listed below and they are all 

accessible at this website: http://www.nps.gov/tps/

how-to-preserve/briefs.htm

• Cleaning and Water-Repellent Treatments for     

Historic Masonry Buildings

• Repointing Mortar Joints in Historic                    

Masonry Buildings

• Improving Energy Efficiency in Historic 

Buildings

• Roofing for Historic Buildings

• The Preservation of Historic Adobe Buildings

• Dangers of Abrasive Cleaning to Historic 

Buildings

• The Preservation of Historic Glazed Architec-

tural Terra-Cotta

• Aluminum and Vinyl Siding on Historic 

Buildings: The

• The Repair of Historic Wooden Windows

• Exterior Paint Problems on Historic Wood-

work

• Rehabilitating Historic Storefronts

• The Preservation of Historic Pigmented 

C. ‘HOW TO’ FOR HISTORIC BUILDINGS

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 512



50
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

and Leaded Glass

• Applied Decoration for Historic Interiors:     

Preserving Historic Composition Ornament

• Understanding Old Buildings: The Process of 

Architectural Investigation

• Appropriate Methods of Reducing Lead-Paint 

Hazards in Historic Housing

• Removing Graffiti from Historic Masonry

• Holding the Line: Controlling Unwanted Mois-

ture in Historic Buildings

• Preserving Historic Ceramic Tile Floors

• The Seismic Retrofit of Historic Buildings: Keep-

ing Preservation in the Forefront

• The Maintenance, Repair and Replacement of 

Historic Cast Stone

• The Preparation and Use of Historic Structure 

Reports

• The Use of Awnings on Historic Buildings: Re-

pair, Replacement and New Design

• Preserving Historic Wooden Porches

• Maintaining the Exterior of Small and Medium 

Size Historic Buildings 

D. SUSTAINABILITY & ENERGY EFFICIENCY

Historic buildings are already expressing some of 

the best principles of sustainability, including reus-

ing existing structures and avoiding adding to the 

landfill, utilizing long-lasting, durable materials 

that can be repaired and maintained, and conserv-

ing energy through the benefit of thick masonry 

walls, which transfer heat and cold very slowly.

1.  Improve efficiency with measures that do not 

require retrofitting exterior elements of the histor-

ic building. These can include setting thermostats 

lower during the winter and higher during the 

summer, and adding interior thermal shades or 

shutters.

2.  Install new coatings on flat roofs that are de-

signed to aid with energy efficiency.

3.  Install exterior storm windows that are ap-

propriate to the building and window design, or 

install interior storm windows.

4. Install insulation and update old or inefficient 

heating and air conditioning systems, which often 

account for a majority of annual energy costs.

C. ‘HOW TO’ FOR HISTORIC BUILDINGS

(CON’T)

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 513



51
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

E. DEFINITIONS

Adaptive Reuse The reuse of older structures, often 

involving extensive restoration or rehabilitation of 

the interior and/or exterior to accommodate the new 

use.

Addition 1. Construction that increases the living or 

working space of an existing structure, and is capable 

of being mechanically heated or cooled.  (ex. porch 

enclosures, room additions, etc.)  2. An alteration 

that changes the exterior height of any portion of an 

existing building.  3.  Any extension of the footprint 

of the structure, including porches and decks. 

Alignment (Architectural) The visual alignment and 

subsequent placement of architectural elements such 

as windows, cornice elements, soffits, awnings, etc. 

from one structure to adjacent structures in order to 

promote streetscape continuity.

Appropriate Suitable for, or compatible with, a 

structure or district, based upon accepted standards 

and techniques for historic preservation and urban 

design as set forth in the Secretary of the Interior’s 

Standards or these guidelines.

Arcade An arched roof or covered passage way.

Arch A curved structure supporting its weight over 

an open space such as a door or window.

Architectural feature/element Any of the compo-

nent parts that comprise the exterior of a building, 

structure or object that convey the style of a build-

ing. (ex. Victorian, Bungalow, etc…).

Articulation  Describes the degree or manner in 

which a building wall or roofline is made up of 

distinct parts or elements. A highly articulated wall 

will appear to be composed of a number of differ-

ent planes, usually made distinct by their change in 

direction (projections and

recesses) and/or changes in materials, colors or 

textures.

Awning A fixed cover, typically comprised of cloth 

over a metal frame, that is placed over windows or 

building openings as protection from the sun and 

rain.

Backer panel a flat panel upon which sign letters are 

mounted. A backer panel is usually painted to favor-

ably highlight the signage. Backer panels can help to 

minimize intrusions into historic masonry.

Balcony A railed projecting platform found above 

ground level on a building.

Baluster The upright portion of the row of supports 

for a porch railing.

Balustrade A series of balusters surmounted by a 

rail.

Bay (Structural) A regularly repeated spatial element 

in a building defined by beams or ribs and their 

supports.

Built Environment The surrounding sidewalks, 

buildings, artwork, walls, streets, etc. that make up 

the man-made environment.

Bulkhead The space located between the pavement/

sidewalk and the bottom of a traditional storefront 

window.

Canopy A projection over a niche, platform or door-

way; often decorative or decorated.

Casement Window Window with hinges to the side 

so that the sash opens like a door.

Character-defining feature a detail or part of a struc-

ture that imparts style or design and distinguishes it 

from other structures (ex. porch railings, decorative 

windows).

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 514



52
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

Column A vertical support, usually cylindrical, con-

sisting of a base, shaft and capital, either monolithic or 

built-up of drums the full diameter of the shaft.

Compatible  to conform or be in harmony with the 

components of the style of a building or the character 

of a district.

Contributing (building/structure/site) A building, 

structure or site that reinforces the visual integrity or 

interpretability of a historic district. A contributing 

building is not necessarily "historic" (50 years old or 

older). A contributing building may lack individual 

distinction but add to the historic district's status as a 

significant and distinguishable entity. 

Cornice The horizontal projection at the top of a wall; 

the top course or molding of a wall when it serves as a 

crowning member.

Curb Cuts The elimination of a street curb to enable 

vehicles to cross sidewalks and enter driveways or 

parking lots.

Demolition Active deconstruction in whole or in part 

of a building, object, or site.

Double Hung Window A window with an upper and 

low sash arranged so that each slides vertically past the 

other.

Driveway an area improved in accordance with approved 

materials, leading from a street or alley to a parking 

space.

Eaves The overhang at the lower edge of the roof which 

usually projects out over the walls.

Elevation 1. Height in terms of distance from grade; 2. 

an exterior wall of a building, usually used in referring to 

portions other than the façade.

Enclosure To close off a previously exterior open space, 

through the installation of walls or other devices.

Exterior Change  An action that would alter the ap-

pearance or materials of a structure.  Examples include: 

change in roof pitch or form, or replacing or covering 

exterior siding with substitute material, reducing, en-

larging, closing or relocating window or door openings.

Facade The exterior face of a building which is the archi-

tectural front, sometimes distinguished from other faces 

by elaboration of architectural or ornamental details.

Fascia The outside horizontal board on a cornice.

Fenestration The arrangement and design of windows in 

a building.

General maintenance and repair  Work meant to rem-

edy damage due to deterioration of a structure or its ap-

purtenances or general wear and tear, which will involve 

no change in materials, dimensions, design, configura-

tion, color, texture or visual appearance. 

Glazed Brick A brick which has been glazed on one side.

Halo Lighting (or reverse lit)—a subtle form of lighting 

for signage in which light is contained within an opaque 

letter and directed backwards, creating a wash of light 

behind signage letters. 

Hip Roof A roof with four uniformly pitched sides.

Infill A newly constructed building within an existing 

development area.

Lintel A horizontal support member that supports a 

load over an opening, as a window or door opening, 

usually made of wood, stone or steel; may be exposed or 

obscured by wall coverings.

Major Substantive; substantial; as in considerable 

amount of.  

Masonry Wall construction of such material as stone, 

brick and adobe.

Mass – The size or physical bulk of a building; mass 

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 515



53
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

combines with shape to define form (such as cubes, 

rectangles, cylinders, etc.).

Monolithic A single large flat surface (facade) without 

relief. A massive, unyielding structure.

Muntin/Mullion The strips of the window that divides 

the glass into panes or lights.  Mullions typically divide 

two distinct windows and is often vertically oriented.

New Construction The construction of any freestand-

ing structure or feature.  This may apply to a variety of 

structures such as storage buildings, carports & garages, 

secondary dwellings, etc.

Non-contributing (building/ structure/site) A building, 

structure or site which no longer reinforces the visual in-

tegrity of the district either because it is a vacant parcel, 

it is a structure that was built outside of the period of sig-

nificance of the district or it is an historic structure that 

has lost its integrity through inappropriate alterations.

Outbuilding An auxiliary structure that is located away 

from a house or principal building (e.g. garage, studio, 

guest house, shed).

Parapet A low wall generally running around the outside 

of a flat roof.

Period of Significance  a. For an individual structure: the 

date of construction and/or the date(s) which coincide 

with its reason for significance, for example a c.1900 

retail building that was also the site of a 1964 Civil 

Rights demonstration; b. for a district: the span of time 

during which the significant development occurred. 

Pier A stout column or pillar.

Pilaster A column attached to a wall or pier.

Pitch The slope of a roof expressed in terms of ratio of 

height to span.

Porch A covered entrance or semi-enclosed space 

projecting from the facade of a building; may be open 

sided or screened.

Primary front yard That area between the street-fac-

ing facade of the principal building, the front lot line, 

and either both side lot lines (for interior lots and 

through lots) or a side lot line and the secondary front 

lot line (for corner lots).

Primary Building Facade The particular facade of a 

building which faces the street to which the address of 

the building pertains.

Principal elevation(s) Elevations that are integral to 

the overall design and understanding of the building 

and its use.

Proportion Proportion deals with the ratio of dimen-

sion between elements. Proportion can describe height 

to height ratios, width to width ratios, width to height 

ratios, as well as ratios of massing. Landscaping can be 

used to establish a consistent rhythm along a streetscape 

which will disguise the lack of proportion in building 

size and placement.

Raceway Generally, a sort of rectangular box to which a 

sign’s letters are attached; the box is then affixed to the 

building. The raceway may also contain any required 

electrical components. Raceways are designed to ‘vanish’ 

behind the signage letters. Like backer panels, they help 

to minimize intrusions into historic masonry.

Rehabilitation, Renovation The modification of or 

changes to an existing building in order to extend its 

useful life or utility through repairs or alterations, while 

preserving the features of the building that contribute to 

its architectural, cultural or historical character.

Relief Carving raised above a background plane, as in 

bas relief.

Reveal The vertical side section of a doorway or window 

frame.

Rhythm (Horizontal, Vertical) The regular or harmo-

nious recurrence of lines, shapes, forms, elements or 

colors, usually within a proportional system.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 516



54
West Gervais Street Historic Commercial District DESIGN GUIDELINES

14

Ridge The highest line of a roof when sloping planes 

intersect.

Sash The framework into which window panes are set.

Scale (Human) Scale is the measurement of the rela-

tionship of one object to another object. The scale of a 

building can be described in terms of its relationship to 

a human being. All components of a building also have 

a relationship to each other and to the building as a

whole, which is the "scale" of the components. Intimate 

usually refers to small spaces or detail which is very 

much in keeping with the human scale, usually areas 

around eight to ten feet in size. At the other end of the 

spectrum, monumental scale is used to present a feeling 

of grandeur, security, timelessness or spiritual well-be-

ing. 

Secondary Elevation Not prominently located or not 

highly visible to the public right of way.

Secondary Front Yard The non-primary side of a build-

ing on a corner lot. That area between the street-facing 

facade of the principal building, the secondary front lot 

line, the front lot line, and the rear lot line. 

Setback The minimum horizontal distance between 

the lot or property line and the nearest front, side or 

rear line of the building (as the case may be), including 

porches or any covered projection thereof, excluding 

steps.

Shall What must happen.

Should What must happen unless evidence is presented 

to illustrate why an alternative is more suitable. 

Siding The finish covering on the exterior of a frame 

building (with the exception of masonry). The term clad-

ding is often used to describe any exterior wall covering, 

including masonry.

Sill The framing member that forms the lower side of an 

opening, such as a door sill. A window sill forms the low-

er, usually projecting, lip on the outside face of a window.

Storefront The traditional "main street" facade bounded 

by a structural pier on either side, the sidewalk on the 

bottom and the lower edge of the upper facade on top, 

typically dominated by retail display windows.

Street Wall The edges created by buildings and landscap-

ing that enclose the street and create space.

Temporary Encroachment  The temporary use of a pub-

lic area, such as the placement of scaffolding on a public 

sidewalk in order to make repairs the front of building.

Transom The horizontal division or cross-bar in a win-

dow. A window opening above a door.

Trim The decorative finish around a door or window; 

the architrave or decorative casing used around a door or 

window frame.

D
R
A
FT 

6/
21

/1
6

54.a

Packet Pg. 517



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:02 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: 1104 Deerpark Drive, TMS# 28900-01-41 
 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 09-20-2016_ZPH_CaseSummary_MA_1104_Deerpark (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: City Council District:4 
 
Proposal:Request to establish City of Columbia zoning of 
Planned Unit Development-Residential District, and -Flood 
Protective Area where applicable (PUD-R, -FP) on the 
property. The property was annexed on July 19, 2016 
 
Applicant:Prime Development LLC 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 
 
PC Recommendation: 06/06/2016; Approval (7-0) 

55

Packet Pg. 518



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
September 20, 2016 at 7:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 

MAP AMENDMENT CASE SUMMARY 
1104 DEERPARK DRIVE, TMS# 28900-01-41 

 
 
City Council District: 4 
 
Proposal: Request to establish City of Columbia zoning of Planned Unit Development-

Residential District, and -Flood Protective Area where applicable (PUD-R, -FP) 
on the property. The property was annexed on July 19, 2016 

 
Applicant:    Prime Development LLC 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval 
 
PC Recommendation:           06/06/2016; Approval (7-0) 
 
Zoning Public Hearing:   09/20/2016; Confirm Zoning; Pending 
 
Zoning Public Hearing:   10/04/2016; Confirm Zoning; Pending 
 
 

CURRENT PARCEL CHARACTERISTICS/CONDITIONS 
 

Acreage:  200.42 Acres 
Current Use:  Undeveloped 
Proposed Use:  Residential development; plans have already been approved by Richland County. 
Current Interim Land Use Classification:  Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) 
Proposed Land Use Classification: Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) 
Current Interim Zoning: PUD-R, -FP where applicable (Planned Unit Development – Residential District, -Flood 
Protective Area) 
Proposed Zoning: PUD-R, -FP where applicable (Planned Unit Development – Residential District, -Flood Protective 
Area) 
Census Tract: 114.07 

 
PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 

 
The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  

Staff recommends that the subject parcel be designated Urban Edge Residential Large Lot (UER-2) in The 
Columbia Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map. 

 
Urban Edge Residential Large Lot neighborhoods represent many of the City’s older residential neighborhoods in 
the outer areas of the City.  This development type is appropriate as development on remaining large lots or as 
redevelopment in the outer areas of Columbia.  Most of the existing developments occurred after 1950.  Urban 

55.a

Packet Pg. 519



Edge Residential Large Lot developments generally do not continue the grid and block pattern found in the urban 
neighborhoods, but do tend to have a consistently organized internal street network with loops and 
interconnections. 
 
Primary Types: 

• Single-family Detached 
*Accessory Dwelling Units 
 

Tertiary Types: 
• Single-family Attached 
• Two-family 
• Three-family 
• Small Format Business/Employment  
• Small Format Civic/Institutional 
• Cemeteries & Mausoleums 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcel is not covered by an area plan which has been adopted by the City of Columbia or Richland 
County. 

 
PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY 

 
The parcels were assigned an interim zoning of PUD-R, -FP at the time of annexation, and were previously zoned PDD 
Planned Development by Richland County.  Surrounding parcels within the City of Columba are PUD-R, and –FP where 
applicable, and surrounding parcels within the unincorporated area of Richland County are zoned PDD.  
 
The proposed City of Columbia zoning district is Planned Unit Development – Residential District (PUD-R) and -Flood 
Protective Area (-FP) where applicable. 
 
Planned Unit Development Districts 
(a) Intent. The intent of planned unit development districts is to derive the benefits of efficiency, economy and flexibility 
by encouraging unified development of large sites, while also obtaining the advantage of creative site design, improved 
appearance, compatibility of uses, optimum service by community facilities, and better functioning of vehicular access 
and circulation. It is the intent of this article to allow development of large sites subject to specific regulations concerning 
permitted uses, but only subject to regulations concerning lot area, building coverage, yard spaces and building height 
insofar as the city council shall deem appropriate to fulfill the intent of this article, upon presentation of certification from 
the owners, developers or other parties at interest in the development of such sites that they will adhere to development 
policies which will fulfill the intent of this article. 
(b) Types of districts. Two types of districts accommodating primarily residential or nonresidential uses are created as 
follows: 

(1) PUD-R Planned Unit Development—Residential. The PUD-R district is intended to accommodate residential 
uses, with nonresidential uses integrated into the design of such districts as secondary uses. 
(2) PUD-C Planned Unit Development—Commercial. The PUD-C district is intended to accommodate primarily 
nonresidential uses, with residential uses integrated into the design of such districts as secondary uses. 

(c) Design and planning features. The types of residential dwelling units and the types of nonresidential uses allowed to 
be established in such districts increase with increasing site size of such districts, based upon the premise that increased 
site size will allow proper design, including functional interrelations, buffer treatments separating uses with potentially 
incompatible characteristics of use, design of access patterns, and relationships of uses within such planned unit 
developments with uses in adjacent districts. It is the intent of this article that such design and planning features be 
incorporated properly into any PUD district hereafter created, and that the planning commission and city council shall 
consider the existence and appropriateness of such features before any amendment to the zoning map is adopted to create 
such district. 
 
 
 
a 

55.a

Packet Pg. 520



Flood Protective Areas 
Certain areas within the city are subject to periodic inundation by floodwater, which results or may reasonably be foreseen 
to result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services and 
extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety and 
general welfare. These hazards are caused or extended in part by the occupancy of flood hazard areas by uses which 
increase flood damage upon other lands or uses which are vulnerable to floods because they are inadequately elevated or 
not otherwise protected from flood damages. It is, therefore, the intent of this article to lessen such hazards or losses by 
restricting or prohibiting uses which are dangerous to health, safety or property in times of flood or which cause excessive 
increases in flood heights or velocities; by requiring that uses vulnerable to floods be protected against flood hazards at 
the time of initial construction; and by controlling filling, grading, mineral extraction, placing of obstructions within flood 
channels and other activities, uses or characteristics of use which may increase flood damage. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that City Council confirm the zoning of PUD-R and –FP where applicable and amend the zoning map 
accordingly. 
 
 

55.a

Packet Pg. 521



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AEX,
Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

/

0 1,000 2,000500 Feet

CITY OF COLUMBIA GIS DATA DISCLAIMER
The City of Columbia GIS data represented on this map or plan is the product 
of compilation, as produced by others. It is provided for informational purposes 

only and the City of Columbia makes no representation as to its accuracy. 
Its use without field verification is at the sole risk of the user. 

Tuesday, May 24, 2016

City of Columbia
TMS#28900-01-41

55.a

Packet Pg. 522



PUD-R
PUD-R

PUD-R

PUD-R

PUD-R
DEERPARK DR

JACOBS MILL POND RD

COUNTY LINE RD

SANDY OAKS RD

GOLF VIEW BND

BUCKVIEW LN

DISCLAIMER:
The City of Columbia Department of 
Planning and Development Services 
data represented on this map or plan 
is the product of compilation, as 
produced by others.  It is provided 
for informational purposes only and 
the City of Columbia makes no 
representation as to its accuracy.  Its 
use without field verification is at the 
sole risk of the user.

Zoning Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:
Leigh DeForth
May 24, 2016

D-1
RS-1
RS-1A
RS-1B
RS-2
RS-3
RD
RD-2
RG-1
RG-1A
RG-2
RG-3
UTD
MX-1
MX-2

C-1
C-2
C-3
C-3A
C-4
C-5
M-1
M-2
PUD-C
PUD-LS
PUD-LS-E
PUD-LS-R
PUD-R
OUT OF CITY

1104 Deerpark Drive, TMS#: 28900-01-41
Existing Zoning: PDD (Richland County); Proposed Zoning: PUD-R, -FP

I
0 400 800200

Feet

Legend
CITY LIMITS
PARCELS

Special Flood Hazard Area

Subject Property

55.a

Packet Pg. 523



UER-2

UEMR

UER-2

UER-2 JACOBS MILL POND RD

COUNTY LINE RD

DEERPARK DR
SANDY OAKS RD

INTERSTATE 20 W

PALM SEDGE LOOP

GOLF VIEW BND

BUCKVIEW LN

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:

Leigh DeForth
May 24, 2016

I
0 500 1,000250

Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

1104 Deerpark Drive, TMS#: 28900-01-41
Existing FLU: Neighborhood - Medium Density (Richland County); Proposed FLU: UER-2

Subject Property

55.a

Packet Pg. 524



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:02 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: The Village, Phase 1A, 9 & 13 S. Olmsted Lane, TMS# 28902-

14-01 and 28902-14-02 
 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 09-20-2016_ZPH_CaseSummary_MA_TheVillage1A (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: City Council District:4 
 
Proposal: Request to establish City of Columbia zoning of 
Planned Unit Development-Residential District (PUD-R) on 
the property. The property was annexed on July 19, 2016. 
 
Applicant: D.R. Horton, Inc. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 
 
PC Recommendation: 04/04/2016; Approval (7-0) 

56

Packet Pg. 525



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
September 20, 2016 at 7:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 

MAP AMENDMENT CASE SUMMARY 
 THE VILLAGE, PHASE 1A, 9 & 13 S. OLMSTED LANE, 

TMS# 28902-14-01 AND 28902-14-02 
 
 
City Council District: 4 
 
Proposal: Request to establish City of Columbia zoning of Planned Unit Development-

Residential District (PUD-R) on the property. The property was annexed on July 
19, 2016 

 
Applicant:    D.R. Horton, INC 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval 
 
PC Recommendation:           04/04/2016; Approval (7-0) 
 
Zoning Public Hearing:   09/20/2016; Confirm Zoning; Pending 
 
Zoning Public Hearing:   10/04/2016; Confirm Zoning; Pending 
 

CURRENT PARCEL CHARACTERISTICS/CONDITIONS 
 

Acreage:  0.5 Acres 
Current Use:  Single Family Spec. Homes 
Proposed Use:  Residential 
Current Interim Land Use Classification:  Urban Edge Residential Small Lot (UER-1) 
Proposed Land Use Classification: Urban Edge Residential Small Lot (UER-1) 
Current Interim Zoning: PUD-R (Planned Unit Development – Residential District) 
Proposed Zoning: PUD-R (Planned Unit Development – Residential District) 
Census Tract: 114.07 

 
PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 

The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  
Staff recommends subject parcels be designated Urban Edge Residential Small Lot (UER-1) in The Columbia 
Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map. 

 
Urban Edge Residential Small Lot neighborhoods account for a significant portion of the City’s existing 
residential neighborhoods.  This development type is appropriate as development on large lots or as 
redevelopment in the outer areas of Columbia.  Most of these developments are relatively modern and occurred 
after 1970.  Urban Edge Residential Small Lot developments generally do not continue the grid and block pattern 

56.a

Packet Pg. 526



found in the urban core neighborhoods, but do tend to have a consistently organized internal street network with 
loops and interconnections. Culs-de-sac are the most prominent in this development type. 
 

Primary Types 
• Single-family Detached. 

 
Tertiary Types 
• Single-family Attached 
• Two-family 
• Three-family 
• Multi-family Small 
• Small Format Business/Employment (excl. Flex) 
• Small Format Civic/Institutional 
• Cemeteries and Mausoleums 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcels are not covered by an area plan which has been adopted by the City of Columbia or Richland 
County. 

 
PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY 

 
The parcels were assigned an interim zoning of PUD-R at the time of annexation, and were previously zoned PDD 
Planned Development by Richland County.  Surrounding parcels within the City of Columba are PUD-R and surrounding 
parcels within the unincorporated area of Richland County are zoned PDD.  
 
The proposed City of Columbia zoning district is Planned Unit Development – Residential District (PUD-R). 
 
Planned Unit Development Districts 
(a) Intent. The intent of planned unit development districts is to derive the benefits of efficiency, economy and flexibility 
by encouraging unified development of large sites, while also obtaining the advantage of creative site design, improved 
appearance, compatibility of uses, optimum service by community facilities, and better functioning of vehicular access 
and circulation. It is the intent of this article to allow development of large sites subject to specific regulations concerning 
permitted uses, but only subject to regulations concerning lot area, building coverage, yard spaces and building height 
insofar as the city council shall deem appropriate to fulfill the intent of this article, upon presentation of certification from 
the owners, developers or other parties at interest in the development of such sites that they will adhere to development 
policies which will fulfill the intent of this article. 
(b) Types of districts. Two types of districts accommodating primarily residential or nonresidential uses are created as 
follows: 

(1) PUD-R Planned Unit Development—Residential. The PUD-R district is intended to accommodate residential 
uses, with nonresidential uses integrated into the design of such districts as secondary uses. 
(2) PUD-C Planned Unit Development—Commercial. The PUD-C district is intended to accommodate primarily 
nonresidential uses, with residential uses integrated into the design of such districts as secondary uses. 

(c) Design and planning features. The types of residential dwelling units and the types of nonresidential uses allowed to 
be established in such districts increase with increasing site size of such districts, based upon the premise that increased 
site size will allow proper design, including functional interrelations, buffer treatments separating uses with potentially 
incompatible characteristics of use, design of access patterns, and relationships of uses within such planned unit 
developments with uses in adjacent districts. It is the intent of this article that such design and planning features be 
incorporated properly into any PUD district hereafter created, and that the planning commission and city council shall 
consider the existence and appropriateness of such features before any amendment to the zoning map is adopted to create 
such district. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that City Council confirm the zoning of PUD-R and amend the zoning map accordingly. 

56.a

Packet Pg. 527



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AEX,
Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community, Esri, HERE, DeLorme,
MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user community

/

0 410 820205 Feet

CITY OF COLUMBIA GIS DATA DISCLAIMER
The City of Columbia GIS data represented on this map or plan is the product 
of compilation, as produced by others. It is provided for informational purposes 

only and the City of Columbia makes no representation as to its accuracy. 
Its use without field verification is at the sole risk of the user. 

Wednesday, March 23, 2016

City of Columbia
Oldcreek Farms Road and South Olmstead Lane 

56.a

Packet Pg. 528



UER-2

UER-2

UER-1

UER-2

AC-1

UER-2

UER-1

AC-1
UER-2

UER-2

JACOBS MILL POND

GILLON

WOODCREEK FARMS

THACHER

UPPER WILL

GUTHRIE LOOP

UPPER LAKE

SIDNEY

OLMSTEAD

BEAVER LAKE

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:
Ahmed Abdullah
March 22, 2016

0 90 18045
Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

The Village, Phase 1A: Oldcreek Farms Road and
South Olmstead Lane, TMS# 28902-14-01 and 28902-14-02. Interim FLU: UER-1

SUBJECT PROPERTIES

56.a

Packet Pg. 529



PUD-R

PUD-R

PUD-R
PUD-R

PUD-RPUD-R

PUD-R

BEECHFERN CIR

JACOBS MILL POND RD

GILLON LN

BRAMBLE RD

UPPER WILL WAY

GUTHRIE LOOP

MOSSY LN

THACHER LOOP

WO
OD

CR
EEK

 FA
RM

S R
D

DEER CROSSING RD

SIDNEY LN
OLMSTEAD AVEDISCLAIMER:

The City of Columbia Department of 
Planning and Development Services 
data represented on this map or plan 
is the product of compilation, as 
produced by others.  It is provided 
for informational purposes only and 
the City of Columbia makes no 
representation as to its accuracy.  Its 
use without field verification is at the 
sole risk of the user.

Zoning Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:
Ahmed Abdullah
March 22, 2016

D-1
RS-1
RS-1A
RS-1B
RS-2
RS-3
RD
RD-2
RG-1
RG-1A
RG-2
RG-3
UTD
MX-1
MX-2

C-1
C-2
C-3
C-3A
C-4
C-5
M-1
M-2
PUD-C
PUD-LS
PUD-LS-E
PUD-LS-R
PUD-R
OUT OF CITY
Ft Jackson Overlay

The Park, Phase 1A: Oldcreek Farms Road and South Olmstead Lane, 
TMS# 28902-14-01 and 28902-14-02
ZONING: Existing:  PDD (County);  Proposed: Interim PUD-R (City)

0 100 20050 Feet

Legend
CITY LIMITS
PARCELS

SUBJECT PROPERTIES

56.a

Packet Pg. 530



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:03 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: 2210 Rosewood Drive, TMS#11313-17-03 
 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 MA_2210_RosewoodDrive (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Council District: 3 
 
Proposal: Rezone the parcel from C-1 to C-2 
 
Applicant:Tony Moreland 
 
Staff Recommendation: Denial 
 
PC Recommendation: 07/11/2016; Approval (7-0) 

57

Packet Pg. 531



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
September 20, 2016 at 7:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 
 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT CASE SUMMARY  
2210 ROSEWOOD DRIVE, TMS#11313-17-03 

 
 
Council District:  3 
 
Proposal: Rezone the parcel from C-1 to C-2 
 
Applicant:  Tony Moreland 
 
Staff Recommendation:    DENIAL 
   
PC Recommendation:  07/11/2016; APPROVAL (7-0) 
   
Zoning Public Hearing: 09/20/2016; PENDING 
 
Zoning Public Hearing:  10/04/2016; PENDING 
 
  

CURRENT PARCEL CHARACTERISTICS/CONDITIONS 
 

Acreage:  ~0.19 acres 
Current Use: Miscellaneous Retail  
Proposed Use: Retail 
Land Use Classification: Neighborhood Activity Corridor (AC-1) 
Current Zoning: C-1 (Office and Institutional District) 
Proposed Zoning: C-2 (Neighborhood Commercial District) 
 

PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 

 
The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  

The subject parcel is designated Neighborhood Activity Corridor (AC-1) in The Columbia Plan 2018 Future Land 
Use Map. 

 
Neighborhood Activity Corridors are a linear extension of a Neighborhood or Community Activity Center.  They 
contain nearly identical building types and uses to a Neighborhood Activity Center; the primary difference is the 
configuration of the lots and the lack of an internal subdivision or street network.  Uses are built on frontage lots 

57.a

Packet Pg. 532



along principal and minor arterial roadways.  They serve surrounding neighborhoods within a one-mile drive or a 
15 minute walk and typically consist of a limited collection of commercial and service uses. 
 
Primary Types 

• Small Format Business/Employment (excl. Flex) 
• Small Multi-family Mixed-use 

 
Secondary Types 

• Civic/Institutional 
• Multi-family Small and Medium 
• Single-family Attached 

 
Tertiary Types 

• Cemeteries and Mausoleums 
• Parking Structures and Lots 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcel is covered by The Rosewood Plan: A Corridor & Neighborhood Plan, which was completed in 
July 2012 and adopted by the City.  The property is within the Rosewood Drive Corridor as identified by the Plan. 
Physical development goals for the Corridor include: the adaptive reuse of existing residential structures along the 
corridor; the creation of a high-quality pedestrian-oriented shopping district with connectivity to the surrounding 
neighborhood; the encouragement of a high-quality mix of uses along the corridor; and the provision of better 
buffers from commercial and mixed-uses and the residential neighborhood. The subject property was specifically 
targeted for a change in land use and zoning to an urban transitional zone and district (UTD).  The Plan further 
recommended the development of design guidelines for the Rosewood Corridor, split into Mixed Use areas (Area 
A) and Residential and Transitional Areas (Area B); the subject property is designated as Area B by the Plan.  

 
PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY 

 
The subject parcel is currently zoned Office and Institutional District (C-1); the miscellaneous retail use on the property 
was established in 1998 as a special exception within the C-1 District.  Surrounding parcels are currently zoned C-1, and 
General Residential District (RG-2), and property zoned Neighborhood Commercial District (C-2) is across Rosewood 
Drive from the subject property, as well as along Rosewood Drive on adjacent blocks. 
 
Office and Institutional District (C-1) 
The C-1 district is intended to accommodate office, institutional, and certain types of residential uses in areas whose 
characteristic is neither general commercial nor exclusively residential in nature. Certain related structures and uses 
required to serve the needs of the areas are permitted outright or are permissible as special exceptions subject to 
restrictions and requirements intended to best fulfill the intent of this article. 
 
The proposed City of Columbia zoning is Neighborhood Commercial District (C-2). 
 
Neighborhood Commercial District (C-2) 
The C-2 district is intended to accommodate commercial and service uses oriented primarily to serving the needs of 
persons who live or work in nearby areas. Certain related structures and uses required to serve the needs of such areas are 
permitted outright or are permissible as special exceptions subject to restrictions and requirements intended to best fulfill 
the intent of this article.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Rosewood Plan recommends that the subject parcel be rezoned to Urban Transitional District (UTD).  Based upon the 
recommendations of both the comprehensive plan and the area and corridor plan, staff recommends the denial of the 
request to rezone the parcel from C-1 to C-2. 

57.a

Packet Pg. 533



57.a

Packet Pg. 534



28     Rosewood Plan   

Proposed Land U
se

Map 4.2
Map 5.2
Map 5.9

BLUFF

SHOP

OT
T

KEY

ROSEWOOD

BE
LT

LIN
E

ANDREWS

HO
LL

Y

EL
M

BO
NH

AM

HOLT

YALE

CH
EV

IS

GARNERS FERRY

MA
PL

E

PELHAM

BYRON

BLAIR
HO

WA
RD

ED
IST

O

WILMOT

EDMOND

TY
LE

R

ABBOTT

KALMIA

RILEY

DEVINE

LIVE OAK

GILL

HARVARD

HURON

ZION

IDLEWILD
E

WA
LK

ER

OLD WOODLANDS

MACON

AIRPORT

PLOWDEN

GALWAY

MOSS

OLD DAIRY

PR
OS

PE
CT

BARNES

WO
OD

RO
W

SU
BE

R

GI
LL

S C
RE

EK

WA
ND

O

JIM HAMILTON

LANTANA

BLOSSOM

MONTGOMERY

FORT JACKSON

EDEN

KILBOURNE

SUPERIOR

CHILDS

VIRGINIA

SILO

OLYMPIA

TIMBERLANE

TA
LL 

PIN
ESBATES

HE
MP

HIL
L

VETERANS

MERRILL

ET
IW

AN

HICKORY

HA
NC

OC
K

SA
LU

DA

DA
HL

IA

DATURA

STADIUM

GR
EG

G

COMMERCE

ILE
X

HAMPTON LEAS

GR
AY

MO
NT

FRASIER

BULL

BURWELL

CR
OS

S H
ILL

ROSE

QUEENS WAY

CHRISTIE

WILDCAT

LANIER

SANDS

HAMRICK

HA
MP

TO
N H

ILL

DEAN HALL

DOWNING

BEREA

AR
AL

IA

WA
CC

AM
AW

EUREKA

KENNEDY

GL
EN

HA
VE

N

DE
ER

WO
OD

PERSIMMON

BRIGHT

WE
TH

ER
ILL

WALCOTT

LAURIE

CEDAR

SIM
S

CAPERS

RICKENBAKER

MAUNEY

HIB
ISC

US

SAYE CUT

AIRLINE

NO NAM
E

HO
WE

MARTHA'S GLEN

LOTUS

CHAPEL

AR
BU

TU
SHOPE

PL
AN

TE
RS

ADELINE

GEORGE ROGERS

IND
IAN

 M
OU

ND

NATIONAL GUARD

DUNCAN

MIKELL

MIMOSA

WILEY

BRANDON

KINGSWOOD

GEORGE RODGERS

BRITTON

JOE LO
UIS

SUGAR HILL

RA
VE

NE
L

WOODLAWN

CANNON

CAMELLIA

MONTAGUE

ALY

HEMLOCK

GRANBY

BU
RD

OC
K

MITCHELL

RUTLEDGE HILL

OVERBROOK

BROOKWOOD

ARROW FIELD

TRUE

LA
BU

RN
UM

BARLOW

CH
AM

BL
Y

DU
MO

NT

OAKDALE

CHIMNEY HILL

BLUFF IN
DUSTRIAL

CR
OW

N P
OIN

T

BARWICK

NEPHI

ED
WA

RD

LACY

HU
NT

IN
GT

ON

DO
GW

OO
D

TOLLIVER

SOUTHERN

WINSTON

OCEOLA

MOSS SPRINGS

KOLOB

EASY

SALLIE
 BAXTER

OXFORD

BUCKINGHAM

MARKET

ACME

WOODHILL

DEVEREAUX

THURSTON

MUNSEN SPRINGS

AZALEA

MONROE

MICKENS

ASSEMBLY

HAMPTON RIDGE

HAMPTON

BL
AC

K F
RIA

RS

PRENTICE

NORTHWAY

SL
OA

N

BEECLIFF

HEYWARD

ASTER

PASTU
RE

HARIETTA

PE
MB

RO
KE

CROWSON

SIMMONS

DUBLIN

ROSEWOOD DR

OHIO
TEXAS

HAMPTON TRACE

GARDENIA

BAY

EHRLIC
H

WO
OD

LA
ND

RIVIERA

ROCKWOOD

THORNWELL

PICKENS

SH
AN

DO
N

BAYLOCK

CORNING

MANOR

OLDE KNIGHT

WITHERS

PR
ES

ER
VE

 

CARDIFF

ROSEWOOD HILLS

WILLIAM H. TULLER

MARION

PR
OM

EN
TO

RY

SHADY

TIMMONS

HIGHHILL

CHESNEY

WEMBLEY

BOXWOOD

HASTINGS

HARDEN

GARLAND

JO
HN

S

WORMWOOD

HOMESTEAD

SA
GA

MO
RE

FERGUSON

FU
LT

ON

AR
BO

RW
OO

D

BROADWAY

WESTSHIRE

BLOOMWOOD

SH
AR

ON

BOLTON

WHISPE
RING PI

NES

MY
RO

N

TRAFALGAR

TE
MP

O

RO
YS

TE
R

BL
AC

K G
UM

ROSEBANK

KIPLING

LOQUAT

PRESERVE

CAMI FOREST

ROOK BRANCH

CAL
IFO

RNIA

HIGH HAMPTON

CAVALIER

SU
NR

ISE

HYDRANGEA

GWATHNEY

KINGSGATE

MAGNOLIA GLEN

SULLIVAN

SH
AM

RO
CK

DANDRIDGE

MERC

MERRIDUN

KILBOURNE 

THAMES

QUINBY

NO NAME

HIC
KO

RY

MAUNEY

NO NAME

NO
 N

AM
E

ET
IW

AN

NO NAMETY
LE

R

BULL

BYRON

GARLAND

NO NAME

HAMPTO
N

NO NAME

NO NAME

NO NAME

SU
BE

R

YALE

NO NAME

HOPE

NO NAME

PR
OS

PE
CT

NO NAME

ROSEWOOD

RA
VE

NE
L

MONROE

KIL
BO

UR
NE

NO NAME

PICKENS

OCEOLA

HYDRANGEA

HOPE

OCEOLA
HEYWARD

GRAYMONT

PRENTICE

GILL

NO NAME

CROWSON

PRENTICE

LANIER

SUPERIOR

HEYWARD

NO NAME

GARNERS FERRY

DE
ER

WO
OD

KENNEDY

MONTGOMERY

MONTAGUE

BYRON

NO NAME

HAMPTON

TIMBERLANE

HICKORY

CAPERS

NO NAME

DE
ER

WO
OD

NO NAME

DUNCAN

KIL
BO

UR
NE

CAMELLIA

HEYWARD

FCity of Columbia, S.C.
Rosewood: Proposed Land Use Survey

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 1 1.250.125
Miles

Planning & Development Services Department
June 11, 2012

Prepared by: J. Crick

CITY OF COLUMBIA
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

THIS MAP OR PLAN IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,
OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS PROVIDED FOR

INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA
MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY.

ITS USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION IS AT THE SOLE
RISK OF THE USER.

Legend
Railroads
Parks
Parcels
Columbia City Limits

Rosewood Residental

Single-Family - Large Lot
Single-Family - Medium Lot
Single-Family - Small Lot
Multi-Family - Low Density
Multi-Family - Medium Density
Multi-Family - High Density
Planned Unit Development

Rosewood Industrial

Technology Industrial
Light Industrial

Rosewood Commercial

Urban Transitional
Mixed-Use
Office / Institutional
Neighborhood-Level
Regional-Level
Light Industrial
Planned Unit Development

57.a

Packet Pg. 535



AC-1

UCR-1

UCR-1

ROSEWOOD DR

OCEOLA ST

S WOODROW ST

ETIWAN AVE

S HARDEN ST
GRAYMONT AVE

COOPER AVE

S WACCAMAW AVE

ETIWAN AVE

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:

Leigh DeForth
June 22, 2016

I
0 50 10025 Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

2210 Rosewood Drive, TMS#: 11313-17-03
FLU: Neighborhood Activity Corridor (AC-1)

Subject Property

57.a

Packet Pg. 536



Rosewood Plan     31     

Map 4.5
Map 5.5

Map 5.12

Pr
op

os
ed

 Z
on

in
g

BLUFF

SHOP

OT
T

KEY

ROSEWOOD

BE
LT

LI
N

E

ANDREW
S

H
O

LL
Y

ELM

BO
NH

AM

HOLT

YALE

CH
EV

IS

GARNERS FERRY

M
AP

LE

PE
LH

AM

BY
RON

BLAIR

H
O

W
AR

D

ED
IS

TO

TY
LE

R

EDMOND

AB
BO

TT

WILMOT

RILEY

KALM
IA

DEVIN
E

HARVARD

LIVE OAK

HURON

GILL

W
AL

KE
R

MACON

OLD
 W

OODLANDS

ZIO
N

ID
LE

W
IL

DE

AIR
PO

RT

PLOW
DEN

MOSS

PR
O
SP

EC
T

GALW
AY

BARNES

SU
BE

R

OLD DAIRY

G
IL

LS
 C

RE
EK

W
O

O
D

RO
W

BLO
SSO

M

W
AN

D
O

LANTANA

FORT JACKSON

MONTGOMERY

EDEN

SUPERIOR

JIM
 HAM

ILTON

KILBOURNE

CHILDS

BA
TE

S

TIMBERLANE

OLYMPIA

VE
TE

RAN
S

SILO

TA
LL

 P
IN

ES

HA
NC

O
CK

HE
M

PH
IL

L

G
R

EG
G

SA
LU

D
A

VIR
GIN

IA

MERRILL

HICKORY

COMMERCE

ET
IW

AN

DATURA

DA
HL

IA

ST
ADIUM

FR
AS

IER

HAMPTON LEAS
G

RA
YM

O
N

T

IL
EX

BULL

BURWELL

ROSE

CR
O

SS
 H

IL
L

Q
U

EEN
S W

AY

SA
ND

S

CHRISTIE

LANIER

BEREA

HAMRICK

EUREKA

WILDCAT

DEA
N H

AL
L

HA
M

PT
O

N 
H
IL

L

W
AC

CA
M

AW

KENNEDY

AR
AL

IA

DOWNING

GL
EN

HA
VE

N

DE
ER

W
O

O
D

CAPERS

PERSIMMON

WAL
CO

TT

CED
AR

W
ETH

ER
ILLLA

URIE

BRIGHT

RI
CK

EN
BA

KE
R

MAUNEY

SI
M

S

SAYE CUT

HI
BI

SC
US

CHAPEL

NO
 N

AM
E

PL
AN

TE
RS

GEORGE ROGERS

AIRLINE

AR
BU

TU
SHOPE

LOTUS

MARTHA'S GLEN

HO
W

E

AD
EL

IN
E

GEORGE RODGERS

DUNCAN

NATIONAL G
UARD

BRANDON

MIKELL

MIMOSA

IN
D

IA
N

 M
O

UN
D

W
ILEY

KINGSW
OOD

JO
E 

LO
UI

S

SUGAR HILL

RA
VE

NE
L

BRITTON

WOODLAWN

CANNON

CA
MEL

LIA

GRANBY

ALY

HEMLOCK

MONTAGUE

BU
R

D
O

CK

OVERBROOK

MITCHELL

RUTLEDGE HILL

TRUE

BROOKWOOD

LA
BU

RN
UM

CH
AM

BL
Y

BA
RL

OW

OAKDALE

ARROW FI
EL

D

LA
CY

D
U

M
O

N
T

BL
UF

F 
IN

DU
ST

RI
AL

BARW
ICK

CR
O

W
N 

PO
IN

T

CH
IM

N
EY H

ILL

ED
W

AR
D

NEPHI

DO
GW

O
O

D

TO
LLI

VE
R

OCEOLA

SO
UTHER

N

H
U

N
TI

N
G

TO
N

EASY

MOSS SPRINGS

KOLOB

OXFORD

SA
LL

IE
 B

AX
TE

R

WIN
ST

ON

MARKET

DEVEREAUX

BU
CKIN

GHAM

ACM
E

MUNSEN SP
RINGS

ASSEMBLY

AZALEA

THURSTON

MONROE

MIC
KE

NS

WOODHILL

BL
AC

K 
FR

IA
RS

PRENTICE

HAMPTON RIDGE

HAMPTON

SL
O

AN

BEECLIFF

NO
RT

HW
AY

HAM
PTO

N CREEK

ASTER

PA
ST

UR
E

PE
M

BR
O

KE

HEYWARD

CR
OW

SO
N

TE
XA

S

ROSEWOOD DR

SI
MMONS

GARDEN
IA

BA
Y

DUBLIN

EH
RL

IC
H

PICKENS

BA
YL

OCK

PR
ES

ER
VE

 

ROCKW
OOD

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D

OHIO

THORNW
ELL

SH
AN

D
O

N

RIVIERA

CORNING

MANOR

CA
RD

IFF

WITHERS

OLDE KNIGHT

PR
O

M
EN

TO
R
Y

ROSEWOOD HILLS

SHADY

M
ARIO

N

CH
ES

NEY

W
ILLIAM H. TULLER

WEM
BL

EY

TIM
MONS

BOXW
OOD

HIGHHILL

HARDEN

GARLAND

HA
ST

IN
GS

JO
H

NS

FE
RGUSO

N

SA
G

AM
O

RE

HOMESTEAD

W
ORMW

OOD

FU
LT

O
N

AR
BO

RW
O

O
D

BROADW
AY

PR
IN

CE
 W

AL
ES

WESTSHIRE

SHARON

BLOOMWOOD

BOLTON

TR
AF

AL
GAR

M
YR

O
N

RO
YS

TE
R

W
HI

SP
ER

IN
G 

PI
NE

S

TE
M

PO

DREHER

BL
AC

K 
G

UM

ROSEBANK

CH
RIST

OPH
ER

PRESERVE

LOQUAT

KIP
LIN

G

ROOK BRANCH

CA
M

I 
FO

R
ES

T

CA
LI

FO
RN

IA

HIGH HAMPTON

CA
VA

LI
ER

HYDRANGEA

SU
N

RI
SE

KINGSGATE

GWATHNEY

MAGNOLIA GLEN

SU
LLI

VA
N

TAMARACK

SH
AM

R
O

CK

DANDRID
GE

M
ER

C

M
ER

RID
U

N

KILBOURNE 

TH
AMES

QUINBY

RI
O R

OSE

NO
 N

AM
E

NO NAME

HICKORY

NO NAM
E

NO NAME

CROWSON

NO NAME

ALY

TY
LE

R

PRENTICE

OCEOLA

ET
IW

AN

BULL

MAUNEY

N
O

 N
AM

E

N
O

 N
AM

E

BY
RON

N
O

 N
AM

E

GARLAND

PR
O
SP

EC
T

N
O

 N
AM

E

NO NAME

NO NAM
E

NO NAME

HOPE

NO NAME

DUNCAN

SU
BE

R

KI
LB

O
U

RN
E

RA
VE

NE
L

OCEOLA

SUPERIOR

NO NAME

PICKENS

NO NAME

HYDRANGEA

CH
IM

NE
Y 

HI
LL

HEYWARD

NO NAME

GRAYMONT

PRENTICE

DE
ER

W
O

O
D

BY
RON

HEYWARD

LA
NIER

ROSEWOOD

YALE

G
ARN

ERS FERRY

D
EE

RW
O

O
D

GILL

TIMBERLANE

MONTGOMERY

NO NAME

MONROE

HICKORY

CAPERS

N
O

 N
AM

E

N
O

 N
AM

E

MONTA
GUE

KENNEDY

NO NAME

N
O

 N
AM

E

HOPE

KI
LB

O
UR

N
E

CA
MEL

LIA

HEYWARD

FCity of Columbia, S.C.
Rosewood: Proposed Zoning

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 1 1.250.125
Miles

Legend
Columbia City Limits

Parcels

Proposed Zoning

RS-1

RS-1A

RS-1B

RS-2

RS-3

RD

RD-2

RG-1

RG-1A

RG-2

RG-3

UTD

MX-1

MX-2

C-1

C-2

C-3

C-3A

C-4

C-5

T-1

M-1

M-2

PUD-C

PUD-LS

PUD-LS-E

PUD-LS-R

PUD-R

Planning & Development Services Department
June 11, 2012

Prepared by: J. Crick

CITY OF COLUMBIA
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

THIS MAP OR PLAN IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,
OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS PROVIDED FOR

INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA
MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY.

ITS USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION IS AT THE SOLE
RISK OF THE USER.

57.a

Packet Pg. 537



Hollywood/Rose Hill -CC1

Shandon -CC1

RS-3
RG-2

RS-3

C-2
C-3

RG-1

C-2

C-1

RG-1
RG-2

RS-3

RG-1
C-1

C-3

OCEOLA ST

HO
WA

RD
 ST

ROSEWOOD DR S WOODROW ST

ETIWAN AVE

S WACCAMAW AVE

GRAYMONT AVE

S HARDEN ST

KIAWAH AVE

KENNEDY ST

ETIWAN AVE
DISCLAIMER:
The City of Columbia Department of 
Planning and Development Services 
data represented on this map or plan 
is the product of compilation, as 
produced by others.  It is provided 
for informational purposes only and 
the City of Columbia makes no 
representation as to its accuracy.  Its 
use without field verification is at the 
sole risk of the user.

Zoning Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:
Leigh DeForth
June 23, 2016

D-1
RS-1
RS-1A
RS-1B
RS-2
RS-3
RD
RD-2
RG-1
RG-1A
RG-2
RG-3
UTD
MX-1
MX-2

C-1
C-2
C-3
C-3A
C-4
C-5
M-1
M-2
PUD-C
PUD-LS
PUD-LS-E
PUD-LS-R
PUD-R
OUT OF CITY

I
0 100 20050

Feet

Legend
CITY LIMITS
PARCELS

Community Character Overlay

2210 Rosewood Drive, TMS#: 11313-17-03
Existing Zoning: C-1; Proposed Zoning: C-2

Subject Property

57.a

Packet Pg. 538



Table of Permitted Uses Table of Permitted Uses
C-1 C-2

Permitted Principal Uses Permitted Principal Uses

Landscape counseling and planning
Municipal or other passive recreation facilities (parks, greenways, 
including administrative facilities)

Building Construction - Office Only Landscape counseling and planning
Construction other than building construction - Office 
Only Building Construction - Office Only

Arrangement of Transportation Services Construction other than building construction - Office Only

Water supply services Arrangement of Transportation Services

Sewerage Systems (Sec. 17-262) Communication: Cable

Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate Water supply services
Organization hotels and lodginghouses on 
membership basis Sewerage Systems (Sec. 17-262)

Cemetary subdividers and developers Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate

Photographic Studies, portrait Organization hotels and lodginghouses on membership basis
Funeral Service and crematories Cemetary subdividers and developers
Advertising agences Paint, glass and wallpaper stores
Consumer credit reporting agences Hardware stores
Blueprinting and photocopying (Sec. 17-264) Retail nursuries, lawn and garden supply stores
Commercial photography, art and graphics Department stores
Stenographic services and reproduction services not 
elsewhere classified Variety stores

Employment agencies
General merchandise stores: Miscellaneous general merchandise 
stores

Temporary help services Grocery Stores

Computer and data processing services Retail bakeries

Detective agencies and protective services Food stores: Miscellaneous

Parking Lots Auto and home supply stores (Sec. 17-286)

Municipal or other passive recreation facilities (parks, 
greenways, including administrative facilities) Apparel and accessory stores

Dance studios Furniture, home furnishings and equipment stores

Public Golf Course Eating Places

Offices of physicians Drugstores and proprietary stores

Nursing and personal care facilities Miscellaneous shopping goods stores

Hospitals Mail order house

Medical and dental laboratories Florist

Legal services Cigar store and stands
Colleges, universities, professional schools, and junior 
colleges New dealers and newsstands
Libraries and information centers Miscellaneous retail stores, not elsewhere classified
Business and secretarial schools

Garment pressing and agents for laundries and dry cleaners
Vocational schools except vocational high schools not 
elsewhere classified Taylor and alteration shops
Individual and family siocial services Photographic Studies, portrait
Job training and vocational rehabilitation services

Beauty Shops

57.a

Packet Pg. 539



C-1 C-2
Permitted Principal Uses Cont. Permitted Principal Uses Cont.

Museums and art galleries Barbershops
Business associations Shoe repair shops, shoeshine parlors, and hat cleaning shops

Professional membership Advertising agences

Labor unions and similar organizations Consumer credit reporting agences

Civic, social and fraternal associations Blueprinting and photocopying (Sec. 17-264)

Political organizations Commercial photography, art and graphics

Religious organizations Stenographic services and reproduction services not elsewhere 
classified

Engineering, architectural, and surveying services
Employment agencies

Accounting, auditing, and bookkeeping services
Temporary help services

Commercial economic, sociological, and educational 
research Computer and data processing services
Noncommercial research organization Detective agencies and protective services
Management and public relations services Parking Lots

Detached One-Family Dwelling Radio and television repair shops

Attached Two-Family Dwelling Watch and jewelry repair
High-Rise (Sec. 17-304) Physical fitness facilities and yoga facilities

Mid-Rise (Sec. 17-267) Dance studios
Miscellaneous services Offices of physicians
Executive Offices Medical and dental laboratories
Legislative bodies Legal services
General government not elsewhere classified

Libraries and information centers
Courts Individual and family siocial services

Police and Fire Protection Job training and vocational rehabilitation services

Public finance, taxation, and monetary policy Business associations

Administration of human resources programs Professional membership

Administration of environmental quality and housing 
programs

Civic, social and fraternal associations

Administration of economic programs Political organizations

Religious organizations

Permitted in District, provided owner and/or 
tenant complies with the associated conditions 
set forth in this article

Engineering, architectural, and surveying services

Municipal active recreation facilities (athletic ball 
fields, swimming pools, playgrounds, including 
administration facilities )(Sec. 17-289)

Accounting, auditing, and bookkeeping services

Non-depository personal credit institutions (pay day 
loan and/or title loan establishments (Sec. 17-294)

Commercial economic, sociological, and educational research

Offices and clinics of other health practictioners, 
including therapeutic massage (17-288)

Noncommercial research organization

Elementary and Secondary Schools (17-296) Management and public relations services

57.a

Packet Pg. 540



C-2 C-2
Permitted Accessory Use Permitted Principal Uses Cont.
Private Commercial Storage (Sec. 17-260) Miscellaneous services

Eating Places Executive Offices

Drugstores and proprietary stores Legislative bodies

Beauty Shops General government not elsewhere classified

Barbershops Police and Fire Protection

Reupholstery and furniture repair Public finance, taxation, and monetary policy
Permitted as an Accessory Use or as a Principal 
Use by Special Exception

Administration of human resources programs

Food crops grown within a covered enclosure Administration of environmental quality and housing programs

General farms, primarily crop Administration of economic programs

Special Exception by Board of Zoning Appeals

Veterinary services with indoor kennels

Permitted in District, provided owner and/or tenant 
complies with the associated conditions set forth in this 

article

Veterinary services with outdoor kennels

Municipal active recreation facilities (athletic ball fields, swimming 
pools, playgrounds, including administration facilities )(Sec. 17-289)

Roominghouses and boardinghouses
Non-depository personal credit institutions (pay day loan and/or title 
loan establishments (Sec. 17-294)

U.S. Postal Service
Offices and clinics of other health practictioners, including 
therapeutic massage (17-288)

Drinking Places (alcoholic beverages)(Sec. 17-269) Elementary and Secondary Schools (17-296)

Electric substations

Florist Permitted Accessory Use
Cigar store and stands Private Commercial Storage (Sec. 17-260)

New dealers and newsstands Reupholstery and furniture repair

Miscellaneous retail stores, not elsewhere classified

Apparel and accessory stores
Permitted as an Accessory Use or as a Principal Use by 

Special Exception
Coin-operated laundries and dry cleaning Food crops grown within a covered enclosure
Garment pressing and agents for laundries and dry 
cleaners General farms, primarily crop
Miscellaneous personal services, except massage 
parlors and spas

Massage parlors and spas Special Exception by Board of Zoning Appeals
Business services not elsewhere classified U.S. Postal Service

Agricultural services with indoor kennels Gasoline service stations (Sec. 17-286)

Agricultural services with outdoor kennels Boat dealers (Sec. 17-286)

Parking structures Recreational and utility trailer dealers (Sec. 17-286

Radio and mobile telephone installation shops
Drinking Places (alcoholic beverages)(Sec. 17-269)

Watch and jewelry repair Liquor Stores

Motion picture theaters except drive-in Electric substations
Physical fitness facilities and yoga facilities

Suite Hotel (Sec. 17-271)

Membership Sports and Recreation Clubs Bed and breakfast hotel (Sec. 17-271)

57.a

Packet Pg. 541



C-2 C-2
Special Exception by Board of Zoning Appeals, 

Cont.
Special Exception by Board of Zoning Appeals Cont.

Arboreta, botanical and zoological gardens Roominghouses and boardinghouses

Day Care Facilities (Sec. 17-265) Coin-operated laundries and dry cleaning

Residential Care (Sec. 17-266) Miscellaneous personal services, except massage parlors and spas

Attached One-Family Dwelling Massage parlors and spas

Multi-Family Dwelling Agricultural services with indoor kennels

Group Development Agricultural services with outdoor kennels

Dormitories, Public Parking structures

Fraternity and sorority houses Repair shops, not otherwise classified

Motion picture theaters except drive-in

Bowling alleys and billiard and pool establishments

Membership Sports and Recreation Clubs
Business and secretarial schools

Arboreta, botanical and zoological gardens
Museums and art galleries

Day Care Facilities (Sec. 17-265)

Residential Care (Sec. 17-266)

Detached One-Family Dwelling

Attached Two-Family Dwelling

Attached One-Family Dwelling

Townhouses (Sec. 17-268)

Multi-Family Dwelling

Group Development

57.a

Packet Pg. 542



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:04 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: 1012 Woodrow Street, TMS#11413-05-2 
 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 MA_1012_WoodrowStreet (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Council District: 3 
 
Proposal: Rezone the parcel from C-1 to C-2 
 
Applicant:Sharon D. Kerr 
 
Staff Recommendation: Denial 
 
PC Recommendation: 07/11/2016; Denial (6-0) 

58

Packet Pg. 543



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
September 20, 2016 at 7:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 
 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT CASE SUMMARY  
1012 WOODROW STREET, TMS#11413-05-2 

 
 
Council District:  3 
 
Proposal: Rezone the parcel from C-1 to C-2 
 
Applicant:  Sharon D. Kerr 
 
Staff Recommendation:    DENIAL 
   
PC Recommendation:  07/11/2016; DENIAL (6-0)   
   
Zoning Public Hearing: 09/20/2016; PENDING 
 
Zoning Public Hearing:  10/04/2016; PENDING 
 
  

CURRENT PARCEL CHARACTERISTICS/CONDITIONS 
 

Acreage:  ~0.09 acres 
Current Use: Miscellaneous Retail  
Proposed Use: Retail 
Land Use Classification: Urban Core Residential Small Lot (UCR-1) 
Current Zoning: C-1 (Office and Institutional District) 
Proposed Zoning: C-2 (Neighborhood Commercial District) 
 

PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 

 
The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  

The subject parcel is designated Urban Core Residential Small Lot (UCR-1) in The Columbia Plan 2018 Future 
Land Use Map. 

 
Urban Core Residential Small Lot neighborhoods are common just outside the urban center, most were 
subdivided before 1950 and many continue the grid or street network from the original planned portion of the 
City.  This development type may represent existing neighborhoods and is also a development form appropriate 
for medium to large-scale redevelopments or infill sites.  Traditional and contemporary architectural styles have a 

58.a

Packet Pg. 544



place in these neighborhoods.  When infill development is designed, scale and orientation of existing structures on 
the block should act as design presets. 
 
Primary Types 

• Single-family Detached 
 

Secondary Types 
• Single-family Attached 
• Two-family 
• Three-family 

 
Tertiary Types 

• Multi-family Small 
• Small Format Business/Employment (excl. Flex) 
• Cemeteries and Mausoleums 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcel is covered by the Old Shandon - Valley Park Neighborhood Conservation Plan (1980).  The 
plan notes that residents in the Maple Street Area (identified as Area 2) wished to prevent further commercial 
intrusion.  The Plan  recommended that the parcel remain zoned C-1 (Plan Exhibits 12 & 13).   

 
PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY 

 
The subject parcel is currently zoned Office and Institutional District (C-1), as is the property across Woodrow to the 
West.  Surrounding property is zoned Planned Unit Development – Residential District (PUD-R) to the South and East 
and General Commercial (C-3) to the North.  The adjacent PUD-R allows for live-work (or “commercial, residential or 
mixed use construction”) on the small vacant lot on the corner of Millwood and Woodrow, but otherwise allows only 
home occupations.  Property to the South and East is part of the Old Shandon/Lower Waverly Historic District Area B 
(Buffer).  
 
Office and Institutional District (C-1) 
The C-1 district is intended to accommodate office, institutional, and certain types of residential uses in areas whose 
characteristic is neither general commercial nor exclusively residential in nature. Certain related structures and uses 
required to serve the needs of the areas are permitted outright or are permissible as special exceptions subject to 
restrictions and requirements intended to best fulfill the intent of this article. 
 
The proposed City of Columbia zoning is Neighborhood Commercial District (C-2). 
 
Neighborhood Commercial District (C-2) 
The C-2 district is intended to accommodate commercial and service uses oriented primarily to serving the needs of 
persons who live or work in nearby areas. Certain related structures and uses required to serve the needs of such areas are 
permitted outright or are permissible as special exceptions subject to restrictions and requirements intended to best fulfill 
the intent of this article.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

As the Old Shandon Valley Park Neighborhood Plan recommended that the parcel remain zoned C-1 and the land use plan 
considers small format business as a tertiary use which is allowed in the C-1, staff recommends the denial of the request to 
rezone the parcel from C-1 to C-2, as the C-2 has additional uses that are more intense.    
 
 

58.a

Packet Pg. 545



58.a

Packet Pg. 546



UCR-1

UCMR-1

AC-1

UCR-1

CYPRESS ST

MILLWOOD AVE

WO
OD

RO
W S

T

MA
PLE

 ST

CHERRY ST

FAI
RV

IEW
 DR

PICKETT ST

OLD SHANDON CIR

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:

Leigh DeForth
June 21, 2016

I
0 50 10025 Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

1012 Woodrow Street, TMS# 11413-05-20
FLU: Urban Core Residential Small Lot (UCR-1)

Subject Property

58.a

Packet Pg. 547



Old Shandon/Lower Waverly Historic Distric Area B (Buffer)

Melrose Heights/Oak Lawn Architectural Conservation District

Old Shandon/Lower Waverly Historic District Area A (Main District)

C-3

RG-1

RG-1

PUD-R

RG-1

RG-2

RS-3

C-1

C-1

C-1

C-1

PUD-R

CYPRESS ST

MILLWOOD AVE

WO
OD

RO
W S

T
CHERRY ST

FAI
RV

IEW
 DR

KIN
G S

T

MA
PLE

 ST

PICKETT ST

OLD SHANDON CIRDISCLAIMER:
The City of Columbia Department of 
Planning and Development Services 
data represented on this map or plan 
is the product of compilation, as 
produced by others.  It is provided 
for informational purposes only and 
the City of Columbia makes no 
representation as to its accuracy.  Its 
use without field verification is at the 
sole risk of the user.

Zoning Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:
Leigh DeForth
June 17, 2016

D-1
RS-1
RS-1A
RS-1B
RS-2
RS-3
RD
RD-2
RG-1
RG-1A
RG-2
RG-3
UTD
MX-1
MX-2

C-1
C-2
C-3
C-3A
C-4
C-5
M-1
M-2
PUD-C
PUD-LS
PUD-LS-E
PUD-LS-R
PUD-R
OUT OF CITY

I
0 40 8020

Feet

Legend
CITY LIMITS
PARCELS

Architectural Conservation District
Protection Area District

Subject Property

1012 Woodrow Street, TMS#: 11413-05-20
Existing Zoning: C-1; Proposed Zoning: C-2

58.a

Packet Pg. 548



Table of Permitted Uses Table of Permitted Uses
C-1 C-2

Permitted Principal Uses Permitted Principal Uses

Landscape counseling and planning
Municipal or other passive recreation facilities (parks, greenways, 
including administrative facilities)

Building Construction - Office Only Landscape counseling and planning
Construction other than building construction - Office 
Only Building Construction - Office Only

Arrangement of Transportation Services Construction other than building construction - Office Only

Water supply services Arrangement of Transportation Services

Sewerage Systems (Sec. 17-262) Communication: Cable

Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate Water supply services
Organization hotels and lodginghouses on 
membership basis Sewerage Systems (Sec. 17-262)

Cemetary subdividers and developers Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate

Photographic Studies, portrait Organization hotels and lodginghouses on membership basis
Funeral Service and crematories Cemetary subdividers and developers
Advertising agences Paint, glass and wallpaper stores
Consumer credit reporting agences Hardware stores
Blueprinting and photocopying (Sec. 17-264) Retail nursuries, lawn and garden supply stores
Commercial photography, art and graphics Department stores
Stenographic services and reproduction services not 
elsewhere classified Variety stores

Employment agencies
General merchandise stores: Miscellaneous general merchandise 
stores

Temporary help services Grocery Stores

Computer and data processing services Retail bakeries

Detective agencies and protective services Food stores: Miscellaneous

Parking Lots Auto and home supply stores (Sec. 17-286)

Municipal or other passive recreation facilities (parks, 
greenways, including administrative facilities) Apparel and accessory stores

Dance studios Furniture, home furnishings and equipment stores

Public Golf Course Eating Places

Offices of physicians Drugstores and proprietary stores

Nursing and personal care facilities Miscellaneous shopping goods stores

Hospitals Mail order house

Medical and dental laboratories Florist

Legal services Cigar store and stands
Colleges, universities, professional schools, and junior 
colleges New dealers and newsstands
Libraries and information centers Miscellaneous retail stores, not elsewhere classified
Business and secretarial schools

Garment pressing and agents for laundries and dry cleaners
Vocational schools except vocational high schools not 
elsewhere classified Taylor and alteration shops
Individual and family siocial services Photographic Studies, portrait
Job training and vocational rehabilitation services

Beauty Shops

58.a

Packet Pg. 549



C-1 C-2
Permitted Principal Uses Cont. Permitted Principal Uses Cont.

Museums and art galleries Barbershops
Business associations Shoe repair shops, shoeshine parlors, and hat cleaning shops

Professional membership Advertising agences

Labor unions and similar organizations Consumer credit reporting agences

Civic, social and fraternal associations Blueprinting and photocopying (Sec. 17-264)

Political organizations Commercial photography, art and graphics

Religious organizations Stenographic services and reproduction services not elsewhere 
classified

Engineering, architectural, and surveying services
Employment agencies

Accounting, auditing, and bookkeeping services
Temporary help services

Commercial economic, sociological, and educational 
research Computer and data processing services
Noncommercial research organization Detective agencies and protective services
Management and public relations services Parking Lots

Detached One-Family Dwelling Radio and television repair shops

Attached Two-Family Dwelling Watch and jewelry repair
High-Rise (Sec. 17-304) Physical fitness facilities and yoga facilities

Mid-Rise (Sec. 17-267) Dance studios
Miscellaneous services Offices of physicians
Executive Offices Medical and dental laboratories
Legislative bodies Legal services
General government not elsewhere classified

Libraries and information centers
Courts Individual and family siocial services

Police and Fire Protection Job training and vocational rehabilitation services

Public finance, taxation, and monetary policy Business associations

Administration of human resources programs Professional membership

Administration of environmental quality and housing 
programs

Civic, social and fraternal associations

Administration of economic programs Political organizations

Religious organizations

Permitted in District, provided owner and/or 
tenant complies with the associated conditions 
set forth in this article

Engineering, architectural, and surveying services

Municipal active recreation facilities (athletic ball 
fields, swimming pools, playgrounds, including 
administration facilities )(Sec. 17-289)

Accounting, auditing, and bookkeeping services

Non-depository personal credit institutions (pay day 
loan and/or title loan establishments (Sec. 17-294)

Commercial economic, sociological, and educational research

Offices and clinics of other health practictioners, 
including therapeutic massage (17-288)

Noncommercial research organization

Elementary and Secondary Schools (17-296) Management and public relations services

58.a

Packet Pg. 550



C-2 C-2
Permitted Accessory Use Permitted Principal Uses Cont.
Private Commercial Storage (Sec. 17-260) Miscellaneous services

Eating Places Executive Offices

Drugstores and proprietary stores Legislative bodies

Beauty Shops General government not elsewhere classified

Barbershops Police and Fire Protection

Reupholstery and furniture repair Public finance, taxation, and monetary policy
Permitted as an Accessory Use or as a Principal 
Use by Special Exception

Administration of human resources programs

Food crops grown within a covered enclosure Administration of environmental quality and housing programs

General farms, primarily crop Administration of economic programs

Special Exception by Board of Zoning Appeals

Veterinary services with indoor kennels

Permitted in District, provided owner and/or tenant 
complies with the associated conditions set forth in this 

article

Veterinary services with outdoor kennels

Municipal active recreation facilities (athletic ball fields, swimming 
pools, playgrounds, including administration facilities )(Sec. 17-289)

Roominghouses and boardinghouses
Non-depository personal credit institutions (pay day loan and/or title 
loan establishments (Sec. 17-294)

U.S. Postal Service
Offices and clinics of other health practictioners, including 
therapeutic massage (17-288)

Drinking Places (alcoholic beverages)(Sec. 17-269) Elementary and Secondary Schools (17-296)

Electric substations

Florist Permitted Accessory Use
Cigar store and stands Private Commercial Storage (Sec. 17-260)

New dealers and newsstands Reupholstery and furniture repair

Miscellaneous retail stores, not elsewhere classified

Apparel and accessory stores
Permitted as an Accessory Use or as a Principal Use by 

Special Exception
Coin-operated laundries and dry cleaning Food crops grown within a covered enclosure
Garment pressing and agents for laundries and dry 
cleaners General farms, primarily crop
Miscellaneous personal services, except massage 
parlors and spas

Massage parlors and spas Special Exception by Board of Zoning Appeals
Business services not elsewhere classified U.S. Postal Service

Agricultural services with indoor kennels Gasoline service stations (Sec. 17-286)

Agricultural services with outdoor kennels Boat dealers (Sec. 17-286)

Parking structures Recreational and utility trailer dealers (Sec. 17-286

Radio and mobile telephone installation shops
Drinking Places (alcoholic beverages)(Sec. 17-269)

Watch and jewelry repair Liquor Stores

Motion picture theaters except drive-in Electric substations
Physical fitness facilities and yoga facilities

Suite Hotel (Sec. 17-271)

Membership Sports and Recreation Clubs Bed and breakfast hotel (Sec. 17-271)

58.a

Packet Pg. 551



C-2 C-2
Special Exception by Board of Zoning Appeals, 

Cont.
Special Exception by Board of Zoning Appeals Cont.

Arboreta, botanical and zoological gardens Roominghouses and boardinghouses

Day Care Facilities (Sec. 17-265) Coin-operated laundries and dry cleaning

Residential Care (Sec. 17-266) Miscellaneous personal services, except massage parlors and spas

Attached One-Family Dwelling Massage parlors and spas

Multi-Family Dwelling Agricultural services with indoor kennels

Group Development Agricultural services with outdoor kennels

Dormitories, Public Parking structures

Fraternity and sorority houses Repair shops, not otherwise classified

Motion picture theaters except drive-in

Bowling alleys and billiard and pool establishments

Membership Sports and Recreation Clubs
Business and secretarial schools

Arboreta, botanical and zoological gardens
Museums and art galleries

Day Care Facilities (Sec. 17-265)

Residential Care (Sec. 17-266)

Detached One-Family Dwelling

Attached Two-Family Dwelling

Attached One-Family Dwelling

Townhouses (Sec. 17-268)

Multi-Family Dwelling

Group Development

58.a

Packet Pg. 552



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:04 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development Services 
 
FROM: Krista Hampton, Director 

 
SUBJECT: 523 Winmet Drive, TMS #11702-02-12 and N/S Amberley 

Road, TMS #11702-02-21 
 
PRESENTER: Krista Hampton 

59

Packet Pg. 553



Action Item (ID # 2874)  Meeting of September 20, 2016 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:04 PM  Page 2 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 09-20-2016_ZPH_ANNEX_523 WinmetDrive - and - NS AmberleyRoad (PDF) 
 2016-082 annex-incorporate 523 Winmet & NS Amberley (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Ordinance No.: 2016-082 - Annexing and Incorporating 
523 Winmet Drive and N/5 Amberley Road, Richland 
County TMS #11702-02-12 and 11702-02-21 into the Plan 
Columbia Land Use Plan Putting the Pieces Together 
adopted by Ordinance No.: 2015-014 on February 17, 2015 
 
Council District:1 
 
Proposal for 523 Winmet Drive: Request to annex, assign 
Urban Core Community Activity Center (UCAC-2) Land 
Use Classification and RG-1 Zoning. The property is 
currently classified as Mixed Residential - High Density by 
Richland County and zoned as RM-MD by Richland 
County. Proposal for N/S Amberley Road: Request to 
annex, assign Urban Edge Residential - Small Lot (UER-1) 
Land Use Classification and RS-1 Zoning. The property is 
currently classified as Mixed Residential - High Density by 
Richland County and zoned as RM-MD by Richland 
County. 
 
Applicant: Minhaj-Ul-Quran USA (MQ-USA) 
 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 
 
PC Recommendation: 08/01/16; Approval (6-0) 

59

Packet Pg. 554



 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
September 20, 2016 at 7:00pm   

City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 1737 Main Street, Columbia, SC 29201 
 
 

ANNEXATION, COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AMENDMENT, AND 
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT CASE SUMMARY  

523 WINMET DRIVE, TMS# 11702-02-12 AND  
N/S AMBERLEY ROAD, TMS# 11702-02-21 

 
 
Council District:  1 
 
Proposal for 523 Winmet Drive: Request to annex, assign Urban Core Community Activity Center (UCAC-2) 

Land Use Classification and RG-1 Zoning. The property is currently classified 
as Mixed Residential – High Density by Richland County and zoned as RM-
MD by Richland County. 

 
Proposal for N/S Amberley Road: Request to annex, assign Urban Edge Residential - Small Lot (UER-1) Land 

Use Classification and RS-1 Zoning. The property is currently classified as 
Mixed Residential – High Density by Richland County and zoned as RM-MD 
by Richland County. 

 
Applicant: Minhaj-Ul-Quran USA (MQ-USA) 
 
Staff Recommendation:    APPROVAL 
   
PC Recommendation: 08/01/16; APPROVAL (6-0) 
   
ZPH, 1st Reading: 09/20/16; PENDING 
   
ZPH, 2nd Reading: 10/04/16; PENDING 
   
 

CURRENT PARCEL CHARACTERISTICS/CONDITIONS 
 

523 Winmet Drive 
Acreage: ~0.65 acres  
Current Use: Residence 
Proposed Use: Expansion of religious place of worship to include picnic shelters and addition to existing structure 
located on TMS# 11702-02-32 
Reason for Annexation: Municipal Services 
Urban Service Area:  Primary 

59.a

Packet Pg. 555



 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Current Land Use Classification: Mixed Residential (High Density) 
Proposed Land Use Classification: Urban Core Community Activity Center (UCAC-2) 
Current Richland County Zoning: RM-MD Residential, Multi-Family, Medium Density District 
Proposed Zoning: RG-1 General Residential District 
Census Tract: 106 
 
N/S Amberley Road  
Acreage: 2.67 acres  
Current Use: Vacant Land 
Proposed Use: Expansion of religious place of worship to include picnic shelters and addition to existing structure 
located on TMS# 11702-02-32 
Reason for Annexation: Municipal Services 
Urban Service Area:  Primary 
Current Land Use Classification: Mixed Residential (High Density) 
Proposed Land Use Classification: Urban Edge Residential - Small Lot (UER-1) 
Current Richland County Zoning: RM-MD Residential, Multi-Family, Medium Density District 
Proposed Zoning: RS-1 (Single Family Residential District) 
Census Tract: 106 
 

DETERMINATION FOR CITY SERVICES 

The following determination is an estimate of the benefits and costs associated with the annexation of the subject 
property.   
 
Police 
We find that the proposed annexations of 523 Winmet and N/S Amberley will result in an increased number of calls for 
services and will cost the CPD $426.62 annually to provide service once the project is completed based upon current calls 
for service to the adjacent parcel under the same ownership. 
 
Fire 
The proposed annexation will not result in additional costs or impact services being provided by this department. 
Annexation would lower the ISO rating of this property to a Class 1 from a Class 2. 
 
Solid Waste 
At this time the property is undeveloped and future uses would be commercial/institutional.  Solid Waste services cost 
would be $0.00 since this services is not provided to commercial/institutional uses. 
 
Engineering 
Because water and sewer lines currently exist in this area and the developer will install new infrastructure at the time of 
development, the Utilities and Engineering Division will not incur any costs associated with this annexation. There is a 
tap fee for the property owner. 
 
Water Customer Care 
Annexation will result in an approximately 40% reduction in water and sewer service rates for the customer. 
 
Planning & Development Services 
We recommend annexation of this property. The estimated annual city property tax revenue after annexation of these 
properties will generate approximately $0.00, as this property is owned and operated by a religious institution. 
 
*Estimated City Tax Revenue calculated as: (Tax Value*Tax Rate)*City Millage Rate (.0981)) - (Tax Value*Local 
Option Sales Tax Credit (.002)). 
 

59.a

Packet Pg. 556



 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 

PLANS, POLICIES, AND LAND USE 
 

Urban Service Area  
Subject parcel is in a “Primary Area” as identified in the Urban Service Area Map 
 
Principles and Goals of the Urban Service Area 
The Urban Service Area identifies those areas the City of Columbia wishes to provide with urban services.  
Primary emphasis will be given to annexing developed areas adjoining the City limits and “islands” of 
unincorporated territory surrounded by the City.  Primary, secondary, and long-range annexation priorities for 
specific areas may be identified.  Secondary areas may include higher value properties which assist the City in 
achieving a more balanced economic base. 
 
Primary areas are constituted of land contiguous to the City where services are available and the infrastructure is 
generally good. These services include fire, police, sanitation, and utilities. Concerning utilities, these areas do not 
assume that the water or sewer line extends directly to each lot, but that it is available for extension in a 
reasonable manner. Primary areas are intended to indicate that, barring unanticipated circumstances, annexation is 
recommended and, where appropriate, should be actively pursued. 

 
The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  
523 Winmet Drive -  

Staff recommends that the subject parcel be designated Urban Core Community Activity Center (UCAC-2) in The 
Columbia Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map. 

 
Urban Core Community Activity Centers are medium scale collections of primarily business uses, developed 
within the urban grid of Columbia’s neighborhoods. They are destination locations that serve an area of about a 3-
5 mile radius or drive distance.  These centers often occupy several city blocks (within a neighborhood) and 
include several dozen businesses and multi-family or mixed-use buildings.  The destination nature of these centers 
means significant demand for transit facilities and parking.  Their scale and architecture are larger than most of 
the surrounding single-family homes.  They may be fond as nodes in Urban Core Mixed Residential 
neighborhoods, or in lower intensity within Urban Core Residential neighborhoods. 
 
Primary Types: 

• Small and Medium format Business/Employment (excl. Flex) 
• Multi-family Small and Medium Mixed Use 

 
Secondary Types: 

• Multi-family Small or Medium 
 

Tertiary Types: 
• Civic/Institutional  
• Single-family Attached 
• Large Format Business/Employment (excl. Flex) 
• Cemeteries & Mausoleums 
• Parking Structures and Lots 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcel is not covered by an area plan which has been adopted by the City of Columbia or Richland 
County. 

59.a

Packet Pg. 557



 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
The Columbia Plan 2018: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Classification  
N/S Amberley Road- 

Staff recommends that the subject parcel be designated Urban Edge Residential Small Lot (UER-1) in The 
Columbia Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map. 

 
Urban Edge Residential Small Lot neighborhoods account for a significant portion of the City’s existing 
residential neighborhoods.  This development type is appropriate as development on remaining large lots or as 
redevelopment in the outer areas of Columbia.  Most of these developments are relatively modern and occurred 
after 1970.  Urban Edge Residential Small Lot developments generally do not continue the grid and block pattern 
found in the urban core neighborhoods, but do tend to have a consistently organized internal street network with 
loops and interconnections. Cul-de-sacs are most prominent in this development type. 
 
Primary Types: 

• Single-family Detached 
 

Tertiary Types: 
• Single-family Attached 
• Two-family 
• Three-family 
• Multi-family Small 
• Small Format Business/Employment (excl. Flex) 
• Small Format Civic/Institutional 
• Cemeteries & Mausoleums 

 
Existing Neighborhood, Small Area, Community, and/or Corridor Plans 

The subject parcel is not covered by an area plan which has been adopted by the City of Columbia or Richland 
County. 

 
PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY 

 
523 Winmet Drive –  
The parcel is currently zoned Residential, Multi-Family – Medium Density District (RM-MD) by Richland County, and 
surrounding parcels within the City of Columbia are zoned are currently zoned  General Residential District (RG-1) to the 
West and General Residential District (RG-2) to the North.  Surrounding parcels in unincorporated Richland County are 
zoned Residential, Multi-Family – Medium Density District (RM-MD). 
 
The proposed City of Columbia zoning district is General Residential District (RG-1).   
 
General Residential District (RG-1) 
The RG-1, RG-1A and RG-2 districts are intended as medium and high density residential areas permitting progressively 
higher population densities, characterized by single-family detached, two-family detached and multiple-family structures, 
and garden type apartments. Certain structures and uses required to serve governmental, educational, religious, 
noncommercial recreational, and other needs of the areas are permitted outright or are permissible as special exceptions 
subject to restrictions and requirements intended to preserve and protect the residential character of the districts. 
 
N/S Amberley Road –  
The parcel is currently zoned Residential, Multi-Family – Medium Density District (RM-MD) by Richland County, and 
surrounding parcels within the City of Columbia are zoned Single Family Residential District (RS-1) to the West and 
Northwest, and General Residential District (RG-1) to the East and Southeast.  Adjacent properties within unincorporated 
Richland County are currently zoned Residential, Multi-Family – Medium Density District (RM-MD). 

59.a

Packet Pg. 558



 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
The proposed City of Columbia zoning district is Single Family Residential District (RS-1).   
 
Single Family Residential District (RS-1) 
The RS-1, RS-1A, RS-1B, RS-2 and RS-3 districts are intended as single-family residential areas with detached units with 
low to medium population densities. Use regulations for the single-family districts are identical, but contain varying 
classes of lot width and lot area, and these dimensional differences are intended to be preserved. Certain structures and 
uses required to serve governmental, educational, religious, noncommercial, recreational, and other needs of those areas 
are permitted outright within such districts or are permissible as special exceptions subject to restrictions and requirements 
intended to preserve and protect the single-family residential character of the district. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

523 Winmet Drive –  
Staff recommends that City Council annex said land and assign a land use classification of UCAC-2 and assign zoning of 
RG-1 at the time of annexation. 
 
N/S Amberley Road –  
Staff recommends that City Council annex said land and assign a land use classification of UER-1 and assign zoning of 
RS-1 at the time of annexation. 
 

59.a

Packet Pg. 559



59.a

Packet Pg. 560



UCAC-2
SD-2

UER-1

IND

UER-1

FAI
RF

IEL
D R

D

WINMET DR

AMBERLEY RD

TREMONT AVE

ROSEDALE ARCH

GLENTHORNE RD

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:

Leigh DeForth
July 18, 2016

I
0 100 20050 Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

523 Winmet Drive; TMS#: 11702-02-12
Existing Richland County FLU: Mixed Residential (High Density); Proposed FLU: UCAC-2

Subject Property

59.a

Packet Pg. 561



RS-1

C-3

RG-2

RG-1
RG-2

RS-3

RS-3

RG-1

RS-3

FAI
RF

IEL
D R

D

AMBERLEY RD

WINMET DR

TRE
MO

NT
 AV

E

GLENTHORNE RD

ROSEDALE ARCH

N HAVEN CT

DISCLAIMER:
The City of Columbia Department of 
Planning and Development Services 
data represented on this map or plan 
is the product of compilation, as 
produced by others.  It is provided 
for informational purposes only and 
the City of Columbia makes no 
representation as to its accuracy.  Its 
use without field verification is at the 
sole risk of the user.

Zoning Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:
Leigh DeForth
July 18, 2016

D-1
RS-1
RS-1A
RS-1B
RS-2
RS-3
RD
RD-2
RG-1
RG-1A
RG-2
RG-3
UTD
MX-1
MX-2

C-1
C-2
C-3
C-3A
C-4
C-5
M-1
M-2
PUD-C
PUD-LS
PUD-LS-E
PUD-LS-R
PUD-R
OUT OF CITY

I
0 100 20050

Feet

Legend
CITY LIMITS
PARCELS

523 Winmet Drive; TMS#: 11702-02-12
Existing Zoning: RM-MD; Proposed Zoning: RG-1

Subject Property

59.a

Packet Pg. 562



59.a

Packet Pg. 563



UER-1

SD-2

UCAC-2

IND

UER-1

UCAC-1UEMR
FAI

RF
IEL

D R
D

AMBERLEY RD

WINMET DR

ASHLEY ST

CORT RD

TREMONT AVESTEBONDALE RD

ROSEDALE ARCH

N HAVEN CT

GLEN
LEA

 RD

GLENTHORNE RD
DELVERTON RD

COLLETON ST

PROGRESS PT

GLENTHORNE RD

DELVERTON RD

Future Land Use Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:

Leigh DeForth
July 18, 2016

I
0 200 400100 Feet

Legend

PARCELS
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THIS MAP IS THE PRODUCT OF COMPILATION,

OR WAS PRODUCED BY OTHERS.  IT IS FOR
INFORMATION ONLY AND THE CITY OF COLUMBIA

MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY 
OR USE WITHOUT FIELD VERIFICATION 

IS AT THE SOLE RISK OF THE USER.

UCMR-1 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-1
UCMR-2 - Urban Core Mixed Residential-2
UEMR - Urban Edge Mixed Residential
UEMF - Urban Edge Multi-Family
UCR-1 - Urban Core Residential Small Lot
UCR-2 - Urban Core Residential Large Lot
UER-1 - Urban Edge Residential Small Lot
UER-2 - Urban Edge Residential Large Lot
UCAC-1 - Urban Core Neighborhood Activity Center
UCAC-2 - Urban Core Community Activity Center
UEAC-1 Urban Edge Community Activity Center
UCAC-3 Urban Core Regional Activity Center
UEAC-2 - Urban Edge Regional Activity Center
AC-1 - Neighborhood Activity Corridor
AC-2 - Community Activity Corridor
AC-3 - Regional Activity Corridor
EC - Employment Campus
IND - Industrial
TU - Transportation & Utilities
SD-1 - Sports/Amusement District
SD-2 - Civic/Institutional Districts
SD-3 - Central Business District
SD-4 - Riverbanks Zoo and Garden
SD-5 - Universities/Colleges 
SD-6 - Fort Jackson

N/S Amberley Road; TMS#: 11702-02-21
Existing Richland County FLU: Mixed Residential (High Density); Proposed FLU: UER-1

Subject Property

59.a

Packet Pg. 564



RS-1

C-3

RS-2

RG-2

RG-1 RG-2

RS-3

RG-1
RS-3

RS-3

AMBERLEY RD

FAI
RF

IEL
D R

D

WINMET DR

STEBONDALE RD

N HAVEN CT

ASHLEY ST

CORT RD

GLENTHORNE RD

GLENLEA RD

DELVERTON RD

GLENTHORNE RD

DISCLAIMER:
The City of Columbia Department of 
Planning and Development Services 
data represented on this map or plan 
is the product of compilation, as 
produced by others.  It is provided 
for informational purposes only and 
the City of Columbia makes no 
representation as to its accuracy.  Its 
use without field verification is at the 
sole risk of the user.

Zoning Map

** DATA SOURCE - CITY OF COLUMBIA, GIS DIVISION

Department of Planning & 
Development Services

ORIGINAL PREPARATION/DATE:
This map was prepared by:
Leigh DeForth
July 18, 2016

D-1
RS-1
RS-1A
RS-1B
RS-2
RS-3
RD
RD-2
RG-1
RG-1A
RG-2
RG-3
UTD
MX-1
MX-2

C-1
C-2
C-3
C-3A
C-4
C-5
M-1
M-2
PUD-C
PUD-LS
PUD-LS-E
PUD-LS-R
PUD-R
OUT OF CITY

I
0 80 16040

Feet

Legend
CITY LIMITS
PARCELS

N/S Amberley Road; TMS#: 11702-02-21
Existing Zoning: RM-MD; Proposed Zoning: RS-1

Subject Property

59.a

Packet Pg. 565



ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-082 

Annexing and Incorporating 523 Winmet Drive and N/5 Amberley Road, 
Richland County TMS #11702-02-12 and 11702-02-21 into the Plan Columbia Land Use 

Plan Putting the Pieces Together adopted by Ordinance No.: 2015-014 on February 17, 2015 

WHEREAS, a proper petition has been filed with the City Council by one hundred (1 00%) percent of the 
property owners of the within described property under the provisions of South Carolina Ann. Sec. 5-3-150; and, 

WHEREAS, it appears to City Council that the annexation of the property would be in the best interest of 
the property owners and the City of Columbia; and, 

WHEREAS, City Council adopted the City of Columbia Comprehensive Plan 2018 by Ordinance No.: 
2008-085 on October 1, 2008, and amended from time to time, in accordance with South Carolina 
Comprehensive Planning Act of 1994 (Title 6, Chapter 29 of the SC Code) and heard public comments on this 
amendment; NOW, THERE FORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Columbia, South Carolina, this_ day of 
____ , 2016, that the property described herein is hereby annexed to, incorporated into Plan Columbia 
Land Use Plan Putting the Pieces Together adopted by Ordinance No.: 2015-014 on February 17,2015, and 
becomes a part of the City of Columbia effective immediately. The property located at 523 Win met Drive shall 
be zoned RG-1 (General Residential District), and the property located at N/S Amberley Road shall be zoned RS-1 
(Single Family Residential District), apportioned to City Council District 1, Census Tract 106, contains 3.32 acres, 
and shall be assigned a land use classification of Urban Core Community Activity Center (UCAC-2) to 523 
Winmet Drive and Urban Edge Residential- Small Lot (UER-1) to N/S Amberley Road. 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: See Attached Exhibit "A" 

Richland County TMS NO.: 11702-02-12 and 11702-02-21 

Also included in the territory hereby annexed are all contiguous portions of all public rights of way, 
streets and highways. 

Requested by: 

Assistant City Manager Gentry 

Approved by: 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 

~ 

City Attorney 
Introduced: 
Final Reading: 

Last revised: 8/11/2016 
1617080293 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

59.b

Packet Pg. 566



EXHIBIT "A" 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2016-082 

All that certain piece, parcel or lot lying and being situated near the City of Columbia, the 
County of Richland, and the State of South Carolina, being more particularly shown as 521/523 
Winmet Drive on a plat prepared by Richard M. Lee, R.E., recorded on july 20, 1961, in Plat 
Book 18, Page 78 in the Office of the RMC for Richland County; also being shown as the 
Northwest ninety (90') feet of Tract Three (3) on a plate prepared for j.M. Meetze dated August 
31, 1956, by Evett & Hinley, recorded in Plat Book 9, page 108 in the said office ofthe RMC for 
Richland County; and, 

All that certain piece, parcel or lot lying and being situated near the City of Columbia, the 
County of Richland, and the State of South Carolina, shown and designated as a "2.67 Acres 
Vacant Lot" on a plat prepared for Mirrell A. Castles by Cox and Dinkins, Inc. dated February 3, 
1993 and recorded in the Office of the ROD for Richland County on june 28, 1996 in Plat Book 
56 at page 3786 and having the metes and bounds as shown thereon. 

Last revised: 8/11/2016 
1617080293 

59.b

Packet Pg. 567



59
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
68



59.b

Packet Pg. 569



59
.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
70



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) PETITION FOR ANNEXATION 

COUNTY OF RICHLAND ) 

The undersigned, being the owner(s) of the property described below hereby petition(s) the 
Mayor and City Council for annexation to the City of Columbia, South Carolina pursuant 
to S.C. Code Ann. Section 5-3-150, 1976, as amended. 

Property Description: 

Richland County TMS: 
Property Address: 

All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land with improvements 
thereon, situate lying and being in the County of Richland, 
State of South Carolina, and being more particularly shown as 
521/523 Winmet Drive on a plat prepared by Richard M. Lee, 
R.E., recorded in July 20, 1961, in Plat Book 18, Page 78 in the 
office of the RMC for Richland County; also being shown as 
the Northwest ninety (90') feet of Tract Three (3) on a plat 
prepared for J.M. Meetze dated August 31, 1956, by Evett & 
Hinley, recorded in Plat Book 9, page 108 in the said office of 
the RMC for Richland County; and 

All that certain piece, parcel, or lot of land, with the 
improvements thereon, situate, lying, and being in the County 
of Richland, State of South Carolina, shown and designated as 
a "2.67 Acres Vacant Lot" on a plat prepared for Mirrel A. 
Castles by Cox and Dinkins, Inc., dated February 3, 1993 and 
recorded in the Office of the ROD for Richland County on June 
28, 1996 in Plat Book 56 at page 3786 and having the metes and 
bounds as shown thereon. 

11702-02-12 and 11702-02-21 
523 Winmet Drive and N/S Amberley Road 

Minhaj-Ul-Quran USA (M~ 

BY: """-·~ 
Signature 

Date: 07/19/2016 

CHAUDHRY SADIQ Its: PRESIDENT 
(Print or Type Name) (Print or Type Title) 

59.b

Packet Pg. 571



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/16/2016 4:33 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 
 
FROM: Teresa Wilson, City Manager 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve two (2) appointments and eight (8) 

re-appointments to the Citizens Advisory Council for the 
Police Department. Staff recommends staggering all terms by 
two and three years. 

 
PRESENTER: Chanique J. Belton 

 
Council is asked to appoint an individual to replace a vacated seat; approve Ms. Kaela Harmon 
as the CPD appointee; and re-appoint existing appointees to another term.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 CPD_CAC memo  0916 (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

60

Packet Pg. 572



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:      Teresa B. Wilson, City Manager    
  
FROM:     Chanique J. Belton, City Manager Office 
 
DATE:   September 14, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Citizens Advisory Council for the Columbia Police Department  
 
 
Purpose: The purpose of the Citizens Advisory Council is to review police actions and 
determinations of complaints received by the police department. 
 
Composition: This committee has ten (10) of which seven (7) members are appointed by 
Councilmembers and three (3) members are appointed by Police staff. Appointees serve a one 
(1) year term with eligibility for one (1) reappointment. Meetings will be held quarterly. 
 
Action: Council is asked to appoint an individual to replace a vacated seat; approve Ms. Kaela 
Harmon as the CPD appointee; and re-appoint existing appointees to another term. Set the term 
for these appointments to two (2) years instead of one (1) year.  
 
Staff Recommendations: To prevent the possibility of all appointees rotating off at the same 
time, staff recommends staggering their terms by 2 and 3 years.  
 
District Representation of Applicants: 

District 1 – 2 
District 2 – 1 
District 3 – 2 
District 4 – 4 
Outside of City Limits – 4 
 

Applications Received 
 

 
Laura Cahue 
3330 Earlewood Drive 
Columbia, SC 29201 
District 1 
 
Certified Court Interpreter and Medical 
Interpreter 
 

Shannon Staley 
3012 Columbia Avenue 
Columbia, SC 29201 
District 1 
 
Social work 
Family Connection of SC 
 

60.a

Packet Pg. 573



 
 

Alexander C. Waelde 
510 Heyward Street 
Apt. 406 
Columbia, SC 29201 
District 2 
 
Project Director 
 

Jennifer Crum Hunt 
607 Sims Avenue 
Columbia, SC 29205 
District 3 
 
Sociologist, Retired University Professor 
 

James F. Knox 
2829 Stratford Road 
Columbia, SC 29206 
District 3 
 
SC Association of Counties 
 

James Chatfield 
210 Sorrel Tree Drive 
Columbia, SC 29223 
District 4 
 
Community Development Officer 
South Carolina Community Loan Fund 

Norman S. Jackson 
265 King Charles Road 
Columbia, SC 29209 
District 4 
 
Case Manager Expungment-Solicitor’s 
Office 
 
 

John D. Martin 
1505 Beltline Blvd. 
Columbia, SC 29205 
District 4 
 
Attorney 
Nelson Mullins Riley & Scarborough, LLP 
 

Harold L. Reaves 
6008 Moss Springs Road 
Columbia, SC 29209 
District 4 
 
 
 

Wanda B. Craig 
178 Abbeywalk Lane 
Columbia, SC 29229 
Outside City Limits 
 
Communications Consultant/Writer/Editor 
 

Deborah DePaoli 
2 China Rose Court 
Columbia, SC 29229 
Outside City Limits 
 
Kindergarten Teacher 
Richland School District 2 
 

Kaela Harmon 
427 Twin Eagles Drive 
Columbia, SC 29203 
Outside City Limits 
 
Marketing & PR Manager 
Sixel Consulting Group  
Columbia Metropolitan Airport 
 
*CPD Appointee* 
 

Carolyn R. Seabrook 
405 Harbison Blvd Timberlake Condos, 
Apt. 221 
Outside City Limits 
 
Retired Postmaster 
US Postal Service 
 

 

 

60.a

Packet Pg. 574



 
 

 
Current Members 
 
 DATE APPOINTED START END 
CPD Appointees 
 

   
Seth Stoughton 
315 Running Fox Road 
Columbia, SC 29223 
(434) 262-2484 
Outside City Limits 
 
Assistant Professor 
University of South Carolina 
School of Law 
701 Main Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 
(803) 777-3055 
swstough@law.sc.edu  
 

08/18/2015 09/01/2015 10/31/2016 

Catherine Fant- Vacant 
1712 Wayne Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 
District 2 
  
Assistant General Counsel 
SC Department of Public Safety 
 

08/18/2015 09/01/2015 10/31/2016 

Bob Wynn 
1717 Wayne Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 
(803) 467-7068 
Sure2wynn@yahoo.com  
District 2 
 
Business Development 
SouthStar Capital LLC 
830 Low Country Blvd. 
Charleston, SC 29464 
 

08/18/2015 09/01/2015 10/31/2016 

 
 

   

60.a

Packet Pg. 575

mailto:swstough@law.sc.edu
mailto:Sure2wynn@yahoo.com


 
 

 DATE APPOINTED START END 
Council Appointees 
 
William Dieckmann 
104 Mercator Ct. 
Lexington, SC 29073 
(803) 920-7582 
Dieckmann67@gmail.com  
Outside City Limits 
 
Minister 
Columbia Metro Baptist 
Association 
1929 Gadsden Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 
(803) 252-0116 
 

 
 

08/18/2015 
 
 

09/01/2015 
 
 

10/31/2016 

Edward Grimsley 
141 Alexander Circle 
Columbia, SC 29206 
(803) 738-0576 
District 4  
 
Attorney 
Grimsley Law Firm 
1703 Laurel Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 
(803) 233-1177 
egrimsley@grimsleylaw.com  
 

08/18/2015 09/01/2015 10/31/2016 

P. Jason Reynolds 
4700 Heath Hill Road 
Columbia, SC 29206 
(803) 665-0813 
District 4 
 
Attorney 
Sweeny, Wingate & Barrow 
1515 Lady Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 
(803) 256-2233 
pjr@swblaw.com  
 

08/18/2015 09/01/2015 10/31/2016 

60.a

Packet Pg. 576

mailto:Dieckmann67@gmail.com
mailto:egrimsley@grimsleylaw.com
mailto:pjr@swblaw.com


 
 

 DATE APPOINTED START END 
Rev. W. Andrew Waldo 
847 Kilbourne Road 
Columbia, SC 29205 
(803) 834-0717 
District 4 
 
Bishop 
Episcopal Diocese of Upper 
South Carolina 
1115 Marion Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 
(803) 569-2102 
Awaldo8@edusc.org  
 

08/18/2015 09/01/2015 10/31/2016 

Rev. Michael Baker 
7719 Hunt Club Road 
Columbia, SC 29223 
(803) 600-7066 
Mbaker8761@aol.com  
Outside City Limits 
 
Pastor 
Greater St. Luke Baptist Church 
5228 Farrow Road 
Columbia, SC 29203 
(803) 754-6000 
 

08/18/2015 09/01/2015 10/31/2016 

Colie Lorick, Jr. 
7 Whithorn Way 
Blythewood, SC 29016 
(803) 760-9069 
pastorlorick@yahoo.com  
Outside City Limits 
 
Pastor/Youth/Community 
Services Coordinator 
3420 N. Beltline Blvd. 
Columbia, SC 29204 
(803) 734-4746 
 

08/18/2015 09/01/2015 10/31/2016 

Demetria Capone - Resigned 
4209 Woodridge Drive 
Columbia, SC 29203  
District 1 
 
Nurse 
Richland County School District 
One 

08/18/2015 09/01/2015 10/31/2016 

 
 

60.a

Packet Pg. 577

mailto:Awaldo8@edusc.org
mailto:Mbaker8761@aol.com
mailto:pastorlorick@yahoo.com


 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/15/2016 2:15 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 
 
FROM: Teresa Wilson, City Manager 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve one (1) appointment and one (1) 

re-appointment to the Municipal Election Commission. 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Election memo  0916a (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

61

Packet Pg. 578



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:      Teresa Wilson, City Manager     
  
FROM:     Chanique J. Belton, Office of the City Manager 
 
DATE:   September 12, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Municipal Election Commission 

   
Purpose: The Municipal Election Commission determines the eligibility of candidates seeking 
office; counts and verifies absentee ballots to ensure the integrity of the election process in 
accordance with state statute; and certifies the results of all municipal elections.  
 
Composition: This commission is comprised of 3 appointees who serve a six (6) year term with 
eligibility for one (1) re-appointment. All appointees must reside within the city limits. 
 
Action: Council is asked to appoint one new individual and re-appointment Mr. Byron E. 
Gibson. 
 
• Current District Representation is: 

  District 1 – 1 
  District 2 – 1 
  District 3 – 0 
  District 4 – 1 
  Not in City Limits – 0 
 

• We have received two (2) applications. District Representation of Applicants is: 
  District 1 – 0 
  District 2 – 1 
  District 3 – 1 
  District 4 – 0 
  Not in City Limits – 0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

61.a

Packet Pg. 579



 

 
 
 
Applications on File 
 
District 2 Applicant 
 

 
Byron E. Gipson  
1308 Heidt St. 
Columbia, SC 29204 
District 2 
 
*Seeking re-appointment* 
 

 

District 3 Applicant 
 

 
Tavis E. Micklash 
2944 Oceola Street 
Columbia, SC 29205 
District 3 
 
Senior Reactor Operator 
SCANA 

 

 
Current Members 
 
 APPOINTED STARTS ENDS 
Byron E. Gipson – RE-APPOINT 
1308 Heidt St. 
Columbia, SC 29204 
District 2 
 
Johnson, Toal & Battiste, P.A. 
Attorney 
130 Centre Street 
Orangeburg, SC 29115 
    
  

 03/03/2010 07/01/2016 

Jay Bender - REPLACE 
1502 Hagood Avenue 
Columbia, SC 29205 
District 3 
 
Visiting Professor 
University of South Carolina 
 

04/16/2013* filling 
unexpired term 

04/16/2013 07/01/2016 

Susan Kuo 
101 William and Mary Court 
Columbia, SC 29205 
District 3 
 

06/04/2013 06/04/2013 06/30/2019 

61.a

Packet Pg. 580



 

Professor 
University of South Carolina School 
of Law 
 
    
 

61.a

Packet Pg. 581



 

 
 

 
  
   

 

 

 

 

 

Updated: 9/13/2016 2:18 PM  Page 1 

 
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 
 
FROM: Teresa Wilson, City Manager 

 
SUBJECT: Council is asked to approve one (1) appointment and one (1) 

re-appointment to the Planning Commission. 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

 PC_Memo_0916 (PDF) 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

62

Packet Pg. 582



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:      Ms. Teresa Wilson, City Manager     
  
FROM:     Chanique Belton, Office of the City Manager 
 
DATE:    September 7, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Planning Commission  

    
Purpose: The purpose of this commission is to develop and maintain a continuing planning 
program which will benefit City of Columbia residents; to provide a mutual forum to identify, 
discuss, study and address local development issues and opportunities; to foster, develop and 
review policies, plans and priorities in order to ensure orderly growth, development, 
conservation and preservation; to furnish technical assistance to city government and its agents; 
and to review and coordinate federal, state and local programs that have an impact on the city. 
 
Composition: This commission is comprised of nine (9) members. Appointees serve a three (3) 
year term with the possibility of one (1) re-appointment. 
 
Action: Council is asked to appoint and re-appointment individuals.  
 
District Representation: 

District 1 – 1 
District 2 – 1 
District 3 – 3 
District 4 – 1 
Outside City Limits – 1 

 
District Representation of Applicants: 
 
There are four (4) applications for consideration. 
 

District 1 – 1 
District 2 – 1 
District 3 – 2 
District 4 – 0 
Outside City Limits – 0 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

62.a

Packet Pg. 583



[Type text] 
 

APPLICANTS 
 

James Frost II 
2305 Lincoln Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 
District 1 
 
Engineer 
Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. 
 
 

Brian Stern  
601 Main Street # 317 
Columbia, SC 29201 
District 2 
 
Real Estate Developer 
Stern & Stern 
 
*Seeking Re-Appointment* 
 

James Daniel III 
1 Rice Court 
Columbia, SC 29205 
District 3 
 
Real Estate Broker/Attorney 
Catawba Properties LLC 

Joel “Ford” Tupper 
3221 Murray Street 
Columbia, SC 29205 
District 3 
 
Project Manager 
Sumwalt Associates 
 

 
 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
 
 APPOINTED STARTS ENDS 
Joshua McDuffie 
2417 Marion Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 
District 1 
 
Defense Contractor 
Portage, Inc. 
Shaw AFB, SC 29152 
 

10/15/2013 11/1/2013 11/30/2016 

LaTrell Harts 
2308 Adams Street 
Columbia, SC 29203 
District 2 
 
Instructional Assistant 
Richland One School District 
 

06/07/2016 07/01/2016 06/30/2019 

John Taylor 
1127 Williams Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 
District 2 
 
LTC Associates, Inc. 
912 Lady Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 
 

05/15/2012 
05/19/2015 

06/01/2012 
06/01/2015 

05/31/2015 
06/30/2018 

62.a

Packet Pg. 584



[Type text] 
 

 APPOINTED STARTS ENDS 
Brian Stern – Re-Appoint 
601 Main Street # 317 
Columbia, SC 29201 
District 2 
 
Real Estate Developer 
Stern & Stern 
8910 Two Notch Road  
Columbia, SC 29223 
 

09/17/2013 10/01/2013 10/31/2016 

Gene Dinkins - REPLACE  
2924 Wheat Street 
Columbia, SC 29205 
District 3 
 
Cox and Dinkins, Inc. 
724 Beltline Boulevard 
Columbia, SC 29205 
 
 

10/19/2010 
9/17/2013 

10/19/2010 
10/19/2013 

10/19/2013 
10/31/2016 

April James 
7 Spotswood Court 
Columbia, SC 29210 
Outside City Limits 
 
Commercial Real Estate Brooker 
iRealty International LLC 
3201 Broad River Road 
Columbia, SC 29210 
 

05/19/2015 06/01/2015 6/30/2018 

Richard Cohn   
809 Hampton Creek Way 
Columbia, SC 29209 
District 3 
 
Cohn Construction 
809 Hampton Creek Way 
Columbia, SC 29209 
 
**Currently serving as Vice-Chair** 

05/17/2011 
04/22/2014 

05/17/2011 
05/17/2014 

05/17/2014 
05/17/2017 

Dale Stigamier 
5912 Hampton Leas Lane 
Columbia, SC 29209 
District 3 
 
Integrity Real Estate Advisors 
600 Lawand Drive. Ste. 201 
Columbia, SC 29210 
 
 

02/18/2014 02/18/2014 02/28/2017 

62.a

Packet Pg. 585



[Type text] 
 

 APPOINTED STARTS ENDS 
Earl Craig Waites, Jr. 
738 Abelia Road 
Columbia, SC 29205 
District 4 
 
Colliers International 
P.O. Box 11610 
Columbia, SC 29211 
  
 

02/18/2014 02/18/2014 02/28/2017 

 

62.a

Packet Pg. 586


	Agenda Packet
	WORK SESSION - 2:00 P.M.
	ROLL CALL
	Roll Call

	INVOCATION
	CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION
	1. 2880 : Facade Two Notch Road (Phase 1) Project Update
	Printout: 2880 : Facade Two Notch Road (Phase 1) Project Update
	a. Facade_Phase1_Performance_8-8-16 (3)

	2. 2877 : Public Life Public Space Action Plan
	Printout: 2877 : Public Life Public Space Action Plan
	a. 2016-9-20 Memo to Council
	b. Columbia PSPL_Final_Spreads

	3. 2925 : Parking Enforcement Hours
	Printout: 2925 : Parking Enforcement Hours

	4. 2927 : Parking Ordinance Revisions
	Printout: 2927 : Parking Ordinance Revisions
	a. 2016-090 amend Ch 12 Art 11 Stopping Standing and Parking

	5. 2926 : Storm Water Project List / Proposed Bond Discussion
	Printout: 2926 : Storm Water Project List / Proposed Bond Discussion


	EXECUTIVE SESSION
	6. 2915 : Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual arrangements
	Printout: 2915 : Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual arrangements

	7. 2914 : Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of services
	Printout: 2914 : Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of services

	8. 2922 : Receipt of legal advice which relates to matters covered by attorney-client privilege
	Printout: 2922 : Receipt of legal advice which relates to matters covered by attorney-client privilege


	COUNCIL MEETING - 6:00 P.M.
	ROLL CALL
	INVOCATION
	2918 : Invocation
	Printout: 2918 : Invocation


	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA
	PUBLIC INPUT RELATED TO AGENDA ITEMS
	CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 9 THROUGH 19 AND 21 THROUGH 25
	CONSIDERATION OF BIDS & AGREEMENTS
	9. 2907 : Greater Columbia Chamber of Commerce/BRAC Funding Fiscal Year 2016/2017
	Printout: 2907 : Greater Columbia Chamber of Commerce/BRAC Funding Fiscal Year 2016/2017
	a. Chamber of Commerce Contract (2016-17)

	10. 2906 : EngenuitySC Funding 2016/2017
	Printout: 2906 : EngenuitySC Funding 2016/2017
	a. EngenuitySC Contract (2016-17)

	11. 2905 : Central SC Alliance Funding 2016/2017
	Printout: 2905 : Central SC Alliance Funding 2016/2017
	a. Central SC Contract (2016-17)

	12. 2891 : Safariland Body Armor
	Printout: 2891 : Safariland Body Armor
	a. Lawmen's Quote
	b. SC State Contract #4400011992

	13. 2831 : 2016-2017 Everbridge Emergency Notification System Renewal Service Contract
	Printout: 2831 : 2016-2017 Everbridge Emergency Notification System Renewal Service Contract
	a. 2016-2017 EVERBRIDGE RENEWAL SERVICE AGREEMENT
	b. EVERBRIDGE - City of Columbia, South Carolina_Fully Executed Amendment_07_2014
	c. EVERBRIDGE - City of Columbia_Fully Executed SA_06_2012

	14. 2902 : Adavanced Automation Consulting (AAC)-PMO
	Printout: 2902 : Adavanced Automation Consulting (AAC)-PMO
	a. AAC Terms

	15. 2888 : Purchase of a Heavy Duty Backhoe
	Printout: 2888 : Purchase of a Heavy Duty Backhoe
	a. R177136 - BLANCHARD MACHINERY QUOTE
	b. R177136 - BLANCHARD MACHINERY SC CONTRACT

	16. 2887 : Purchase of a 2016 Caterpillar Excavator
	Printout: 2887 : Purchase of a 2016 Caterpillar Excavator
	a. R177611 BLANCHARD MACHINERY QUOTE
	b. R177611 BLANCHARD MACHINERY SC CONTRACT

	17. 2892 : Purchase of Toter Roll Carts (96 Gallon)
	Printout: 2892 : Purchase of Toter Roll Carts (96 Gallon)
	a. WASTEQUIP QUOTE WQ-10024618
	b. NJPA 060612-WQI

	18. 2890 : Purchase of a F750 Ford Truck with a 571E2 National Crane Mount
	Printout: 2890 : Purchase of a F750 Ford Truck with a 571E2 National Crane Mount
	a. H&E QUOTE
	b. NJPA 03215-GUS

	19. 2910 : Project SS739901;Tanglewood Road Sewer Replacement
	Printout: 2910 : Project SS739901;Tanglewood Road Sewer Replacement
	a. BID016-16-17-TBR Tanglewood Road Sewer Replacement Council Documents


	ORDINANCES - SECOND READING
	20. 2826 : Ordinance 2016-083 SCEG Easement City Water-Wastewater Facility 4011 Beltline
	Printout: 2826 : Ordinance 2016-083 SCEG Easement City Water-Wastewater Facility 4011 Beltline
	a. 2016-083 SCEG Easement City Water-Wastewater Facility 4011 Beltline

	21. 2827 : Ordinance 2016-084 convey ROW N Springs-Risdon Way Project to Richland County
	Printout: 2827 : Ordinance 2016-084 convey ROW N Springs-Risdon Way Project to Richland County
	a. 2016-084 convey ROW N Springs-Risdon Way Project to Richland County


	EVENT RESOLUTIONS
	22. 2894 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-063 Chili Cook Office in Five Points (Nov 12)
	Printout: 2894 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-063 Chili Cook Office in Five Points (Nov 12)
	a. R-2016-063 Five Points Chili Cookoff

	23. 2898 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-065 Main Street Crit (Dec 17)
	Printout: 2898 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-065 Main Street Crit (Dec 17)
	a. R-2016-065 Soda City Crit (Dec 17)

	24. 2896 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-066 Vista Lights (Nov 17)
	Printout: 2896 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-066 Vista Lights (Nov 17)
	a. R-2016-066 Vista Lights (Nov 17)

	25. 2895 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-068 USC Alumni Center Homecoming
	Printout: 2895 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-068 USC Alumni Center Homecoming
	a. R-2016-068 USC Alumni Center Concert (Nov 4)


	CONSIDERATION OF BIDS & AGREEMENTS
	26. 2917 : WM423101
	Printout: 2917 : WM423101
	a. Cover Sheet - Canal
	b. Attachment 1  Bid Tabulation
	c. (REVISED) Bid Results and Recommendation Memo_090816_2nd revision_compiled (Canal Clearwell)
	d. Attachment 3  Letters of Deductive Costs Proposals
	e. Attachment 5  Site Map
	f. Attachment 4  Business Information Records   


	PRESENTATIONS
	27. 2793 : Employee of the Month - July 2016
	Printout: 2793 : Employee of the Month - July 2016
	a. July 2016 Employee of the Month Nomination

	28. 2730 : CRC911 Presentation of CALEA Award
	Printout: 2730 : CRC911 Presentation of CALEA Award

	29. 2923 : National Museum of African American History and Culture Day
	Printout: 2923 : National Museum of African American History and Culture Day
	a. National Museum of African American History and Culture Day (3)

	30. 2921 : Columbia Museum of Art
	Printout: 2921 : Columbia Museum of Art
	a. Columbia Museum of Art 9-20 presentation


	ORDINANCES - FIRST READING
	2919 : Building Code Memorandum
	Printout: 2919 : Building Code Memorandum
	a. 2016 Memo To Council RE  Code Changes
	b. International Code Council - 2015 Codes

	31. 2813 : Ordinance 2016-068 amend Sec. 5-51, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Building Code
	Printout: 2813 : Ordinance 2016-068 amend Sec. 5-51, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Building Code
	a. 2016-068 amend Sec. 5-51, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Building Code

	32. 2814 : Ordinance 2016-069 amend Sec. 5-71, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Gas Code
	Printout: 2814 : Ordinance 2016-069 amend Sec. 5-71, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Gas Code
	a. 2016-069 amend Sec. 5-71, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Gas Code

	33. 2815 : Ordinance 2016-070 amend Sec. 5-91, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Plumbing Code
	Printout: 2815 : Ordinance 2016-070 amend Sec. 5-91, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Plumbing Code
	a. 2016-070 amend Sec. 5-91, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Plumbing Code

	34. 2816 : Ordinance 2016-071 amend Sec. 5-111, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2014 Electric Code
	Printout: 2816 : Ordinance 2016-071 amend Sec. 5-111, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2014 Electric Code
	a. 2016-071 amend Sec. 5-111, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2014 Electric Code

	35. 2817 : Ordinance 2016-072 amend Sec. 5-131, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Mechanical Code
	Printout: 2817 : Ordinance 2016-072 amend Sec. 5-131, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Mechanical Code
	a. 2016-072 amend Sec. 5-131, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Mechanical Code

	36. 2818 : Ordinance2016-073 amend Sec. 5-151, Adoption; conflicting provisions  2015 Property Maintenance Code
	Printout: 2818 : Ordinance2016-073 amend Sec. 5-151, Adoption; conflicting provisions  2015 Property Maintenance Code
	a. 2016-073 amend Sec. 5-151, Adoption; conflicting provisions  2015 Property Maintenance Code

	37. 2819 : Ordinance 2016-074 amend Sec. 5-171. Adoption; conflicting provisions 2009 Energy Conservation Code
	Printout: 2819 : Ordinance 2016-074 amend Sec. 5-171. Adoption; conflicting provisions 2009 Energy Conservation Code
	a. 2016-074 amend Sec. 5-171. Adoption; conflicting provisions 2009 Energy Conservation Code

	38. 2820 : Ordinance 2016-075 amend Sec. 5-191, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Residential Building Code
	Printout: 2820 : Ordinance 2016-075 amend Sec. 5-191, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Residential Building Code
	a. 2016-075 amend Sec. 5-191, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Residential Building Code

	39. 2821 : Ordinance 2016-076 amend Sec. 9-61, Adoption 2015 Fire Prevention Code
	Printout: 2821 : Ordinance 2016-076 amend Sec. 9-61, Adoption 2015 Fire Prevention Code
	a. 2016-076 amend Sec. 9-61, Adoption 2015 Fire Prevention Code

	40. 2908 : Ordinance No.:  2016-088  Lease Renewal 3905 Ensor (BB&T)
	Printout: 2908 : Ordinance No.:  2016-088  Lease Renewal 3905 Ensor (BB&T)
	a. 2016-088 Lease Renewal 3905 Ensor (BB&T)

	41. 2909 : Ordinance No.:  2016-089 Bright-Meyers (Capital Stadium) 8th Amend Purchase Agreement
	Printout: 2909 : Ordinance No.:  2016-089 Bright-Meyers (Capital Stadium) 8th Amend Purchase Agreement
	a. 2016-089 Bright-Meyers (Capital Stadium) 8th Amend Purchase Agreement

	42. 2899 : Ordinance No.:  2016-090 amend Ch 12 Art II Stopping-Standing-Parking
	Printout: 2899 : Ordinance No.:  2016-090 amend Ch 12 Art II Stopping-Standing-Parking
	a. 2016-090 amend Ch 12 Art 11 Stopping Standing and Parking

	43. 2903 : Ordinance No.:  2016-091 Amend 2015-092 Extend Temporary Waiver of Permit Fees (Flood)
	Printout: 2903 : Ordinance No.:  2016-091 Amend 2015-092 Extend Temporary Waiver of Permit Fees (Flood)
	a. 2016-091 amend 2015-092 temporary emergency administrative procedures

	44. 2863 : FT Annex- Woodcreek Phase 3 (partial)
	Printout: 2863 : FT Annex- Woodcreek Phase 3 (partial)
	a. FT-ANNEX-ThePark_Phase3
	b. 2016-085 annex Woodcreek Ph 3

	45. 2862 : Ordinance 2016-086 - FT Annex Woodcreek Phase 2 (partial)
	Printout: 2862 : Ordinance 2016-086 - FT Annex Woodcreek Phase 2 (partial)
	a. FT-ANNEX-The Park_Phase 2 (part 2)
	b. 2016-086 annex The Park Ph 2 Woodcreek

	46. 2916 : Annexation - N/S Deerpark, N/S Island View Circle, Jacobs Mill Pond Rd
	Printout: 2916 : Annexation - N/S Deerpark, N/S Island View Circle, Jacobs Mill Pond Rd
	a. FT-ANNEX-Woodcreek East Woods_Lake B-3
	b. 2016-087 annex NS Deerpark NS Island View Jacobs Mill Pond Woodcreek


	RESOLUTIONS
	47. 2901 : Resolution R-2016-069 Adopt Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Printout: 2901 : Resolution R-2016-069 Adopt Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	a. Memo_HMP 2016 Update Final
	b. R-2016-069 Adopt Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan

	48. 2931 : Resolution No.: R-2016-070 MASC Hometown ED Grant Match
	Printout: 2931 : Resolution No.: R-2016-070 MASC Hometown ED Grant Match
	a. R-2016-070 MASC Grant Match


	PUBLIC HEARING
	49. 2911 : 2015 CAPER
	Printout: 2911 : 2015 CAPER
	a. Memo City Council Agenda 2015 CAPER 090916
	b. 2015 CAPER Draftv2-090816


	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT PUBLIC HEARING - FIRST READING
	50. 2864 : Comp Plan Confirmation- 1104 Deerpark
	Printout: 2864 : Comp Plan Confirmation- 1104 Deerpark
	a. 09-20-2016_ZPH_Case Summary_COMP PLAN_1104 Deerpark
	b. 2016-079 add 1104 Deerpark Drive to Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map

	51. 2865 : Comp Plan Confirmation - 9 & 13 S Olmsted (Village 1A)
	Printout: 2865 : Comp Plan Confirmation - 9 & 13 S Olmsted (Village 1A)
	a. 09-20-2016_ZPH_Case Summary_COMP PLAN_TheVillage-Phase-1A
	b. 2016-078 add 9 and 13 S. Olmsted Ln to Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map

	52. 2866 : Comp Plan Amendment: 4202-06 N Main St/4201-05 Horry St/106-10 Kinderway Ave
	Printout: 2866 : Comp Plan Amendment: 4202-06 N Main St/4201-05 Horry St/106-10 Kinderway Ave
	a. 09-20-2016_ZPH_Case Summary_COMP PLAN_4202-4206_NMain-4201-4205_Horry-1206-1210_Kinderway
	b. 2016-080 amend Comprehensive Plan add N Main Horry & Kinderway

	53. 2867 : Comp Plan Amendment - West Gervais District Plan
	Printout: 2867 : Comp Plan Amendment - West Gervais District Plan
	a. 09-20-2016_PH_CaseSummary_COMPPLAN_WestGervais
	b. 2016-081 adopt West Gervais District Plan


	ZONING PUBLIC HEARING - 7:00 P.M.
	AMENDMENT TO THE GUIDELINES - FIRST READING
	54. 2868 : Design Guidelines Amendment Case Summary
	Printout: 2868 : Design Guidelines Amendment Case Summary
	a. Guidelines Amendment-West Gervais Guidelines


	MAP AMENDMENT - FIRST READING
	55. 2869 : Map Amendment - 1104 Deerpark Drive
	Printout: 2869 : Map Amendment - 1104 Deerpark Drive
	a. 09-20-2016_ZPH_CaseSummary_MA_1104_Deerpark

	56. 2871 : Map Amendment - Village 1A
	Printout: 2871 : Map Amendment - Village 1A
	a. 09-20-2016_ZPH_CaseSummary_MA_TheVillage1A

	57. 2872 : Map Amendment - 2210 Rosewood
	Printout: 2872 : Map Amendment - 2210 Rosewood
	a. MA_2210_RosewoodDrive

	58. 2873 : Map Amendment - 1012 Woodrow Street
	Printout: 2873 : Map Amendment - 1012 Woodrow Street
	a. MA_1012_WoodrowStreet


	ANNEXATION, COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AMENDMENT & ZONING MAP AMENDMENT - FIRST READING
	59. 2874 : Annexation - 523 Winmet Dr & N/S Amberley Rd
	Printout: 2874 : Annexation - 523 Winmet Dr & N/S Amberley Rd
	a. 09-20-2016_ZPH_ANNEX_523 WinmetDrive - and - NS AmberleyRoad
	b. 2016-082 annex-incorporate 523 Winmet & NS Amberley


	APPOINTMENTS
	60. 2781 : Citizens Advisory Council for the Police Department
	Printout: 2781 : Citizens Advisory Council for the Police Department
	a. CPD_CAC memo  0916

	61. 2912 : Municipal Election Commission
	Printout: 2912 : Municipal Election Commission
	a. Election memo  0916a

	62. 2889 : Planning Commission
	Printout: 2889 : Planning Commission
	a. PC_Memo_0916



	Appendix
	1 · 2880 : Facade Two Notch Road (Phase 1) Project Update
	1.a · Facade_Phase1_Performance_8-8-16 (3)

	2 · 2877 : Public Life Public Space Action Plan
	2.a · 2016-9-20 Memo to Council
	2.b · Columbia PSPL_Final_Spreads

	3 · 2925 : Parking Enforcement Hours
	4 · 2927 : Parking Ordinance Revisions
	4.a · 2016-090 amend Ch 12 Art 11 Stopping Standing and Parking

	5 · 2926 : Storm Water Project List / Proposed Bond Discussion
	6 · 2915 : Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual arrangements
	7 · 2914 : Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of services
	8 · 2922 : Receipt of legal advice which relates to matters covered by attorney-client privilege
	2918 : Invocation
	9 · 2907 : Greater Columbia Chamber of Commerce/BRAC Funding Fiscal Year 2016/2017
	9.a · Chamber of Commerce Contract (2016-17)

	10 · 2906 : EngenuitySC Funding 2016/2017
	10.a · EngenuitySC Contract (2016-17)

	11 · 2905 : Central SC Alliance Funding 2016/2017
	11.a · Central SC Contract (2016-17)

	12 · 2891 : Safariland Body Armor
	12.a · Lawmen's Quote
	12.b · SC State Contract #4400011992

	13 · 2831 : 2016-2017 Everbridge Emergency Notification System Renewal Service Contract
	13.a · 2016-2017 EVERBRIDGE RENEWAL SERVICE AGREEMENT
	13.b · EVERBRIDGE - City of Columbia, South Carolina_Fully Executed Amendment_07_2014
	13.c · EVERBRIDGE - City of Columbia_Fully Executed SA_06_2012

	14 · 2902 : Adavanced Automation Consulting (AAC)-PMO
	14.a · AAC Terms

	15 · 2888 : Purchase of a Heavy Duty Backhoe
	15.a · R177136 - BLANCHARD MACHINERY QUOTE
	15.b · R177136 - BLANCHARD MACHINERY SC CONTRACT

	16 · 2887 : Purchase of a 2016 Caterpillar Excavator
	16.a · R177611 BLANCHARD MACHINERY QUOTE
	16.b · R177611 BLANCHARD MACHINERY SC CONTRACT

	17 · 2892 : Purchase of Toter Roll Carts (96 Gallon)
	17.a · WASTEQUIP QUOTE WQ-10024618
	17.b · NJPA 060612-WQI

	18 · 2890 : Purchase of a F750 Ford Truck with a 571E2 National Crane Mount
	18.a · H&E QUOTE
	18.b · NJPA 03215-GUS

	19 · 2910 : Project SS739901;Tanglewood Road Sewer Replacement
	19.a · BID016-16-17-TBR Tanglewood Road Sewer Replacement Council Documents

	20 · 2826 : Ordinance 2016-083 SCEG Easement City Water-Wastewater Facility 4011 Beltline
	20.a · 2016-083 SCEG Easement City Water-Wastewater Facility 4011 Beltline

	21 · 2827 : Ordinance 2016-084 convey ROW N Springs-Risdon Way Project to Richland County
	21.a · 2016-084 convey ROW N Springs-Risdon Way Project to Richland County

	22 · 2894 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-063 Chili Cook Office in Five Points (Nov 12)
	22.a · R-2016-063 Five Points Chili Cookoff

	23 · 2898 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-065 Main Street Crit (Dec 17)
	23.a · R-2016-065 Soda City Crit (Dec 17)

	24 · 2896 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-066 Vista Lights (Nov 17)
	24.a · R-2016-066 Vista Lights (Nov 17)

	25 · 2895 : Resolution No.:  R-2016-068 USC Alumni Center Homecoming
	25.a · R-2016-068 USC Alumni Center Concert (Nov 4)

	26 · 2917 : WM423101
	26.a · Cover Sheet - Canal
	26.b · Attachment 1  Bid Tabulation
	26.c · (REVISED) Bid Results and Recommendation Memo_090816_2nd revision_compiled (Canal Clearwell)
	26.d · Attachment 3  Letters of Deductive Costs Proposals
	26.e · Attachment 5  Site Map
	26.f · Attachment 4  Business Information Records   

	27 · 2793 : Employee of the Month - July 2016
	27.a · July 2016 Employee of the Month Nomination

	28 · 2730 : CRC911 Presentation of CALEA Award
	29 · 2923 : National Museum of African American History and Culture Day
	29.a · National Museum of African American History and Culture Day (3)

	30 · 2921 : Columbia Museum of Art
	30.a · Columbia Museum of Art 9-20 presentation

	2919 : Building Code Memorandum
	a · 2016 Memo To Council RE  Code Changes

	31 · 2813 : Ordinance 2016-068 amend Sec. 5-51, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Building Code
	31.a · 2016-068 amend Sec. 5-51, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Building Code

	32 · 2814 : Ordinance 2016-069 amend Sec. 5-71, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Gas Code
	32.a · 2016-069 amend Sec. 5-71, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Gas Code

	33 · 2815 : Ordinance 2016-070 amend Sec. 5-91, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Plumbing Code
	33.a · 2016-070 amend Sec. 5-91, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Plumbing Code

	34 · 2816 : Ordinance 2016-071 amend Sec. 5-111, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2014 Electric Code
	34.a · 2016-071 amend Sec. 5-111, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2014 Electric Code

	35 · 2817 : Ordinance 2016-072 amend Sec. 5-131, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Mechanical Code
	35.a · 2016-072 amend Sec. 5-131, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Mechanical Code

	36 · 2818 : Ordinance2016-073 amend Sec. 5-151, Adoption; conflicting provisions  2015 Property Maintenance Code
	36.a · 2016-073 amend Sec. 5-151, Adoption; conflicting provisions  2015 Property Maintenance Code

	37 · 2819 : Ordinance 2016-074 amend Sec. 5-171. Adoption; conflicting provisions 2009 Energy Conservation Code
	37.a · 2016-074 amend Sec. 5-171. Adoption; conflicting provisions 2009 Energy Conservation Code

	38 · 2820 : Ordinance 2016-075 amend Sec. 5-191, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Residential Building Code
	38.a · 2016-075 amend Sec. 5-191, Adoption; conflicting provisions 2015 Residential Building Code

	39 · 2821 : Ordinance 2016-076 amend Sec. 9-61, Adoption 2015 Fire Prevention Code
	39.a · 2016-076 amend Sec. 9-61, Adoption 2015 Fire Prevention Code

	40 · 2908 : Ordinance No.:  2016-088  Lease Renewal 3905 Ensor (BB&T)
	40.a · 2016-088 Lease Renewal 3905 Ensor (BB&T)

	41 · 2909 : Ordinance No.:  2016-089 Bright-Meyers (Capital Stadium) 8th Amend Purchase Agreement
	41.a · 2016-089 Bright-Meyers (Capital Stadium) 8th Amend Purchase Agreement

	42 · 2899 : Ordinance No.:  2016-090 amend Ch 12 Art II Stopping-Standing-Parking
	42.a · 2016-090 amend Ch 12 Art 11 Stopping Standing and Parking

	43 · 2903 : Ordinance No.:  2016-091 Amend 2015-092 Extend Temporary Waiver of Permit Fees (Flood)
	43.a · 2016-091 amend 2015-092 temporary emergency administrative procedures

	44 · 2863 : FT Annex- Woodcreek Phase 3 (partial)
	44.a · FT-ANNEX-ThePark_Phase3
	44.b · 2016-085 annex Woodcreek Ph 3

	45 · 2862 : Ordinance 2016-086 - FT Annex Woodcreek Phase 2 (partial)
	45.a · FT-ANNEX-The Park_Phase 2 (part 2)
	45.b · 2016-086 annex The Park Ph 2 Woodcreek

	46 · 2916 : Annexation - N/S Deerpark, N/S Island View Circle, Jacobs Mill Pond Rd
	46.a · FT-ANNEX-Woodcreek East Woods_Lake B-3
	46.b · 2016-087 annex NS Deerpark NS Island View Jacobs Mill Pond Woodcreek

	47 · 2901 : Resolution R-2016-069 Adopt Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	47.a · Memo_HMP 2016 Update Final
	47.b · R-2016-069 Adopt Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan

	48 · 2931 : Resolution No.: R-2016-070 MASC Hometown ED Grant Match
	48.a · R-2016-070 MASC Grant Match

	49 · 2911 : 2015 CAPER
	49.a · Memo City Council Agenda 2015 CAPER 090916
	49.b · 2015 CAPER Draftv2-090816

	50 · 2864 : Comp Plan Confirmation- 1104 Deerpark
	50.a · 09-20-2016_ZPH_Case Summary_COMP PLAN_1104 Deerpark
	50.b · 2016-079 add 1104 Deerpark Drive to Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map

	51 · 2865 : Comp Plan Confirmation - 9 & 13 S Olmsted (Village 1A)
	51.a · 09-20-2016_ZPH_Case Summary_COMP PLAN_TheVillage-Phase-1A
	51.b · 2016-078 add 9 and 13 S. Olmsted Ln to Comprehensive Plan 2018 Future Land Use Map

	52 · 2866 : Comp Plan Amendment: 4202-06 N Main St/4201-05 Horry St/106-10 Kinderway Ave
	52.a · 09-20-2016_ZPH_Case Summary_COMP PLAN_4202-4206_NMain-4201-4205_Horry-1206-1210_Kinderway
	52.b · 2016-080 amend Comprehensive Plan add N Main Horry & Kinderway

	53 · 2867 : Comp Plan Amendment - West Gervais District Plan
	53.a · 09-20-2016_PH_CaseSummary_COMPPLAN_WestGervais
	53.b · 2016-081 adopt West Gervais District Plan

	54 · 2868 : Design Guidelines Amendment Case Summary
	54.a · Guidelines Amendment-West Gervais Guidelines

	55 · 2869 : Map Amendment - 1104 Deerpark Drive
	55.a · 09-20-2016_ZPH_CaseSummary_MA_1104_Deerpark

	56 · 2871 : Map Amendment - Village 1A
	56.a · 09-20-2016_ZPH_CaseSummary_MA_TheVillage1A

	57 · 2872 : Map Amendment - 2210 Rosewood
	57.a · MA_2210_RosewoodDrive

	58 · 2873 : Map Amendment - 1012 Woodrow Street
	58.a · MA_1012_WoodrowStreet

	59 · 2874 : Annexation - 523 Winmet Dr & N/S Amberley Rd
	59.a · 09-20-2016_ZPH_ANNEX_523 WinmetDrive - and - NS AmberleyRoad
	59.b · 2016-082 annex-incorporate 523 Winmet & NS Amberley

	60 · 2781 : Citizens Advisory Council for the Police Department
	60.a · CPD_CAC memo  0916

	61 · 2912 : Municipal Election Commission
	61.a · Election memo  0916a

	62 · 2889 : Planning Commission
	62.a · PC_Memo_0916



